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. PREPARING FOR RETIREMENT: - - .
CRISIS OR CHALLENGE? - - J .

- . 'MONDAY/JUNE 19, 178 ' °

- - 'U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
' ' ,SUBCOMMITTEE ON RETIREMENT *
: INCOME AND EMPLOYMENT, .
OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON AGING, °'.
) . . ' »Washington; D.C. -

. - The. subcommittee met, pursuant to notice; at 9:30 am., in room -
2203, Rayburn Housé Office ‘Building, the. Honorable - Fied B.
Rooney (chairman of the subcommittee) presiding. - = S

" Members present: Representatives Roonty of Pennsylvania,
‘Grassley of Iowa, and Regula of Ohio. - . e

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN FRED B..ROONEY Ry
Mr. RooNEy. The subcommittee is meeting this morning to deter-

mine’ how the goal of ‘adequate retirément .preparation for every
American can be best achieved. : , e
The concept of retirement preparation has gained greater signifi-
cance as a result of several interrelated factors: The growth-of an.
aging society, the trend toward earlier retirement, the enact ent, .
of Federal legislation liberalizing mandatory retirement pol?éles,
and recent developments in Social Security and public and private
pensions affecting coverage and benefits for. retirees. :
It has become increasingly apparent that with all of -the finan: | -
‘cial, social, and psychological ramifications of retirement: by choice, -
it is essential to plan for that life stage which could total one-=«
quarter or even one-third of an individual’s. lifetime. - T
- Moreover, increasing opportunities for second careérs, job shar-
ing, part-time employment, and other flexible work options aré
likely to make an individual’s retirement plans even more complex. - :
Ideally, retirement planning should begin in one’s early working -
years andscontinue throughout the life cycle. In my opinion, the- .
challenge we face as a society is to incorporate retirement prepara-
4 tion into«the total human life cycle in such a manner that-the *
actual event of retirement signifies financial security and self-. *
* fulfillment rather than crisis or trauma. i . ‘ o
- I have here a prepared statement from. our. ranking minority
member William C. Wampler, that I would liké to submit for the
record at this time. ‘ . : ,
[The prepared statement of Representativé‘ William C. Wampler
follows: T - , B o

. K
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STATEMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE WiLLiaAM C. WAMPLER

Mr. Chalrman, I wish to commend your outstanding leadership in scheduling
today's hearing on ‘Pre aring for Retirement: Crisis or Challenge. With approxi-
mately 11 percent of America's population “age 65 and over and increased. life
expectancy, pre-retirement planning is becoming an augmented necessity. Legisla-

- tion, recently enacted, banning mandatory retirement in the Federal sector hnd
increasing the age for private sector employment to 70, will allow older Americans
greater freedom of choice in rétirement. Planning for retirement avill be essential in
exercising future employment and retirement options. I am concerned that we not
only. focus our attention on those individuals immediately anticipating retirement,
?ut also encourage younger employees to consider pre-retirement planning for the,

uture. ]

I wish to extend my sincere appreciation to each of our distinguished witnesses,
who rgpre'sent a wide spectrum-of knowledge and experience in the pre-retirement
-field. Today we hope to assess the need for pre-retirement planning, examine the
structural aspects of effective programs, and gain insight into the benefits derived ,
from pre-retirement programs. ' - e . )

Retirement planning must address economic, vocational and health needs of an .
individual; and incorporate a wide ranfe of information includi,ag: financial plan-
ning, preventive health and nutritional needs, legal counseling, second and third
career training; educational opportunities, and the constructive use of leisure time.
Prograpls must be designed to eliminate misconceptions concerning older years and

g to helff retirees strive towards continued productivxtﬁ. . v .

- ° "Tfe adjustment to living on a fixed income is perhaps the most traumatic experi-

many oldér Americans face upon reaching retirement. It is alarmifig to note .

less than half of the labor force is covered by a private pension plan and the
mgority of retirees rely on Social Security as the major or only source of retiremen

© 4 IncC . Planning for older' years must be a continuous process throughout life.®
Emplbyers  should begin to inform employees early in their careers of financial
options regardimg: pension benefits, savings, investments, legal matters, and contin-

. ued employment options to assure thatretirement years will bring financial securi-

Rty . o .

A~1974 survey by the General Accounting Office revealed that less than one-third
of 255 Pederal agencies surveyed offered pre-retirement education programs. There *
is no substantial evidence that adequate lf:_rograms exist in the private sector. Today
we must reassess this information and fi

' urther study the value “of pre-retirement
programs in helping retirees successfully make the trahsition from work to retire-

ment. :

' Prospective retirees who prepare for their future needs and demands usually meet
retirement. with realistic expectations and are more capable of making their retire- Ny
ment year§ challenging, satisfying and ewarding. Enrollment in pre-retirethent
educgtion ,programs often is the future retiree’s first serious awareness of the
coming_ sle rance from work and nearing retirement. Let ug remember, the longer -

" we wait, fhe less influence we will have on sht:f)ing “our destiny in later years.

Retiring from the American labor force has traditiopally been defined as a with-
drawal figm an active working life. This, however, should not indicate a withdrawal .

from an‘active life. Employers, in both the, public and private sector, must realize

~ their responsibilities to those who have given a lifetime of service by preparing
employees for what the future may bring in retirement years. ..

. Mr. RooNEY. The subcommittee is privileged to receive testimony
this marning from two distinguished, Members of Congress who
have ¢hosen td retire at the end of the 95th Congress, after out-
:_?tandi' g careers of public service spanning many years. . s

Follgwing my eolleagues will be Dr. Robert .C. Benedic,ta the .
Commissioner on Aging, Department of -‘Health,- Education, and
Welfare, Washington, D.C. : - .

. At/this time we are privileged to have Congressman Del Clawson: -

lffornia as our first witness. : . .

de proceed Congressman. . - e

‘ N . .
_STATEMENT OF HON. DEL CLAWSON, A MEMBER OF
i" CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Mr. @LAWSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

W . . .
R ' o R
O o . . L -
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' . Mr. ‘Rooney, We welcome you to the committee this morning.
.. We appréciate very much your willingness to participate in this
e 100, ; T, ‘ B :

r"m.fmwson; Thank you, Mr. Chairman. . S

... I githered one of the reasons’ for my inyitation was.so that you
- ‘could"Have me in front of you, rather than befove the Rules Com- . °
. “mittee, where we are discussing'the railroads. 3 v

- Mr, RooNEY. You have been very kind to me over the years.

* Althqugh we don’t agree with one another every day of the week

. ' oir major issues in Congress, you have been a tre ngridous asset to

- the Congress, and we are very sorry that you have dcided to leave.

. "You are tgo young to leave. ", S :

- ~Mr.-CrAwsoN. Thank -you\very much, Mr. Chaitman. No, I'am -
gld enough to ;lea\fe. Of course, thislis_ by design *and not by accis
“"dent, . v .
... _There is nd prepared statement. However, T 'will be -happy to

.discuss some opinions with you. ' . - : - e
' My:reason for retiring goes back a long time. I ,had -made up my .
'inixig that when I reached age 65 that was the time to do it because
we_had kind of arbitrarily set that 65 age limit for retirement.
‘Regardless of what Members of Congress can do, in. my own
. .mind, if I were still in fairly decent health and could economically -
afford to retire=-I planned to do.so—I didn’t want to stick around
.- here until I became senile—P don’t believe I have reached' that
" point yet.. T N
. So, I am prepared to enjoy seme of my—1I anr not going to use
* the term twilight years because I hope to be around longer than
the twilight part of life—family associations and' somg, time for'nty ..
own, things that I enjoy doing outside of the pressure of Con;ress
+ ,. Health became one reason,-of course, too. " . T
' One of the key things in retirement is whether you can economi- .
~ cally afford to retire. Marjorie and I decided that could be done .'
becaus¢ our needs are very little and’ obligations practially none.

.

+ . So, we decided we could go ahead and live on the retirement
income, plus a few thousand dollars, perhaps on the'side. - .
Mr. RoonEy. Had you thou%t[.about this many years ago? Have
you planned for your retiremen long in advance? - .. ‘
- Mr. CLawsoN. When you said planned*for it, Mr. Chai,t;man, the
specific plans, no. When my colleagues ask me what I am going. to- .
do next year, I tell them I'am going to write letters, most of them *
nasty letters, to Members of Congress. So, that may or may not be
the plan at this moment. - - . b e
. I.Eadn’t planned that years ago. It is only since I_have been.in
* Congress that I decided to use that patticular-vehicle for retire-
ment. But I have hobbies, as you are aware, Mr.-Chairman. I have
* 'interests in: the community, interests in a lot of the things thatare -
going on outside of thé Congressas well, . .+ ..~ - .-
So, I have no problems, I don’t believe anyway, in' filling my -
time. Most of my colleagues, colleagues, who have retired, have told
/ me I will probably find myself busier in'retix;emgnt than I am as.a .
- Member of Congress.” - < . C .
. Mr. Reengx. You have done many things on a volunteer basis.
Mr. CLawsoN. Exactly. I belong to about a.dozen senior. citizen’s
clubs right now. Of course, a lot of that was for political reasons

. - . . . .
.
y - \ .
* ’ / . N
- . N
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[ : 4 : . .
perhaps at one time. But now I~ean go back and get mvolved in
some of them.

1 haye interests in civic affairs, community interests. I intend to
go right back te California rather than stay in Washington. I don’t
hfave Potoma ver, after all these-terms—it still hasn’t taken hold .
.+ of'me. ' S, ' * '

*" Mr. RooNey. I wonder if you would comment on the recent law ,
* that Congress passed with respect to mandatory retirement. -

Mr, Crawsox. 1 voted for that, of course, and favored the exten-
sion of the time. I think the senior citizens, those over 65; have a
great deal to offer to our community. Those that are still in good
mental and physical health certainly should not be forced to retite
if they don’t make that decision voluntarily.

** MrcRooNey. How about the private m.dustry, and the policies of
. many:corporations? >
" Mr. CLawson. I think that ought to be changed too, as leng as
~ they can work and 'handle their job or position. -

Mr. RoonEey. Thank you very much, Congressman Clawson. We
appreciate very much your appearance before the committee today,
I am glad to. know that you are goirfg back to California. Your
retirement s a great loss to the Congress.

Mr. CLawsoN. Mr. Chairman, . appremate that. You and I, of
course, came to Congress at the same time, as you are aware-—"‘e
members .of the 88 club. ~

"If T might just detail what I .think are important’ things in
retirément: . -

First, the economic ability to retire is probably the, pnme requi-
sxte—bemg able to retire financially. If you are not, then that
makes some real problems.

Second, I think iu do have to-have 'some plans, as you have
mdxcated some rather concrete plans, so, that you don’t just sit at
home, atrophy, and eventually pass away far sooner than you
would on the job.

That means either hobbies or mvolvement in some pnvate or -
civic organizations, whether jt is church, lodge, clubs, or other,
programs of one kind or another. -

There are a lot of things that can be done. Voluntarism—some of
the programs that we have where senior citizens-cah be helpful in
the private sector.

- Mr. RoonEy. Here is another one of your colleagues whg i is a
semor’c:-tl.zen, Corigressman Skubitz.

Mr. CLawsoN. Come on up, Joe. There is another thmg Joe and I
have offered to do. Joe and I have' offered to be the sacrificial
lambs for any overseas trips, or any junkets, anything of that. kind  °
betweenk now and the end of the year that any of you Members:
can’t take. .

' STATEMENT OF HON. JOE SKUBITZ, A MEMBER OF CONGRESS :
FROM THE STATE OF KANSAS A '

Mr. Skuerrz. I didn’t know. exactly, what you have expected I
have written a masterpiece. Do you mind if I read it? .

Mr. RooNEy. 1 hope you wiil summarize it.

Mr. Skusrrz. It isn't l‘ong It is only 25 minutes:

.




" achieve, not a chapter in our lives to be dreaded. It

.

.

- filled with happiness and contentment, depen

5 -

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for inviting me to participate
m the hearings on this subject, Preparing for Regpirement: Crisis or
Challenge? : : : >

As you know, Mr. Chairman, 35 years of my life has been spen
here on Capitol Hill. It has been my second home. It has been
life. The happy days andythe experiences and the friends add
acquaintances I have mad® here are all a part of my book/of
memories that I will ‘take with me when I leave Capitol Hill,
particularly the happy moments, Mr. Chairman—I say this sindere-
ly—the privilege of serving on the Interstate Commerce Com
with you and particularly on the Subcommittee on Transportation.
...The one thing that does. bother me really about leaving /is the
trouble you are liable to get into after I leave. If I can h p you,
please give me a ring. : '

But there comes a time when each of us must hang/ up our
political shoes and I think it is better that we go away/with our
constituents gaying, “‘Gee, I hate to see you retire,” tha “My God,

I am glad he is gone.” - ‘

- Personally, I have ‘always felt.that retirement w.
as 50 years
ago, Mr. Chairman, in 1927, that I received my tedcher’s certifi-
cate, and my first job teaching school at $125 a mongh. . :

I wanted to go on to college, but we were having a depression in
19274We didn’t have to wait for the one-that gtarted in 1933. I
received $125 a month for 9 months. The board/4f education never
dreamed of offering to pay us for the 3 months/that we were out of
teaching, nor did we have the nerve to ask foy/it.

I remember like- it was yesterday, Mr. Chairman, that I took
home my first paycheck and handed it tg' my mother, for it was
then that I began dreaming about retirenfent. :

I say that sincerely because I rememtber looking at my father’s
little home, a little five-room hou by any standards you use
today it was substandard—and I thgught if I had a home Tike my
~dad’s, five rooms—I wanted a‘ batKroom hecuase the one we had

was 75 yards straight east of the
~a few chickens, and a garden, ghd a cow, like he had, an outdoor
cellar where we could store thjfgs, and a $50 a mdnth retirement,

- as advertised by the Phoenix Insurance Co. in those days, I had it

made. .
. Well, my plans have changed.a number of tifnes since then. I

* ‘think the same might bé said, though, of many otherse., -

Mr. Chairman, Doug MacArthur once said old soldiers never die,
they just fade away. I think that is true of retiring Congressmen,
also. But you know, in that fading process, whether it is dull or
lonely or filled with anxieties, or whether it is d3‘new experience
ith ] upon how each

person plans for his retirement, how you chart your course and,

more importantly, his pont of view. ¢ , .

Of course, each of us will obtain ‘happiness and contentment in
different ways, ar retirement can be tragic.
There are some people that feel that accumulating money and
-land is the fountain of all happiness. Of course, money is necessary
to meet vur need, but I think Lee Trevino said pretty much what I

' 9

itchen door—and if I could have
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would like to say when he said: “You never see a:Brinks truck .
following a hearse in a funeral processmn '
I think too many people put too mach emphasis just on the
accumulation of money and land. I often think when I taught
school, and I had a young orator at one time who wtrote an oratlon

“on how mych land does a man ‘actually need.

He concluded that about all the land a man actually eeded in
the end was a plece of land 3 foot wide, 6 foot long and six foot

deep.
I should say I spoke to a number of my colleagues wt;/en I decided
to retire. I asked one of them what he would suggest, ‘and he sald

. first get a.rocking chair,-and Just sit for three mbnths..

. desire to spend somebody’s money.

’

‘men who are good and the,

looking forward to 1t

I said, “Well, what do you do after that?” He séud “Then you
begin rockmg

Another colleague of mme, fulfilling his life dream—and I sort ‘of
admire him—he was an exceptional doctor—you all know him—
after he had made his mark as a doctor he came to Congress and
tried to cure some of the ailments of this bod in their insatiable
b! .,

Then he bought a boat. He and his lovely wife moved from one
point to another doing the kind of things t}}ét they wanted to do in
life. You know, to me he has an idea -about retirement because,
after all, retirement is only another chapter in our lives, and it
should be the mast satisfying, the most r wardlng experience of all.

That periogd in our lives. when we dan do the things that we
always wanted to.do, to dream, to write a book, paint a picture, to .
work just for the joy of working for ¢ 'c%z’mge at the kind of work
we want to do, and couldn’t do when e were growmg up and
raising a family. .

To teach young people—if we like that—I do—so they may ‘un-
derstand and avoid some of the pitfalls that we have encountered
in our lifetime, and to help oldey people help themselves. ,

It can be so if one plans and prepares for his retirement with a
little help, of coirse, fr: he'Lord-to keep us in good health, and
some from Congress, if they quit spending our money, and stablhze ‘
the value of the dollar.

You see, I am on the other side of the fence now, Mr. Chairman.

When the day comes wHen age makes it difficult to move abdut,
God w1111ng, I hope that/each and every one of us can follow the
poem written by Sam Fdss when he said:

Let. me' live in a house b the side of the road where the race of men go by; the °
en that are bad, ds good and as bad-as I; ,
1 would not sit in the scorner’s seat or hurl the cynic’s ban; let me live in a house:
by the side of the road a?o d be a friend to man. #
Let me live in my hotisep ~by the sidé of the road, it is here that the race of'men ga
}:y, they are good, the}/ are bad, they are weak, they are strong, wise, foolish, so-am

:Then why should 1 sit in the scorner’s seat or hurl the cynic’s ban; let me live in

*my house, by the side of the road, and be a friend of man.

+ That is the ﬂvay I look at retirement, Mr Chalrman I thmk it is-

a new challenge.
I have_prépared as best'I can to meet that challenge, and I am

. B
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___could pick it up again, I picked'i€uap. . - ..

Mr Roonxr When I was 2 back m 1927 you mentloned that
you were thinking about retu'ement then, D,xd you;’-‘ uy t it msur-
- ,ance plan? ’ L . L S ;
: kMr‘qunrerdxd Coe ’
“Mr. CtawsoN. Do you still have 1t? '
. . "Mr:Skuarrz. No, I couldn’t: afford it.- In 1933 I had to dro I
iust couldn’t keep up the payments or.it. It makes me think' of-a
ot of folks, young 'people that talk.about their’ ftustratmns and i
desire, and old people that didn’t makeit. = -
"I wondered if they planned ‘to make it from’ the very beglnnmg L
It calls for sacrifices all the way' along the line. But as. soon as I -

4-/4,

When I came to, the Congress of the United States, T mlssed on - o
the first 5 years of my retirement. It was: $1,800 ‘a year. Going .
through law school, a wife and a kid to support it-was kind of hard
‘to take up a retlrement plan. But the mmute I got a ‘nickle ahead .
Iwentbackandp1ckedupthe5 years. - o

. So, it ‘has all been a pattern of my hfe, lookmg forward to the'_'_ :
new ,Chapter we are beginning. o

‘It'is a period ofaging as far as I am concerned I want the next o
72 years, that I'can do'the things I want to-do for a change. I can
.do them, Mr..Chairman, if you will hold the line up here L TR

Thank you, Mr. Cha;rman Do

Mr. Rooney. We have $1.2 bLlhon railroad bill commg ap: next' :
week before the - Rul‘ C mmxttee I hope ‘that.you will look favor— -
ably upon that. -~ .- g
- Mr. SkuBITZ. Th’aj vls a good bﬂl I want transportatnon for us
older people. You won’t let us dnve an automobile. You are gettmg -
the gas too high forts. = - ,

Mg CrawsoN: Mr. Chalrman does that include a little card a |
discount card for senior citizens, to use.the train? ‘

. Mr. RooNEy. ‘Some people live' 20 or ‘30 years after they retire. I
holele and I know that both of you will live that long.
‘ r. CLAWSON. Mr. Chairman, I just want to live as long as Joe

. has lived right now live to-be his- age. ”

°  Mr. SRuBrrz. Mr. ‘Chairman, age is just a state of mind. Some
people are semle at 35.'Others have good minds at 90. I hope mine = -
lsf ?ltlll good. But before somebody tells me. 1t isn’t, I am gettlng out ,

0 ere. - .
. -Mr. CLawsoN. Mrt Chalrman I have even been offered opportu-

‘nities to: get the old horn out again and start playmg So, I mjght

do that, when I get back to California. - >
. .Mr. SkuBrrz.. cidentally, I used t6 play. plano Lﬁ a three-piecé

orchestra -

-Mr. CLAWSON. I don’t want to live in Kansas,- but if you want to
come out to Cahform%I .

‘Mr. Roongy. Well, thank you very much, gentlemen e

Mr. SkusrTz. Good to be with you.

- Mr. CLawsoN. Retiring isn’t all that bad, Mr Chalrman‘ I wﬂl :

let you know in a couple of years. T

I\Zr RoONEY. Joe’s: retirement is gomg to make ita ot easwr for &
me next year. Thank you again :

Qur next witness will be’ Robert BenedJct the Commlssmner on
Agmg.froxn HEW.




J’S"ATEMENT oi‘ KOBERT C. BENEDICT, COMMISSIONER ON
AGING, ADM\NISTRATION ON AGING, DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

¥ Mr. Benepicr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. e g

s tange of preparing for this challenging experience. = . .
o In my remarks- today, I will bring to your attention the dramatic . .
- . .demographic. and sqclal changes which are altering our view of. '
?« tirement.

T
reparatlon programs, 80 that retirement is a more producflve and h
eamngful period in the lives of older Americans.’
-+ 0ur understanding of retirement.is changmg Retlrement o ..
’ 139 er- represents a mmple termination of “one’s: working years. -
I creasmgly it is a dynamic transition. fo a. w1demng and ‘more . '
" ‘whelesome pattern of lifestyles and oppoftunitigs for .older people
il etirement is no longer a luxury enjoyed by -a- few, nor is it
T 'vrely a period ‘of idleness for.those too old to
o _ﬂle The segment of our- population which- 1s‘-made up /of retired

' _‘pebple will enjoy 20 to 30 years of-living after formal-fetirement: ~
+, Retirement is a relatively .recent phenomenon Around the turn.

he century, few people lived to spend-any ‘apprecigble time in -
irement. Those who did grow old'usually continued aorking and .
r,e ined significant'roles in the family and community. -

iifof formal and systematlc benefits, retirement a:%pge 65 became
'Norm. ’

Practmoners in the. field of aging and" retn:ees hemselves now :
‘have come. to understand that prolonged pen s of enforced ‘inac-
,tlvxty aré unhealthy .in physical, mental, 8

Mandatory retirement is increasingly recogn
.ry, limiting - individual freedom. and causmg '
persons who wish and need to. continue. workmg

ras discriminato-

nc dtfe hardshlp on

.am delighted to appear before you today to conmder the impact.
retirement on the lives of millions of Americans and the i impor-

will- dlscnss the needs of retlrees for ‘meaningful retirement/ .:i .

rk but too young . -

ons will ‘continue to expand well into’the néxt centiry. Many . -,

ith the advent of social sécurity in the 1930’s-an the- avallabll- .

femotional - terms. =,

Dramatic social and demographic changes will affect the number L

of ‘people who retire, the apeof retlrement the 'length. of : the
retirement period ‘and ‘the. proportlon of—olsier persons remalnmg-*_
active in the work force.. - '
~ These factors ‘have far—reachlng 1mpl}2:atlons for retlrement

> policy decisions and deserve ‘meption again today. We ‘are in the

" . midst of a population-transformation. We are changing from a-
younger society to an older. somety In 1978 over 23 tmlhon persons,
or 11 percent of the population, is over 65. °

By the year 2030, when the children of the postwar baby boom' .
are aged, it is estlmated that about 57 million persons will be 65 or
older. They will represent about 18 percent of the. total population. -

According to recent studies, more and more employees are retir- . -

ing earliér. Thirty years ago, nearly one-half of American males =’ .

- over 65 remained in the work-force. By 1975 their participation had

- declined to 21.7 percent. Today, about 48 percerit of male retired
worktfa‘rbssstarted drawmg their social secunty benefits before t
age o : L
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Theére are an increasing number of persons ‘in ‘retirement. This
_ may be partly attributed.to those taking early retirement. It is also

due in part to the ingreased longevity. of. the older population.
Those persons who reach the age of 65 live, on the average, an-

.. other 16 years.”’

The recent changes in‘the mandatory retirement age from 65 to
70 for many-workers will have a yet unknown effect on retirement

.pagterns ‘in this country. Some sociologists'are predicting signifi- .
. cant changes in patterns of work.

. Each generation of older people is mo%? active and better educat-
ed. Econémic and.continued demographic changes may increase

— work opportunities for older people. The needs and desires of a

whole new Mwing generatiop ‘will produce new.demands and jobs.
Work and-refirement in the future will be quite different from
today. Those retiring in-the future are likely to be increasingly
. capable of a meaningful and productive role in society. .
Our growing®awareness of these trends is reflected in the recent

ssage of the AgeDiscrimination Act of 1975 and the amendments

"% _to-the .Age Discrimination in Employment Act passed earlier this
year, which raised the mandatory retirement age to 70’for many

worker's. ;-

Hearings ‘held by your.subcommittee reflect further evidence of
‘the growing seriousress of these issues, .
* The term “retirement” needs to give way to a more generous
ungerstanding of the émergence of alterriative lifestyles involving

new corhbinations of work, education apd leisure in the broader
context of living in the later years. S
Indeed, the ferm “retirement’ as we know ‘i may be obsolete. I
persanally’ wauld noj mourn its passing. R '
“Fhiise contituing changes in patterns of work and living require
a more creative approach to preparaeign for ‘livirg jin the later
years. An approach %
djust tq cessation of ork-and increased idleness is simply wrong-
aded and will carry enormous social dosts for future generations

of older people. . S

ich mevrely attetnpts to help former workers . '

We must move ‘simultanéousl)'t, ifr three critically :‘impqrthnt -

areas.

. « .
First, we must ehcourage and supbort the many trends aiready .- . -
evident in our society which afe-developing new vocatiopal, educa- " -

tional, volunteer, and civic ro
the middle and later years. L - .

Second, we must undertake eﬁrrts to help alder persons prepare
themselves for the-later stages offily. . -

es and opportunities far -pérsons in

Third, we must continue to aftack pejorative aftitudes and- ste- -

reotypes which continue to limit our understanding of the rich
potential of thdse living in their later years.

I am not endfrsing increased opportunities for the elderly as a

*matter of simple altruism. We have always placed great value on

the dignity and worth of individuals. We have always expected a
full measuse of work and self-suppo%( from all our citizens. ~

No other group holds these values more firmly than the elderly.
They are eager to contribyte their ‘energy to support themselves
and their families, and to/g:)tntribu&e to the continyed de@lopment

of community life.. \ . .

C
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Pragmatically, however, we cannot as a nation afford enforced
and unwanted idleness for 23 million older Americans in 1978, and
almost 57 million in.2030. ' T

Mr. Chairman, let me pick up on what we have been hearing just
a bit- . s ahy ‘ [}

I do agree with the Congressmen that probably the largest prob-
lem in retirement °is one of attitude, the attitudes of individuals

what older people are, and what.they can be, and what life in the
later years can be..

Mr. RooNEy. The way to go is the way the preceding witnesses
are going. -

Mr. BeNEDiCT. 1 think that is exactly right. If we can allow
ourselves to imagine what we have accomplished in extending life

imagine how important and exciting it can be, how culturally
diversifying it can be, to be adding, in effect, a whole new genera-
* tion of living Americans to every aspect of our,lives, whether it is
in public service or whether it is as grandparents, or whether it is
as citizens of the community," then that opening of the mind can do
arr enormous amount of ‘good for retiring older people.

. 1think it can also be an exchanging experience for the communi-
.ty in which older persons live. We sometimes forget that.

" The second point I woudd like to make is that we are not without
some experience. Through programs administered under the Older
American’s Act by the ACTION .agency, and by the Administration
on Aging, and by the Department' of Labor, as’ well as programs
administered, by the Action Agency there are how over 500,000
" 'ol@r people serving their communities as’ volunteers, in part-time

Jjob®r and in an enormous wariety of ways that help to set models
for the futtire. We ought to learn more from these experiences.

ing our attitudes toward .retirement. For corporations(it is not a:
matter of gratity. I think it is in their own self-interest.

To cite one exgiple, there is a,company in Great .Britain which
set up a program, which was iR essence a carperation within a
corporation, which provided jobs, ible work experience for those
older people. . -

. A few years later that corporation: of older people within the .
Corporation is offering several new lines of.products and an unex-
pectedly high rate of: earnings. : .

So, we must encourage business in this country and industry to
be imaginative. They do not need to see themselves as doing older
. people a favor, but d’;ing themselves a favor, and doing the country
a favor, by opening up whole new dimensions of productivity and
life- experience. . : s .

Finally, with regard ¢o retirement preparation itself, I would like
to Suggest that ghere is an opportunity, if we can imagine grasping
it. We have in this country a declining younger population_at the
moment, and a declining birth rate. .

In community after community we have public school systems
with school rooms closing down, Wnpty classrooms. There are
teachers out. of work. ' :

¢
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‘ »

It seems to me if we could imagine that life in the last 25 years

is as important as life in the first 25 years, then we might be able
to imagine a whole new dimension of the.educational resronsibility
of our public school systems, that of helping older people prepare
for retirement, and helping families to learn and .understand how
to care for a new generation of older people as well.

I think also of the enormous excitement that comes to my mind
about the possibility that older people are pot only in the class-
room alongside childten as fellow learners, but also as teachers of
another kind,' who bring the enormous experiencé and culture and
background of their life to the ¢ducatio rocess itself.

In closing, let me say once again, tha believe what we really
need to do is set aside the word “retirenfient” in terms of cessation
of work and understand it maqre ‘as rocess by which we all
prepare ourselves-for living in the later . In doing so we will

izé a much more wholesome kind of envilgnment than we have
had in the past. T R

[See appendix 1, p. 47 for Mr. Benedict’s prepared statement.]
* ¢ Mr. RooNEy. Thank you, Commissioner. : :

In my letter of invitation to the witne I posed three ques-
tions: ) .

One: What needs should be met by any adequate system of
retirement preparation? . ,
Two: In such a system, what should be the relative roles of the
public and the private sectors: Government—Federal, - State and
local; industry—labor and management; educational institutions
and community based organizations? o S
‘Three: What, in your view, would be the most appropriate and
effective ways of inducing today’s young and middle-aged adults to
prepare for security and fulfillmient in their later years? ’
I would like to have you comment on these questions.
Mr. BeNepicT. I am not sure there is a single way. There are a -
. number of national organizations that are begifining to make an
* investment in retirement preparation. One route ‘certainly involves
encouraging employers to be more involved and responsible in this
respect, by making retirement preparation as important as work
orientation programs. ' ‘ . : -«

Another route, as I have suggested, is the possibility that we
- understand retirement not so much as cessation of work, but as
preparing for living in later- years, and that we examine the enor-
. mous possibility of putting to work in another way the public
school systems which we have created. We can’ try totuge these
systems as a way of- offering all older people at the neighborhood
and community level where they live and work the opportunity for
broader educational experiences, which would include preparation.
for retirement. ' :

I think these rre important investments and are worth exploring:

substantially.

A colleague of mine & few years ago said something to me that I
have never forgotten in-this respect. It was very intriguing to me.
‘He S‘aid: L] . e a - . :

You know. when a veteran comes back from overscas, we recognize his contribu-
tion, what he has done for his country, and the benefit of what he has done, and we

‘ v o

see in him eénormous potential. Consequently we came up with a GI bill.

15
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He said, {‘Perhaps what we need is a GY bill for older people.” 1
am not sure the issue is the investmen} of large amounts of public

our educational systems, an%‘affording older ‘people the opportuni-

ty to use them, to ‘explore

years. : . ‘

.~ *Mr. RooNEy. What do you believe will be the major factor most .

:+ likely to affect national retirement ‘practices and policies during

. “the next 30 years? ‘ ' -

- - -Mr. BeNEDICT. Well, first of all in my’ judgment older people have
the same right to aspiration$ for tHe future as the rest of us, and
they carry an enormous reservoir of independence and determina-

-tion. They are prepared to continue to work, to support themselves
angd to support their families. : L y;

Given the opportunity, and given changing dimensions of wh t
work can be, I believe tha:‘!i‘hgre will be a shift in the decline Zf
oldet people in the work fo » and we will begin to see more older
people in‘the work force. - ’ .

(Vg Second, I cannot overemphasize the significance of the sheer
presence of older peoplesin the community. Every. generation of
olﬁf people from henceforth will be better educated, healthier,

. more involved. .

I believe that their sheer presencg in-the community as neigh-
bors, as fellow workers, is going to Rave an enormous impact ‘on
the attitude of that community gbout aging, and in and of itself
will change the nature of retirement.

. ~Idon’t think we should underestimate the impact of the change
in the mandatory retirement law, or the ‘report of,-the .United
States Civil Rights Commission on Age Discrimination. -~ -

I think all of these things have.combined to sting our consciences
A little bit about our Perceptions &nd paternalism with -which we
lave for to6 long logked at aging, and are going to change those
attitudes. . : - ) )

" So, I look at those kinds of things: The need for income, the
inhérent value in work an involvement that older people them-
selves have, their improv health dnd vigor, and perhaps a new
dimension of the cjvil rights movement in this country, which

begins.to restore to dlder people a sense of equglity in their person-

" al'and public lives. o ‘ i :

. .Mr. RooNEY. Thank you, very much, Commissioner. [ appreciate

the very great cooperation. you have given this committee. I think

- /Pénnsylvania’s loss in your coming to Washington is our gain.
r. BENepict. Thank you, Mr. Chairman-

) Mr. RooNEY. Our next witness will be Ersa H. Poston, Commis-

- signer, U.S. Civil Service Commission.

STATEMENE OF ERSA H. POSTON, COMMISSIONER, U.S. CIVIL
SERVICE COMMISSION, ACCOMPANIED BY THOMAS TINSLEY,
DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF RETIREMENT INSURANCE AND 0OCCU-t
PATIONAL HEALTH . ¢ e . ‘ ~
Mrs. Poston. Thank you, Mr. Chairman I am very pleased (o

‘appear ‘before you. today, to present the views and record of the

Civil Service Commission on the subject of ‘‘Preparing for Retire.

ment: Crisis or Chajlenge?” ; ;

16
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Accompanying me is Mr. Tom Tinsley, Director of the Bureau. of
Retirement Insurance and Occupational Health in the U.S. Civil
Service Commission® .

.. In doing so I witf attempt to address myself to those areas of
interest to the subcommittee outlined in Chairman Rooney’s letter

*  of May 19, 1978. ) . i

For almost .20 ydars, the Commission has‘been concerned with
exploring and deyeloping programs to help Federal employees pre-
pare for the chgfging economic status, health problems, increased
lejsure time,rafd shifting social and family relationships that ac-
company aging and retirement. We have also been concerned about
the rele Government, as an employer, should play in offering such
programs. And we have some views on ways of encouraging the .°
employee of today to prepare for the future—both financially and

- otherwise. - :

>+ * Ten jyears ago, the Commission ‘employed Dr. Daniel Sinick of

George Washington University temporarily for the specific purpose
of studying the: need for and’ effectiveness of retirement planring
programs. Dr. Sinick’s findings ‘did not provide positive proof that

* retirement planning programs help employees adjust to retirement.

.. He found that the vast majority of Federal employeés do, in fact, .

" adjust satisfactorily. However, there, was sufficient support “for £ .

»  planning programs in his report to convince the Commission that/
its prior policy of relative neutrality needed to be modified. Accor
ingly, the Commission moved to a much more positive posture pf

- encouraging and assisting agencies to make -preretirement plgn-
ning services available to employeegswho want them. .o
In November. 1974 the General Accounting Office reported on
their review of preretirgment tounseling programs for employees of -
the Federal Government. The report reached the conclusion that
the need for preretirement counseling had not been clearly demon-

+ strated. They found that although a few individuals ‘may’ have
difficulty adjusting to.a nonwork, retirement situation and suffer
the phenomena of retirement shock, there was little evidence that
this experience was very widespyead. . '

They recommended that the Eommissipn provide clear guidance
on the natute and extegt of preretirement counseling activities
that should be available to all Federal workers, and the report

- suggested that they should go no further than insuring that each
agency furnishes reﬁring employees with information about their
retirement rights and obligations as stated in the Federal person-
fiel manual. ‘ .

The Cominission responded that the policy of promoting and

* encouraging agencies to establish preretirement counseling services- .

" was purposely not made more extensive and structured ‘because it -
did not appear that one specific program.gould be designed to
satisfy the wants and needs of more than 2 million Federal employ-
ees. The ‘Commission anticipated that the individual agencies
would exercise initiative in develoqing programs that would meet
the needs of their own employees. Tt was also expected that many
agencies would go beyond discussions of the Federal benefit pro-
grams—retirement, life insurance, and hedlth benefits—and delve
into such subjects as budgeting, health, use-of leisure time, legal” .

) T . .
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\
aspects of retirement, adjustment to the retirement e@ironment;
et tetera. ’

In fact, we have fougd—through onsite visits and other means—
that many agencies do supplement the basic information provided
" to employees about their benefits. Preretirement seminars, which
are usually aimed at employees age 50 and up and within 5 years
of retirément, often include technical experts from the Social Secu-

rity Administration, local banks, and hospitals or clinics. Other -

speakers may include retired employees and members of retiree
organizations. A few agencies use commércially prepared booklets
which are mailed to the residences. of employees nearirlg retire-
ment eligibility. These booklets cover a wide variety bf general
subjects, such as handling your taxes, and are prepared by topical
experts. . , . . :

Aside from our role in encouraging and assisting agencies. to
make preretirement planning serdices available to Feleral employ-
ees, we have also responded to many requests from private indus-

try; foreign, State, and local governments; educational and reli- .

gious institutions; and private citizens about the nature and extent
of the Federdl Government'’s preretirement counseling activities.
Other indications, such as coverage in journals, retiree publica-
tions, and the news media, are that more and more employers are
providing retirement planning as an integral part of their overall
employee services program. A recent study of over 400 companies
revealed that 38 percent had a preretirement counseling program.
The author of that study noted that this’ percentage was much
higher than expected, Further, of those, companies which had a
- preretirement counseling progtam, nearly half—45 percent—re-
ported that they planned to expand the program, -
With respect to the role of educational institutions, we are aware
that a number, of colleges and universities provide training in
developing and administering a preretirement planning program.
The Pre-Retirement Planning Center at Drake University, for ex-
‘ample, has been in the forefront in training preretirement program
planners for many years. Locally, the American University’s Divi-
sion of,Continuing Education ‘recently, began a series of preretire-
ment planning workshops. -

There has also been a significant increase in the past few yearsi-

in the number of private concerns devoted solely to the develop-
ment or administration of package preretirement planning pro-
grams. The number of contacts with the Commission by these firms
has dramatically risen, and we continue to receive inquiries from
time fo time from a new entrant in the preretirement field.

In terms of inducing today’s young and middle-aged adults to
prepare for their later years, we are of the opinion that this is
essentially a long-term education process. Some experts on preretire-
ment planning suggest that the process should begin during the
formative, school years. Others feel that the 5 or so years before
retirement is the propér time to inform cmployees of their retire-
ment expectations. Oux view i5 that this is a continuing learning
process—starting with initial orientation about the benefits
provided by employer, progressing to periodic reminders via
informational 1ssu or group Ieetings throughout.a career,

(o \_ 2
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and culminating in formal seminar or individual counseling ses-

~ siops in the years immediately preceding retirement. _ )

e in the Federal sector admittedly are fortunate to have estab- .

lished, longstanding programs for both the finaneial and other less
tangible aspects of retirement preparation. And I feel we can'take
pride in the fadt that the Federal Government *has been the pace-
setter in this area. Howpver, we are not content to stand pat on
our past record| We will continue to review existing policy in this
area, and make any changes that will assist employees as they
advance in age in making decisions concerning retirement and

" make the transition from the weskaday world into retirement life
a smooth and satisfying one. A ’

I wish to thank you for the opportunity to.discuss these matters
with you this morning. I will be p)eased to do my best to respond to
any additional questions or requests you or the members %( the

. subcommittee may have. - . .

Mr. Rooney. Thank you very much for that very fine statement.
I certainly concur with your statement ori gage 3,starting with the
initial' orientation about the benefits provided by ah employer,
contjnuing throughout the career of a Federal employee. ,

-+ I think that.is one solution to our retirement problems in this
-.eountry. R
.-In’1974 the GAO study which you cite in your testimony has

~ been superseded, I understand, by a more recent study released by
- the GAO, on April 17 of this year, is that correct? -
- Mrs. PostoN. That is the one—— e
. Mr. TinsLey. We have not seen that study.
Mr. RooNEY. You are aware of it? T
Mrs. Poston. Oh, yes, we ate quite aware of it. .
Mr. RooNEY. It demonstrates, in my opinion, a positive correla-
tion between adaptability to retirement and retirement planning.
. To quote directly from this report: “The less the preplanning for
" retirement, the poorer ¢he postretirement adjustment.” o
What reyvisions does your Commission intend to make in its
policies ce?cerning the preparation of Federal employees for retire-

ment, in view of the more recent findings by the GAQ? .

Mrs..PostoN. Well, once we Have had an opportunity to reyiew
their total report, certainly we will have to put forth new :initia-
tives towatd implementation. As you know, wd usually try to re-
spond as forcefully as we can to those reports. e

One -of the things that we do know from our own activity in
terms of trying.to work with our personnel agencies, and through
our interagency advisory groups, we have tried, as much as we:
have the authority to do, to lay out very strict guidelines as to how
agencies may, within their own agencies, develop the kind of pro-
grams and preretirement counseling that fit the needs of that
agency. .o : )

We do not try to be the superior vne in terms of this at all. It has
been responding, Mr. Chairman. In fact, I have some recent figures
here that we have checked where in 28 agency headquarters right
here in.Washington, we have some form of preretirément counsel-
ing or planning program in those agencies. This includes what
around here we call the socalled Big 20, plus 8 small regulatory
agencies. . ’

l.i/
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The Federal executive boards throughout the country, and where
we arq working in direct-relationship with agencies, in the regions,
we have found. that there are joint preretirement segsions for all
employees that are in those localities.— "

To: illustrate this, the Federal® executive board in New York,
Atlanta, Chicago, New Orleans, and the like, they are trying to do
a collective preretirement planning seminar-type thing where they
can reach the largest number of people. , . ' : - .

. .- These initfatives have. come from our small bureau in this area.
. Wotld you want tb respond to any of this, Tom?~ -
Mr. TinsLEY. No; I tHink you dre doing fine. 7. .
 Mr.- RooNey. Would you agree that g¢he ultimate responsibility
“ for the policigg governing Federal civilian pergonnel is vested in
the Civil Service Commission? - . g - .
Mrs. Poston. I'think that the ultimate responsibility in all per-
| sofnel matters should. . N T :
Mr. RooNeY: Why do you leave it to the individual agencies? I
think that is wrong. I think it is far from satisfactory. Do you not
believe that every agency of the Federal Government should be
L] re}guiregl to 'off'ei,'-"a'program of retirement preparation to its ém-
Ployees? .~ - " . o .

'« Mrs. PostoN. Let me see if 4 am sure ahout this, Mr. Chairman.
. You“would think, then, that the Civil Service Commission should .
provide the central service for Preretirement counseling for all 2

million of our employees? . . ' Co.

Well, we 'talk about trying to decentralize more authority.to.the
agencies for their: own “individual initiatives. But- I think it is
something we wbould just have to be guided by your- direction.

What has been your experience, Tom? You have been .at ‘this for
how many years? . Lo

Mr. TiNsLEY. The experience, M¥, Chairman—our previous expe-
rience, and the,reas& for the decision on .furnishing guidelines

' encouraging agericies, attempting to assist agencies and'decentral-
izing authority is the different makeup of the working population
in the various agencies. ‘ ’ .

~ It would be practically impossible to develop programs, that
would fit the needs of each agency. :

For example, the Postal Service. The makeup of that work force
is entirely different than the makeup of the work force of an
organization like NASA. . . :

- The approach to the employees in terms of their needs would be
quite different, the type of information that they would need that
would be most beneficial to them would he a little bit different.

So, the Commission’s position, up to this point in time, has been
to try.and get-the agencies to tajlor these programs to meet ‘the
needs of their particular work force.

Even within agencies, to not necessarily give their professional
emdpléyees, the same, type of retirement counseling and approach
and help that they would give their clenical and nonpréfessienal

staff. ! w

. LA 74&
Thl;else are some of the reasons that the policy was left loose and
flexible. . ‘
" Mrs. PosToN. We just establish the guidelines. We do grant tech-
nical assistance. Also, we could do much in terms of tailoring the

<
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- types -of seminars they have. So, we are not completely removed
from them, Mr. Chairman. e :
. It is just that the ingtial tailoring of the pregram we would think-
should be done dt the agency level to their personnel, . e
Mr. RooNEY. But you do follow up on all of the agencies? .
Mr. TinsLEy Yes, we .do run surveys of what is’ going oni“We »
have recently completed some. Unfortunately, tRe final results and
the_hanal sis of what we gathered is not available today. It should -~ '
~ . be Shoftly, and we will be glad to furnish it to'the committee. :
* ., [Material referred to not receivedat time of printing.], - .
Mr. RooNEY. I -would appreciate that very much. C
What do you feel will be the effect on retirement planning pro-
" grams of the newly enacted legislation eliminating mandatory re-s
tirement in the Federal sector? ° T~ T
Mrs. ‘Poston. I would say that we shouldn’t have any ‘more
difficulty than we have had previously in terms of planning for
- whatever that period is going to be.. : s )
' 7 . 1 think it should be just an extension of the same kind of thing
that we would have done if it was mandatory. I really don’t thik
* it should make any difference.
Mr. RooNEY. And you do favor the extension? .
Mrs. Poston. As I begin to progresd in years, sir, I certainly do. °
Mr. RooNEY. Thank you very much. We appreciate your coopera-
tion. '
~ Oyr next yitness is Dr. Virginia Boyack, Andrus G‘e?omology
- Center, Unirsity of Southern California.
@ ~ Welcome to the committee, Dr. Boyack. . ,

< STATEMENT OF VIRGINIA LEE BOYACK, PH. D., PROJECT DI-
' RECTOR, PRERETIREMENT EDUCATION AND .LIFE PLANNING
PROGRAMS, ETHEL_PERCY ANDRUS GERONTOLOGY CENTER,

. JUNIXERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA -

-" Dr. Bovack.-Thank you, Chairman Rooney. «

I appreciate the opportunity to share'some information that we
‘have gleaned through our experiences and regearch at the Univer-
sity of Soughern California, Andrus Gerontology Center.”

* As you requested, I shall summarize the statements and digress
from the paper I have prepared. g

‘Mr. RooNEY. Without objéction, your statement will become a .
part of the record. : - p

[See appendix 1, p. 59 for Dr. Boyack’s prepared statement.]

Dr. Boyack. Thank you very much.

You had stated there were three questions to which you wanted
us to direct our attention in this testimony. I will do so.

-First, what needs should be met by an adequate system of retire-
ment preparation. From our findings and our experiences, we have
found that an adequate system of retirement preparation must
meet the diverse needs of the people with whom we are working in

< society.
. They rtepresent diverse expericnces and diverse sbs%onomic
levels, s well as diverse age and ethnic groups.

The following are suggestions founded upon such a premise: A
suggested system for retirement preparation should be founded

» upon a lite planning concept and participation should be based

.
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upon a lifelong lea@ing concept—very similar to Commissioner
Poston’s remarks. . . : : . ‘

We suggest that there be’an orientation program for each em-
ployee upon hiring, which would provide a foundation for life plan-
ning. It is also suggested that seminars be presented at regujar
periods and cover on specific topical areas, such as financial plan-
ning. Attérapt should be madelé attract younger people to partici-
pate in life plannifg, Programs, especially financial options which
may be provided through various benefit programs, or through IRA
or Keogh plans. . '

Such suggestions are more‘JCarefully delineated in the compute
testimony I have prepared for this hearing.© -

We also found_in our research at the university that it was
important in preretirement planning to look at the various socio-
economic levels. Many of the reretirehent education programs
existing throughout the United tates at present unfortunately are
geared mostly to a middle-class socioeconomic level.

We have experienced working with groups from under $5,000
year to well over $200,000 a year. , .

It is important to meet the needs of each socioeconomic group. |
am fully aware that there are organizations such as UAW, which
are providing very fine programs for the blue-collar workers.

In general, however, what is available through public and pri-
vate- firms and institutions are geared more to such a middle
group. . ‘ "

It is important, as Yyou will note, that planning and prepartion
for the future are geared to the many issues that we face in

health and vitality maintenance, to use of time, and to self-fulfill-
ment.

upon retirement from formal employment. )

We have developed a brochure, a copy of which you have, that is
called “Planning by Objectives,” T won’t g0 into the various topical
areas which can be read at anather time. We have found that the
planning-by-objectives concept works - with every sociceconomic
level and background.

See appendix 2, p. 184 for brochure submitted by Dr. Boyack.]

*Dr. Bovack. It is important to recognize that we will be answer-
ing questions such as: Will I have sufficient annual ‘income to

Have I established a long-range health maintenance plan? Havégél

tion into retirement? What are my current interests and activities
What gives my life a sense of fulfillment? What concerhs do I have
about my own aging process? And have 1 develpped a viable plan:
for my future?

To go back a moment to this lssue about the aging process We

" found that there s tremendous :esistance to participating in prere-

tirement education programs, whether those Pprograms be conduct-
ed in the community, at educational institutions, or at the employ-
ment site One of the reasons for such resistance may be that

S
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people resist the whole thought of the aging process and, that an
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_ invifation to attend a preretirement education p'ﬁogram may be one

of the signposts of aging.

We found that the %ears of planning for the' future are often
based upon the fears of our own aging process. So, if we cah in
many ways destroy the myths and stereotypes about the aging
process, we may break down some of the resistance to retirement
planning. We must reinforce the concepts, that in retirement we
have the opportunity to be challenged—very much like what “John
McLeish has written about the Ulyssean adventure in life—the
opportunity to explore new avenues and to open\ doors to.new
challenges. . ) .. * .

You will note in the research cited in the prepare testimony

{

that there is data supportive of\the need for preretitement plan-

)

* ning. We know that those who have planned well for retirement do,

indeed indicate a higher level of life satisfaction.

The provision of an adequate system of retirement preparation.
would necessitate both financial and retirement progra ésenta-
tion support from those agencies, organizations, and pglitical insti-
tutions in a position of influencing decision by g nment, busi-
ness, industry, union, educational entities, to offer such a system, -
or any part of such a system to individuals and to groups. .

In response to your second question, sir, ih-such a sytenr what,
should be the relative roles of the public and public sectors, govern-
ment, industry, educational institutions and other community-
based organizations? In general it is suggested that these entities
work cooperatively in developing opportunities for individuals to
explore the impact of the various transitions which may occur in
the individual’s life especially retirement preparation. It.is impor-
tant to recognize how such transitions may affect, financial stabil-
ity, mental and physical well being, familial and social relation-
shfps, and the dynamics of individual lifestyles. There are more "
specific suggestions made as we move through the prepared testi-
mony. .

As to your third question:

What in your view would be the most appropriate and effective way of inducing
today’s young and middle aged adults to prepare for security and fulfillment in
their later years? . oL «

Research indicates that exposure to life planning processes acts
as a motivational force for individuals to seek additional igforma-
tion, to change attitudes about life planning and early retirement
~preparation, and to even change some pattepas building towards a
more positive lifestyle for the future. More definite responses to
this question can be found in the prepared*testimony. .

We have some recommendations we would like to make in re-
gards to preretirement preparations. .

The intensive 4-year experience with the USC research model
development training commitment and program implementation
has provided data and experiences which provoke the following
suggestions to the Subcommi}&ee on Retirement Income and Em-

plcgment: % : ,
ne, 1t 1s su’g(\gest,ed that attention be given to the InCreasing

- proliferation of retirement <ducation and life plauning programs

and the increasing numbers of providers of such programs.
: :

ﬁk}
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capitalize upon that need and the efforts of others.’ S
* ‘I am_going to take 24 moment to tell you a story which is very
indicative. . L . : :
- I had two gentlemen recently arrive at my office who were very
anxious to discuss preretirement education programs. After talking
to them for w minutes, something was crawling along my spine .
sayig, “‘Sorffthing is wrong here.” ¥
I question e gentlemen, and talked with them, and found out
,that they were-tremendously jnterested in providing a program on
-7 breretirement education in Las Vegas, Nev. They were tremen-
doudly concerned about the older people they had met jn that
. n COmmunity.. . ! IR
S They, had_gotten a book off the library’shelf and had prepared*s
! program based upon ap outline from that book. They aiready had
‘ 21" reservations at $310 a’ person for a 6-week program, 2 hours
.., -each week. \
After questioning them further I found out that one is a black-
jack dealer and the other, his uncle, is a used-car salesman in'Las
Vegas, Nev. ) .
With all due respect to both ¢f these pﬁ)fession_s, they were not
quatified gentlemen to be presenting this kind of a program for
. fpeop;e who were either anticippting retirement or already in re-
tirement. ' .
Mrrnf RoONEY. What was the outcome? .
Df. Bovack. The outcome was I called the Better Business
Bureau in Las Vegas ang informed them these two  “shysters”

or not, I do not know, L
Another recommendation we have is a result of our' research

which indicates that most preretirement programs provide a 10- to

20-hour awareness building approach, necessary in helping people
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Our experience also led us down the track of working with 110
high schogl students. 1 was intrigued as to whether ‘eur PREP
model would work.with a younger group of people. We worked with
one group, predpminantly low-income black students, one group
predominantly. middle-class-white school egrollment and one con-
tinuing school group representing low-income, multiethnic back-
grounds. It wgs 'indicated through their erithusiastic participation
that we had hed a button and, that there is a possibility of
intriguing young people to think about of life planning.

" Anothet Suggestion is related to the subcommittee's support for
needed teseaxch in the following areas: (1) Appropriate structures,
techniches, ipformation and dissemination processes for retirement
preparalon for all levels of society; (2) Job maintenance and/or
redesign for older workers; (3) Time use as it impacts on the
mental and physical wéllbeing of the aging individual; and 4)
Methods by which linkage systems can be developed between labor,
management, educational institutions and the individual, as such
linkages relate to the subjects of age and employment and retire-
ment preparation.

It is further suggested that the Subcommittee on Retirement
Income and Employment assume a role of leadership in this emerg-
ing field of retirement preparation and life planning by supporting
the need for effective and extensive programs in preretirement
education for Government employeese. This subcommittee ean
indeed become the catalyst for the sponsorship of such opportuni-
ties by Government agencies across the Nation, as well as for labor,
industry, business, educational institutions, and community organi-
zations and agencies across the Nation.

Frankl, in his book, “Man’s Search for Meaning,” states that
“the striving to find a meaning in one’s life is the primary motiva-
tional force in man.” .

That is the task, sir, awaiting al§ of us concerned and Interested
in the future of our young, midgle-aged and older adults in the
United States. '

I will end my comments at this particular moment and be happy
to respond to any questions.

" Mr. RoONEy. You have alluded to the gersonnel policies of the
Federal Government. Do you agree withqivhat Mrs. Poston said
_about the U.S. Civil Service Commission’s involvement in bringing
to the attention of the various agencies in the Government? Do you
think they are doing the job they should be doing?

Dr. Bovack. I think they are doing the best job they could
possibly do with the 2 million people with whom they must be
concerned. 1 am sure they have drawn on fine consultants to give
the kind of advice that will help in the development of their
programs

There is more that can be done, there 1s always more that can be
done But I am sure we are all concerned about the financial
aspects and feasibility The question is how best to provide an
. effective program with the least amouut of cost— a cost which niust
go back to the taxpayer B} .

I would be hopeful that we could develop a molivation tuice
which wquld intrigue individuals to do a lot of such planniug on
their own There are programs provided through community col-
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‘leges and universities, as well as through employers. I think one of
our great concerns.is that we do not seem to be able. to -intrigue
“People to think about their future. This is why I like the plan that
Commissioner Poston meﬂn!:io‘ned}'l‘hat Preparation and planning
happen on a periodic apprgach, from orientation on through the
exiting process of the -employee “from' the full-time'employment-.'

Mr. Rooney. In your opinion, to what extent do”you believe the
.Nation’s educators are recognizing. the need for the type of life-
cycle planning which you advocate in your testimony? =

Dr. Bovack. It is -happening. T think ‘there are a few unique
institutions which dre now working on the basis of what we cgll
“life planning” Loncepts. We. arg'.switching fram .what we call
Ppreretirement—and I am not sure what preretirement planning-
means any more—to life planning concepts and px;ggf‘am develop-

If mandhtol'i’.fe!:"irement is no longer in eiisteqce, then when
does preretirement. planning start? - ' .
Mr. Roongy. Do you think the new attitudes toward death and

. we look in the mirror and see the evidence of aging And our own.
mortality before us each day, the graying hair and wrinkles and
little brown spots appearing hither, thither and yon. :

Mr. RooNEY. I never see those. . : ,
Dr. Bovack. Well, bless you, I'am' afraid I do every morning.

.¢ This word “youth” is a very intriguing word. I am not using it as

much in our programs as J used to. I think it is more a sense of
vitality, the vitality demonstrated by the two gentlemen before us
earlier. It comes from a sense of well being, a sense of self-fulfill-
ment. If we can give people that sense, I think we are on the right -
track. ‘

I had a gentleman sit with me the other day for counseling. He is

54 years pld and thinking about taking early retirement .in_6

retirement at such an early age, and he said, »
Well, I havé reached a point of stagnation 1 have been sitting at the sawe desk
tor 20 years and watch people move up and around m ave been looking in the

mirror recently and saying. “Hey. fellow. you are getting older— what iy your
future?"’ ) d ;

He has decided he is BOINE O Lry a new adventure 1 ltte '[his
willingness to change was triggeved by one of our PREP programs
at Hughes Aircraft Co. Th® fact to highlight here 1s that there are
Many people in the middle years who fee that they are at a polnt
of stagnation Such a feeling may be held of the ewnploying busi.
ness, itself 1 call this the mutual Stagnation syndrome -and
mutual disinter est i, one anothier

Unfoztunately, this is happening i tamatly ltte u., well Wo notioe
that there is an increuse in the divorce 1ates i, middle age —

<
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- _at'the table at which

" planning programs T

ple of mutual stagnation..Appropriatd life
help people révitalize their lives. :
ble program, there were two people sitting
s working.. The last-thing we do in ouft

perhaps another éxa

At a recent round

. ‘program is give peoplé an opportunity to make a commitment to .

. like: {‘We hadn’t tho

the ,future. As we -went aroufid the table, peoplegwere makin
commitments, such as: “I am going to go out\andd&ve a-medica
examinstion because 1 haven't had one for 6-years.” Or something
u&ht ‘about all the optians‘for living arrange-
‘ments in retirement. We' hdye to lpok’ around before we make the
decision that will have long-lhsting effects.” . - e '

.. We.continued around the table to a woman, whe looked up at the ,

gbup, and said: “You know, my hushand and I are going to fall in
ve together-again.” He put his arm across her shoulder and said:

“Marie and | haven’t talked together for 10 years or more like we

have talked together in .the.last 2 days. You have not only opened
our epbs to'one‘another bt lso our hearts.” ’
I guess in many ways that is what these programs ‘are doing is

- opening ‘éyés .and hbarts. to clearer thoughts and more positive
__perceptions about the future. ' )

-Mr."RoonEy. With reference to the" itement on page.3 of your

', testitnony™to what-extent are preretirefgent preparation programs

‘tory ‘socializatien. lNow, of course,

a form of anticipatory spcialization?

Dr.gg:mcx. In every way that you-can‘think of, becausg when
you afe-sitting there in a program Kou are experiencing anticipa-
there are many ways of giving
preretirement .edugationprograms, ks our research .indicated. For

- instance, you car li#fen to a lecture on the topic, with a person

.. persen 'is experiencin questions and'shdring
. edge and skill, we find that.one ‘can do a better. job of anticipating

talking at you during rost of thé process. Our research’indicated

- that" attitudes, behavior and content s infermation -changed more

0}

significantly with what we call a “group dyneazﬂc _process.l"’n If ;a ’
periences, knowl- .

what: the future will be_when having had the opportunity to ex-
plore that future with other people. In the group dynamic process
there-are more.opportunities to exchange ideas, as well as-estab-
lishing a solid foundation of information. . - '

. Is that responsive to yout question?’ _

‘Mr, RooNEY. Yes: .~ :

~Dr. Bovack. I think that it is definitely the method by which
these programs are developed- which, will ‘lead to the greatest
change in attitudes and behavior about:life planning as well -as

. -increased knowledge about retirement issues.

Mr. RooNgY. Thank®you very much. ¥ou have.been a very excel-
lent witness, and we appreciate your testimony. . ° : ‘

*Dr. Boyack. Thank you for asking us td join you. . e

Mr. ROoNEY. Our next witness is Miss Betty Booker, Richmond
Times Dispatch; Richmond; ,Va. Youseem to have approved all of
the previous witfess’ testimony. . B 4

. “ * STATEISEN'I‘ OF MS. BETTY_BOOKER, RICHMOND TIMES

. * 1 DISPATCH, RICHMOND, VA« | [.¢ ~

' Ms. BOOKER. Yéq, I picked out things I' thought were interesting.
\ . . . . - . | Y

o .
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Dr. Boyack ‘is right on the mark, because I found’ when I was
researching aseries of articles, which I am not going to go into in
detail, that the Duke University and Michigan cepters were the

est sources of informatiox: in tie Nation on preretirement plan-
ning. R * ' » ‘

But what I am going to tell you ‘today is what I have learned
fromjust listening, not only to the professionals, but to the older

¢ ‘people about whom L write. I have found out what old people want

' most from society that they are not etting is a genuine respect nat .
based on condescension and patérnalism, but on the same opportu-
nities everybody else has, for food, income—that with some egree '

- of adequacy-—hoysing, clothing, and transportation, and a'few of °

those little unngtessary things like p;eRents for grandchildren and
?n occaﬁional trip somewhere besides home, They are not asking
or much. & ;o

But for many of the retired people I have talked to, there is little .
.in ‘our society that gives them the tools for sound preretirement
planning. For instance, in the research for that series of articles; I
found that thorough,“and the emphasis is on the word thorough,
Klreretirement planning programs are just not to be had in this \

- Nation,, ’

. The University of Michigan found in a series of studies they did«
that only about-50 companies in the Nation really offer a good
Preretirement training program despite the 1974 laws, and they
"+ also found that only 25 percent of the Nation hds a savings of any
" kind. That is pretty poor. : ., o .
The banks which have financial consultants, and not all of them
do, while they say they would be willing to help low income people
with their retirement or even lifetime ‘financial planning, the fact
ig that they~are not consulted' by the vast majority of retiring R
Americans or people at all stages of life. They just don’t come in.
- Very few grade and high schools offer any sort of basic househgld
. family financial Planning, which, when you think. about it, is a
good way: to contribute to marital discord between financially igno- .
rant husbands and ‘wiveq, It is the No. 1 source of argument,
. marriage counselors-say. * - ‘
Mr. RooNEy. | agree.
.. Ms. Bookex: So do 1. c - o
. » If the groundwork were Prepared early on in the, marn'age,\*’e-
tirement) income planning could begin from a,,*h‘n_e bage instead
Yo current practice of not planning at all of the last-minute,
- In"my opinion, wHich .is based on my' research and my conversa- -
" tions, actually listening is more accurate since I am, a reporter, to |
the older-people about'whom I write, an adequate system -of prerg- °,
tirement education would include not only thorough money pHn-,
ning but also a consciousness-raising about the aging process itself.
Far too many people in the younger age brackets act like aging is
something that happens to somebody else until tkey begin to notice
a few gray hairs and wrinkles. :
, It is interesting to note, also, that the Vir%inia Commonwealth
ﬁnivqrsity’s ‘continuing education periodically offers courses in
family financing and ousing -and preretirement education, and
nobody shows up; and they have to cancel the course. It is very

interesting indication about the need that is there. -
s :
& ,' 2 8'\ .
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. The pi m would also include an indepth discussion on health -
~ and ‘health _care, the secondmost worrisome aspect about retire-
. ment, housing altexnatﬁ:i\rg,.w.lﬁch are very expensive on_limited
- incomes, importadit legal 1ksues that affect older people, and how to
make the most meaningful use of the 8,000 or more hours a year a
retired person has that were formally occupied by work. . . e
However, it appeafs the ‘current attention to the retirement
roblem is often being diverted from providin fundamental every-
ay tools people can use-throughout their lives to'prepare for: -
retirement.’ -Ideally, %}-ogr‘am ‘on preretirement " planning should
begin from the time the person enters t work force, if not sooner,
when the future workers are in‘school. The reticence on the part of
.. young and middle-agéd persons to face the inevitable is an indica-
tion -that much joint public and private cooperation has to be
* undertaken immediately. ! . ' AT
. To me what appears to be needed.is some, sort. of widespread
educational campaign which may sound simplistic, but we are deal-
__ing with'such a, undamental need that it has to begin there with
» knowledge. And although your poiitictirviewa-marfe—contrary—té—_——'
this and the Federal butgiget limited, I have a feelingthat the major ~
_thrust for this education is gojfig to have to come from the Federal
Government in-the form of some well-placed grants to the few -
genuine reretirement experts so that the information distributed
will be adequate and accurate. : FEN
" Mrs. Boyack referred to the con artists. It is unbelievable the
.nurnber of books thdt come across mty desk that dre nothing that -
anybody could possibly use in sound financial planning or even an
understanding of the aging processing itself. These. educators,
which' probably would have to come from the three- main centers
on geréntology in the Nation could . train State and local go%m‘-‘\
ments, management, educational systems and qommunity—based ors
ganizations like churches or sehior centers or even younger Jay- .
~ cees, people :like that, in the how-to’s of retirement. Once these . :
systems ‘are .edutated, I think they are gding to see that it is to : .-
eir benefit, financial and otherwise, to support these gystems,
. themselves. Their ignorance is appalling. Management ignorance is
appalling; as well as the man 6n the street. They don’t-understand
it, and they don’t want to think about aging in any form, and
_retirement is a form of recognition, rsonal recognition that you .
. "are, in fact, going to die someday, an this is part of the process. It’
has been viewed as the. last step; you know, hen you retire, you
- have one foot in the grave. The, meaning of old age needs to be
enhanced. . o . i : i
~ I guess it.is sort of like the dentists’ keep-your-teeth-clean cam-
* paign. It is begi inioto work, dentists tell me, And in this pro-
' framl am talki ut, the specialists would call the pub-
ic's attention to the whole aging concept, and the need for prere-
tirement lqnnin%. : : : S e
Now, the ‘people out there, the older _people, are saying that
increasing the mandatory retirement age-18 réally great, but. it is
not going to do away with these prejudices held by an uninformed
~ population, and I don’t think ‘that business or government or the
young can afford to ignore it any more. e S .
. I'would be glad to answer whatever questions you have. : 5

-
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. [See a
the Rainbow or End of the Road?” by Betty Book:

pendix 2, & 192 for booklet entitled t‘Ret]i;'ement, End of
o er.] - ~

Mr. Roonky. Thank you. Tell me something - about your back. -

ground, Ms. Booker. You are a reporter for the Richmond Times

patch. .
Do they have a s@ctiox)‘*dehling with older citizens?
" Ms. BookER. I am one ‘of the few reporters , who specializes in
aging. I also specialize in mental health, but this is a-rare bird in
Jjournalism. . . :
Mr. RooNgy. It certainly is.' I have hever seen it before. Do they
ve a special section ? R ' ’ '

KER. No; I am the s ial section.- T regularly follow
fact tal

issues on’ aging. Actually, the I write about ‘mental heajth
coincides with aging and the philosophy of agin‘f very well, because
when you write about how ple view themselves and the .trends
and the basic concepts, you have to deal with the fact of living and
the broblems therein. ut there are few people like me, andg it is
really due to the editor and-the management being interested in
-such a concept, - LT ' ' '

count for major _illnesses, ‘unexpected expenses and other out-of:

ket drains on retirement that is 2% times your annual income.
In your opinion, given the current cost of living rate and'the rate
Inflation, I wonder if you would tel) the'committee if you believe

much money. If 25 percent of the Nation is not saving any money
at all and-only about 63 percent have any savings, which have
decreased, according to the University of Michigan, ‘and the rest
won't tell, obviously 2%:tim your income is going .to be impossi-
ble for most people. But that still is ideally what it might take you
to live all that time, you see. If you have no income, you have to
" live on something, L . - ‘
r. RooNey. Well, with the growing limitations on our tradition-
al sources of income, and I am talking about sociaj security, private
pensions, individual savings, do you think that the Government
will be forced to assume more res nsibility in this area? - .
‘ alll;'o do, because I think that people

.....

" have to face their own responsibilities of control of their own lives.

coast all through their lives.” - ‘ . W
Mr. RooNEy. I' agree. with you, and you have been:a_fine witness,
and I appreciate . ve miich your appearance here today. ‘
‘Ms. KER. ' you. _ -
Mr. RooNgy. Do you know Dr. Boyack? - .
" Ms. Bookkr. We bave met. ‘

Mr. Rooney. The way Ms. Booker was shaking Rer héad,“"/Dr..‘

Boyack, I thought she wrote your testimony.
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Our next witness will be Mr. John D’Agogtino, Older and Retiréd
Workers Department, United Auto Workers, Detroit, Mich. :

STATEMENT OF PAUL A WAGNER, COMMUNITY ACTION DE-
PARTMENT, UNITED AUTOMOBILE, AEROSPACE, AND AGRI-
CULTURAL IMPLEMENT WORKERS OF AMERICA, ACCOMPA-
NIED BY JOEL L. OLAH, :PH. D., CONSULTANT, RETIREMENT
_PLANNING PROJECT, * RETIRED AND OLDER WORKERS DE-
PARTMENT, UNITED AUTO WORKERS,

Mr. WagNer. Mr. Chairman, because of the illness of Mr. -/
_ D’Agostino-. he will not be able to appear here, 80 I am taking his

LX)
P

place. ‘ .

1 &m Paul Wagner, of the Washington Legislative Office of-the
Auto Workers Union, and I am ®n the Community Action staff,
and joining with me is Dr. Joel,Olah, who is a consultant to ogr
Retired and Older Workegs Department in Detroit. .

Mr. RooNEY. I trust you heard the statement made by one of the
‘witnesses saying the auto workers had one of the finest retirement
prle;/faration‘progranis in the country. . . "

r. WAGNER. Well, we heard the statement, and I think it is
flattering, perhaps we had better hold it aside for the moment,
because 1 don’t think we have reached the ultimate goal in ‘pre-
retirement educatjon. . L

I would like to start and summarize generally by saying that®in

- the Auto Workers Union we do have 350,000 people, on retirement
at thef present time. This means that there is a tremendous group
of wd¥tkers in our union now heading into thjd,preretirement years.
.Our ufiion is 1% million strong and preretirement education has
been part of our program for perha%s;ZO years or more, from 1957,
when the first retirement programs began. . N .

I believe the UAW people, our wotkers, retire to something and!
that we do have through our 1 tired ‘workers depaftment, a staff
who are equip to service the retired members of our union who
have organized their own retirement chapters. We have a commu- ~
nity action -staff of 40 people; we have an, education staff of 40
other people, so perhaps as many as 100 fufl-time staff people can
at some time, be involved in pre-retiremgnt programs. We have' .
been a pioneer in our union in these programs and gervices for -
older workers, since we formalized it in a convention resolution
that we passed back in 1957. _ .

But even these programs certainly,are not adequate to meet the.
heeds. We need'more’ ¢ omprehehsive fype, programs delivered to .
the community Scene, ard we also Kave alspecial’need ta develop: A
speclg‘lc programs for blue-collar workexs ‘8 db..thgtsseg;nqnt f -the,
population. ‘ N e A e T S \Z ,

Joel and I were talking’ We are; L. ﬂi%i‘.,k‘d E;Qm;.,?ﬁﬁ%; ‘testimotiy; as”
you will see, sort of coming from an urdp ‘;p%s;pecﬁvé,f-becaﬁse;
two-thirds of the UAW iembership.are jus T four Stated=sMichi- *
gan, Ohio, Indiana, and Illinois. . o TN AL

Mr. Rooney. How about Mack Truck in Allentown, Pad . sa. bd

Mr. WaGNER. We have about 100,000, in Pennsylvania, so we aré .~

. making progress. But the thing, too, is it seems to me that with the. -
delivery of programs to’the com \inity scene, it just can’t be to the s
urban areas, and 1 am thinking"of a lot of people such as ‘our’

)
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members in Detroit who are now - going back to Kentutky and
Tennessee and other places, and | hope they are not so far out of
« ¢ touch with programs that they will be bypas’sed.

We do need Programs that should be available to al] people in
the community_and not just to workers in a given industry. So, -
therefore, ednﬁf:‘iqn, government, industry, and the cgmmunijty
should have organizations that must coopergte in program develop-
ment, - . ; )

We also need to look at the opportunities for time off, and this, I

.

In the agricultural implements industry the\JUAW hag Successful-
ly bargained for Preretirement leave time foR wgrkers with the
necessary seniority. Eligible workers are allow p to four weeks

+ of paid preretirement leave in order to mhke a syccessful transition
.to leisure time and to plan their retirement acti\m:y.
Other‘industries,, several academijc institutions, andsa few gov-
ernment ‘agencies have experienced 'a good deal of success with
phased retirement plans, Phased retirement allows the indiviQual
to* graduallykwithdraw from tke active labor force by increasing
time off the Jjob, by the hour by the week or by the month,
. We also think from the UAW point of view, there should be self.
v develppment programg, that is, career planning; there should be
- ‘community investment Programs of a social nature and also; as we

have found, there is a great awareness and great activity by our

_members in political actioh, . ; .

" There should be organizational restrficturing, that is, horizontal
rather than vertical structures of orgafiization, in order to involve
the younger ‘worker in planning for- security for the. later years.

~ We have a more Comprehensive statement which has beert'sub-
mitted. . o - , '

‘- [S&gappendix 1, P. 79 for prepared statement of Douglas A~
Fraser, presidept, International] Union, United Autpmobﬂe, Aero-

¢

Mr. Roongx. I have Just a couple of quéstions. How many retired

<

UAW emplqyees are.there?
Mr. WaGNER. Appro_ximétely 350,000.

L]
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Mr. RooNEy. What is the average—of.course, it depends on how
“mamy, but take an individual with 25 years of service, what is the

. average pénsion bemefit? - N -

. Mr, WAGNER. Beginning October of 1978, I guess it will be $700 a
monti'n, It is $650 a month now, and -it- will be $700 beginning. this
coming October. The average age for our retirees, I believe;js 57
and a -fraction; 57 years, so' the trend has beén—I believe, the

figures are here in the testimony—downward, 5o that persons rela- .
tivl&;%ﬁ young.in years are taking retirement. -~ g
ir. RooNEY. In your testimony you point out that in this coun-
try werlack a coordinated network of community base service deliv-
‘iary Iﬂhich could provide retirement preparation at the colnmunity
evel. N TR \ LI
I would like you to tell the committee how we can solve this

. problem. =~ * . - . -

" Mr. WAGNER. May I defer to you, Joel?
‘D¢ OLaH. 1 think in ofder to respond to that question you have

" to take a look at what is:now available in the community. As I say,
labor unions have been involved to some degree in retirement

-planning. Educational institutions to a degree have also been in-

volved. National studies indicate that some industries have been . ’

involved, but the critical element here is the quality of the pro-
graming that we have. ot the quantity. We feel that retire-
ment .planning programf genbrally have been very poor in quality
over all, and it has been\ thé jexception: rather than the rule where
we find comprehensive-type programing being provided to all seg-
* . men}s of the, workipg pépulation. S _ -
talk about retirement planning programs in some of the
ifidustries; which restrict "attendance, to: salaried employees and -

- exclude the blue-collar, hourly employee. This ha been a problem,

... which we hope to rectify. The; problefn is how far-do we go in the

. ‘community?-Who do we train’ as cordinators of a given progrim? .

. We have to cooperate. That is the ultimaté answer to this 'quegﬁ'bn\

We need the cooperation of institutes of gerontology which do have

‘experts in' the retirement planning, few though they might be.

These individuals added to the legion of resource people available
_in governmental circles—here we talk about social security, De-
' partment of Labor, and so forth-—coupled ‘with the exper{s availa-

ble in industry, and various community-based organizations who’
.- might have a given expert.in some. area or other; these resources
.+ "could be combined into an effective framework for service delivery.

- Retirement preparation ptograms could then be developed by these
persons within the community who would deliver. these .se es’

' directly to the population. ' -~ . S -
"' At the present time, the, UAW and its Retired and Older Work-

*“ers Department are hoping to be funded through either the, Admin-
igtration on Aging or the Office of Education, for a 3-year-project to
demonstrate how we can deliver,these services not only to our own’

.. " people, but to deliver them to (a national blue collar sample. We-
hope that we may get a favokable réview and procéed on this -
program in the very near future. _ :

. _ _ . - -
31,977 0-78--3 ‘ . . / . -

~ PR . - . .

3



P, . A ] ) 30 ) - 4
"Ultimately'it is cooperation betweén all segments of the work
force which will deliver retirement preparation services where'they .
are most needed, and that is to the community. - ~,
Mr. Rodhey. I wonder if you would comment, Dr. Olah, on the
emergence of more flexible work patterns which will make retire-
ment a less traumatic event for most people. )
.. Dr. OLaH. Exposure to incre perioeds of time off, and whether
this time be spent with_the famil or applied to ‘opportunities for
- community service, can change dan individual’s perspective and
may lessen retirement trauma. Leijure time is a qualitatively dif-
ferent-time than work time for indi%i ]
people taking 6 months off, at one time, taking 1 month off for 5
years or reducing the workweek down to 30 or 35 hours per week.
Participating in flexible work patterns, may.change living patterns. )
Given these leisure opportunities, workers may become more aware
of the changing interactions within the family. Some may decide to
devote more time to the ishaping of the family unit. We*are now
experiencing a trend in this direction. ' ‘

We talked earlier about phased retirements. ‘This is a practice in
some industries-at the present time. Some universities_are also
adopting phased retirement policies -which give the individual an

+ - opportunity to experience leisure. time, and not just for a few
hours, but for a considerable length of time. Our own workers have
-an option on the paid holiday plan where’ they can take almost 8
* ' - months off before they retire—given the necessary seniority—in
. order to explore their-plans for retirement living. ‘

We have a Florida village ‘operation which allows” our retirees,
before they do retire, to go down to Florida for a given length of
fime, remain at this complex for a very reasonablé’ amount of

. money and explore the available retirement living arrarigements in
the State of Flarida. . ’ '

Mr. RooNEY. Is that sponsored by your union? ;

N Dr. OLan. That is sponsored by our unien, and. it Kas been in
operation for some time and has been extremely popular with our
members. We feel if we can expose individuals to the type of living
arrangements ‘and make them aware of what conditions lie outside
the workplace, we would be performing a vital service: We do not
attempt to tell qur mem how to live the rest of their lives, w§

-~

only attempt to bring them'to an awareness of what may lie ahea
" #Mr. RooNEY. Do you think this will be unduly prejudicial to th
employment bpportunities for the young people? - ‘
.. Dr. Oran. Hardly. I think tp' will increase opportunities within
“ the labor market rather than’ educe opportunities vfbr all workers,
regardless of age. . ' ‘ .
- Mr. RooNEY. Thank you very much. I appreciate your appear-:
. ance before the committee. o -~ v
Mr. WAGNER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. , . .
'® Mr. RooNEY. Our next witness is Gené Fisher, Older and Retired
Workers Department,, United Steelworkers, Washington, D.C.
Welcome to the committee. . , ’

L
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STATEMENT OF GENJTV FISHER, STAFF REPRESENTATIVE, ' *
o UNITED STEELWORKERS OF AMERICA «
- Mr. Fister. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My statement is very

-short. Would you permit me to read it, please?

Mr. Roongy. Sure.

. Mr. . Mr. Chairman, I'am Gene Fisher, staff representa- -

tive for the United Steelworkers of America's Older and Retired

Workers Department. I welcome the ‘opportunity to appear mpye ’
ein

this subcommitteé to discuss with its members the union’s

-preretiremengt education.

" The United\Steelworkers of Amgrica has contributed s'ignifiéant«-
ly to the inc longevity of its 'membership. Improved pensions,
health benefits, king conditions, and flexible rfetirement

plans enable steelworkers to enjoy a loonfger, healthier, and more .
- productive life in retirement. -Because

. ‘provements, many of our members will be able to live 10, 15 years,
-- -or-longer;-in retirement. As workers-retire at earlier ages, theycan
" expect to live, and hopefully enjoy, an even longer life i

present and future im-

ife in'retire-

ment. . . . . . _
Although America is traditionally a work-oriented society where .

full-time leisure is not viewed as socially desirable, nonetheless, our.

industriés under contract, with the USWA .is a persohal and volun-

tary que, since, for the most part, there is no mandatory retire- .

‘ment contract provisions covering rank-and-file members:;Th

* . the trauma which- is sometimeb associated with having to leavé the
work force after d gelgping a lifetime of work habits affects our

members to a lesser d than employees in service and white-
collar trades. On the whole, steelworkers welcome ,the;o;;lportunity :
to retire from their hard, strenuous jobs. They welcome the release,
from the physical and mental pressures which accompany them.
The United 'Steelworkers of America has long held the position *

that improved peiision and health insurance plans are insufficient -

in assuring retired steelworkers a successful and.rewarding life in
retirement. It views preretirement. education -as an essential pro-

-gram to help older employees plan for their retirement and not
~merely to adjust to it.-Preretirement education affords.the opportu-

nity for older workers to explore the alternatives to retirement and

how retirees can still be productive and constructive contributors

to society and their community. . . ' : '
Despite the fact that preretirement education is a relatiyely.’

« .young’ field, the union, on the local lgvel, has extended some form - .
of pre--and post-retirement counselihg since its.inception in 1942 "~

The kind of preretirement counseling offered the stee wotker near-

" ing retirement was of a limited variety. Preretirement counseling™ .
" was, and to a large extent still is, limited to informing the prospec-
O

tive pensioner of his or-her xetirément benefits such as union-

- negotiated pension, social-security, and medical and hospitalization

insurance. The union provides this limited counseling service out of

. responsibility to the membership. s

In. 1955, the USWA recognized ‘that a more formal and compre-
hengive approach ‘w?etirement planning was essential. It was
necessary to go beyond just the financial aspects of retirement. The

. n ~ . . " . v .
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‘ members look forward to the day when they can leave the mill or .-
the plant for the last time. The em lo%ee's decision to retire from -

?
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union cofamissioned the University aof Chicago to develop arcompre-
hensive preretirement educational program. The program that was

developed enabled the employee to plan for the significant change -

in his lifestyle that he or she would experience jn the transition
from full-time employment’ to life in retirement. That early pro-
gram resembled many of the preretirement rograms-being devel-
oped and produced today. Pre-retirees parti{ipating- in these first
programs were oriented to the psychological aspects and learned of
others’ perceptions and misconceptions of aging and retirement,
Financial and estate planning, leisure time, nutrition and health,
interpersonal relationships, hqusing, . ahd union and commynity

. service opportunities for the retired worker were the major subject

areas covered. The program was quite advanced for its time.
?éPresently, the USWA makes available to its local unions two pre-

etirement programs: One which uses the lectureseminar ap- -

proach, the other an audio-visual pProgram which is supplemented

by group-discussion sessions. . .‘ ,
The USWA has’ been a pioneer in the field Yof preretirement
progt?ming. Despite our advancement in the field, MSwever, not
every ‘local union'utilizes the programs which have been developed
for its membership. In order to encourage more wjdespread utilizas,
Ltion of the programs, the USWA will, in the near 'future, embark -

on an educational cdmpaign aimed at convincing local union offi- .

- cials of the need for and importance .of “developing local union

programs. Although this is an important step in gseeirig’ that more
of our members are exposed to such- an educational program; it is’

not enough. ‘To assuré that our ‘members are- afforded the maxi-

mum opportunity to better plan and prepare for their retirement, .
the union, sometime in the future, must jointly cooperate with:
management and other community agencies to provide such an -
educational benefit to older employees. A preretiremept planning

program should be directed at those employees who" anticipate

leaving the work force within, at least, 5 yeqrs. Additionally, the

program should be presented during worki,ng*honrs at no.cost and

no loss in pay to the employee as a means of promoting maximum

participdtion of the employee and his spouse.

Mr. Chairman, before I conclude my remarks, T am aware that I - )

have not addressed all the questiosis to which this subcommittee
has sought recommendations and answers. I hope that during the

question-and-answer period which. will follow, I will be able.to -

su’?{leme,nt‘)the written testirheny riore specifi Iy. -
p-

ank youyMr. Chairman, for allowilg me to" appear befé)re’ you | -

today. S
Mr. RooNEy. Thank you.

now? .
-Mr. Fisuer. I can’t give you an exact figure, We have a conserva-
tive estimate based on our list of 240,000, ’
Mr. RooNEY. What is the average retiremant income? -
Mr. FisHEr. It would be between $8,000 and $9,000, a year. under
the new contract. ‘ ! \ ’
Mr. RooNEy. That is similar to the UAW? : ¢

Mr. FisHER. Yes, sir.
1

Mr. Fisher, how many United Steelworker employees are retired X

,
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_ Mr. :RoonEy. What additional incentives should the Government
" provide to encourage older Americans to remain in the work force?

Mr. FisHER. First of all, it has already done so—Social Security
reform, increasing the benefits for each year retirement is post-
poned beyond the age of 65. I don’t think that is going to deter
unions from negotiating better benefits'to allow employees to retire
earlier, if they so wish, but I think an attractiveffinancial incentive
designed to keep older workers in the work force is the main
ingredient. ; : ' . _ .

Mr. RooNEy. I have a couple of questions here from the Minority.

What kind of a ‘response have you seen from your union mem-

" bers who have participated in your preretirement programs?, -

Mr. Fisner. Isdon’t have any empirical data, as such, on some-of
‘the pre-retirement programs that are existing now. There have
been some studies which were done quite long ago, back in the
early 1960s, which showed that when the employee was givén time
off the job.at no'loss in pay, that he was better motivated to attend
preretirement sesStons, and was ‘more likely to bring his spouse
with him to the sessions so that a persoi} was exposed to the whole

... preretirement program which was offered. ~ .

We found out when we offered preretirement educational pro-

grams ‘on,a local upion level, where a person had to volunteer his

owristime to gq to one of the sessions, the response was not as

great, participation’ fell off, and -this is the reason why we feel like

r wft{a‘ have to. have.it on company time for the.greater motivational
effort. : . o

" Mr. RoonEey. Do yeu follow up on your retirees? ! :

Mr. FisseEr. We do on the local union level. Not-in a formal way.
This, is something which we are working qn now in some areas, to
see if these people are making it, how are they adjusting, what

 plans are they making to ¢compensate for any maladjustment prob-
- lems they have encountered. This has only been taking place in
. some areas in Michigan and California. .

Mr. RooNey. They are very active in Pennsylvania, in my dis-
trict. My house overlooks the blast furnaces of the Bethlehem Steel
Corp., and two blocks away is the United Steelworkers hall, and
the retired workers meet once a month They have'a big luncheon
and an annual dinner, and let me tell you, those United Steelwork-
et retirees have gotten many of the politicians straightened out in
that district. e ST T

Mr. FisHER: Yes, sir. -+ - . . Vo

Mr. RooNEY: Ificluding the one:speaking, -,
 Thank you very much; we appreciate yoyr testimony.
° Mr. Fisuer. Thank you, sir. I do appreciate the@.'oppor‘tunity.

Mr. RoonEy. As I said, the committee would adjourn from 11:30

~«to 2:30, but one of my colleagues is en route, so the committee will
. stand in temporary recess. . ° . . . .

(Brief recess.] - _ : .

# Mr. GRASSLEY [presiding]. We will now'call Ernest D. Bauer from
the State of Cohnecticut for our .next witness. Welcome to the
committee, Mr. Bauer. You can proceed as you normally would. I
don’t think we have any restrictions on how we have been proceed-
ing, so proceed as it would best'fit your desires.

s
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' STATEMENT OF ERNEST. D. BAUER, PRERETIREMENT EDUCA-
" .TION. DEPARTMENT, STATE .OF. CONNECTICUT, HABTFO}!D.
- . Mr. Bauer: Thank you, Co e
.. opportunity of addressing this domi
- been one of mi' deepest interests fo ‘
- still very much involved. AlthougK I am currently district manager -
of the Waterbury, Conn., Social urity Office, it should be clearly
. undérstood that I -am speaking as a private citizen and lending my
' experiences abont preretirement without any commitment from my

.agency. ‘. ) . ) . o .
I have been involved in preretirement and the need for preretire-
;ment preparation since I started working for Social -Security.
.- People: who were being compelled to retire would come. into the
" .. office and sit at my desk in a complete state of shock. Often .they .
would break down and cry.and_ask what. they. could do-with them-~: -
- 8elves, what was going to happen to them. Tgey had not gnticipat-
- ed retirement. They had not- prepared for it, and they resénted,” -
© very dee'ply,'b.eing cast on the scrap heap. .- ‘ -
> " One of my claimants committed suicide within 8 months after he °
' had'sat. and talked to me. I felt- a need for the ability to identify
the difficulties which the retirees were encountering, and to. find
'ways:to prevent. or relieve the traumatic experiences befalling -
em_ - - - ~ . B - . . :
. The most effective program that I came upon was the group
' . discussion or the preretirement seminar approach. When I ¢ame to
-Waterbury, and attended the Scovill Manufacturing Co.’s preretire-
"ment seminars as a resource ‘person, I knew I had found the-
package that I had been looking for. The Scovill Co. started their
" program sometime around 1963-64. The employer and the union,
- UAW Local 1604, cooperated in presenting these programs. They
~.had joint discussion leaders .at the seminars—one management . .
person, one union person. The company and tinion shared the costs.
~__This program was developed by Prof. Woodrow Hunter at the “' .
-University of Michigan Department ‘of .Gerontology. Ifs basic
format is now cteristic of most

S

n, Grassley. I appreciate the.
ittee on .an issue which has
any years and in which I am Y-

_ preretirement discussion semi- -
- nars, It deals with such subjects as the definition of work and
. rétirement; how to maintain physical health; problems created .
. with family and. friends, and related mental health’ problerns ghat. -~
. --would arise as retirément adjustments had to -be made: also 8ig- = -
. cussed are, what kind of housirig would ‘be needed, how'to planto * -
move, where to move to, and financial plafning—social security

*. income, company pension, other sources »f income. - -

- These are 2-hour seminars, with vne seminar held each week. We
found that during these programs there was a jelling, or a coming
together, of the group. They frequently ‘started as complete strang- *

- ers and as isolated individuals, Gradually they would partici ate, -

- exchange thoughts, plans, and fears. We had resource people’ at

. each of these programs—a doctor and & public health nurse on
-health, a psychia: bn mentsdl health. We also had experts who
-di private housing, public housing, and condominiums, and

_ congregate living arrangements. As the programs came to an end,’
we usually had solid groups working together, talking together,

- -
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and eupportmg each other They had gamed conﬁdence ‘and- debel-
-' ped constructive attitudéstoward retirement.  / _
Let me say this: The attitude of most workeérs now m not one of .
" fear=of retirement. In contrast with workers of 16 years ago, they
" look forward to retirement. Most can 't wait to retire. But often the’
- workers don’t antxg:ggte the full impact of retirement..Many e
4 ' tience unforeseen culties and problems, partlcularly durmg
. first year away from work. .
So, preretirement preparation js desxgned to open the goor’in
Cadvance to life in retirement, to expose the fprohleqm, to consider
the :dvantages, and how to resolve and plan for a successful retire-
-men :
" .. As a repult, many of the stresses and the breakdowns that-otcur
during the first year of retirement are avoided. ¢ .
"Now, as to' the extent of relief provided, I don’t have data I

~ cannot tell you. what research  indicates: about the numbers of

geopie that have had their lifestyle improved by these programs.. -
t from my experlence, 1 can see that they do go into retlremgnt
less fearfully.
I propose to use this well tested program to meet. the - needs of the
- many millions of- preretiregs who are now- begmmng to_face the
prospect of life’'in retirement. -
I estimate that there are approxlmatel 21. m1lllon people in the
 group. betWeen the age of 55 and 64 n Connectlcut there are
_'aroun3 OOOpersons.-' .
- ‘thett are now in existence don t really scratch the
surfac'e-— :E:gey reach only an infinitesimal portlon of the preretire-

.

‘ment age group
In November. 1975 T was asmgned by Social Secunf)yeto direct
preretirement education’ for the ‘State of Connecticut, Department
n .Aging. In a little over a year and a‘half, programs increased
~“from about .47 to over 80 preretirenent education’ _programs
.. throughout fre State. :
We still brought programs to only about 3,000 people, as agamst
the 300,000 ple who vgsre the potentlal consumers of preretire-
. ment education.
I believe we ha‘é to devme new approaches to reach the mass of
peo le and help them over therétirement hurdles. Although mass
| presentations_lack the impact of mdlwdual group-seminars,
we. can’ still utilize.a form of group semmar approach through a-
*televised program -
For example, 'I T&gest that we dev1se 1-hour seminars to be
televmed .on prime time. Thése seminars would be group discus-
gions run‘exactly as we do our in- house J)rograms They would have
discussion’ leaders, resburce urle, actual preretirement er .
ticipants on the air. They should a]go mcorporate the great deci-
sion program format.
A week before a phase of preretlrement would be televised, we
would publish in the local newspapers an article that would thor-
. :ll:ghly summarizg the subJect matter scheduled for discussion on
* . We would also encourdge the formation of indivi#ual discussion
groups throughoyt the communties to meet while the programs
. were broadcasted. These_g}roups would listen to the resource per-
s 4 . ¥ . R . . ¢ '
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: " - sons and the televised discussions. They would be able to phone in -
= questions, and then carry on full discussions after ‘thebroadcast:
' - In this way we could reach many thousands of people within
- each area..I don’t suggest that this be a permanent type of pro--
. - » gram. I-béliéve this would be dn emergency device to reach those
- +*.* who are. apﬁroaching the brink of retirement without Preparation.
. Once we have the huge back}og_;helped on their way, our major
- concern would be the group. arriving at age 55, or.ybunger people if’
* . that agﬁf group could be engaged. We could manage these smaller
- but still' considerabie groups through our local preretirement edu-
. cation programs. I would suggest that we organize these through
’ the Social Security Administration. = .
We have 1,300 offices around the country with many .that are
already. involved in preretirement. Every, seminar on retirgment
- income calls upon Social Security to provide resource people. With -
. __'some training, Social Security personnel could, help organize retire-
" ment preparation programs in all/ the service areas throughout the
. untry. - > ' L o , A '
. cPTheir training would emphasize two phases:
. One:. Community. organization to-start preretirement programs.
* " Two: The trdining of discussion leaders, - . . o -
. These discussion leaders would then carry on in-house programs
= - at various plantg, in service agencies throughout the city and in -
* adult education and whetever theré was. an .interested organiza-
tion. We could develop a_petwork ygapable of meeting the great ~
The. next step would be to create a permanent, as I see it—and -
- this I,have had “experience ‘with—lJocal preretirement committee.
- The purpose of this committee would besto assure the contimy-
ance of the programs we have launched. To illustrate my proposal:
Last fall I was approached by the CAP-UAW , representative to the .
local United Way. He had made. contact with one of our large

basis. __ e b S
" Unider my guidance and supervision three concurrent preretire-
mernit education programs wete conducted—75 ‘people attended our -+
evening programs, Wherever possible we encoiraged the attend- = -

- ance of married couple use the prob®ms'of retirément are not - .

~ just those of the retiree. Evening programs were more convénierit

* for both members of the family. e,

« The spouse also has te adjust, due to the changed’ re]ationship,
the amount of time the other partner is going to be home, and thg
change in their lifestyle caused by the drop in income usually
.ex%erienceddn retirement. | . ' -

e completed the seminars in December 1977, Word got back to

' the other-Timex: employees that aur programs were .good, effective,

- and brought useful informatior. We ‘started getting calls from ¥
other employees who wanted ‘more programs. Then management

., approached us about providing’ more preretirement preparation

af
E

-programs. - ‘- _ .

%5:1_1, I had spent many hours organizing, setting up, conducting,
and supervising these programs. I just could not continue to Bpare
that time from my official duties. Preretirement is not my ‘main
business, although sometimes I feel that dtis , -
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So, I devised a plan to train Tlmex peoplé as discussion leaders
able to run their- programs. In y plan, other companies’in

' the community wollld be irivitedsto send people for training. They
would then ‘be eqiipped to run in-house programs at their own

company sites. . -

We are going .to sta’?(thls ] _' g program next fall—in early -
September. We have been appro by seven other companiés so
far, and some University of graduate students. We will .
expect total’ attendance to regh about 35 people. They will be
trained as discussion leaders, whose mlssmn will be to spréad the
programs around throughout the area.

This approach is innovative and constructive, with low- cost ‘and
high yield. We are 'dealing withe ible. I can do it, other
managers ‘can do it. We’have ea51bl éthod for brmgmg .this
much needed prog{am to the country - .

‘Thapk you. ’

Mr GrassLEY. Thankyou very much.

. You are acquainted with both private sector progr@ and public
- sector programs for preretirement education. Do you have any
feeling about which ones would be better and, if so, why your

)ﬁ-gtenzatlo of the one is better? .
r. Bauer. Fthink they have to be partners. I think it
should be an effort of one sector or the other sector 4lone. I tRink

the Government can act as a ‘catalyst”in exciting and creating the
interest in these programs and bringing trammg programs, bring-_
- ing literature, bringing materials to be used.

I think industry and labor have long sought ways to launch
preretirement p ams—this is nothing new to them. Mote and
more employers” are realizing the need for preparing their people

« for retirement. They also are aware of the excellent empldyee-
employer relationships that develop through this demonstrated
ooncern for their employees. The unions certainly—many of the

" unions have been pioneers in preretirement education.

So, I think if we put all of our heads together—we have, for
example, as I said, in Secial Security a tremendous network that
can reach out throughout the entire country, into every communi-
ty. .They can’ help sponsor and organize preretlrement ‘planning
programs everywhere.

I don’t think Social Security personnel should run the programs.
I think it becospes the responsibility of the individual companies or
the communit§\ agencies—the YWCA’s, adult education départ--
me ,» the community colleges, and ‘s6sn—to take the ball and

Ty it. But I think Social Security can help start the programs.

ur role should be limited to that of the catalyst. We can help with.

the research and the literature. We can help maintain the quality,
but I think we should get more involved than that.

Mr. Grassiey. Are 10 years prior to retirement enough time gé
accomplish this, or should it be, in your oplmon over a lon
period of time?

9 Mr. BAUER. I think it should begin, as has been sa1d here, as

* early as possrb%gut practically speaking, we find it hard to enllst,
people until they~start reaching their ﬁftleg\%nd retirement looms
in the not-too-distant future.

-8
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We all respond to'the immediate needs rather than to the distant
concerns. [ think we would be expending a Iot of effort in a vain
attempt to bring this program to young people.

Instead, T suggest that the problems of aging and the relation-

" - ships of yoyng people to aging should be introduced in the gram-
mar schools and high schools as core curriculum programs.

Mrs.-Luise Odell, an educator and the wife of Charles Odell, the
former commissioner of the department of aging in Connecticut,

~ has developed and introduced core programs of the aging process in
some of the public schools in Michigan. Her programs met with a
great deal of suécess. ' .

I think that is the way to overcome the generation gap that ‘we
speak of. The young people will begin to realize that someday they,
too are going to be old, someday they are going to look and perhaps
act like their grandparents, and there js not so much difference
between them. . .. . '

Mr. GRAsSLEY. Mr. Regula? .

Mr. REguLa. Thank you, Mk. Chairman. \

I was interested. You d that most rg(lwple Took forward to
retirement in your statement, which would, I assume, presuppose
there is some planning involvid. When you look forward to some-
thing, you usually plan for it.

Mr. Baugr. Well, sir, let use the example of a member of my

_family who almost from the day he started to work longed for
retirement, and talked about it all his years. At 65'he had to retire,
and he did it with great joy About 9 months after that he was

. knocking at the company gates trying to get back into work. He
didn’t know what to do witg himself. He was lost.

- Mr. REGuLA. That brings me to the second problem. You also
said in your statement that many people-have: difficulty in retiring.

Mr. Bauer, how would you scale those difficulties? Is it money, is
it lack of routine, boredom? If you were scaling them, how might
you characterize them? - .

Mr. Bauer. OK, let’s say 10 years ago,-when I would go around -
and talk to groups of senior citizens, and then ask them what their
primary problem was, it was money. Four years ago, in my talks, |
found for elderly residents in the city of Waterbury it was crime in
the streets, while for suburbanites the main concern was transpor-
tagion. . -

- At that time we had a new program. The supplementary secufity

. income program, and we were looking for part-time temporary

employees. That was reverse discrimination. We could hire no one
gnder 55 years of age.

I spoke to a total of 400 people, and at the conclusion of the talks’
I would ask anyone interested in employment to come see me. |
had 1 person out of 400 show job interest..So, at that time the

' major need obviously was not jobs or income. ‘ .

Now, as I get around and' question people in their later years
about their concerns, income again has become foremost. This 1s
due to the impact of inflation.

Mr. REGULA. And a fear of what it will be in the future?

Mr. Bauer. No matter how carefully they plan, they haven't
been able to plan carefully enough for the spiraling inflation.

£
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Mr. Recura. Would not any program of a preretirement nature
. require some motivation on the part of ‘the individual to want to,
particig:teinthat program? = . L SN

( Mr. BauEr. This 18 something we are exploring now.. -

I am running a study of retired Stovill employees. I have gotte
the.names of their retirees over the t 13 years. The company
sold out its Waterbury-holdings .and furnished me the list-before
turning their records over to-the new purchasers. . ‘

This list is broken down into those that went through preretire-
ment apd those that didn’t. As a general rule, many more people
avoid preretirement planning programs, even though it is offered
on company time; at no cost, and with refreshments.

Usually, about 35.percent particifzte. : 3 L.

I have arranged fpr the Junior League of Waterbury to canvass
the retirees, using questionnaires I had developed. The interview-
ers visited 70 from/each group—participants and nonparticipants.
‘The following arg¢as were covered: How things have developed

_ during their retifement; how ‘preretirement education helped them; -
what the weaknesses of the program -were; what changes are -

- needed in‘the prografis; why didn’t -the nonpartic?:a.nts partici-
pate; and Would they participate if they had it all to do over ain?

By the end of the summer I expect to have this study completed.

Ni;-. Recura. Would you say the most important thing the Feder-
al Government could do for the preretiree is to have policjes that -
avoid inflation? ©. ) S , .

Mr. Baugr. I would say it is the most important thing for the
entire American public. . '

Mr. Regura. Thank you. . '

Kohgr. GrassLEY. Thank you, Mr, Bauer. We appreciate your testi-
m y. . A -
[See appendix 1,p. 100 for Mr. Bauer’s prepared statement and
attachment.] , ,
Mr. Grassiey. The next witness is Andree Oliver, with the
Mayor’s Office for Senior Citizens and Handicapped, Chicago, IlL

elcome to the committee, Ms. Oliver.

ST ENT OF ANDREE = OLIVER, DEPUTY i)lRECTQR
AYOR’S OFFICE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS AND HANDICAPPED,
CHICAGO, ILL. . ' :

Ms. OLiver. Thank you, ‘Congressman Grassley. I thank you for
the opportunity to testify before this committee. - . :

After listening to the testimony this morning, I realize that most  *
of my formal testimony would really be repetitive of much of the
excellent testimony that you have already. heard this mo £

You can see, as I listened, I kept changing the outline oy my
summary so that it would add something to this morning’s hear-

ings. .
ﬂy formal testimony, of course, reflects much of what you heard -

already this morning—the need to change attitudes toward aging,

if we are to combat the resistance to preparing for the later years

and the need for research to develop better and improvéd programs &
of retirement preparation, or preparation for the later years; cer-
tainly the need for trdining personnel that provides this kind -of
programing and for establishing standards. : )

)
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As I thought of what I might add to this morning’s testimony, I
thought 1 might describe the structure and experience of -my
agency in the area of retirement preparation, and then perhaps
adf\ja .some highlights which reflect those 20 years of experience.

was to be preventive as wel] as remedial, it would have
to address-preparation for the later years. Through its Employment
and Retirerhent Committee, the commission developed a number of
programs. : .

It conducted a survey of the existing retirement preparation
programs in ‘the Chicago metropolitan area. As a result of that
survey, a major conference dealing with retirement preparation

- was planned for the Chicago area. ‘
.. The proceedings of that conference suggested that the commis-
sion should take a leadership role. in providing technical assistance
to business and industry, particularly to personnel staff in these
businesses, to train. them to provide retirement preparation pro-
grams for their employees. -

A number of workshops were conducted by the agency, ,and
indeed we established a technical itance function which we
continue to this day with business anﬁr&ﬁﬁy. ' .

. In the coixse o past 20 years, our offi¢e has been involved in

tational programs, and we have developed a

Living the Rest of Your Life?” . .
It was published, I think, in about 1964, and shares publication
rights with HEW; and it.is still in use today. .
To supplement this partictilar booklet, we also developed a 30-
minute color film in about I think 1967. The film is an introduction
to retirement preparation and is désigned to provoke thought and

to give a general overview of retirement preparation needs.

It can be utilized in conjunction with the booklet I' just men-
tioned, and in fact'can be a program package which can be utilized
without going into a great deal of training in order to provide the
program. This is not to say that sound training and preparation to
{rovide this kind of programing is not absalutely critical. I believe
\t is. : )

I was interested in Miss Boyack'’s testimony about the number of
individuals that have tried to get, on the band wagon 'if they think
there is some money to be made, or some exploitation feasible,

gxperts in gerontology across the country. '

As a result of my ency’s.20 years of experience ir providing
technical assistance tc business; industry, to community agencies,
to government, to regional Federal offices, to our own city of Chica-
g0, 1 would like to stress a number of items which I think are
subsumed under the testimony that was presented today, ‘ but
which were not specifically mentioned, and are very important.

A Y
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Sound retirement préparation must consider some sp_e?iél target

- groups.

Minorities engaged in daily survival have very little time or
resources 'to devote to planning for those later years, which we
would hope would be more fruitful and productive for them. Spe-
cial outreach should be extended to minority groups. At the same
time rgsearch needs to address how retirement preparation or
planning for the later years needs to be modified, or-to be geared to
the special needs of minorities in society.

I don’t think anyone has mentioned that women today still rep-
resent a special group, widows particularly. By and large, women
have tended in the past to depend on husbands or others to take
care of business matters and planning, and they come to widow-

" hood without any preparation whatsoever for the later years, when

A}

they are like]y to be left along. . :

Another very important group to be considered are the non-
English speaking, who cannot be reached at this point, and, in fact,
never do secure any of the information that they need in order to
plan for later years because of the language barrier.

Finally, I would like to say in sypport of prior testimony that it
is absolutely essential that we glter attitudes toward d
that one of the ways in which this needs to be done is by integrat-
ing in our educational system some planning and preparation for
aging, starting with the primary grades on up.

Our agency. has been engaged in an attempt to develop special
programs to integrate the study of the process of aging, and study
of the cormtribution of older people, in the school system by working
with olff primary and secondary schools in Chicago. ——

We have just conducted an intgrgenerational conference in
which we involved school children at different grade levels, older
people, and in this instance’ teachers, and publishers of school
textboaks. * e

We hope to develop some model programs that could@tilized .
by the school system §o that children and younger ple can start
to consider, aging as a desirable part of life, and yill therefore not
consider planning for the later years quite as di teful an occupa-

- tion as they appear in some instances to feel n

The most important aspect of sound retirement preparation is to
insure that individuals are given the wherewithal to prepare so
that they have as many options in their later years as they have in
their middle or earlier years. ‘

What we need are flexible lifestyles—as was mentioned earlier .

- here. I*must say that in considering the work of that 20-year-old

-

Eyfiployment and Retirement Committee it seems to me they were
extremely insightful, in that when they developed the movie and
the booklet I mentioned, they did not call thém booklets or movies
on how to prepare for retirement.

On the contrary, they called it, “Are You Planning on Living the
Rest of Your Life?” which I think is very apt. .
» Thank you. : .

[See appendix 1, p. 123 for Ms. Oliver's prepared statement.]

Mr. GrassLey. Well, with your experience, there is an awful lot
that we can learn by looking to your agency, and the precedent you

2
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*development ‘of a curriculum

- Clearly one does not disc

- saving all of his life,
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" set, a8 evidently the first- city- goyernment to have an office on

Ms. Ouver. That is right. It i
h’Mr. Grassizb. One short questign from me, &nd then we have to

urry on. . '

With yqur background of 20 y
the preparation for retirement t]
the way of specialization fortpeopie

bac unds, as compared to the majority of the American popu-
lation, ¥r a difference bétween . ”

Ms. OLIVER. I believe that the

, do }ou see any difference in
t might need to be provided in

rinciples that showld apply to the
-retirement preparation probably
remain essentially the same. I.think there is a fair amount of
consensus on what the contents should be,

I believe that the main differenck would relate to methods of
outreach and modificatioh in’ ¢ontent that would be responsive' to
individual needs. - . . -
retirement preparation with a re-
tired executive who is, pl i
$50,900 ivicome, which.he wduld retain after leaving his employ-
ment. In the same way one would with a blue-collar worker or-an
individual that has had very limited income, and great difficulty in

ining the essential éontent, probably

So, I think .that while re
d have to do with the detail of that

the main modification wo
content. ] ‘ <y

Mr. GrRAssLEY. Mr. a - - . S

Mr. Recura. What do /Yyou see as the most important problems
confronting retirees, morey, boredom? :

Ms. OLiver. I hate to pick one. Unless there is a sound financial
base, one has nothing to plan with. By en a sound financial

base, I think that certainly health, hoysifg, the use of leisure time,
‘or of continued employment, or shift§ in career, all of these need

equal consideration in sound planning. .

Mr. Regura. Has the proliferation of senior. citizen programs,
centers, bus trips, et cetera, altered the problem of retirgment on
the plus side? ’ . .

Ms. Ouver. I think so, becayse senior citizens ot only are
becoming more numerous, but are becoming much more active as
more opportunities are being provided' to Jthem. As a result, our

younger people are able to see how vital #nd capable older people ,
indéed are once they are not denied the opportunity to contribute

to society. .
Mr. REGuLA. Thank you.
Mr. GrassLEy. Thank you. :
. We will call now on Albert Peterson,
pendent Maturity offices, Washington, D.C
Would you introduce the person with y.

ith the Action for Inde-

, Mr. Peterson?

the oldest municipal office on

with different ethnic or cultur- -

ing his investment for an annual :



43

STATEMENT OF ALBERT PETERSON, ACTION FOR INDEPEND-

ENT MATURITY AND THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF RE-

« _ TIRED PERSONS, WASHINGTON, D.C., ACCOMPANIED BY JOHN
7 ° MARTIN, STAFF CONSULTANT

Mr. PETERSON. Accompanying tne today is John Martin, former
U.S. Commissioner of Aging, and consultant with our associations. *

Mr..GrassLey. Thank you. Go ahead, Mr. Peterson.

Mr. PerERsON. I am the public affairs coordinator with the
Action for Independent Maturity, a nonpartisan, nonprofit division
of the American Association for Retired Persons. We were estab-
lished in 1971 in answer to a growing concern for persons‘reaching
retirement who were apparently so unprepared that they suffered
various illnesses, such as a sense of uselessness, disorientation,
depression, and even suicide. .

To help reduce many of these common problems of aging, AIM
developed programs designed to help reduce some of these negative
factors amf put the emphasis ‘on the positive. Our programs were
des?'ned after broad surveys of activities already going on in the
field, and we attempted to create programs that would apply to
glmost any type of individual or economic status. -

In just 6 years, as evidence of the fact that we have met certain
needs, our mémbership has now grown to 420,000 members, most of
them working ‘Americans. Our retirement planning seminars,
which take the, form of group discussions, aré being provided na-
tionwide to thousands of employees of ovar 600 corporations, Gov-
ernment agencies, religious groups, and others. The [-wéek profes-

* sional training program we have for administrators of programs is
‘uﬂly oversubscribed. We have 16 scheduled for this year. *

Ghairman Rooney said that the need to make one’s choices from
amodng-the many retirement options available ‘is self-evident. I-
- think that to we specialists here, this is self-evident. However,
. there are many individuals, many companies throughout the coun-
try, where the need to prepare is selfievident up only to the point
of the pocketbook. Too many individuals still think if they get
social security or a pension, that is all they. have tp worry about:
Many employers have a similar attitude and merely provide a;
pension or arrange for insurance or other financial matters of this
type. ihat is what most employers call a preretirement program.

In short, there is still a very pressing need for education among
individuals and companies and agencies to furnish more compre-
hensive preparation for retirement long before the separation date.

The important thing here is the need for raising awareness

among personnel administrators. The idea of preretirement on a
broad scale and far befére the retirement date is fairly new, AIM
has cooperated with chambers of commerce, personnel associations,
various colleges in over 100 metropolitan areas around the country
in establishing d-day retirement workshops. These have been weil
attended. We have helped to stimulate, I think, hundreds 6ferson-
nel administrators in starting or expanding their own programs.
. Your first question in this ing was what heeds should be met
*~ by any adequate system of retirement preparation. We suggest that
they should be the needs of the whole person, physical, emotional,
social, and economic. These should receive equal emphasis. Too

)
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often coungeling in strictly financial matters fails to help a person
erect defenses against many other problems of aging.

“In our comprehensive group program we invite ‘participants to
review options available to them in at least eight basic areas.
These are: Challerige of retirement, housing and location, health
and safety, legal affairs, attitude and role adjustments, meaningful
use of time, sources of ificome, and financial planning. We pu
ly put the fihancigl matters at the end to stress the fact that these
other topics aré: ly important. ,

Your second ‘question was what should the relative roles of the

ublic and private rs be in retirement planning. We feel that
lgederal, State, and governments should act as models’ and
catalysts in such programs by setting their own examples in the
community. A small' number of Government agencies are already
giving comprehensive programs of. a very good nature. I can give

examples of this, if you wish. .

However, in our experience, and we deal with many Federal
agencies as well as city agencies, we have found tco often that the
programs offer limited financial counseling, the implementation of -
which is usually left up to the individua‘l:gdministrator.

We have been requested by many Federal agencies to help them
-presént prog ‘with publications and speakers. We have found
that in many cases there is little or no coordination among the
-various units and agencies, ‘sometimes within the same depart-
ment. o ' )

We ‘have also found that appropriated funds exist for the career

" training of individuals, though we have found authorized fi cing

is seldom available for the procurement of materials and publica-

tions for retirement planning programs which could increase their

effectiveness. - . : . T

We feel this committee could do a’ good deal in advising or
recommending that retiremént planning education for all qualified
employees in the Federal community should be increased and its
quality raised by establishing more direct authority and more com-
prehensive capability. in agencies that already exist in_providing
direction and supervision of such programs.

Private industry and labor unions, as you have seen here today,
can do a good job in this field, and they certainly should be encéur-
aged to initiate’ preretirement programs, not only as a social re-
* sponsibility but also in their own self-benefit. Surveys have shown
that persons going through retirement programs have usually at-
tained a much more positive attitude, increased company loyalty
and performance on the job. Better public relations, both .before
- and after retirement, is also a dividend for the sponsoring employ-
\ er. , e
Public and private educatior'?a‘l institutions are, of course, in an
excellent position to provide retirement planning to the community
as well as their own staffs. We suggest that the committee encour
age the HEW Office of Education to establish guidelines encourag-
ing schools, colleges, and adult education organizations to initiate
- such programs in their communities. Other organizations, such as
. fraternal clubs, chambers of commerce, church organizations,
"United Way, and Red Cross, can be a good nucleus for starting
programs in their communities, . S

;o . ) “‘&
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A good.example is the Philadelphia Chamber of Commerce,
which is actively promoting the concept of a cgmprehensive pro-' -

.providing*seminars to both

arge and small business and industryy. .
- In regard- to the most effective Wways of inducing young and
middle-aged persons to participate i eretirement programs, we
feel that several negative influences myst be overcome—I should
say normal sesistances. Many. people refuse to admit they are old

" enough to think about it, somé fgel they sill take care of it when

they get there, and many of them #eel; as has been brought out

“here today, that it is too negafive; that it looks like the end of life,

and so on. . : .
We have found among our sponsors of programs that one effec-

tive way of inviting employees and encouraging participation has

been to make a general announcemertt to explain the intention and
objectives and benefits qf such prég@'in; instead of trying to point
a finger or single persons out for 4nvitations. Too often such-meth-
ods may lead to suspicion of thenemployer’s motives. '

There ‘are other ways'to overdome this resistance. I feel this'is ..

one of the most important t
today, . that ‘the problem is
programs for their own weéll being. ) C

This, I think, is a continuing effort we should make,, both

s that has been brought out here-

through the Government and private sector. The public media is-

devoting more attention to retirement planning programs and
often feature participants who are enthusiastic. This is a good
example. - R L

Mr. Bauer suggested possible seminars and various sessions on
television.(This. is a possibility. We also fe;ld;hat hearings such as
before this' committee on this topig; if edited and published in the
newgpapers and magazines, would certainly help educate and moti-

vate individuals as well as employers. . . . ..
In corclusion, we would like' to:agree with Chairman Rooney -

that there is. a very serious need for retirement preparation. It
should be initiated as part of the life cycle as early as possible, so
that retirement need not be a.time of crisis, but a time of challeng- y
ing growth and self-realizatiag. ' :

persuade people to come to these -

<

-

ol

\

To-satisfy this need, we refbmmend that more aggressive efforté', »

be undertaken through both the public and private sectors to en-
courage employers and émployees to participate and sponsor early
comprehensive preretirement programs, covering all” aspects of
present and future livipi. - , :

We also urge that the Federal, State, and local government
agencies act as'models and catalysts for the private sector. Also,

. that those responsible for personnel operations in the Federal com-

munity be givep more authority and coordinating capability in
promoting comprehensive preretirement programs in all agencies
and units and to supplement this. We also recommend that specific

- appropriations be earmarked for the procurement of magerials,

trainning of administrators, and -facilitating sources in providing
such programs.
Thank you.
[See appendix 1, p. 136 for Mr. Peterson’s prepared stgtement.]
Mr. GrassLey. Thank you, Mr. Peterson. : .
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I have no questions. Do you,v'. Regula?
Mr. REcura. No. .

Mr. MARTIN. May I make one comment? o
Mr. GrassLEy. Sure. As long as the bells haven’t rung, go ahead.
Mr. MARTIN. Chairman Rooney, this morning, raised a‘question
with a Civil Service representative as to whether their program
was comprehensive enough or aggressive enough. When I was Com-
missioner on Aging, the Commission’ was ing an entirely nega-
tive point of view- oh its. responsibilities this field. It changed
during that time to taking an affirmative O%sition of being willing

.o
4

to help” agencies, but I think there is a godd case to be made now
that every agency should be ¢xpected to have a progiam' fér prere-
tirement education and planning. ‘ -
Not everybody should hdve to take it; it ought to be voluntary as
far as the individuals are concerned, but there should be-g/ specific
requirement that every agency have and develop an effective pro-
gram of preretirement education for its employees, and I think thjs
‘would also set a level of activityfor private industry. .

' The picture today is very, very spotty. Some industries pay atten-
tion to it and do something about it; some industries don’t, and
probably the majority don’t. The number of people who are actively
involved in preretirement education today is very, very small com-
pared withithe need, compared with the numbers who would bene-
fit from it, so that I think the committee could afford to take an
aggressive position. ' '

nator Mqndale, dt one time, iftroduced a bill which would

was good. I think that we hayen’t devoted enough time and atten-
tion to preretirement plannin just because some people are reluc-
tant to consider it, but the time has come when we should.

Mr. GrassLey. Mr. Martin, I can’t promise you what the commit-
tee will do, but I know Mr. Rooney’s concern for this, and the mere
fact that hearings are being held on the subject is at least a first
step—that many ideas don’t even get to—in bringing to fruition
your suggestion. . . .

I thank you two specifically for your concern, and your inter-
est, and your testimony, I thank, not only for mysel, but Mr.
Rooney, and the rest of the committee, the kind attention of every-
body, not only’the witnesses, but -evérybody else in the room, to
this subjectbefore us.

I recess the committee.

(Whereupon, at 12:17 p.m., the hearing was adjourned.)

\ -

“have done this, and I dc’m’tg’aél the bill passed, but the thought

!
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Pmuun SraTeMENT ‘or ROBERT C. Bm:mcr. CoMMISSIONER ON Acmo,
DnAnmm oF ‘Huz.'m, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE 1. - »
3 % .

INTRODUCTION '~
Mr. Chairnan lnd Hhubors.oi :h. Subcouni:tce on Rg;iremen: Income nnd

¢ .

“z-ployuqﬁi. 1 an deligh:ad to ppear be!orc you :odny to ‘consider :he

1npnc: ot rotircn-n: on. :h. 1{ves Q! nilliona of Aneticans and the

. < .

| L N " " - . .
graphic and aocial changes which are altering our view of rstirement..
I will discuss the n.ed;-of recirees for meaningful rétiﬂﬁmen: prepara-
: 1
tion programs, so that retirement is a’ more productive and mlaningful»
: . .

4 _ ‘
[ period 1n the lives of older Americans. . e P
p . .
OUR. CHAMGING VIZU OF RETIREMENT -

% . B H : :
Qur undcrstanding of re:ireucn: is changing. Retiremen: no longer

ﬂ} ': represents a sinple :arminacion of one’s wquing years, Increasingly

1: is a dynamic transition :o a widening -and more wholesome pa:tern .

of lifes:ylfs and opportunities for older peqplc. Retirement is, no
longer & luxyry enjoyed by a few..nor is it merely a period éf idle-

nass for ‘hﬂif “too old to work but too young to die. The segment

6
"‘be our popula:ion vhich is made up of retired persons will contigue

.:o‘expand‘wcll 1nto_:he next centuryt Many people will enjoy 20 to

)

M ‘

30 .yurs of living after formal "retirement.”

‘ ' “n . -

d
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!e:ir'emt is a rela:ively recent phexiemenon. Around :he turn of the
.cen:ury, lew" people lived to.spead any .appreciable in rotiromen:r
_Those who did grow old usually cont{nued workins ad retained signi-

ficant roles i& :he femily and comuni:y. With the adveént of spcial

"eecurity in the 19308 and the availabilicy of formal and systematic

'b“.tiiu’ reciremeat at age 65 became ;:he norm. Prastitioners 1in the

field of aging and retirees themsel.ves .now have come to understand

that projonged periods 6f enforced inactivity are ynhealthy in physical,
T~ mental and emotional terms. Handa:'ory retirement is inc'reas'ingly
recognj.zad as discrimina:oty, limitins individual freedou and causing

undue hardship on persons who wish and need to coptinue working.

- . ‘»

« . -

Social and Demographic Trends ' , .

Dramatic social andidemosraphic changes wil'l a{feét'the r;m}:\ber

of people who retire, the age of retirement, the length of the retire-.

' ment period and the proportion of older “personsy remaining active in

the work force. Y >

These factors have £ar reaching inplications fqr retirement po.].icy

decisions and deserve mention again today:

. .
. )
o We are in the midst qf a population transformation.’Wq are changing
.
from a younger socie%y to an older society. In 1978 over 23’ million

! .persous or 11 percent of the.population is over 65. By the year

J
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2030 wh.n the children of the post war "baby boom" .:g aged, it °

1. estimated :hn: about 57 mulion persons will be 65 or older.

" They will chnun: about 18% of the coul population.

’

r
o According !o recent s{udiea. more and more employces. are retiring

urlier. .Thirty years ago, nearly one half, of Amcricnn tales

dvc; 65 rcrunqd 1! the work force. By 1975, their participa-
tion had declined te 21.7 pazcent. Tc:’day."nbou: 48% of male
u:ind wdrkers started drawing :hei; Social Schrity benefitg ‘

bct'om the age of 65. ! .o . 5-

o There are an increasing nymber of persons in retirement. This wmay -
be partly attributed to those taking early retirement. It is
also due in part to the ihcreased longevity of the older Popula-

\ “tion. Those persons who reach the .age of 65 live, on the average,

another 16 yeatse. - b
g ) . o8

N ’ 1
o The recent changes in the mandatory retirement age from 65 to
70 for many workers will have a yet upknown effect on retire-
'mn: pa:ﬁcrns in this coun:ry. Soﬁe sociologis:s are preéicting
signffican: changes in pa::ezns ‘of work. Each generation of | J
older p.ople is mores nctive and better edugacad. Economic and .
continued demographic chnnges may increase work opportunities e

for oldfpeople. The needs and desires of a whole new living

i gpnera:ﬁion will produce new demands and Jobs.

-~
e

; . . E;;}, i ;\

O
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Work and retirqment in the. future will bc quite dift.:.nl: from :oduy.

Those rstiting in ths futyre ars likaly to' be 1ncruain.1¥mnptbh

!
of a asaningful and productive role m aocio:y.
. . . /c.

. e ) . . .

ey The C!ullonlc ot Change . . v
. Our sroqink" avarenass of. thess tredds {s reflected in the recent passage

e - of’the Age Discrimtnation ,Act of 1975 and the amendments to the Age
D:Llcr)pin.tion in B-ploymc Act passed Jurlior this year which raised r.hc
aandacory utiuunc ng. to 70 for many vorkcn. Hearings hcld'by your- )

¥
Subcommictes utloct tur:h.r cﬁd‘nc. of the groving seriouancu of
thuc issues. . ) > o . )
. .
-,-‘ . ) o

. The term "retirement"” needs to givg way to a ulao'n generous underscandfng
°f the ucr;onqp ot alternative life cyclaes mvolving new conbimciona '
,,ot vork .ducu:ion and leisure in the broader context of living in M
th. Yater years. Indeod r.h. term " n:irenqnt," as we know it, may be

ﬂotnolu:.. I personally would not mourn ics pnniné.

. ‘rhc‘u concin(i;ing changes in patterns of vork'and 1iving require a gc;re.
creative approach to preparation for living:in the later yu‘ra. A.°n
approach which merely ;:comp:a to helg .f.émc; workers adjust to cen'l—

' ., tion' of work and inqreased idleness 1s Asiinply ‘wrong~headed and will

c&rtanomul’ social costs for. future Elnoratiou of older people.
¢ .

. P .

O
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yur.. Second, vo

) Ta )
Ve lu: lov. linu.ll:-n.oully 1n :hrl. cri:ic,lly umor:un: areae. Mrac,

!
e st oncouru. and eupport the many trende already. .vid.n: ‘in our

lociotyu vhich ur. dcv.lopin; new vocatgdnal, .ducuionl. voluncur.

) And qivic rolu aad oppor:uuciu tor pereons. in the uddlo and 1-:0:

.

t undertake cttortl to holp oldex. pononﬁ pr.pnr.

themgelvee *for th.-l atages of 11:.. 'fhud‘fwc muet con:inuo to

'-:nck pcjoruiu lt'til:vd..olnd J:.r.o:ypc/vhich continue to uu: our

und.roundin; of th. rich poc.ntul ot :hou living 1n their lu:.r yeare.

[ — - . )

EXPANDED onxogs‘ JOR LIVING AND wom'uc IN THE LATER YEARS 3

v

) 1 am not ondoroing 1ncruud opupr:unuiu tor :h. elderly ae a macter

-

‘of simple altruisa. W"" ulvuyl pl.n:od gru: valu. ou the dignicy

and worth, of h:divi&\ulo. Uo hlv. ulvuy. np.c:}d a full ‘meseure of

vork and ult-ouppor: fro 111 our ci:iun, - No ocheregroup holds chese

~ A .

v;luu mr“tmy tgm the’ old.rly. They du ug.r to contribute cheir
. &
energy to eupporet 'thou.l.vu und ‘their hnuiu. and to con:ribut. to :h. o

..

continued d.vﬂ.opmnt ot ‘comuni:y life. Pumuully, hovnvor. ve

cannoc as a na:ion attord .ngorud -nd unvanced 141.::0:- for 23 nulion

old.r Americans Ln 1978 .nd. almoet 57 million in 2030. '
. » \ ’ N

H:ny oldor pdrléh. continue to work. A.lmo.: one :hird of a sample

of p.non. 65 and ovir vho v.rc :,c:ir.d %unmployod 1nd!u:.d thae ¢ k

. R .,o,-

:hdy want .co wrk. My poraml upprioncu in lhuning to oldet r»

pcopl. ae J: :rq__el uround the country raintorce thu nnding. It is
SN .

a ujot_uru.- gf ‘concern to them. ’




of hopeful lim. ‘rhc Senior Comunity s.rvicc

-

lqloy-.nt Pro;rn cﬁncntly providn part-time community urvicc

There are a 'n‘

vol:k opportunities !or 37,400 lov-incoll pcrloul 33 and ovu:. It offers
:ho- increased intome, but lllo providu uancr !or comnity u\-vicc.

lo;innin. next Ionch. l:hil progun wul txpand to 47.0& comn:lty

\

service jobs.: ltudy "tor the Acadcny tor Bducatio .v.lopnon:

. Tevealed: that at least one muon oldcl: persons, mo-tly‘ volunl:nl:l.

vy

an now cducating others throuﬁhou: the vast rnchn of,.dur !oml

and imm.l oduuuon lyntan

-
- N

’ - .

. Onc hundred nnd fifty thousand ofdct‘)p.l.'lonl are holding dwn Jobu
. -y
and/or are 'working as voluncnrt in 01dn: Americans Acl: programs adnin-

* iucud by I:hc Adninﬂtntion on Aging. Ochcl: opportunitin for meaningful
- »
contributions to the cOInumlty exist in -thc AC‘IION prosum such as Foster .

Gnndpannts and the \Rctind Scniol:- Volun:u: Pl:osnm and in the Small.

4 A

Bulincu Ahiniltntion s SCORE and ACE. progranms . ‘rhn‘ have bnn

.

vn:y vell received nd include alnou 250,000. volunt.ecl:l wol:king 1n

thoulndl ot comaunities dcroas the country. . Thers is the dm,lbla bcncfit

1 7of actxv:cy for aldcr poople and u:vicu to I:hl community. But more

N
mporo(ntly. 1: 1l providing new cxpn:iencn and models of Oldll.' people

ag’ work vhi‘ch an reshaping tctitudn 'and can hllp to opén up new

oppor:uutiu ;cl-on :ho public and priv uct n yuu to come.
. L i \ .. - K ’ . ) ) 3 - ’ ~ .
LA ) Y
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Hn et tind vays to open up nev work oppor:uui:iu to; o].d?r pnopla

4

in the J.lbor urkn:. Over a period of years the chnngu recently *-
mcnd in mandatory u:iuugf oay ligniticnn:ly nltnr the work pn::nm

R of the elderly. However, 4t aeems :hnn is much to 3- ‘lnd’rnnd' tron

lhrbld 11 wall, . - Yoo e

- V s . . ’ .
[

S“dln rlecntly adopted a Partial Pension Plan which 1110" workcu .

60—63 .to uducn their working hours anlduv pu:ul pensiops to °

'
AR | e

—“"lncogﬁﬁ‘}hqnd retiramant. / i : T

’

! 1n the United Kin‘gdom. an nnginur:l.ng aquipum: firm began a npucial

« division over 20 Years lgo to providn part :mu work for its rn:iud -
employees - all over 65. 'rhc Sons of Rn: workahop. enploying only

. 'et’mplny"rqtirul' A'ud ,u:u}ning then vhara necessary, now offers
o . 3

te H

, f1fteen nev, product lin mq' enjoys impressive profits. A similar

. .
cxpcrim"cn:l in the Netherlsnds is undervay called "Sterk Door Werk®
o o

"~ Strength "l.'hroughivork. Can :his "priv.lti u'c:or experience be:

replicated in the Uni:ed su:u? C” c:pnndcd to other settings?

Are ve not wasting :hn enormoul expcr'ience lnd :alen: of re:ind
) vorknu-:uchcrl nm; nduu;orl. pub],j.c uc;vnn:a_. skilled crnf:smen; ﬁ,
profn/uiorm_l' ‘and b '
A u-ucAnog FOR_OLDER PEO‘l;li.b"- AN INVBS‘RENT APEROACH .

We must recoMn the 1»0::{“0 of pu:icipg:ion by per-onl of alf

’ lgu :I.n a brond lpccem of con:inuing nducn:ioul oppor:uni:ies.

o\ .

This means providing peoplloln nducl:ioﬁ vhicﬁ will prnpue them to .
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A et ‘
contrtbu:c peructivaly 1n an occupncioy but which allo will cnrid.‘
all ljpccgl of :hnir daily lives. Education should ngt-be limiced -

~ :q‘?nly the tirlt,:hird of our lives. thd'gnpo;:ancn Xf this 1is
_dr;-qcilcd by rntlnccing‘OQ how much .che world has cha;g;d since about
1950. not how auch ig will ulccr‘dgé;n before 2000. How much beccer
p!lpl!ld for retirement: vould thc d;;;\;chool graduncnl of 1950 be
1£ ve could offer them a lyltlﬂltic opporcuni:y to build upon :hcir'

-pravious cducnciqn and vork exparience? . .. g;

Parcicipacion 1n'ddu¢acionll Oppo!tuniti;l by adults and oMder psxSons
need not rcquirn cl:abliahnnnc of a new or scparac. netw achools
and tncilicicl. s:a:ot and communicies alrcady havc made a long term
investment in excellent public educational facilities and resources.

e .
' “1n some places we see a surplus of tKdes facilities and -educators due .
‘
L4
to the dcclining enrollment in the school asc populacion. At the sane

time, :hn older pOpulacion is 1ncrcalins- Haw can nod‘unicics take

advnn:agc of: :hi- coinifanncn to givc more a::cncion to the education
2

needs ot older plopln and their families? 1In sddition to h<é§?fz'.nd

secondary lchooll. what ‘nav opporcuniciol can coununicy colleges and

" universicies offar the older people in their classrooms? -

; o . . ‘ . . | '
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\; consortium offcolleges in Mew England lpmorl an 1ntorué\| c:porimt
) kmn as "Elder Hogtel." 'rhuo ou-nr residential oducatioul pro;rm
;:I.vc oldor edulce & clunco to rotufn to the cou"o campus for a

vuioty of personal cnr.tchunt and troditionnl acodouc couruo. e »

R4

hn b«n a succeeeful project snd ie n%boing nplicuod in other plrto

of the coun:ry.
’

Not only should older {nrlonl be qncouugcd“to lul; ucation because

— " of "the” bcno!ito thoy porlon(ny v:l.ll dorivc from tho cxporienco. "i'!ioy

K/can also -trong:hon and enrich Amriclrr oducation by thoir plrticipotion.

e

Thely pouqu s \lnlth of nporionc. ‘and knovlodgo snd the chance for
¥ . creative mtor“_norltionll uchango ueuld ‘bonnﬁ.t ‘both the elderly -
,and the younger people in the systenm. '

EN s,

eated by th_’\

N

"' In this regard, an iqéop-ngoncy 'comittu.thbun,

d the Office of Education Bq_expldre how

Adn‘iniuntion o Aging

{ be more fesponsive to older per
’A i . -
1 . .

oK quostionl as beteér utilizat!on of lchool

a2

‘the oduutioul _systep

}‘. cor-ittu wul addrou ’

facilitiu. incruud education, vocational truning for oldur '

.4'_\ . ;‘ i ‘/

v Pagsons, eldor voJ.untuu 1n ‘.ducltion and including more Mo 1’1 :

on aging in _ptinry andf\ucondu-y lchool Icurriculum.u

O
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g;,_-.;g;pmn: zduca:; APA.C and Present - N .
. P ]
. Ny

Our !ocun to date, vhich 1: mporcanc, has bun od pre~retirement
lducl:ion. In recent ycarl, the Adninilcracion on Aglag has provided
funds for the lecldpn‘nt o! a-nunbl? o! cxp.tiulncal prl~rltirlﬂlnt
programs. The Univcrlicy of Hichinn hn juoc complocid a project
dllisnld co train 300 prl—rctircnlnc educ(kors. +Educational and

counseling modsls and macoriall are being preparsd for AcA by the
. - - ———

-Georgia Gln:ermﬂor-Con:inuing'Edﬁéntion; The Duﬂa'UhivarlIEy Center +.  *

for Study of Ajing and Human Davnlopmenc. North Texas'State University,
’ -
and the Nacionnl Council:on Aging are workiug on similar projects. NCOA
R

is oow dcvcloping a retirement educ:C1on phckage in. cooperaCan vich '

- h

a conuorciun of inLu‘cry And labor reprenencacives. The Civil Service

Comnie on holds r-circucnc pr.paratioh workahops for Fed al cmvloyees.

© Many pyivate enployers J\e the' program of Accion fot»lnda ndanc anrﬁICy,

& division of AABP(NRTA, to tailor gLeir pre-rétirement program needs.
This well-developed pregram ;ncludgs prepared macerials, leadership

cfaininglandiongoing ébnsul' c;on‘co-asaisc the employer in using the
hd . . . . - L4 ’
, materials. Unions such as the United Auto Workers and Unizgd Steel

. b

Workers also provide such sessions as a service to chei: mambership.

. v

AoA supported a Second Careers Project at Ceorgg w;shingcon University
~ which enrolled -older people 1n a curriculum Co‘prep;re ::;p‘fo: mid-career
N
change, and studied the barriers Ehey en;ountére& in. enfering égé

"\
educational enviréﬁnenc:g/ - .

2 U
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~ "can be snlisted in a canpaian to llnlitize E%t public to the great

.‘;' . . . . (, ! ._/ ."'
o LA ey

As CO-i)uioucr on A;iu;. I cnjoy a nuﬁb-r of opportunitiu to addr-u

a variaty ot illu.l concnrning the rol- ‘of th!’nldquy in ‘our changinz

society,. A gcr-iotut. theme of ny obeervations will be _th- need for
J~1ncrcn--d avareness of the chnlinus*z;::: opporténiti--\which life .
in the later yur- can offed. 1 hopa“that public oftici.ln at all’

- .

' laevels, rnprln.ntativ.a Qt‘privatn orﬂﬁhizationn and individual citizlnn\4

’

potnntill for Annticau‘ to achicvo full and mnaningful life cxperinnCll
in the late: yearas. . : C . ,
. -‘. . t

’ Hq nead to idnhtify ways and means to improve the plr!ormance of existing

prograln to make appropriate use of particular skills and talents

of older Amerjcans. I an primarily thinking in thia conpection of privatc
and voluntaty qrganizationa rather. than nev governmontal programs.
Parhaps a nAtionul forum or academy uhich brings together older persons
vith experience ih varipua fields would help us capture the wvisdom '
and exparience of the ‘aged in addressing the full gamut of public issues.
Clearly such an effort would aleo help mtlt the need to provide the
lldnrlp with outlets for crieative exprclni&p. The Administration has :
ruquclt‘d autho:ity to coavene ‘a’ 1981 White House Copference on Aglng

which will providc one such opportunity.

. R . ' . .

-

A
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.. Mr. Chairman, as we look into th.&ltun_*to year 2030, we u'o a vhole \
- o . ) .

ev nﬂn. .cnuntion.'ét Aldrlc’an'a. Iabout »57 lillio? persons. We are

loonn. to the futurs vithour.* conudnrin: toix, nnda aad :h.ir greac

) por.nnun. We might oburv. :hu chon

vi'thout..‘tuturg for 1ics 'oldnr pnopl ’

111 tutun .cnnutionn. Hhih ve ¥

-). ‘vulgerable and dnpundunt. as ve t
concribution that can come with thé add
generacion of Americans, freed from the
Older people are concerned
concerned about the envifoaoment, the school
childgen, \and the hoat of ,bational probl
in cHe future. : 4 - ‘ . ’
In closing, I would like to return to'a ninbiq:éﬁc%. ; I£ 18 time
to discard the notion of retirement, and to focus r;n the enormous -
potentisl of life in che later years. l‘rha vork'ot this Subcouit?.?(
can dark an important turning. ﬁoint. 1 can raport to you todsy .
that public progtams escablished by the Congress providing work nnd - '.
civic opportunitiu for older p.oph ere considered vory :ano'rmt.
‘nuy npnunt u; investment fron which future gcnorhtionl wﬂlbredp"' ’
. a dntinit. return. ) &
Mr. Chairman, this conclddu my prepared tut;inony. ' . /!
‘ 0 > )
. : — \5. S
. .
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. Pnnm Srarement of Vizomia L. Bovack, Pu. D, Provxct Dizxcror; Pre-
‘ RII'L__.IIHIN‘; AND Lirx PLANNING PROGRAMS, ErvEL Pracy ANDRUS Gnomotqav,.
Clu'rn. Umvnsrn or SOUTHERN CAu!’ORNM Los ANGELES, CaLr. . -

_ Junc 19, 1978 - ‘
PREPARING FOR RETIREMENT: CRISIS OR CHALLENGE? -

htirmt h pcrccivod u& 'crisis" by many people in todey's soci-
c:y. Pcrhlpa we ‘should look u§on this word "crisis" as do the Chinese, who
rcprumt tho word with two characters: one meaning "'danger”; the other
wmeaning ' oppor&:unity . - . Lo . ! -

fRetirement preparation programs should provide lumin} experienc in
- which individuals/may become aware of potantial "dangers” and u:plora the'
multi-dimensio "oppor unities” which can lead to the development of
options for s lih/ét sat ataqtion in retirement, Csteful preparation Eo'r-

. the rctirmnt years cap provide ‘the challenges which will give meaning to

"life in the later years. . \ ,
Many people "\‘19“ transition into retir t very fully. How-

.»cvnr, regsarch Lndicatu thet there ,ar¢ far more who do not make such & trans-
ition with ease and satisfaction. There is sufficient data which auggest that
ithere is a high correlation between life satiafaction in "retirement and the
.axtsnt of planning accomplished before that event. It is Felt that pre-retire-
ment educatiom, or lifs plmning programs, not only can provide guidmce in
exploring issuea relevant to both the middle and retirement yeu'al but) also ’

. can provide opportunities for developing c‘hallangu and teating options The .
‘asrlier one starts such axploration, the mors optione one can teat along the ’
way. . R ) '

The person is retired from work; his or her income, usually”drops by
about hnlf and- the pattern of Emil:l.nl and other social relationships may be

[ 4 altered. During this ti.ne. ovu' one~half of the women are widowed, and about
one-fourth of the .men become Hi,douera.' Most people have mixed emotions ahout
this event cailed "retirément‘é. There is a sense of relief fejt by many at

) the proapect of rel_ease from work-a~day drudgery, but also 1P¥thsion about

+" financial security; anxiety about health maintenance; concerm about what to

I3

' 2
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* Obetecle 1: Gaps in the system of relntionahipu causad by a

do wilh leisure time, and resentment shout being judged unable to fulfill
a "productive roie". Sheldon, McEwen and Ryser (1975) suggeat that the

obatacles to successful retirement may be:

lose of close friends, children and ‘other relatives, throug {

geographical moves,.or by death;

- tacla 2: The loss of relationships which are needed to."ke.p
going" emotionally...such as intimacy, intereet, giving-and Te~

ceiving nurturance, recognition and assistance; N

Obetacle 3: The lack of preparation for retirement, which in-
cludes develophent of alternatives, response td change, and.the

. Process of transfer through that ch ge, and omnodation
..new 1ife. atyle. - : o

: ’ . .
Research indicages that the personal losses involved in the role traq;i-

toa
g4

{1

’

tion ffom:that of worker to thatlof retired parson 1ﬁvolve not only the loss

- of settings in which skills are performed and challenges are met, but- also

L) . N
concomitant financial changes. A varigty of other losses which may have

éqpll OT even greater consequences for the individual include:

principal source of aocill?contact; loss of opportutities for problem solving;

loss of mastery of resources available for problem solving, and

loss of a

loss of a

.nnjo; reference group. (Sheldon, McEwen and Ryser, 1975.) Pfeventative

action (intervention early in life), in the form of pre-retirement, life
planning, and/or sound personal resources and &conomic planning programs can

"help people overcome obatacles and p}an for a.mbre successful adjustment to

retirement living,

< The National Council on Aginﬁ (NCOA) study, The Myth and Reality of

Qging it America, (Harris and Associates, 1975), reported that most: older
people regretted not having planned better. Such regrets vere primarily

focused on financia

had known thtvthings-uopid be like today, thgy'would have tried to save more,

acquired more insurance, or invested more in property,'lnnd or ‘some other
type of 1pvestpgn:. Id‘adﬁationg 14% of the older fespondents would have

ently in order to guarantee themselves greater security in their old age.
‘Additggndl data indicated that 76% umissed the money the job produced...73%

missed the people at work...622 missed work itself..

.and 597 missed the..

feeling of being useful. Another study indicated that the respondents who
- ¥ e .
.had not Planned well for retirement reported dissatisfaction, and expressad

concerns -- gGZ of those surveyed mgnqioﬁed that if they

- completed moré education, while 9% would have planned their careers differ-
. -

N



'

less than 122 of rcund pcuan- Feturn :o work.

The Harria etudy (1975)- fur:hor reporited 'that the ressons given for
"Jr feeling unfulfilled in retirement were: (1) financial problems; (2) poor
' health; (3) uoud working; lnd. (4) epouee paseed avay. Theee same respon-
dente cited” :ho major reasons for feeling fulfilled in ro:irmn: ae: (1)
"aow enjoying. lefeure and hobbiee”; (2) "can do se I pl ; and, (3) "gopd
M:h" 1t was reported by‘l‘group of l:l.ddlc-:god parti 1pnn:o in s pre-
nuru‘nt‘. planiing program ‘that their porcoguonu of what they may ‘1ike most
abou: retirement were: being free of responsibility; more time for sctiv=
1t:lu. more time with family and friende; and, freedom to . pureue deeired
ubitiou. (Boylck Tiberi, 1975.) (Pleaee eee Itenm 1) ‘

:vidcnco supports the hypo:hui- that pre~retirement propnnuon pro-
grams, as s form of "n.n:icipuory eocialization”, can facilitafe the formula-
;‘ion of realietic retiremént objectivee )nd esee the traneition into retire-
ment. Research aleo indicuu ‘that retirese who plan for retirement gmnlly
report higher lavele of life 1::1.!:::109. (Ash, 1966; Pyron, Hlnion. 1968;
Barfield, 1968.) Pre-retirement planning programs can provide the'individual -
vith insighte and avarensse so as to avoid the potential "role shock” -n'd .
subeequent duonltguion that tollovl an abrupt termination of major rolas
“associated with earning & living. Further, s pre-retirement pro}rn may pro-
vide an individual with his or har first exposurs to serious conaiderstion of
n:irc'aont living problems. (Charles, 1971.) It hae been found that, after
pnrticipléins in & planning. progrlim. respondents. reported leas concern about:
financisl inucur‘:y. contact vi:h friends; boradom in retirmn:, and, grovin;
old. (Boyack, Tiberi, 1975.) )

The need for planning ie £ r:hnr r'enitoi:zdsy ressarch findinge whic®
suggeet that “thosa for whom rePirement is 1 y to pose problems...are least
likely to plah for it, and thoae’/who do nétupt eome planning sccomplish it in R
& desultory fashion. The majority arrive at tha date of retirement without
concrete, realisti¢ plans.” (Kasechau, 1974. y ; .

Many individuls indican thay want to plan effectively for retiremgnt
but need guidanco. mployeu' are revesling that they would appreciate their
conpnnies offering retirement pr.pura:ion prograu. To make the appronch of
ratiyement more acceptsble to employees, a growing number of employers are
ﬁroviding some form of- pre-retirement planning assistance. (O'Heare. 1977))
‘ . L 3
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‘A Conf.t.%c. Bosrd survey conductsd :Ln 1977 reveals that 882 of the 800
3 :upond:l.n; companies nov offer some kind of pn-:ctiniun! .uinnnce. ‘as
cmnnd to 652 of those surveyed 11 yesrs sgo. (0' Haltl. 1977 ) ~ Howevar,
32 offer in-d.])th pre-t rement. planning programs. .Hon: companies
~Nfinancial advics, as iﬁch rslstes to.compsny benefits. Despiteé
the increased\ emphasis which business and nduc;tiopal inatitutions sre

.-

g8 too l.u:ca to provide themselvas vith the most effective -
. their reci{temant years. (Crandall,’ 1978.) .
- - hrly Tetirement has bhconq an nttnctin nnd growing prlctic. in

, noci.:y. Pcrhqu the best indicator of this trend can bc found in & up);:
!ro- the u.s Social Socurity Adniniutution. 'ﬂ\g report points out that .

. while in 1962, 1,456,254 workera had rgtiud early lbefore the #ge of 65),
vby 1972 “some 6,798,271 worksrs had done s9; the numbers.of vo_rk;i;‘_opting
. for urly retirement are :anuuins nnnually. Several reasons sre suggestaed
. as to vhy the ulployee is attnctcd to an euly .nti.rmnt option: poor
hulth' interest :Ln sterting a new career; resdiness to be released' from job
« ' pressures; £1nanc1|]. stability; and/or, spouse has ntired. 0'Mears  (1977)
luggutu that many persons ‘who choose to take eu'Iy retirement do so because
of "special monetary incentives” provided by the employer. Another reason
“often given is the employee's -feeling of "utl'gnltion" or "having plateaued"
st liis or her presant job. Mutual niguatidn is a temm duite puvalent in -

business and industry in ugnds to both enployer and employee an'iving at
Mo

~—

. mutual disintereat in one another.:
This trend towards aﬂy retirement means thattinéreasingly‘. milliong‘v
of persons will have from ten to t;u'rti years in retirement living. ‘Recent v/
' statistics on life expectancy have serious, implications for those in positions
of decision-making about the pro;iuon of retirement prepsration programs.
(Plesse see Item 2.) A h"ur:l.ng on life-extension technologies was held re-
cently by the Subcommittee on Federsl, Stste and Community Services, House’
Select Committee on Aging. After listening and reviewing testimony, from a
‘mmber of experts in the biomedical field and social sciencé;. the Subcommittee
repor’ted that "i® significant life-extension is likely before the year 2000;
. nonechel&u, e <\:.ls for more research into the future consequences of life-
extension, . conced g that soclety is presently not prepared for a larger ]
populatidn Of OId PGOPIG- The congressmen also emphasized the importance of _

[
\
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. A-_qpa‘u:y of litc,éor old people. ‘not junl: quantity." Mi111dns of . citizens
© . suffar special dcpuvlcio pon retiremant -- deprivations which might have .
bnn avbided 1if t:hu-e had been sffective prograus vﬁqnnorcd by community,
t

mduntry, dnn-, labor lnd educetional entitiu, and made available 5;_:11
in t:hc individual’s carear. Rasearch mdicuon that the quau:y ot ,li!c

t:lu ht:n- years may very well be dn:-ruined by the quality of uhn plmning
lnd preparatiou accomplished by :hn hidivicfual in early yun. ;

s Although :hnn hu baen -an increasad’ intersst in dcvnloping Apre-utin—
" @Rt prograns, thera does not_seem to be any agresment in regards td the

, format’ whieh ny affect tha gru:‘ur. dagras of change in attitude, bchavior
and infomtion about pra-retirement planning and ratirement uving.

. .(Kasachau, 1974; Pc:eracm, 1974; Monk, 1971 Boylck, Tiberi 1975. Tiberi,

'soy.ck 1976) ) .

. R » » . . E v
A . ) > ’ . : ‘
S ., Ihe Andrus Gerontology Center b
. u-Rat:iretunt Bducation Projecl: Model

.Ix; respepee to increasing ‘dan:nndn fot pre—_ret:irment p';ograms}' nn‘a for
the evaluatio . f the merit of such progrm' the Deﬁartmen: :)f Health, Educa- .
tion and Helfu-e, Office of Educnl:ion, Comgunity Servicea and CQutinuing Ed-
_ucation, awarded a- 2%month 3unl: 1n 19% to the Ethel Percy Andrus Gerontology

Y

, Center,’ Univ-nit:y of Southern California, The gran: comitment was to re-

uatch into current pra 1ces ia pre-retirement educntion- to davelop an e\(alv

uation methodology; to conatruct a model for pra-retirmnt eduution. ‘and, R
ain leadera to adminiater the nodel program. (Plesse see Item 3. ) A8 ./

a rasult, a comprehansive model, Pn-kat:iraun: pducauon Projec: (PRBP) was .

'Adcynlop evaluated afd :lnplucnl:cd. (Boyack, Tiberi, 1975; Tiberi BoYack,

1976.) e Andrus Center’s PREP model evolved u 8 reault of working with

ovu 1,000 participmu uprucntins business, industry, labor unidna, nduu—
t:i.onll mstitbiona, and comity agengies and organizatiénn d-"(Plea e. sae ..
ftem 4.) The pu‘ticipmtq ages nnged from 37 to 67 yeara. To date) 49
trainers, representing diveue segments of society, have completed an inten- ’
sive 150-hour training program in preQretiremant ‘education and life planning = .
program dcvelopment.( . = - ¥
A JThese Andrus Center PREP Trdiners’ are actively 1nvolved in conducting

Ap'rog:m. vwithin the environments of their various entities, such aa: Hughea
£ . ~ . .

y -



- Aircnf: Cunny. KXarox Coxpouuo‘ Fluor Cotptutd.cr an Anvlu Comuni:y
- Cpucn Din:rtc:. Uuiveni:y of Southern c-lifotnu- Shuu lelunil:y College;

Uum;licy of 1!om1a, LorAngeln- Pepp“dinc Univmi.:y, Children's
. ‘s Hosp 7 Los Angelu, Cmunicuion worka.rs of Americn- and, -various o:her
co-unil:y entities. ’ : : e .':-

] Mditiml Frograms have bnn conducted by the Andtul Gemn:ology Center -
upon request’ by spacisfl populll:ion:. A few such programs w&‘ré for: Merrill,
Lynch, Pin‘cc Fcnncr and Smith, ch York Corpot’l:e Headquar:on, The Califor-
. nia sun_n-pm: of Health; Ihl Cicty of Riveuidc- u.s. Fo:u:ry Depart-
mant; H:Ldvnl: Pcdcul S-vingl and Loan (uinnelpolis) and, lg.gcill programs
for lov-incou, Ilinoril:y groupn. ! ‘ ‘

’m Ot special note is the series of progrm boing conduc:ed by 22 perlo’ns
:nincd in pre—ntirmn: education -and life planning program devalopunl:. A
" made possible through a recent Comehenpive Emplomnl: Training ‘Kot (CBTA)
‘grant award. The objective of this one—yur projecl: has been to provide .
skille, knwlcdge and ex-peuqn:e in life planning and uretr t:unuil:ion to
persons. r.prumting unebployed diverse special populations in the Ci.l:y of
Los Angclu. The special popul;:ion?from which the CBTA—PREP trsine ere
selected are: Hispafiic; Black; Ancricnn Indiaq, the dinbled- nnd, mixed
ethnic bagkground. . ‘ s
: -The CETA-PREP Lifa Plaoning ¥nd Career Tnnaitiona Progrm evolved ss a
Fnull: of the experiences o;ﬁuxdmn Gerontology Center Pre-Retirement ¢
Education, Pr;:]ec: (PREP) . e t:hree—yelt PREP resevch project ‘indicated
:h.l: there arg several "special" populll:ion groups which, for various reasons,
do no‘ have access to reaourcen vhich can help individuals identify their poten-
tials and develop op:iona for a “non-work" life (e. g., disability, unmlohn:,
+  and retirement) which can be experi 'L d with indep ‘_ » dignity and self-
confidence. It vas propoud ‘that "non-professionals™ could be :nined and
could provide ludc"hip in guiding others t:onrda such an objec:iva. ‘.
This innovative program vas initiated in Augqu: 1977, and 1s reaponaibl\e
for training 23 individuala in life planning :echniques and career develo nt .
wmethods. These trainees have completed a conprehensive training progrm,t:tex" /
vhic'h eack trainee his been pllced in a coinuni:y ngency and/or organizn:ion to
fulfill a ﬁ.eldwork comil:m:. This I:nining also incfl.uded identification,
coordina:ion. and hﬂtinuon of ca*mlié\y reaources which can assiat individuals
in ruolving egononic and socia.l pfoblems.  Also of interest is the couponen: )
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dulin; vith the tdencificstion of individual potemtials a the dtvclopﬁ#t
of vi“l- options ‘for penml and career growth, L. ’ .
The CETA-PR!? Life Planning and Career Transitions Program b:- forth a
v uniqun ‘approach to the provision of stimulating .xponure :ovlrdl an artay
',. of nev dimensiona in csreer developmént for individuals who have beer ralal
gatad to lessar job positions in the past.
' to e lsck of crastiva utn;zuion of the unuud -ku,la and talelits 'of chose
‘not c-ploy.d. Whae experience of the PREP staff with the ' underuployud" i{ndi-
cates that.potentials do exist vithin thase mdividula.
creative job d-v-lopm: opportunities through a human service orhn:.:!on
such pount“h can be\ tappad for the betterment of the community and -the
mégvidul. The CETA-PREP program may be viewed as an innovative intarvention
mechanisw vhich provides s valuable s'ervice in enabling the individual to
"copa-ability” skills to deal

By exploring more

saintein a sense of independence and,strengthen
yith problems. )
As s result of intensive program develdpment and hplmntution with
. such divnrw-uon groups, a special grid system vas developed so as to
meat the naads of parsens repruenti{i(pecuhd age and income levels. THe
PREP Trainers huve been trained to be creative designers of life planums
programs, b-nd upon “the ueed. of :he people with whou tHey are vorkiug

Ny

w

.
.

—

YOUNG ADULT | YOUNG MATURE | OLDER MATURE |- RETIREMENT AGE
18-35 35-50 50-65 65+ -
[
LOW INCOME
| @ - s5.000 | 1 2 3 4
LOWER MIDDLE |
$5,000 - 5 6 7 < 8
$25,000 :
WIGHER MIDDLE] AN '
$25,000 - | 9 10 11 a2
) $45,000 ¥ *
R —
HIGH INCOME ; R
545,000 % 13 1 15 16
. s
‘Y
' 3 »
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d o¥fare in~depth information, techniquas
1.£1'g age and income group’se such relate

u.rtnlc relevant to thd
the iglloving topical esreasy

. .= Planning Stretagiss (b
" Objectivas);

ed‘on -a proc.cu,. Planning b

. . . LY

L . = Devaloping an Economic 1.Q" (includes ﬁmchlqlmniui' . h
’ E 1uuu, housing op:wn-, and new _/'
© »<> Maintaining Healths tality (based upon preventative
: -— U nd. illaent (includes identification
. - (based “upon
) Y '
L '-
e intensive four-year experience #ith the PREP research, " mottel E}Qé.op- ,
ment, tninin; co_iuun: and prograa L-pin’unuon have provided d.n
‘xpcrieucu which provoke the foll g suggestions to thc‘Subco—iueq/ou
“u Rpun-cnt Incou and Employment: ‘
(1) It, ig *gguted that sttan ion be given :o the incressing prqufer- '
T ation of pre~reciremént- sdoca »
creasing uw’u of providers 5
some guidclinu.for qmity progr‘ .
. 4
+ for eveluatiom. :

individuale havc bctn identifieﬂ'vh
in and uluh.in:y of pu-uurenn:
-2 upon the need and the ‘efforts ‘of otHers. T e . .
,  (Note: To cite an cxnplc, tvo men, tcpnuuuug thenulveu as’ pre- N
, -:‘qé}rm: education planning consultants, made an lppoiutmut to :ug with
®e about program development. ‘Through Tl

I found that one vae & Blick Jack dealer in

’

vas a u:cd-ut salesman in the same city,

her tenacious questioning, it vas
Veqns, and the other, his uncle,

Hith nil due respect to both of

was that they had talked with many reti‘red?p
the subject. They had daveloped ag Q%&tliue for a six-week program

. . 1]
} . . . : !
. . : - 4
s I
" .
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L] B
L -
. R Sk ' .
o\, {
. - ‘. "
- - 4

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



' / ‘
. Q2 lwurl), for vhich they were harzins $310 per pouon. goy had de- -

hai not yet completely formulated the

line Which the)dad found o the book. -

an tx'periencc is a rare circu-lt,ance, 1: .\ -

. for the sincere and vell-qunlified profes- )

posits f5°‘ 21 partivipants
;rogru content beyond the
Although it ie hgped that sy
does 1nd1i¢ s posaible grobl

*
eionals { re-yciren':nt education who are very capsblé of providins pro- ~ .
+ grams which solve rither than create ‘probluul) - : I § 2

(2) The rus Center's Pm ruurch 1ndic‘tu ‘thst most prc—retirh
ment programs irovide s 10 to 20 houx' nurcnuubuilding" spproach to’ pre-
,fetirement planning, which 1n nout ceses ud.q(utely covers the’ ujor iseues
to be !Qc.d in petirement. However, it ie suggested by this r.aeqrclh that
mrc’ be provided than just an "iwareness building" program. If sttitudes

x:-nt ssa positive tunlitio.n in one's life are pr'ono'téd, and if

;bout rctir
vior changes towards that end are/to occur, it vill be due to on-going

* exposufe’ to pornqnnl resourges and economic plmning poluibﬂitiu urou the
lifd.ppnn. "It 1s .u;yut.d that such exposure b. spoﬂ-ored by in ustry, busi-
nes¢#, lsbor unionl,. educational inetitutions, government gencies and

ity organizations through a lystmtic approach. The following Seveu—Steg’

- Rbtfrement Preparation System is suggested: .

-
I." “an’ ingtroduction to the dimensions of life p,lannin\nhp
" be provided as part of the employee'd orientation upon entering an
orfanization (or, vis » vig—'u cooperative educational institution and

PR )
\ sgonsoring entity endeavor); . ' .-
ar.” On~going lifa planning seminars nhould be provided so that ”~
a person can continua lurning and be exposed to life planning stra— ‘

tegiu across his or' her vork ll—:l.fe span (e.g., financial plnnning i’r
each Iife phase, career d.velopnnt, health maintenance, etc.)
. III. EBEach individual should plr cibate in a retirement planning
! "aswareness building" progran (18-26 hours)' at about age 45 years;
IV. A lttutt(s\d, printed wodule of ‘supplémentary materials
.should be available as a follow-up to the "awareness l*ilding prow *
and relevant to Tresource assessment nnd on~-going planmning stages; +
v. After steps III and IV, 1ud1viduals may wish to participate
in ‘intendiuve special tgpical workshops. (For example, the most compon
request is for a session on financial pluuning, with the objective for
each Plt}iciplut to explore financial resources and to complete a.‘dr;ft

B .
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) financial plan);
. Spnci‘nl sassions offered uo that the 1nd1v1dual hll the

portunity for'a Pnriodicl review Qnd T ;sment of eda and
ntionl. bnand upon nge and/or the number of years before -

.

L

T

WII. Provision o loyment “Sransition procé.ll", determ—

ined by employee and employ

’.

1nd1cntcl that pra-ﬁtirmnt ed-

-

(3) Tha PREP ,projact experience als
ucation progrlll are n::ucting significan nunbu;l of persons ur?dy re=-.
‘tired. Thia would 1nd1cnte that there is & nubstlnti(l pQpulation of retired
persons whd face spacial problm in retirement living, vhich are 1nher¢nt1y
different than the 1ssues 'covered.in pre-riireﬂent progrm Thelc people
are seeking Help with solving pibblm which hnve surfaced cither becauae of |
* & lack of earlier planuing, nuunticip(ted chnngea. or the désire to explore

lltnrnnti)l. It is suggclted that relevant programs, nuch as thoae conducted
by the Andrus Center PREP staff, be dix;gcted to this nge nnd special mtereat 4

-

group. « 3
. (4) The Andrus Center/PREP experience with ‘10 high school students “ :
dicates that this _age groyp is very willing to pnrticipnte 1n a viable,

lif‘c planning unit of study. By adapting the Andrus Center'a PREP mode}l, '

demonstration programs have been conducted with three high schools in :% . R

‘greater Loa Angeles County area -- a high school with predominantly low-

income, black student er:u'ollment; one predomi lﬁtly niddlye'-class,v vhite

student enrollment; and,, one "pontinuing school” with 38 students, 16 to 19

years'of age, reprnnentix;g lowfincome, mu‘lti—er.hnic backg ufxdls. Such expos‘ure"’

to :he dqvelopmt of planningistrategiea could halplredi;‘ect‘:he energies of

»

many young people towards a of independ “and direction towards a
viable fq_nuﬂ. S e . . '
. (5) It is-suggested that\thia Subcommittee support n'eedcd research id
' % the following areas: o .

(a) apprvopriate structures, tech.niq,ues. information and dis-
seminagion processea for retirement preparation for all levels of

¢ socie:y, .
(b)"iob maintenance and/or redesign for older workers;
o=, (&) time use as it impacts on Ehe mental and physic‘l well-being
of thi\asi,ns individual; )
T e (d) ‘methods by which ‘inkage systems can be developed hetween ?
;! . labor, management, educational institutions and the individual, as
such linkages relate to the subjects of age and employmeét and retire-
ment preparation. .
’
[ 3 -
i .
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(6) It is furthlr suggeated that the Subcommittee on Retirement Ink
an! loyment sesume s role of leadership in this emrging -field of
ud 1life plnnhj.ng by supporting the nged for gffective and
rams 1n pre-retir(unt education for govemment employees.

. mt,prlplr\lt
extenmive p

Thie Subc uu can mdud b-cou :hp utllylt for the aponsorship of such

X opﬁqttunit;t . by sovqrnmnt ugenciel ucrola the nation, as wall as for lebor,
.'," induntr.y. buliuu. educazion&l Lnutitutionu. and comi!y organizations and ]
% lzlncill acrose the nation. - - =

A panel of 50 distinguished pardons. pers interviewed by the National
ﬁ—ucltion Association (NEA), Bicentennisl® Gamittu. One of the findings in-
diceted that there is a growing need .for fu:ﬁ?&qriented planning. The par-
ticiputl expressed. great concern because so,littla such’ Planning is being
accomplished either by the individual or by responsible groups. Careful
plenning in the esrly and middle years can lead to nw life satisfactions
and sense of independence during the retirement yesars. The middle years,
sspecially, provide an optimum time for "a:ock—taking and of sober awareness v
of one's 1m1tntiou‘s and one's potentiala...inaighes which a resourceful
person can use to great advantase in planning for his Jdr her later years. )

Frankl in his book, Man 8 Search for Meaning, states that "the striving
to find e muing in one's life ‘Is the primary motivational force in mam."

Thet is the tuk awvaiting all professionals responsible for developing .nd
preunting qu&@y pre-retirement education aid 11fe planning programg --
striving to help others to develop options which will glve meaning to retire-

1

ment living. - .v
SUMMARY

o The preceding overview has provided general responses to the three major
quution- to which testimony was to be directed. The following is a summary

of specific information relevant to each quastion:

I. what peeds should be met by any adequate gystem of retirement
re nration7 ]
An adequate system ofretirement preparation must meet the diverse .-
needs and experlences v various socio-economic levels, as well as
diverse age and ethnic groups. The fo lowing are suggestions founded
M upon such a basic p‘remise: /'*—/1 L .

A. A -ugguted system for retirement preparation ghould be
founded upon a life planning concept, and par:icipa-tion should be

based upon a life-long learning concept (please see Seven-Step Retire—
[ ment Preparation System within Recomenda:ions content,

T . ¢ 4 .

. .
b | . . :
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. - g -
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By Many studiu indicete that ‘for e parson to be ldlqultely‘

prepared for retirembat, hc/ﬁ sha .must have tnk.n into consid a-

tio‘ thl following jor quu‘cious.

1. Will I'hswve’a sufficient annual income to provide for «
the tyge of g.t_gu:yh I want in retirement? ;

(@) .th':'ln my projected sources o‘f income in

" retirement? , | - .
.- (1) Pension \0 -
(2) Social Security
’ (3) Property, mve-tunn, inpurance
&) Other (i:e., family) .
. Py (b) What ere my projacted P in retir nt?
ol L. 1) Goncnl: housing, food, clothing, medical, epc.
T - (2) “Taxes
*™S<. ., (3) Cnildren (i.e., helping vith educatiop) -~ * ¥
*(é\l Aging parents
(5)\\0thor

(c) " How can I wave.money (i.e., consumer education)?
(d) How can I eerm additional income in retirmn: (1.en,

uployunt opportunities)? R
(¢) To vhon can I turn for advi&?

2. What ere.gome of thc quntionl 1 ueed to l;k in tegudl
to my legal affairs? s

(a) To vhour;ln I,t'urn for sdvice? '

(b) Have I made provisions for the distribution of my
property in the event of my death?

(c) Have I established a locator filp fo; nroperty and
other legal papers?

e

3. Have stablished a long-range hulth maintenance plan?
B .

(s) recengly have I had a complete medical check-up?

(b) Am I fully avare of Medicare/Medicaid benefits?

(c) Have I looked carefully at my current health habits
and evaluated them as to their impact upon maintaining vitality
into my later years?

4. Have I reviewed my lifestyle and relationships in prepara-~

P tion for s transition into retirement?
(e) 'Work - .
- (b), Family

(c) Friends . ;e -

 (d) Leisure . o : .

. W (e) Spiritual . . .
S. What are my ‘current interests and act;v_feies?
4 ‘(a) - Are they diversified?

(b) Do Il&argiciplte by myself and/or with others?
(c) Are tNey purely mental, or tothlly physical?-Or, both?
(d) Am I doing what 1 like to do. during my leisure hours?

' 6. ‘whlt gives my life a sense of fulfilldﬁ\t?

(a) At present . .
(b) In'the future ’

"
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, decisions by government,

NN

*. Hhxt concerné do I hsve ebout my own aging process?

>

. 8. ﬂ.v. I developed a visble plln for my future?
C. The prpvision of an -dcqua:e aylten of retirement preparation

would necesaitate both financial and moral support from those agencies,
organizsations snd political institutions in a position of influencing
entities to offer sugh 4!

buajinees, industry, union and chtiopal
43 a -—0r nny part of such em _- to

mdividuﬁs .nd groupc. ‘

private sectors: gRoverument 3 industry (lal
and management); educational institutions (public and private); and
other community-based organizationsa?
L
In general, ‘it is euggeeted that these entitites work cooperntivaly\

in developing opportunities for individuals to explore the impact of
the verioue traneitions which may occur in their lives, especially
retirement preparstion...and how such tuns!]:ious may affect financial
stability, mental and physical well—being. familial and social relation-_
ships, ahd the dynamics of the tudividunl s lifestyle. The follm_ring
ara more lpccific suggegtions: ’ s ..

. A. \Govcrnnen: should provide:

1. Financhl auppﬂrt, staff release time, and other supports
for a- ratiramt preparation system for 511 government employees.

2. Financial support for research data accumulation relevant
‘to life planning and retirement preparation issues.

3. Encouragement in the proliferation of effective retire-
ment prepsaration gystems throughout the nation.

B, Industry, business and labor should provide:
4 [

1. A cooperative -atmosphere for the development of an dffec~-
-tive retirement planning system. .

‘2. Opportunities for all employees to participate in a viabla
retirement planning system. « 5

‘ 3. Financial and personnel rgources necessary to operaéiou-
alize and to uLn:aIn ag effective life planning and retirement
prcpcrltion' ayltu.-

« 4, A linkage system by which’ cooperative efforts are deve}loped
in providing the krutest number of opportuuities for, the greatest
number of persons to participate in a life planning and retirement

prefaration system. .

C.( " Public hnd private educational institutions should provide:
* e

1. "A foundation for cooperative efforts with government,
industry, buginess and labor in developing multiple retirement prepar-
ation opport\xnities.

/ 2: Curricula and CQntinuins education courses which train
personnel as Occupationdl Gerontologists ahd Retirement Planuiug
Counselors. i

y

5
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. 3. 'l‘lu'uplrtuo, necessery to the sccumulation of know-
ledge for the growth and expansion of occupstional gerontology
and retirement planning systems. ) - L
4. Opportunities for individuals and g8roups to explore, in
depth, the verious topical areas relédant “to sound Iife planning
and rp}itmt preparation. - Yo

D. Other co-u,ity-bucd orgtnizutioni, should provide: °

1. The methode by vhich"thc'h‘rd‘-:o-ruch population groups
can be offered the opportunities to participats in relevant life
Planning and retirement preparstion programs.

? 2., A rssourcs for the retirement systen's research, d'at. }
« collection, program pllgning and on-site practice. . .

e 3. Opportunitdes for linkagss batween other comaunity
entities and those who provids 1ifs planning and retirement prepsr-
~ ation programs. ,

III. What, in your view, would be the moat. appropriste and effective vays
of inducing todsy's young and middle-aged adults to prepsrs for securit
and fulfillment in their letsr years? : .

N Research indicetss that exposurs to ths 1ifs planning process scts .
as & potivational force for individuals to ssek additional information;
to changs uttit_\_xdu«”out life planning and esrly.retirement preparation;
and;"to evan chanje ‘acthe behgvioxal patterns, building towards s more
positive lifestyle Yor the future. The following age morssspecific (

‘suggestions: i

~3

- ‘o | . . f 4 . z
. A, Provision of specific exposurs, for those pirticglur-, sge groups,
. which will help them dasvelop planning stretdgies, based upop sound - «
l planning’theory and & vieble knowledgs bass. ¢
B.  Unite of study sbout life planning isdues should be introduced

st ‘least es esrly as high school. Suth programs should be part of the
. - . " ,

required course work. e
- "C. Esrly exposure to life planning’should
. 1ty colleges, universities, adult learning cent

D.n/' Middle~sged adults should be mcoutiged to participate in re- 4,
tir t prepsrstfog programs (some SpONsora. aupport a md,tqry stten~
- _ dance st such programs).

be reinforced in commun-
ers and at work sites. '

.
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. LIFE EXPECTANCY - UNITED STATES - 1975 N
‘ - N - n .

W ‘ . ) X
Averags . \ Totel Pogu;&ion ' : :
Life Expectancy R T . N
T _at Age Both Sexes . Male {Pemale
. . . ) &
0. 72.5. 69.4 77.2
J- (71.3) _(6726) (75.3)
. 3s . 404 - 37.6 44,2 -
S (75.4) (72.6) (79.2)
Y 35.8. 33.0 7 7 394
e . (75.8) . (73.0) (79.4) L
45 / ~ 31,4 8.8 © gy .
.0 ('/r . ey 4 L (735). (;%\ :
: 50 - B 225 NP YA £ 5
. Y gray (74.3) (80.3)
55 C 234 20.4 ' %6.0
. ;s A (78.1) : (75.4) (81.0)
’ 60 . 19,4, 16.84. 4. 21,9 ° .
L ¢ (8.4 (76.8) (81.9) ) .
65 ¢ 16.0 /o1 7 saf
(81.0) (78.7) (83.1)
.70 ~ -12.8 109 6.4 -
_ (82.8) (80.9) . (84.4)
75 ' 10.2 , 8.5 : 11,
(85.2). . (83.5) (86.3)
80 8.0, - 6.7 8.5
- \ - + (88.0) L. (86.7) . (88.5)
85 ’ 6.2 5.2 6.5 =+
. _ (91.2) (90.2) (91.5)
¢ 'l C . T . !
AR . 0 ) '

~ Pi- es “in par&nt%o indicate average expected ng- at ﬂluth
: . : S
‘ J Source: U.S. Public HeMlth Servica, Watiindl Center for Health ,

‘. Statistics. Vital Statistics of the United States, 1977
’ Volume VI - ey, %' -
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|+ UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNTA < :
. ETHEL PERCY ANDRUS GERONTOLOGY® CENTER . Item 3 .
. OBJECTIVES . .

. To provide lndlvldua 45-65 years of age, couples and singles) with lnformulo.n
}Iwant to h- need fol\ planning for the future and for altering attitudes and

sarly plahning and r.ﬂr' .

ot e . .
2. To erase the stigma and threat often assoclated wlth “pr.-retlrmnt" planning. »

3. To provide Individuals with jnfomltlon about human dev.lo&nnt and the dyn-lcs
of -ladlo-ago. > .

H . *
{ . .
N, To help indlvidubls and cou‘{los develap planning strategles for the futur .
¢

S. ' To-provide individuels and couples with the opporhmlty to explore retirement
‘ tentiels, problems, anticlpations and tlons.
po P . ps [ w : ,

- . , 4 Ld » N M
. 6.7 ™o provide individuals end couples with information gnd copln‘g mechinisms rele-
vant to the major issues to be explored when plannlng for retirement*

. .
\ o~

7. To help participants recognize the need for continuous education and rehearsal
for the future. ¢
[~

- .
#Taghelp lndlvl#uals to arr,!v. at realistic expactations about retirement.

} \/\‘/\ * ! - T .
9. To help Indlvldu.ls.dovolop ‘confidence In the fagt that, by plar:nlng"'early, they"
can Influence their future and build towards the'waqsi “v' environment In which
4

they will Ye living in retirement. . . N
! . / .

o 3
-1

’ " 3
I}f To presgnt a program which provides for the sponsors ,
(a) ' financial feasibillty '

(b) realistit time involvement for staff end participents .
(¢) prectical technical end mechanical components °

A (d) a potential for continulty durlng employees' work years wlth
) the sponsor -
N , (e) @ structored formst for ease of presentation
.(f) a potentlal for enthuslastic support from the employqes and
' participants .
. (g) asstructure which provides program components “relevant to & re- A

tiremgnt "awareness'’ program relevant to the needs of those who
will retire in 1-2 years, 3-5 years, and 6-I0 s.
1. To provide an evaluation Instrumntéhlch will help the sponsor measure the
value of the prqgram to the particibant and which will provide djrections
for '‘program changes necessery to meet specific populations npeds.

. * el
o . : L SR
. Yoo 3 '
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- N .
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PREPARED STATREMENT OF Douatas A. Fumn, PrEsipenT, INTERNATIONAL Union, *

NIT! Aumuomu, ARBOSPACE AND AGRICULTURAR |

MPLEMENT WORKERS OFy - -
Aun A, AND'Director, UAW ReTirEp AND OLoer Work:

ERS DEPARTMENT P \
" ok
- L d

. RS “of (Submltwd by Paul A. er)
) Tl - *

v
) Question 1 Whae 'mwd- should be met by n'ny uéoquq:e system of retirement
- T " prepabacion? - ' .

The UAW ls honored to participate in :hlu tlmoly examination of*
: o

»

rutlrcmunt urépnrqtlol\. tretlrement prepnrntlon '

We balleve that formal

: ‘progrnmu can be of ulgnl{hant value not only to é'ur 1.5 million Act{ve UAW f
segment of the- wor*.}ﬂg- populntlon Although the - . .

wembers but also to every
i

. Pﬁpulnf ‘modia ha? only reu.ntlv ueared nhc,&qpb:’uf o 1_§_-ement. our,

i
.

.orgun!za:lon 1s no stranger top :he many M,m,. lovolfs

\

“tor succeysful rotlrL-mpnt l(vlng our,cmunltmnt ‘to

. ® 4
during our lach :\nnuql Conurltu:lonuﬁCohver};for‘when Reaolutmn'
17 (UAw Progrins for’ Oldcr ang Retlred Workers nﬂd
- . 0
(L . LN -
un.mlmoualyladopn.d by the conventlon defegntes » ' ~

,1(‘ l‘)57

+
ot her -‘Gtt 1zéns) .vas

[N .o~ *

. Rnsglu

! Y
?W eatabllshgd a prqcédent for the construccion nnd . L

RN
hc o( the flrat comp_,rehenalve types of retlremen} planlng { )
- L

ount.ry At ihnt time our lnte Preslden: wnlt}

k¢ retlrement plnnnlng progrnma a ,pn!*uxlty hnrgalntng -
. e .. . L]
{femd in c.ont,r t nego’t ations. Al:r\ough retlrﬂl\ent planning, progrnma d(d
) A e .
Z( vme J‘QI‘llll‘l(V program within the UAw‘ ..they did not
. N KRY
argalnlng {tem m nogotlntlhq: at that time Hwev
T . . :
twen,‘y-om vears'we have lear&ed a great dc;b chm ur’experiences ln '
&
H‘p md tpndu((lﬂk mrmnl ‘rettrement Mnnlw prodrans. Todav we * ) .
s) A~ N :
hkw Lo sifqre wath Uns
H

l‘hgnrrtnlttee our. por-upettives\on the needs ¢ ‘
.l " 1

ecome“.l priority f
b , during the pz;'st

.l\‘ bt\ 'hl Ill‘-\( wl,
v

ﬁf‘.sm;rcan% t‘h(-parth &pallo}\ bt younger popula‘tlnns in thp process of . Lo ‘_'
[y l b, . .
rob‘temvn( pnmr.u ion, ied . o ’ - .o .
’i

Hm wwlvvm. ‘AL 0t pu'bllc nnd pr.lvntd ﬂu‘nclo and methnds .

Many- workt-ts who renrg early under speclal contrnct.provls,lons and

\

‘eholse who reclre mndatorily do not realize

[ ]
the tremendous changes g,
. . .
s - ?
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. 11!&"19 that uunnnt 11Ving brings, le\y wrv.ynb t- u\gt a .

majority of workers ha\u not lllldl concntuplnnl Yor tln. Eu
s‘l.

fraquantly lack the nﬁcelury buic 1n!ormtion uqutrld to ’ |‘
dacisiona for ntirnunt. Al & consequence of this hck of pllnninﬂ

Y and ln!orutlon, mnny workarl do not maka a utllhctory ldjultmlnt to

fﬂ

. utlrlmnt, oftan expnrienca additional tyhsion and trultutlon from witWin.

their familias and may wlthdn\r from meaningful pnrtlcipntian alrr comunlty

-nd otheY Ioluntlry lctlvltlcl. 'rh‘ UAU _recognizes that wlthout .d-une

" ’ 1‘44 .
pnpnutlon for retiremeng lnd opyortunnioh for rephcement ncthlt?e o

v

an lndlvidull worker uy‘vell expn‘lance severe dapreulon and lnxlety.‘

Without reguhr aoclll lntenctlon nnd nccua to community-based .ctlvity .'.'
N . i »t
in retirement, mennl hcllth suffpu B‘unt}y and can contribute.to the

. . : .
tnoreasing rates of alcoho).hm,‘ divorce and even suicide among retired

persons. u W o T )

~ L) -
Since the early 1950's thore has been a growing trend by labor -

organizations, educgtional 1nnltutions, governmennl ngencien and 1ndqstrhl

flmh‘-to sponsor retirement prep‘ntlon programs. 'l‘he UAW emphnlun
- v, )

P .

ret {rement planning programa which supply our workera with current infor-

v . . .

., mation about the many and varied elements of retirament living, 'brogvn.mu

-which utimd}n‘.te planning for ‘the*futureiby encouraging sach medber to ﬁy N
' RS : . ‘o -

¢ formuhte a concrete plan of action aimed at chunging patterns of ll'vmg,

- . ~ » %
.28 well as progtnms which attempt to promote a satisfactory ldjustment
- . ‘ Re%
to retirement. . - ». '

L . '

e - The UAW believes "that our retlrement plnnning prognma shou),d provi‘dev
ag- much relevnn: fnforutlon As poasible tor those wo‘tkeu who: “one, may

nat have the nemd\‘ty l;'a‘slc information about retirement fidances, phyulcnl
Voo AR ARE I 2 -
-/

L
and mental healyh; “social rehthnships, retiremenr_ houslng optionu, legal
) e By «
N - o, . - .
[ 3 ' . R
. F P .
. - , ! , - R =)
. < A .
m N ! °' . 1 .
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concarnl, lpuure tlm and s0 lorth. ucond. t ers who lluy not

pnuul the penonql ukllll to lntcrpnt and lpply chqlg.‘ contnctull beneﬂ.tl
and ullto thue benefits to thelr tuuy QGQ‘II ll\d tlnnlly. those vorhcrl
Who may hnve untellv-tic lxpectltlom lm;ltlremﬁnt ln genenl and .

hucceslfully managing a budg:t. Wa lell thlt nw ld-(wntl system of retire-

ment preplutlon should address these_ concem .'. . : P .
.—‘ \ " B

. ‘rhq“UMl bel-levu that the compnhmlve type‘l‘qt*«hnt pl\nning progum

’

offeu the greatest bene_‘lt to the older vorke tehenldve’retlremnt

pllnnlng #rograﬂemploy npuully tﬂlned coordlnlton. p!b‘(ld, a wide

1]
'unge oL lnfotnutlonﬂ, resources and regullt}y lc&uled retlrement planning
sessions dealing with such luuel 43 preventive health care, human relation~

" shipa, money management , conuumer and’ legal sffairs, ﬁpntglctul Benefits,
living arrangements and leisuke time, We do not feel th‘nt~one or two !
. visits to the petlonnel ofﬁce a week to two before retirmnt beglna

benefitas the older worker in any measurable way. Hovever, seveul nntlonnl

N,

studles document that moat vorkeru receive only the llmlted, exit-interview

form of retlrement preparation, a nigni,flcmt number do not receive any

preparation vhunoever. - ( ’ e

. + A recent study of workers who did nqt pnrtlctpnte ln retlrement
pla‘hmng programs revealed that theae v rkérs encoun‘ta‘red“ many o
penond adjuatment problep; -and experlence;— an t;nut!.pflc.tory ndjuutmnnt
in retltement In contrut, other ,utudleu lndlcnte thn: ﬂrt}clpnt(on in

retlrement plnnnlng progrm helped lhdlvlduala mmgé*\elr flmnceu.

positively afiected their vork hablts ll‘ld ad justmerits to the nslng procéss ‘

as well as strengthened their fnmi}y and community ties.' .
Any adequatg retirement preparation p:"ogum should+include a sensitive ’

B . ' 2 '
and well-trained staff, a, recruitment polioy to attract werkers and their '
. ] . ) .

' spouses, regular, comprehensive ‘and portable tetirement El‘nlns sessions
- " . !
. N o e C >
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ut\uh nvlpv all aspects of ratlramnt llvlnl (lnd not qut finan » '

nttrnt:tive. Lnlorm.tlva nncl casy to_comprehend nupplementlry reldtm mnterlll.l s

.

dia fo £ ive o aople snd t 1 tant l.
»snd me rms, e fect}__;es urca p ple sn [] mp%r antly, to lov -up

tn the form of communityfbased activities and an orgenizgticn for retirees.

s 0 L

with supportive staff, - . ‘ . :
. We believe that each older Qorker -shoyld have accesa“to qualified retlreme\n’t/
» 3 14 . | N [l .

planning staff', a wide rangé .of educational mate'rlalaaund formalized
[

L rct-treme'ni“plannlng sesuons Any udequnte program of retirement planning 4

.

should also center upan several 1n-depth retlrement pllnntng dincusslgn sessions.
4 . The UAW believes that _at leait six, ™o hour Yetirement pllnntng sessions
oo
should be offered to all older workers in advance of thelr offlcul retitement

date. These pl‘ogrnms should be flexlbly structured LL] tbat large (gz’eater

than 30) and small (less than 30! groups ‘of older workers hpve the opportunity
’ ot
to bc adequately 1nformed and to dlscuus their concerns within. each ueulon

» Flnully. any adequate retlrement planning program should challenge the'

f thinking Jt each penticipant and not attempt to.tell each member how to live
the rest of thetr: lives. In addition to the bastc units on finances, health,
‘btme ﬂ‘t’s.ilels:xre, legd’t, co’ncerns and housing, any adequate program should
+also doc'us upon the needs of today s oider worker. Comprehensive retlr;ment '
planning sessions are necdcd which dis‘cui\s such nontradltlonal ls.sues as:
marrla;,v. and sexualtty in the later years, safety in the home, death and
bere avemr‘nt, .1lcqholnm and crime prqtectlon Retirement plannlng sessions '

;.huuld hc cunducu.d in an ncccqslble and neutral location which is agreeable

to the ma)ox”!.ty of the parttc@ants ) 1

R

. In August or September of thls year, tht- UAW Retired and Older workers

‘. .

Department hopes to begin a three yedr pilot program for the effective s

S

P
design, training and implementa:ion' of a retirement planning and life =
L, ; B

earichrent- prp.g'ra'm‘ for blue collar workers. We hope that this project will .
[ TSR N N - . . A S

. . coes . . : . Y .

W
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be jodatly fumded by the UAW and ‘the Pund for the Improvement of Post-
A

’ N .
§ econdary Education or the Administration pn Aging. Details .on this project -
»
.
. and other bu’q{tgtound 1nfotmltlon can be found” in the supplement following
. .
our formal testh(ony. ' - . —
: ¢ . ’

T - . v

Question,2 In |uch . stem, what should be the rel-ttve roles of the public
. and private sectors; . Governmnt (federal, state and local), Iondyptr,
s - (labor and management), Educational Institutions (public and p_rlvlte{
' . .and Other Comunlty -based oyganizations? . .\,

B - N PUN

» . .
Since the modern labor force is chlrlcte‘ued by dfversification and
specla_lvttz_atton, no ‘one 1nst1tu‘;}»on or segment of the work force could &..mn.t
and 1mplement a singular system of retirement p\ep-ntlon that would effecttvely

satufy the whole. Any adequate system qf retl#ment prep.n%ion nust conetder
the needs ard attitudes of today's’ workers whether blue or whlte colL-r, -

’ .
ul-rled or hourly and be able to address the special needs df v-rloua

pOpulatlon subgrou‘ (such as lou mpome and 'Mnority groupn) n vell as the.

f

many ethnlc communities. These mnthned elements \y.thln the vbrklng populntlo‘ﬂ

o~

preparation on the part of government. 1ndu3try, educatlon apdacomunlty-

suggest a 'need t\o deyelop numerous 1nnovntfve -ppronches “to retirement
/ !

e - ‘ Y

“ba d organizanons . , = R
. <, ' N .
%‘: feel that go\grnmcnt otganiutlox\s- shoulﬁlpl.ay a suppottlve role .

[ 4 i

An themde\)elopménr. of retlrgment plannlng programs. Peder@l tlx dollars. should’

be channeled bacl!' to the’ nute -nd local level for the dea‘tgn and lmplemntntion
of comprehenslve progurns now nponsored by 1nduntry, 'educatfon and connunttya

based ox‘ganlzationn [Go nt-related resource peop].ev.g he™available
‘ d\ & e

: ngty( in t&e topical are_ps of publlc health, soclal

to serve a given

-G
» ¥ security, consume m,ipubltc housing, recl‘eatlon and ie‘liln'e'.' The grovtng

%e - Ty .
number of govdrnmennl agentles and progtams serving the needs of the older
-~ . "Q‘«, .
- population could well hssi’at. in reshut.ce poollng at the local.g
- . .
AR ' } .
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We siould alse recoyqnize the vecvd {or goverament to inltiate and conduct - -
retirement planning programs for ({ts own atgff whére industry, education

and community-based agencies could lend necesaary gssistance.
Y

R .
For more than twenty yeara both organized labor and management have
" ~

experimented with various forms of retirement plamning ranging from commerically

p‘l‘epared prggrama’!o in-house eduEatlonal materials. Several national studies
docupent® tha:/althm-gh a maqority of companies state the ‘existence of retire-

. . . .
ment planning programs, few cond‘uct, them regulan}y, many resfrict. attendance
=4}

and the flow®of information to- 4ll but salaried employees and the few which !

: “‘Of-&!'m&ykir :egireunt planning prosrams Lo not prov-lde information beyond . — -
* - o

. K
'

", the simple explanAtmn of firancial. ‘Benefita. R
[ Y g -.‘ -
- . Even labor urganlzatlons have not kept pace with the 'tg.mea hy failing to .
Y
e)\pel‘lment with new techniques and methods of teth‘ement preparation. Some

. '

of':ﬁ reluctance can be blamed on more preqsing cOntuct issues, a resistance
G

- . A .

to chinge traditiortal apprdachefa or even a slmple lack of experience in-

prongtng ) 'ﬂ;‘: ! ) '_ - ' o

But an adequate system of retirement plannt’&, in 1ndustry requlres the
&

cooperatlon bf both organtzed labor and management in the construction of
P - ‘
comprehenslvc ret‘reh\ent planning programs which wlll be offerad on a regular buia
q

to all huurly.ar‘d salaried employees. , Such :e:lremeqt planning programs_.could )
..
be jointly Sponsored (as, Is the’ case alth UAW- Chrysler programs) or be conducted _J
. .

won a sha‘[cd time basis, that is half on the HOrker s time and half on companyb

time (as was the sc‘ovxl.l UAW program). Both labor and management need to 2

expand the' range of issues normally disﬁu;l!ed during retlrement p}}nnlng .
s

sesslons well heyond the financial aspegys of rvetirement . h(ore aegent n should

be devo:ted to tra‘lning session coordinators, deslgnlng new matérlala and’

e B R ..
“ . D b .
. :v. ., . x}
- ‘ !
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0oy . e s -
. ° ;
AR 22"5‘; L . . SR -7
. VR ' i ‘o
‘ . . .
. . . . .
, __ o .
Tl ) . .
W d . d
. A ' p) * %i";l . '
)

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

N ) ' ¥
_ 8 .

v o 4 .

media .fom. utilizing rasource perso and providing easy gccess to regularly

lchgdu],"d retirement plannipg progumn' for all workers. Research,’ uitnrl,i!.g
development and ractuitment of members by bq_tfa organized labor and.management
. L -

codld Aupply the necuur,ancouugement to increase attendance .nd participation’

‘—m—»

bywo:kerl cnd their spouses in comprehensive-typa retirament planning pi:rmu.
.Educnuonnl ’nltltutlonl can a key role 1n ‘providing the fndus

al

\ community with relen:ch. ttatning, partise in retirement preﬁantlon.

. 4 -

Inastitutes of'cerom:ology often linked:with higher education could lend resource
e

pegsona to the cq‘nunlty for the purpou of needs ugeument .nd program develop-

*_ment. Cowunlty colleges, .dult eduutl ; centera nnd other post - aecondlry .

ey

.nd comunlty educational lnstltuttonl coul eltnblllh .nd demonstrate retlrenbnt

o _plnnnlng programs throughout the general comlynity, especially for those - " o
)
! po htlona whlch are not serviced by an existing employment-raln':ed program.

o

AT s’
2°* + Educational inatitutions could .luo function as focal polnta for the referral «

of 1nformtm’n and resourcerqons 1n\order to assist com;mnlty ngenclea in
v N » . ’

effective prognm develomnt. S 1
Al

2an . .

‘¢ Many community- -based “secrvice and voluntaxﬁgencleu guch as the United
Foundation, YM nnd YWCA as well as various church gro‘t’xps cq'uld initiate
retirement preparation programs withifh their locn) uttlngs. Cmnprehenuvc, !

» retirement pl.nnnlng ptognm coulﬁ'ﬁegorgnnlzed around the commonly held™ > S
Yy

.needa of a g
L WY s
. organlzntlon! could recrun exist g rgaource peraons devel.op pxoguma 1;\
C°°P6Ht1¢h with’ governmentnl. IM eduuttonnl 1nst1tutlons and ¢Mauct o

' réhrement plannipg sesslong whengver adequate numbers of pnrtlclpmta '

Tosa e o
. are available. * ' * . s; B | .
' In ousr Opinﬁm, retlremen: prepnratlon programs are still in the 3 s "
L] . [ - .

'deve],opmgntnl phase. Al.though mgny organizations, cbrporattpns, ac.d‘fmtc‘

.\
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- forcg with full benefits

. ~ :
Lnntttutlo‘nl and labor urganizations clatm to have the ideal approach, many

]
! potentlul members are not {nvolved or doinot have acces§ to these programs.

“ o 4 .

Evcn when sugh retlremunt planning .prog_rum&re made ava”.uble to individuals} !
ippréuchlng retirement, promotional, outreach and refYuitment services ar

. R :
atl but nonexutcnt'. The vast resources of lnduatry, )government. educati

-

and community-based organizations could ‘be coordinated {nto a vlnble sya:em

of retlrement preparntlon se\’vlces {f each agency is ullllng to pool .resources

and cooperate in program dev“opment.

guestﬁ)n What, {n your view, would be the most npproprlnte and effective ways
of inducing today's young and middle-3Fd adults to prepare for
securfty and fulf.lllment in their lat8f years?

”

N

Today an ever {n{reasing number of workers ‘are retiring from the labor

« i

r twenty-five and thirty years of service. The

UAﬁ-estlmates that over ]{7.

f eligible product#n uovke.?g retired early in
¥ -

1977, a.greater percentn'ge is Q(pected"by the end of this year. Hezfeel that

these workers should be exposed to retirement and career planning well {n -
¢ . . .
advance of their early exit from the work force. To ensure the active
-3

pnrtlclpntlon ©f younger workers in planning for seeurlty {.nq 'fulfllrnﬁnt

‘in chelr Inter years, organized labor and management need to place spéclnl

-]
emphas'ls on developing more ntt\‘gcuve reth“bment ‘plafining programs and

materials, ‘providing a wider ramge of discussion topics within retirement® -

L : . .
planning sessions, 1nl'tlnt1ng regull‘r communication (mlllngq. and notlces)
N o

apprgnches and recruitment policies for,thqse most relacfant 'to pg;tlclpnte.
a
. But our job is far from over even after more comprehén{lve and flexible

retirement planning programs become nn/g/stnbllv.‘jed pnrt of.a benefits pnckage‘

for ue musg work for long- rnnge structural changes ln the working situ tlon e

. oo R )
L] ‘ ) - ‘L .
. o . . .
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wcb.ns time off zhe job, 1ife enrichmant programs, comunuy ulvol(/amen:
LY

pro)ecu and organiuttonn rentructuring Although many of.theaeﬁbroqunls
-
seem to be radhal duparturel trom tudltionu work arrangements, they have

L

bcen (and are ‘)eing) employed on an experlme’ntal basis in a vnriety'—f work

‘ .
satti Ha for the past ten years. - .
] S ‘ L]

:'Porni:ul time uff the Job programs such as extended vacations, phased
retirements ang shorter work weél;,s not only tend to 1ncre-n!'e job -secugity but

1cnsltlz¢.ghe worker to prolonked per/dl of lelsure. Arf’ individual worker

may experfenca certain changes-\dthin the family unit yhen all its members are

exposcd to lncn.ased amounts of time together under a new leluure sltuatlon. /}w

Recently thu UAW and the major automotive industries established a "pud
' > &
pcrsonal holidny program” which allows a workey aeveral pnld dnys of £ at '

Tegular monthly intervals each year. In the agrlculturil 'mplement induatry,

the UAW has suceessfullylbnrgained for preretlrement leave time for workers.

- v

with the necessary seniority. ‘lgible workers are allowed up to Eour weeks

ent leave in order to make a succesaful transition to N
% . , .
"6 plan their ret{rement activities. Other tndustries,

na:uutions and a few government agencies have’ experienced .

a good deal of nuc ess wlth phased retirement plans, Phased ret*ment allows

,mdividual tg gradually wi.thdrnv from the active-labor force by 1ncreaslng

N LN

;me off the job hourly. weekly or mnth}y’“
Certain pnvate .industrial orgnnizuions have involved young snd middle

agéd workers in life cnruhment and gelf, dev lopmen: programs in ch second

‘ careef, educational and culturul opportunitids are provided for workers and

their famflies. Several industrial flrmsm instituted 'erles of wotk

’

related md non-wotk: related educatlonal programs which promote skills

s
develobment, retraining or the opportunity to develop a new avocattou into'a <«
xq N B
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»

AN
to UAW members Qho desire to advunce in higher educat ou.? ‘A number Of

comunity colleges and universities take part in thts program throughout
L]

the country. Leaderahip und labor educatlon progrema are routlnely conducted

for UAH menpb/rs and their familleu even into retirequt. . e
L3
Suveral utility and industrial fifms provide selected staff vith vurious

N opportuntties to?yserve their umnedlate community Ln educational, recreationll

establixhod branch offices. es

and retrlin(ng programs on company tlee Other experiments utilize

1nd1v1duals who are within severul years of retirement

der to assist

enterlng employees or to ap ly ‘their experfences 1ni

-golving. to newly
r

The UAW algo provides many opportunkies for
its members and leadersh;P to serve the local community before and after
]
retirement. In fact, many UAW members i{frene their involvement in union

and community activities after they retire by joining\ the over 334,000

Ny

member UAW- retiree structure. - ’ - ¢ !
B A 4 . °
The last major proposal for experimentation and change within the
B ~ ’ .
labor force is organizptibnel restructurlng. Several consulting, accountlns

v

“and legal firms are- now baked on a horiaontal rather than wertical structure
T o

oE_orgunlzatlon. This type of struct'ure stresses luter'al ;novement, eocourages

‘shared decislo‘-making and promotes skills development and flexibﬂxty ther
S
than competition »and specialization. Tﬁese Ainnovations in' organizat‘.lon

. redtructuring have as their goal the humanization of the work site and a greater

s varied educattonaw cultural and recreational alternatives and to t"o.ster - ¥

3
o g . 3 )
partu_ipatbry role .in decision-making for the worker .

» . v
,Any attemptw ,Accompush striucturhl chiange for the retirement y'earu,
to widen career options for y_ounger*nd middle aged workers, ‘to provide ' N
B ) .

v
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'-'rhen: sugsestions for tmpqued retﬁ:&nt prepnrqtlon'progrem ‘increased
perlods of time off the job, opportunities forfelf development, cd\nmunlty

involvement progrms u(d org’ulzntloml !estructurlng could effectl\rely idduce
£,

Dpdey s young and middle aged adilts to re-examine their working careers gnd
- B A ; .
e c, - .

take concrete steps to prepare for fulfillment in later life. At the present
ti_me;‘, ﬁovgver, these experiments in 1ndustrial democracy are in the develop-

_stage and lack a coordinnted netvork of. conmunlty-besed service.

deltvery hich could provlde re:lrement preparation and life development
N

opportunitles directly td the worker at the communfty le_\ml. It is the

coorrdinatlon Jand impiementation .of such a coimnunlt"y-baeed network of

\
resourcen, programsgand services that could become one of the moat importnnt

breakthroughs in improving .nd enhaficing the quadity of life for all
- - L] .
« - . . .

_uarklng people. E ) . S
- ~ - - N . B

.

This concludes our formal testimony on retirement’ preparation. We would

A like to request that’a brief background report on our activities be entered

. igto the record. We thank you for this opportunity. - .
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Eckg round Statamogt ‘

THE UAW'S COMMITMENT TO RBTIRED & OLDER WORKERS
- e
% Fromits incepuou the United Automobﬂo. A“Olplco and A]riculhu-ll

Implement Workerl‘ of Axnericl hll connhtently demonltntedr‘it- concetn
""" for human betterment and the-quality of life th;ough collecﬁvo blrgahﬂn‘. i

social action and the political procgss, Qo boax the wark phce and in

society the UAW is guided by six onlentlll principlel o( progress, These

.. pnncxplel are; - N ) . ! .

‘. Organization for the common good

... Préaervation of dignity in the work place’

.« "Afdir share of the fruits of increasing productivity

"« Job and incom'e lecurity o
. Comumunity-citizenship responsibility’ b

.+ Brotherhood and/«__ « in the union, the community, in tho L
“w-nation ancl'm ] . én (rént*'l‘hil is the UAW 1968) . .

v Althoughthu 80t A:. phyh part of the qrg‘ni‘uuonal ‘strycture
N - of the UAW, in no arei ' Orglnizahon'l soclqi conldence more visible ,
e
™ than in its conce?n-and support for retired and older workersy . . S

The leadership. of the UAW ((ollow: the initiative of the fate g
" Walter P. Reuther) has 'conui;tently promo:ed a number of pio';leérh:xg
programs _:nd.urvicel for'its older and retired workers. The ;najor s ,
‘ emphasis of these programs has befn to provide a sedure economic base
for the retired member through gains established in collective bargaining
agreements with the major automohve, Aerospace and agricultural imple-
.. ment industries. v -
lﬁwwropa‘m- »
Since 1949 the UAW bhas promoted an, exten.nive four-phased program
for vit‘n older and retired workers beginning with collective bargaining
agreements for better pensions, comprehensive hellﬂ:’ insurance lnd. other
medical benefita, In 1957, the UAW began its second phase of progra'mmi;:g
by providing a direct service network of coumeling and referral |erv1cel.
dxrect problem- |olv1ng assistance on negotiated benefits and educational i
opportumhen linked to a variety of community and consumer action pro-
grams nationally. ' J i

. . .

I

. : b Y
RN P L c

o B Lo . ' -~
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e 9‘.
R In 1966 specific retiree programs were coordinated and unified under
the framework of a Retirdd and Oldcr Workou ’Doparhncnt supported by
o roﬁnl dues. Retiree ncﬁvlﬂu are. coordinut.d by an lnternlﬁonll‘p.o- '
' ' ﬂred Workorl Advisory Councn and supported by Regionll and Internl-
. 'ﬁonnl Area douncnl. Monthly meeﬁngl axe conducttd in over 580 retiree”
. chlpterq. Withln the retiree structire are: service and referral centers,
-multi purpou drop-in centen. legillntive progrlm-, educitional pro-
qmn. leginlaﬂve conferencel, retirement plnnmng programs, recrea- .

¢
ﬁon progtlml. leiaure time prognml ph)’lic’l fitness programs,

- .o

— _..Jtnlu.ntary—mvice prOgramHnd, oeheraochl activitiea. -
- The key: and lant. link of the four-phased program han been and con-
tin.ues “to, be locnl and legulative acﬂon., Many legmlnﬁve programs and
reforms for all retu'ed people have emuéed from.the UAW retiree move-

', ment The various- beneﬁt mereases in Social Security, the eltahluhment
; of Medlcare, pension reinsurance protection, tax relief and the establish-
ment o( the Older Americans Act have.all beedinfluenced by such legisla-
~‘ , tive pressures. Many national aging organizations are supported by the
U.AW- retxrec .movemant. Among. them are t;he Nahonal Council of Senior -
Cltwcns, the Nahonal Council on r.he Agmg and the Concerned Seniors -
for Better Govcrmnen‘t. The UAW rehreq movement also cooperates } :_,°"
with various federal, reglonal state and local units on agmg,u well as /
other_iabor organizations in—order to provide a viable network of services
fof its members. . i b
The relationship between the UAW and its retired members is a two-
way rehuonshlp. While active members support retiree organxzahons
wnth both leaders\'up and an allocationp of monies, retired members also
contribute lekdernh.\p and substantial amounts of money for their own Y
. Programs and oyganizations through voluntary retired membenhxp duea.
*In addition, retiree involtement in some of the prqgranis benefit all union
members, bot.h,achve and refired. For example, political activity related . ~

- R
a
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X, r,‘,
creau‘ and natioml health 'ccurity. allo concern active momberl. SN

;‘ g Anof-hel' example of. the reciprocal naturc of the relationship is retired
. member support, both financial and moral. for -trlking UAW mepbers ‘ :
“ ' and their families - S ‘ “\'3
Unlike many labor organizations, UAW reureen ean attend the Idcal
union meetings of the active membership md have a voice and a vote.

Retired members can vote and are eluible to run for officein all local %

union elections and for all positions .except those of shop steward and
bargalnlng éommitteeman. Retired members are ehgible to vote and run
for conventxon delegate with gumranteed representation, at t.he coplututioml
convention. UAW retirees are not eligible to vote for tﬂe rauﬂcauon of a
g),ven contract and cannot participate in a strike vote.''/ = | L
" Through the efforts. ot the UAW Regional Directora, their 'taff and" '
many retired workers over 580 Local Union Retired Worker Chaptera
have been established in the United States and Candda. Area Retired
Worker Councils make it posasible for all the Retired WorkeraPChnpters .

in a community to coordinate their activities. Regional Retired Worker
Councils mobilize the Retired Worker Chapters and Councils in a reg:on.
The International Retired Worker Advuory Council has the responsibili

of recommending policiea 'I)'ld program' of concern of the retired worKers

tothe UAW International Executive Board.
UAW Local Union Retiréd Worker Chapters and Councils in fhe Unit;é. ¢

fht /
ell as (.Z-e/
e

those yet to retire. Trachtxonally, UAW retirees have par, ;c;p;ged in /fhe

States and Canada have been organizing their m._.n}b._-,. effecti

for impo;;ant social legislation for t.hose already retired as

Medicare Counaseling Program t.he any community an consurr;er service
‘commltt‘es Znd the three Advuory Program. / S
In addition, UAW -retirees provide: education a com.munny pervices
(consumer protection, crime prevention and legal {ustancq). nationwide

dxrcct social services (volunteer work, nuraing hgme aupport and Citizens

O
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“for Better Care lrdunteeru), legislative support (letter writing, lobbying,
publishing information by and for reureel. testifying before legl-lntlve E .
bodies, worklng the polls, creating public awareness, pu-tlcipetlng on -
advisory.boards and: commissions on aging and as members of NCSC ad-
vocating politi¢al relorm) and financially supporting the active members .

‘_(lchohrlh.lpl and u-lltnnco dnrlng extended strikes).

e . *

v

UAW.Retired and Older Workers Depaytment - ‘' : .
The UAW Retired and Older Workers Department is an international

..erlce department which hne been provxdlng a comprehenllve program
l‘or. its members since 1966. Today oveér 340, 000 retired memberl
organized throught the seventeen UAW national (geographlcll) regions
compose the bnle for service delivery and social and leglellﬂve action.
The Retired and Older Workers Department has a permanent staff of |
eeventeen full-time lnternanonll Repreaentatlvea whose sole finction
it is to deliver service to the renred and older membership. ‘Each staff
. vrepregentahve maintains cloae contac‘t wlth the membership in specified
et reglonu and in a varlet%of depa:tmental (nnno‘nal) pPrograms and services.
The UAW Dave Miller Retiree Center serveés as the central healquarter!
for all rehree«achvntlea and departmental functions. In addlhon the
Retired and Older Workers Department is assisted by a widé range of
International UAW Service Departments such as: Lirculation, Clerical,
¢ Community Action, Community {{elahona, Commumty Services, Conservav- y
hon and.Reu‘ource Development, Censumer Affairs, Education, Family s
£

-~

Educatlon Center, lnternahonal Affairs, . Legal, Manpower Development
and Tramng. Public Rellhone and Publications, Recreation and Leu,urg,
\ "l‘lme, Research( Social Security, Special Projects and the Womens

%

Depa rtinent. . _:.\'
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" (then) Division of Gerontology and others to- participate and‘form-'a Lolverllty ﬁ -

. Followmg the proposals of the subcommittees, .Hunter conducted raglnmg
" sessions in retirement education for UAW staff and leadersof

Retirement Planning and the UAW D o ﬁ .

The-first formal expression of interest by the UAW in retirement
education dccurred during the 1957 convention, Reeolutlon 17, UAW
Program for Older and Retired Workers lnd Other Cxtllenl. unlnlmoully
adopted hy the delegates, conulned the lollowmg provlllon- .

'"That since voluntary retirement-preparation education progrunl .
can be of great value to older workers in planning ahead and
preparing for the adjustments of retirement, the Internations#l .
Union undertake, in cooperation with educational institutions and : v
community agencies, the dev lppment of appropriate materiala .
and methods for conducting s ib programe (including the establieh- - AR
ment of pilot projects) and seek, imsofar as practicable, to establish P ?’
such programs under joint spopsorship of union and management, / .
with both time off and !undl fo ‘ume to be:regatded as worken" : K2
benefits, ‘subject to collective rgnnlng negoﬁaﬁone." ¢ . R

The UAW and the ataff of the UM\rernty of Chicago s Union Regolrch

and Education Pro,]ectl developed a retu-ement prognm. About twenty- ey
five regional staff representativea lttendqd a preparation for retirement -
xnetltute con’ucted by the Unxvernty of Chxcago in 1958, These trained
staff members subsequently conducted lum ner school leadership work- -
shops'in twelve of the seventeen UAW nltnon 1 reglona, using discussion )
guides developed by the University of Chicago ¥ itaﬁ. The workehop plrtl-
cipants included local union committee chnrmen and members actiye in
‘such areas as community service and educltnon. Foll ng the summier
school tz;unnng. efforts were made to develop retirement pllnmng pro-' /.
grams at the local level. Programs were conducted by’ some local unio:
in Indiana, lowa, lllxnou, New York, Wuconain and Mnch.\gan\ ‘
The UAW contlnued its efforts to develop a retirement planqlng B e
gram in 1957- l958 by aeekmg assistance from The Unxvernty\ of Mi,"c
lnstxtute of Labor and Industrial Relations. The Institute turned to t{lé .

commlttee Woodrow W. Hunter, of the Division of Gerontology, ldrved ¢ «

as thc head of a subcommxttee that developed propoaal’a {or the UAW Program. ER

. lected Detrolt N L
: ’ | E R

4
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UAW locals. Professor Hunter revised the Program materials developed
for the Uphol-ter-' Internatioml Union for use in the UAW program.

. Following the tuining sessions, retirement education programs were : .
-carried out by some local union- in the Detroit and Flint, M.lch!lln

- areas, o . : . ‘

.
—~

In generel. ‘UAW retirement planning programs congist of between
six and ten weekly sessions o’t about two hours each. Prospective retiree- -
*are encouraged to bring their spouses. Program mnterhl- developed by ’
- :Hunter are still used and tocu- ona number of Lrement thenfes such o
) ii: Work and Retirement. Good Health i Retir ent; Mental Health in
Reﬁrement, I-‘inancnl Phhning for the. Reﬁrement Ye’re. Eerning Money
in Retxrement, Activity tor the Retirement Yelre. I-‘lmny I-‘riende in the
Later Years, Where to Live After Retirement~ Legal Mtllr- oI Older. ot
People lnd A Retxrement Readineu Checku-t. T . ’ ..
Typically, a.UAW retirement planning program, devotee each eeuit,n

.‘ to one theme: The.number ‘of retirement planning theme. d.hcuned usually °
determines the number of* eeuxona held. Each session is led by a diecuuion
leader who has receiyed union-sponsored training and is often assisted by ,”

-‘ a resource person from the comrnunity who is an expert in the particu.hr

‘ topxc being discussed, i . f v
in addition to its unilate_rally sponsored programs .‘. the UAW has
pioneered in the development'-et jointly sponsored retirement preparlt.ion"

: programs, Such programs have been carried out with the Scovill Mmu- L
‘facturing Cpmpany in Waterbury. Connecticut, the Chry-ler Corporaﬁgn e
and more réceatly with General Motors. ' The Chrysler-UAW program haa
been conducted in Detroit, Michigan; Indianapolis, “Kokomo, and New Castle,
Indlani 'I\mneburg. Ohxo, St. Louia, Mueouri. Syracuse, New York; ]

- Newark New Jersey and inthe State of Delaware, 'rhe UAW-GM progrm

is a pilot program at the present time. To dlte, Ford Motor Company and

International Harvester have expreued an in,tere-t in retirement phnning

30

but have not established a- precedent for a jointly -poneored pilot progrlm_.

S
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Recent Developments in Retifemeit Planning ,

1. . - . . : B
b . . . '
. !

Since early 19.77‘, the UAW Retired and Older Workers Department’
has l._v'é.enuin the process of“revhing its approach to retirement planning for

bme collar workel‘l. The propoud- UAW retirement planning package

-

v

enutlt'd "Phnnlng for Successful Living. " will conll*l aix comprehengive
uu:oni dhumng the mqor,faceu of :.'etirement tiving and include
belsbooklzfolf the particip&nu, m&nuah for leuion toordimtors.‘ a
standard ’brguenuti;n format for resoutce persons i.nd attractive audio-
:visg“’a'l_v_alpd' related mqéih 'f;i-ms.

I order to-ecomplete and expand upon tHe original renrem?t
planning revision effort, the UAW Retired and -Older Workers‘ Departmenb .
applied for Fedel(al support from the Adminhtration on Aging (under Model .

Projectn) and the Ofﬁce ‘of Educatign (Fund for the lmprovement of Post-

‘ Seconduy Ecﬂxcation) in Decentber of 1977. If eitﬂer agency grants

. appropriate funding, a three-year project to research, delién and implement

blue coliar workers will begin.
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a new apprdach to retirement planning and life enrichment assis tange for

The proposed project recommanda the development of a six-unit

retirement planning program with related media forms and resource
-

mlteriali, the trnning of U. staff in the appropriate 'methqdology and

the demonstration of thc: program mtion'ally' to a blue collar %Dorkjng

>

.popula.tion. . E
) . ) ' .

The three-year prdj%ct-alio proposes to develop-a life enrichment -
informational strategy (career deyelopment informticni, to train a*number .
of life enrichment_c'ounselors and finally to deliver the info;-r'nad'onal .“

LA ° . .



Recent. Developments in Refirement Planning (continued) - ‘ !
) < . . . . {

» . . - .

resources to s sample population of olld_'er workers in several Michijan

‘ communities. This tb;ee-yur,pl;oject will nfpmpt to coordinate available
< \

¢compnunity resources into a comErehenniv; model of localised service
. o \. -

delivery and life cycle planning which could well benefit the natidh's

industrial population. - R N
[ 4
. $ .. .
. . N :
. . . . [gs
. . . - . ]
D ..~ Frnest D. Bauer .
o . - “ " Social Sccurity Administration
t . 14 Cottage Place

» ' - . Waterbury, Connecticut 66702 «

' o ’ . : . ! .
Honorable h‘ed B. Robney .
Chairman House Select Committae on Agig '
Subcommittce on Retirement Income and EWployment
* Raybyrn-House Office Building {

Washington, D. C.

-~

This, statement is in response to your invitation to testify about "Preparing
for Retirement: Crisis or Challenge." ‘I have been deeply involved in the
problems-of Aging and in Pre-Retirement developnents for over 20 years.
*Recently, through an Intergovernmental Personnel -Act assignment, I served

vas the State of Connecticut's first Director of Pre-Retirement Education in

the first state-wide, state-sponsored program in the country.’ Therefore, I

has some unique ':anlights and  experiences to share with your Committee. = |

I an appearing as a private citizen to presesnt my own views. They do not
necessmly‘k-enect the views or policies of the Socinl Security Administration,

. Respectfully yours,

’ , ErntDQ. s

.

) .
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Question I. Needs to be Met by an Adequate System of Ratirement Preparat..

Most workers, sixty years of age or older, will apeﬁ a portion of their re-
maining years in retirement whether or not they are compelled to do so. .t
There are approximately 21,4000,000 pacple in the 55-64 age group. (Projecting
the 1970 Census figures) This is generally considered to be the pre-retirement
portion of our populatiol While preparation for retirement coild well start
much earlier in life, th_:\jlmahold" people are most acutely in need of these
programs. , .

a. Some workers will experience the Pre-retirement depression syndrome
" shortly before retiresent. : B .

b. Roughly 10% more will suffer post-retireient during the first year .
after retirement, regardless of their educational attainment or e
economic leve. N :

s Y
€+ Some 30-LO% of all retirees will face diffidulties of varying
‘. severity from the stresses caused by changing to a new life style.
" d¢ The rate of addiction to alcoholism will increase substantially -
" : in this group as they "adjust" to retirement., :

e. The problems of retirement involve all members of ‘the family unit -
not just the retiree. Husband and wife must drastically alter
» their daily routines and their concepts of their roles in life.
Adult children and grandchildren must adjust to the drop in income,
the increased free time, the changing needs and the aging processes
and problens being experienced by their parents and/or grandparents,

Fifty years ago few people cculd afford to.retire. Now retirement opportun~
rities are open to or thrust upon the vast majority of the older workers .
However, the required change in outlook from a deeply instilled work ethic
to a leisure ethic presents many with @ sense of guilt and uselessness.

An understanding has to be reached that 1ife can continue to be productive,

creative, and satisfying, even when one is no longer working. This requires

establishing® zood lines of communlications with ones fdmily and friends

It also requires advance exploration, preparation, and planning. '
Many wjll be unable to successfully make the transition from the structured
life of work to the freedom of non-work, without the reinforcement provided
by pre-retirement education seminars. Offered.most effectively five to ten
years prior to retireaent, these discussion seminars enable the participants
to share their concerns and plans with thein peers. Through exposing the

- unkmown, investigation of some of -the frightening myths about retirement,

* the pre-retirement preparation programs relieve or' dispel many of the mutually

held fears and andeties. . . -
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) ‘The pre-retircment e&ucuﬂiop prdgi‘mg; would be based on a fou‘ndnt:lon of
. continuing {¢search into the traurma of retircment. Onéoing studies,
Fedorally fuided, should focus on the main Problem arcns confronting workers
in the transitional rctirement- phases, the effcctivenss of current.- pre-rotire-
nen't pPreparation programs and the changes needed to' keep them, ?neun:lngml :'

The main thrust of retirement preparstion and plann is PREVENTION i
early preparation many of the hazards of life in theingater yeEvfs éu,de\Z;ﬁZd. '
It offers a low cost, highly effective approach, Properly directcd it could
well serve to reduce the costs of caring for our aged population - costs that

, ‘wi].l grow significantly in the next twenty-five years, /? R e

3 !

’

. | L3 -~ I .
Question II. Thc Relative Roleas of the Public and Private Sectors in an

- Aduguate Hotirement Preparation System . . kg '
: S - o
. to * ' _/ ' ° !
. Government hasa dual role to play in prp-retirement education. N
oo PR ' . o N -

‘e

1. It should serve as.the' catalyst to 'atilg_ula,t.% the dqve.lopmen;. of .
discussion seminatrs. x . ro .

service employees., . Sk S
P . u *b"n'g% . I

B . . A J N
. . o / L .
2. It should provide quality pre-rqtil{gmy/ programs Tor its public

A. ' The Féderal govdrnment should.'aponglr the’ resea and :developmentgof
guides for comnunity;prog‘ram organizers, for discussfoh leaders and rox'jthe. S
participants in the seminars. It should also develop yraining prograng; for
community organizers and discussion leaders. An effecfive way of Hvoi‘"m;vthisl

%  would be to pool“the resources.of the key agencies un the 1eadgfsh,-i}i of :
- the, Adhinistration on Aging. ° , /n i ERRE

. M . . T X "ﬁ N

Through Federal agencies such as the S?/ial Security -Addinistration, w!{i:lch

- has a direct involvement in every pre-yetirement progfaf by .providing resource ',
people and reaches almost every community, the ‘pre-retinement 'px-epa_ra'q{on -
message could be brought to the people-, v} . L

- A

The Federal governmént is the natioh's largest employer. 4t least 450,000 of
its employees are 55-6€l years of age - the pre-retiremen _age. The up will
be almost doubled'in size by including the spouses. At present the Y. S. -
Civil Service offers programs 1ch, from my observations| are inadequate.
The Goverriment has the responsibility of providing its en| oyees with a
quality product. In developing effective in-house progri

. showing the way for all the ,iﬁt’erest(ed groups'’. B

State governments would 313/0 play‘a similar role. . NI
+B., As catalysts the stafes would conduct research through their state .
universities' departments of Geruntology - Sponsored in p. by Fedpral grants,
non-profit fdundations gnd ‘contributions from the private sgctors.- hey would
develop programs to be/offered in the communities through cqmmunity colleges,:
state universities, private institutions of higher educatiorl, non-grofit .
_agencies, “such as f.h/e" YMCA's and adult education systems. -
L ) i .

: o o -

Fl

.
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CAs hrn ssployers the l'utu are akso’ bound }o devdop in-houe pmrm ,tor o
their large pre-ntir-.nt. tuployu popul.tipn. PR ;

o c. Local government has a ti-uu' M roh. ‘fhrouh its highly daveloped
... wdsoational mtu, mirennt prq:mt.;lon vagnu cmld be: o!'rcr-d ithe *:
- e_lnﬂ»’- . .. ..f - B

* As one of the lu-ntt uploynr groups, - 10&-1 gmrmont. should dovelop in-
house pro(n.l!l for its many teachers and municipal. employeea. . Generally, . ' :
u::‘ilt.ncc will be roqu.ired from tho federal and aut.e levels to bring this
about. - -

‘Do 'The toles of. 1-bor and unagmm. are. nore mrrouly definedi Howuox,
some: phases of the private sector should play'a broad roles The life. in-
surance industry has a%direct .interest in ‘assuring that their clients ad- Ce
Juat well to theib later years. Already some companies, such as the Aetna ' :
Life and Casualty have developed excellent pre-rotirement pamphlats, {0,
‘"And Cae DayiYou Retire." In the future more life insurance companies
. be brought into a more positive role, i.e., ‘funding, reseanﬂ\, and devel
mnent of guides and prograns. They could also help sponsor communj. ty. programs
by t.n.in{.ng agents and underwrit.ars to aawa as comi\mity organizers and: .
discuasion leaders. Lo ) ) [
g »
Large employersrare ‘beginning to realizq t.ha naad i'or in-houu progmms. - .
.Generally. they requiro guidance, training, and' 'assistanca in providing for ., :
K thair ‘employees’ meeds. . )

Man,y unions, havav long been at t.he !'oraz‘rort of the development- of retirenent..
' preparation prograng. As yet they have not been able to start any signifi- -
‘. cant nunmber. ‘As joint 1abor—ma¢arﬂent vertures, the pre-retirement programs
improve 1ubol'-manaxenent relationships. Pre-retirement praparution courses
should becoms" pu‘b ai' the bargaining contract. - )

' This. past year = -1977-70 - union' representatives,: on assignment to United .

) Ways throughout the country, were assigned’ pre-retirement preParation programs
as their priority task. ~However, had I not.been available to train and guide

. the CAP repx‘esentntin in Wat.erbury, 1it.t.10 -uould have been accomplished.

I)nder uy gnidance lnd diraction, a Joiht. Social Security-Union Hanagement
vonturo is evolving. It will provide in-house pre-r¢firement programs for
many' conpanies in the drea. It will set.a precede r-all of Connec(icut-
Echxcatioml institutions were nent.ioned under stube mkcal governmnts. .
Private imtit.utiun: of higher 1oaming are ent.ering the' rield. In the past. t

some ploneered in devcloping the format and content -now being used by most . .

of the discussion seﬁnm, ., the Univers;lt.y of Chicago. Coe

. We very mach nqed some mechanisam- for coordinuting all the sources i'or developing

. retirement preparation progranms. ‘Whether leadership should be in the hands of

- the Administration on Aging via the State Dapartment.s on Aging, or a Higher
"Education Institute for "Later Year-Preventics," whether Industry and Labor
should jointly sponsor a National Pre-Rat.irmnt. Insti't.ube, requires cwreful
ennimt.ion. .

Perhaps ‘o' Joint. e!'rort of all the co-ponent.s could be most effective. The .
Sociil.Seocurity forces, already in the field, could provide the initiative
and the coord.inatlon.

&

A\ LN . .
e . . : >
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E. The invblvemant of community-based organizations.into much needed pre~
retirement activities can be accelerated through the’ encouragement by )
government nnc\i the private sector.’ For example, the” YMCA's have a full
blown ‘program ‘for ‘their staffs. With a little revision it could becdme a com-
munity offering. The B'nal Brith has an excellert pre-retirement presentation
for their membership bub.they don't know how to kindle irterest. Similarly,
®  the Lutharan Churchihas onec of the most sophisticated and effective programs.
.Yet’ the churches in:Connecticut are mostly ignoring it. )
. . . 5
Almost everywhere one probes we find evidence of soms organizational interest
,&n pr‘epfu‘gng the membership or staffs for retiroment. We also dlscover a
growing g Yeredt of the merhership as they approacih retirement age. The .
.. ;PEeblen 13_haw. 4o help the two o find a common-meeting ground so that the -
_riegds Of the membership will be satisfied. Basically, the organization of
‘somunity support is necessary to ldunch and sustain the retirement prepara-
“tioh prograns. L ot . 7

= ) ' T I P .
Many other religious denominations and commudfy organizations are riow .poised
on the -brink of pre-retirement preparation involvement. With good.reference
materials and energetic leadership, they could soon coptribute toward success-
ful retirement of their members. D PR c

’ -

III. How to Indnce "Today's Young and Hiddle;g ed Adults to Prepare for
’ their Later Years® . PR
Our main eoncern must be with the 21 .million middle-aged people who are
within 10 years of thelr 65th birthday. They need to prepare to bridge the
gap between the world of work and the world. of non-work. It is urgent that
they ledrn how to do this as soon as possible. . :
For the younge;’jm&ps there is no urgency. Core curriculum programs could
be introduced at.the high school and.college levels to enafle the students
to understand and relat;e‘t.o their parents and grandparents. That should be

our only involvement for the present, in my opinion.

\ : : :
A. Reaching the Larpest Number of the Pre-retirement Group as soon ‘as.
Possible - c : T

' 1. Although not as effective as group seminar discussions, the mass
media provides‘the only practical means for reaching the many millions of
niddle-aged people who would otherwise rotire without any advance planning.
I would propse to do this ‘with a combination of open-mike - Great Decisions
T.V. series of programs. &$ce detailed oxplanation in attachment "Pre-
Retirement Education for the Unreached Mass Audience Via the Media).""

¢ g s
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2. airg Nationa] Prograns Lo St
' 4. Utmsc gommnt. agencies with wide-spread outreach and counnlty '
" comtarts’ to,sponsor, organize, and-trein private sector and non-profit
organivation personnel such as YNCA, YWCA,.Cliamber of Commerce, and
ehuv.hes %o° operate a network of pro-ntimem ~progx’w.

: w-me Socia) Securit Lty Personnel to manize PRE Prggmns

Thére are npproxlntely 11)0 Socid Securipy of fices aervicing the #ntire
country. Over tha years di:trlct. offices have provided resource people
for almost all of the PREsPrograms offered. District managers have fre-
quntly sgrved on co-u.ms vhich pmyided PRE to urious communities.

The musber ot prograa' nvaihblc at present have barely scratched the
surface, . The 80-90,?1!3 Prograhs provided in 1974, in Connecticut, reached

3,000 pre-retirees at ihe mest, .or atéut one per cent_ of the potentisl .
e 55-6& Meu;e» Yet, our State had one of the Nation's stmngest.
m' . . . -

s

w’tnhdxg key dd.strlctoomce perscumel to organize commnity P’RE Prograns,
, . ‘eonld schieve ‘2’ ‘dramatic increase in the pumber of PRE participants in
nv programs throughout the nation. The suggested activity wonld both
le spproaching retirement age and the Social Security process.
" The § cipants would be. 1nfomd about the available benefits in the
*plannifg .sepinar’ They woild also be instructed on how and when
“"to file thair clains and the documentary proofs thex \d.u need, Thi's will
hdg the district office in processing the claim. :

ﬂfer ‘attached Memo Decenbar 16, 19W, *Recopm tioha for Training :
. District Office Persomnel to Initiltae md Spo bwﬁetirenent Program in
w.r Service Aroas.” I :

t can be accomplished by trainad sooial security district

op'le, I cite my pre-retirement involvement during the

” Year. M £irst let me point. “out that my involvemens ip Pre-Retirement [
muon is not :al of spoial secugity personnel., Mdst would require
u&.ive tnindm .ﬂut‘ I u,-eouplu od from lut. ‘October to the present.

»

L 4 I htlped plan a’ pre-ret.ireaent conference for the United Church o;

» Chirist of Compcticut. While the confe @ purpose {n.s to prepare °
ministers for retirement, I wa's able.to intersst the conferees in the pre=_ .
retirement needs of their cdongrezatioms. “A- subahnt.i‘al pmportion of \heir .
pnrishioners are in the pre-ret.immt ofc groups,

-

.
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»

+ 2. 1 spoke to thle'Centrél Naugatuck Villoy:Personnel Managers
Association about the'need for retircment preparation programs. Many were

interested in participating in e discussion loadersy’ training program now
- in the planning stages. . , .
3. I trained a CAP agent zo:mit.e'd Hay as a discussioh lcadgr. Under

my direction we then conducted three ‘concurrent pre-rctircment discussion
seminar programs for 75 employees of the Timex Corporation aud their spouses.

. k. T trained the company personnel director as ‘discassion leader and
guided him through a full retirement prepardtion program provided for Pisdon
Manufacturing Company employges and their spéuses. . ) s

S. TheTimex Company had such favorable response from our progrars that
mansgement hquest_qd more. Since I could not spare all this time for one

company, I proposed the following:

&. That Timex provide its own discussion leaders, drawn equally
from labor and managéement, to conduct in-house pre-retirerent

progranms .,

b. Utilizing the companies training staff and facilitles, under my
direction, e training program for discussion leaders would be
arranged. -~

¢. That other companies and community oréanizations be invited to
" send personnel to attend. R

, 'de  That the cless be limited to 35 persons. °

Plans are now being formulated to hold the training program next Septemoer.

Thus far seven other companies have arranged to send cmployees. Two graduate

students from the l\!nj.versity of Bridgeport have requested permission to attend.
+ .

This %111 be -€he first such joini undertaking in the states, under the sponsor-
-ship of private industry. S ,

& 6. I have organized & survey of the oldest continuous Pre-Retircment
Education Program in the lortheast - The Scovill Manufactiring Company Program.

* Just prior to selling its Jaterbury divisions, ‘managemcnt of the Scovill Company
furnished me~with a-l1ist of all their pensioners. It was broken down into
those. who had partfcipated in their pre-rotirement program and those who had
not. ) 4 . .
Since 1961t the company and its UAW\le 160L had' Jointly copducted retirement
preparation program. They have long beén regarded as the "MODFL" for the

" entire Nortfleast including Canada. Questionnaires werer developed., I enlisted
‘the gervices of the* Waterbury Junior League to conduct the survey of the 140
former employees' who consented to be intervicwed. Mattatuck Community College -
& State institution - offered to analyze our results through their computer.
The questionnaires are being ariswered anonymously.

v

. S , o R »
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We hope to learn the following from this survey?

107
They were validated by the Rescarch Division of the University of Connecticut

Sehool of Sacial Services.
The total cost of this undertaking, exnluding donated time, will be undcr

.
s ‘

. three hundred and fifty dollars.

°

1. MWhy peqple did not attend the PRE Progrnm?

2. Prom the vantage point of their re ment éxperience would thoy

now have elected to'at.t.end?

3. bWhat wvas their experience it adju; ting to retirement?

4. How did PRE help those who did p& icipate? -

S. Did f.hey use the reference materials Mefore or after retirement?
¢ 6. Were there critical areas not covered thht should have been?

7. From their present vantage point, uhich opics do they feel were

~ irrelevant?

“ B. Did they feel the need for & refresher progrém, dust prior to
retirement; after retirement or several years later?

This project demonstnte‘ how many diverse agencies and organizations can be _
enlisted to work on a program of mutual interest. It also indicates the
breadth of ihterest there is in retirement and in the need to prepare for it.

\

Sin:!.lu- studes should be undertaken of a large varigty of retiremerit prepara-

tion progrnms around the country. The comparative Tesults would provide
invaluable insights and undprstmdings.

See Schedule: PREPARATION FDRARETIRB-IM - DISCUSSION SEMINARS
Questionnaires: Set I - General Information

Set II - For Employees Who Participated in Pre-

;- _Retirement Progranm . p

Set III - .For Non-Participants

.
~
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Jg
Pro-Reument Educa ton crosses the linegpf mnny d:Lverse disciplircs.

t.erest.% !‘or a multit.udr' of. organizations 5 in all

i

+ It provides a c'cmn

N sect.m's'ot our econoaic mdosocial struct.ure. v Jt is non-political in

“ 9
it.a expnasion. It 1s P l'I:IVE in 1t.s purpose. ‘l‘hore is a universal
C_interabt., for at sohe st um anl op- 1ioes, hopemlly ve will all

nt..

* need to prepare !‘or retdir * 9 e

E-J

' By examining t.he later’ yenra _
nnd di,scuasion, many o!‘ the

der t('he br.lght. light of informed reascn
htening myths and dis“.ortions are’ set
’ uido. With underszunding nnd nning \our entry into the non~work

3 years can be inner-etruceure\i, provlding happiness and dignit.y.

. & .
s \ .
' . ;'- - - L] N
X ' -
Attachments ’
-
- * ’ M v\
’ \ . .
v . ~ \
> ! ~J ’ * |
h ' o~ e .y B



PRE-RETIREMENT EDUCATION FOR THE
UNREACHED MAgS AUDIENCE - AGE 55 to 64 -

e, VIA THE MEDIA .
. , . . .
Vo .
Lo ) i . . -
’- ’ .. . 7. Ernest©, Bauer, I.P.A. Director
V. .. GQPffice of Pre~Retirement Education

Connactldgt Department on Aging.
S

’ s

The backlog or.puoplé apprOA;EQngzrutArcmeng.n;e is s» enormous that
e 3

® . N ¢ .
' no matter how many Dro-Retiremant Zducation Sbminay:?rqgrams are established N\
\ . , 4 E .

the bulk of tFe poténtiil audience will hotebe reached. The curreht
¢ : O R

P . - . " . Y . :
progrims will have to be modified and redesignéd.' We have to prepare
X » . . e - Lo
[ . R / . . . .
’ - A : ’

. v « o ! N LN
as nanry paople ﬁ# paysible for their almost ineygjtable retirement.

‘ N ; A ot ‘p-i y . ) )
' 4 In the Sla‘éuof Cénnepyicg; alene there arf'aboﬁ} 300,600 peaple
! ;"/: ' coT LR ' '
betwa2en tns aj2 of 55 ang (l, At present thare are roughly 80 P R 2

Prosras: in opsratisn, Assusin: what thec: are attended by about 20

>
N a, \ . L . . N .

peop}e 2ah and ATH.Ring that thut thore ure three s2ries of seminars
- P B - f . . . .

. r

o - , ) . \ ..
‘ogiven I sach orzatizution eavh yoar it would mear that there would
" ’ . . M .
, tg . . . B . -
be abous 5,000 pedple Lteending P K i Semirars in the salenddr year,

5 =
This baraly scratcrexz the surface, .deipito some ripple effect
, N L] . S
- = . ) . < ¥ ) EET
with friend;/ fanily anl ansociutés at woxk, Thererore other iachnlqugs

;. ’

will 'havg t5 be de&.;.cda principally those 'using the MASS MSDIA,
* the quality of the prostams and the depth of the information disseminated
v . v - .

4 ’ .
< i . - T
‘ will suffef, ‘Hawéver, to pget peopla to think well in advance about .
. . .-
<@ ! : O : - ¢
retirement) and to_acquaint them with many of the-problems that lie “ne
R . . .
s - <

* . s 4 y s
ahead will bL: a Lie step forward, In the process ways of resqlving

.

-
-

S T o ) -
. u-N110-70 .8 '
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e s .
those problemé will {a discus3zed. o
. s 5

! L Pre-Retirement Education is a PREVENTIVE PBROUGRAM. . By exposing
. ) Al . o

© 110

1 . . .
people well in advance to the problem arcas anq disguasing ways of "«

Lo~
M . . a4

. 1
resolvink them, in a sense we duplicate $he process of immunigation
.

-

which strengthens tha body so that it can better resist disease

“proble=s”, - \
» .
T4 - N ? - ; .

. An "Open Mike" television or radio program serigs 'would be the most

wppropriate format for. our mass media outréuch effort, Here the listening

#
a

audiercs can participate over the telephone. it is not restricted to
» .

a passive role. o *
D o ) s Al
«*« ' The broadcasts should be one hour in length, They.should be

schcduleg'for the came timz each weekx over a period of eight weeks, ' -

-

They éhoulq po modelled after the live P R E Diseyssion Seminars.,

,

Each weck a different subject will be discussed, ‘vunning from

“¥ork and-Roiitomeﬁt' to "The Use of Lelsurd Time®%.
N s . —_~ ' . ;‘
It is further suggested that there be a grodﬁ of pre-retirees
v - A - .
present in the studio to participate. in eacn.progtam. One or, two .

Discussion Leaders should conduét*ihé"a;mfhars“_with carefully

. . L
«
-

Gulected resource persons to provide basic informatjon, .The group of

LR
s
. >

Z.

v
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pre-retirees should.be limited ,fo".’abb,uii 15 in number. They‘ should ‘b'l .

hlg?;ly articulate, come from va;‘ious waks of life. If marriod.
' I - .

both husbands and wives shp\*ld nttend.a K

Arter the resource pqople ave lntroduéed the subject under .
dlscusslon. the telephoqe Lﬂksf should be opened "to. the listening
[ 0
audience. Their que&tlons or i‘euxarks shoum alternate with those of

ia '/I

the liva partic;pants. Tné grLund rules should be described at the
o .f |

N .

start o"’ edch pragran., They \Jill include the lengt)x of 'tlme to be

\

allowed each qughti.anmr. the 'exclus;on of personal questionsy conrinmé
* ,-_,, . | C .

observat‘ons 1:& the‘ suhjsct ur‘der discussion and forbidding any personal .

.
., . .
PR - 5‘ . v .

&
i . - attacks up/ort a.ny s’tudip partici.pant.

. .

A ; < . ‘e
' Carorul monltoring by hlghly trained people will be required €o

keep .ﬁhe 1n-coming tebphoﬂe calls moving smoothly along. ’

Ny

There should be. cxtensfve publicity in advance of the Pre-Reﬁirre;nent -
Béoadpaet or Televised Series through all of.the‘ media sources, as well
[ " . . .

- ns f[raugh industry, commerce and labor. Tho,&udience s,hould build
Lo . 4
4

H

A .

', dver a period of tlme. 80 that in the last fow weeks. if tl&e programs

s - ' 2

' .
" have been effective, a widecpread audience should be reached, i, e ‘

L4 '

Ay
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N
-

- o

. Information Materials will be developed,to strengthen and sussaln /
P, 1y ’ . — s, )
thé interest of the audience, It may be pos¥ble to arrange for a

. , -
weekly serie$ of bachground articles to be published in the local
. AJ

.
° v

- f
. . i

~ & L]
newspap;rs. Each week an article could be prepated on the subject )

, , - ., .
schgdulsd for discussion in the nexthrc-Retirenenp broadcasts -
O S k N " C~—

This was iLna very successfully in-the "Great‘gecisiona",Series.
EI . . ’ -~ At

This wlll'prepn:e‘the home audience for participation by reinforcing
. 3 . .

» .
their understarding of the ratirement adjustments, C . N
A5 the programns, gain aqceptznce,'new discussion areas may be
. i

‘introducad, The series could well grow.to twelve or fourteen sessions..

p
. . . Lo,
« The basic programs are as follow: '

1. Wark and Retircmernt N
2. Physicul Health A
3. F Ay and Friends - Mental Health - .
4, LiVing Arrangements o
9. Financlial Planning & Social Security - ¢
6, Managing Your Koney - R
7. Legal Afrairs " - -
8. Leisure Time. v
. ‘.‘ . .
Additional programs to be considered: ' T
1. Consumerism : “ Co-
’ 2, Taxes :
3. Widdwhood - Woman and Men . “
4, Crime und how to deal with it, .
S+ Death and Dying
6, Sex in the Later Years ®
v 7+ Travel

8. Investrent Counseling® ',

“ ‘ ) . *

1
1) ' &
A}
-
- )
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I feel that t)is suggestud mass media Pre-Retirement Education ":
. . . \
° ! . g - ’ Q .
Series is the only way that we can‘reach:the great numbers of, ople
4 Y. ' ‘. ‘ ) ‘.
who are rapidly approaching retiYement age. Although most people
seen to ‘be retiring without much dirrlculty. gtill othex‘} :u-e large
n%mbers who find retlrement to be a very traumatic experience,
a2 -]
They need help which we proposd to communicate to them, =~ .
. . @

- -

+It i3 suggested- here that we mlght start with one. or posslbly a few
A o

demonstration Broadcast Programs., One Area that we would suggest for
[ !

test purpoéeS;is tha Greater Waterbury Area ln Connectlcut. It‘s major
. .
radio station s WATR and the Aaterbury Republican is the servlclng L

-

newspaper. € newspaper publlgheg both 2 morning and an eveni &€ paper.

8
It i‘turther suggested that prime time be purchased fr m WATR '-.‘

between 6130 and 11100 P,u, - The Program will be conducted the same

night each week. Thurday nights should be avoided as this 1§'a down-

Al

town shopping night in Waterbury, .

The reasons for selecting Waterbury follow:

1. It is the home of the former Scovill plant which was ° .
4 long tradition of providing excellent PRE Programs -
perhaps the outstanding series on the East Coast,
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- .2, Waterbury was ths City in whxcﬁ the State PRE
o < Program wag born by adapting ¢ "Scovill Program”

R1J mbet communxty needs.

o’ ' i
J. The first State sponsored, State financeod PRU
Progran in the Colntry was thus born.
IS . Y ‘ !
. ‘b, Waterbury is a very dcpressed econImic area wlth
‘ many of 1ts largest companies 13 econumic troudle,
Therefore large numbers of oldar workers are facing
early retiromant. PRE will have great slgnificance
ia this area. .

5." There is an abundance of expertise in PRE in this
arz2a, staaming from the Scovill tradition. Mattatuck
Communlty Collegé -and the Waterbury Social Security

- . are equxppnd to play stirong suppurting roles.

. B

. .16, The Waterbury Republlcan has long has a strong
intepest {n Pi% In the past.they have given it
favorable chlxcity. ‘There will be no Jifficulty in
arranzing a cvordinated press and radio relatioauhip,

An additiovnal technique,to fortify the effect of ihe broadcusts,

N .3
v2uld ba to suigast that members of the listening audience fornm discussibon:
- - .

. Es : "
,eroups of their own of about 10 paople. They could coatlinue ‘with the
progran for an hour after the Lroadcast. An actuazl face to face
. -
. interchange of fears, anticivations and plans is most valuable., MHere
[

acaln wa are borrowing from the “Great Decisions” Peoscams. '

ERIC
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e k}g\.u:-n D]nm. ' T bar 16, 1977
A matont Cosdocicner for ' m?m '
Prograns Operations, Baltinore, Faryland TEA:32

. .

Ernest D. Rotier, District Managor
Hat.erbu.ry, Contiecticut ) e [
' .6

5 ' y
-Bocu':r.mdnnm for Training District Offico Rersomel to Initdicte end/or
. Sponsor Pro-Retirenont Progrons in their Sirvice Arces (Your fle Dolow
meno dated 10/17/77 Bublic Affeirs Standard Vork Plons Comrmunicatinns

.

. ObJective #3) LI .
Since 1963 I havo boen advocatinfiihat cocial security field pasamal T .\
- ' provida the 1eadar:hip to irtiozuce. pre~rotironent nrugrons in thafr ser-
vico proas. I was huppy to rcad that oy sonse of dirgction perallels
y ‘I h . . . . ’
) Vith ry background in ¢4 ficld of Pro~Rubisczont Educationy I feel

that I ocn contribute to the success of your project. In acdditien to
tho nany Pre-Natirenont Prograns dn uhich I participzted o8 a robenace

. person, I halpad orpanize and rtart the first State szonsored, State-
+ ¥ wdds Pre-Retircment Prozram in the cemtry. T was then sssienad to .
the Stato of Comecticut, Departnont on Aging, to direct thfs presrin.

In ny year and & holf on this IPA assigrsient, the nunbar of PR MNro-
groms in Commscticut doubloed. HEcrever, qt\g:a rost, wo reached 3,000
pro-retirecs, or stout ond percent of a potntinl :mdienze of 300,000
peoplo, aze 55-6L. Yet our stato had ono of the streogest pregrans

in tho nition. The muder of meogrens availadlc at Fresent hieve barely
scratchod the surface.

To succeesfully irplenmnt your recamendations, SSA parsonnel will h-ve.-
to bo trainsd in how to argamizo &nd sustain Pro-Retircmont Projrome.
Specializod Faowledgo is roquired.

Daring iy 20 yoars of expericnce in this field, I havo zeen puy well
intentionad and w1l conducted T Prozrezs core and po. I hgve secn
pooplo, well versed in public reletions, w0 coo from acdelt e itcation,
highor ocucetion, tnd coznmity sorvice orgemiretions, plan end lawnch
FRE Prograns wdth ~oat £ « Nony feilod to set oif the greund.

T witucssed the atjcet fallure of thrce universitics and ‘colleos who
woried tozetiisr rany wonths 4n Fre-Retireront Consortiis. Thoy could
not corprohend iy thadr prograns collapsed.
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The anower t0 o cuccoanful ahd enduring PRE Progran, as I have Joarned——
it, lios basically in sovorel areass ' . : »

‘. Somd commmity organizations as I have attampted to outline it
in tho attachod puphlot  ° S

2. A reservoir of cerefully u-nnznd Discussion Loodors to carry:
Acmt.!l.v1"x'<7¢:mnyt:ax-n.l’,t.cn'y:m_;- - ~

-

. >

3. Sclected and nc.cosrd.'ble roferonce and background natariels

’ b, Carefully ocroencd resource poople who nake a positive con-
. tribution to the serdnar diz:cua_sl:ops ’ _ )

. S« A wlleplarmod public relations ond pulﬂ.id'i}xf.mtion progrin .

This leads us to.the reod for A caroful training progran’ for SSA's
corrumity rupresentatives. ' Thoy have to be trein2d in cozroity orpani-
zation and in training discuscion lcaders. Tor cwerpler After I heve
approached all of oy esnloyers-with over 1,030 'ernloyees, ‘I nay find
© - that scvernl are interested in PRE Projramsé This inclucdos one with 95,000
employres locatdd in 17 Mlants throuchout the countiy. Yhore do I go Lwony
thoro in helpdng to zet up PRE Progrons?  VWithout sound training, prepara-
tion, arfd background, I'11 got exactly roylicxce -What & e have to offer?
Our SSA inforration mstorisls ore too limif%d #n scope. How will =i
devolop an effoctivoe program far this corporato glunt? \

) .

In-houce programs for large ewilerers, $nclnding the © ~~varnnont) necd

4t ool Oigunization composed of ransgement and labor woridng i, "*her in

a Joint venture. They also require comtinugd Blscuscion Leadar i
3 * * = 7

I suggost & lodsl, Progren for S54 Rogion I, which I vould 1like to help
‘organize. I would elso ruggest the consultont services of lir. Chirles
Rictqhe, Rotirod Assistant Director of Persomnel Rolations, Scovill
Yenufacturing Co., who helped start and then dirocted the wall known
. Scovil] PRE Progrom far many years. ‘e have worZed well togother for
- mony years end ho would be of great assistance. .

Starting with Area I, vhich includes a1l of Connecticut, we,would oonduct
a cancentrated 3~day training for District Officc Menegement on PRE back~
pround, sclection and use of resource poople end cormalty nlenning.
Denonstretion progrums with group participation would be utilized as a
principal  training dovice. . . ‘

. . s
thon that tradning progrem vas complotod wo would then conduct a sordes

of troinlng prograns for DMscussion Leaders ushig the lergers citdos as
bagses, In S-duy cocentrated troining programs, utilicing rale pleying
and participation in mock PRS sominmrs, we could train wbout 100 discussion
loadors throughout tho stata. Thoy would camosfron Incustry, Trade end
Comaoree, Unions; Coramity Ancncios, Mchor Education, fdult Ecucatdon,
State end Locol govearsients; Post Orfices, and Federal igiieles.

-

|.
e
r

i

O
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Carefullly ncloctod background end study materialr would bo supplied the
rple playing participants, These would be the basic literature utilized
by the Discussion Leaderg and the participants in the nctunl PRE Progrerc.
There would have to be frequent review hnd yknting of this naterial.

_ Now uhen the D.O. Flold Perronnol approached gither management, labor

loaders, or gomramity orgenizations to sugdest PiE, Prograns, they vill
have a solid base to rely on. \e wmild then conduct simllar programs in
the othor three SSA Aroas in lew Egland. N

&

Observers fron the otler recions 4in thg 'country would Le invited to attend
prograns. They could ‘then go back and ctart sirQar troining
P o thedr rcgions. I they required assislance we could provide i¢.

The Discussion Leadars trained by us would bo adviced to train olhers so
that roscrvoirs of Discutsion Leaders in dll areas would Le avaflalle to
moet the nceds as their programs ¢rew. Tho Progrsis yould become celf-
porpetuating. L

In a1l likelihood porlt;giic t.rn.in.‘ing prograns for Diccussion Lewders end
Corrunity orgenizors will be required. They could Le arrunged throuch
institutions of higher education. . )

Retireas would nake exgellent discussion léadoru and they could also assict.
in orgenizing PRT Prog for the plants or commmnities. ! ’

Even though legislation may set the, conpulsory retircment age ot 70 in the
private sector, ‘the retirenent age will, in cll 14 kelihcod, continue to
revolve about the age 65 at which point sociel wecurity payE full bLonefit:,
During the past several yoers, although copulsory retiyenent wms conerally
set at 65, a nejority of workerr have rotired before ihe corpulsopy age.
Hiothor deliberately or not, the Social Cceurity Adinistration hns been
largely rerponcible for the retirerent pattorn of the country. Theclore,
Social Security should accopt its rocpongibility for people lewn
to prepare for retirenent on the mossive scale roqu be pweningNel.
As you have stated, our cleins procosaing will be afsisted wien infoired
people file cleims. Prorpt dclivery of the necessdry documontation will
enable us to provide Letter public sprvice. ~ ’

Wo cannot overlook tho unroalizod ribed for Eotirenent Preparation of the
millions of people approaching retireront sge. Most workers, sixty yoars
of ngo or older, will spend a portion of thoir laler Yoars in rotincnt,
whothor or not th§’ are compelled to do so. Fany w111 exporience a (ULfi-

.

o

cult trunsition from a 1lifo of work to a 1ifc &y n-work. Somo will undore

£0 a Pro-Fotireront Depression Syndrone. Toug; aen pexrcent will suffer
from Post-Lotircrment Dapression during the first year following rutdicrent.
Sone thirty-forty percent of all rotircos will have difficultios of viuying
sovority from the ctrcsses caused by changing to a now life style. Thoir
spouses will also bo affected }:w these changos. -

v
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participation in discussion cominars devoted to tho rost diffi-
§m:g::grmmt adjustnont, tho worker and spouse can lcarn to .

ons .
e fipate tha e 'l'h.i.:lj will help sase or 97011!‘ t.he stfessas of
I , ' AY

.Arrmtort&:um-ﬂouramnthmmonﬂwmn a1 )
wﬂdhm@mmldm&-mtﬁhhcsom?” o that iy

I furthor suggest the création of a Task Force 40 study and cbae
; rve the
::u.on I Progren heredn outlingd. This Task Force would then plan a
tional Progrom. Imld_hopot:obeimludadamngﬂwnembm’c of

3 A ] .

SOCIAL SLCURITY ADMINILTRATION
BALYIMONL MANYLAND 2123

| B . o
FEB ¥4 w78 T ' ) N
e PR

= ’ - :

Mx, ﬁ“tﬁmr. Dietrioct Manager . |

: S8ooial Sec ty Adminjetration R ) »

. Federal Building ’
.. 14 Cottage Place
" Waterbyry, Commectiout 06702
'v_i)eu' Mr. Bauer: . . .
' ' ™

I am iwmpressed with your eound approach to pre-retirement planning v
for our potential applicants. Your concerns and recommendations ’
_are indicative of .a long and thorough intereet in thie area, and
‘they oertainly dovetail our public affairsrobjeotivee.

-

Sinde the implementation of the project you have-outliped would
require a significant commitment of limited reeources, I am asking
your regiomal office to evaluate your proposal with reepect to the
possibility of oongucting ® pilot program in the New England“area.
"If we are able to implement a pilot program, I would want it to
inolude the ingredients you clearly indicate are neceeeary for a
succesaful pz:e;ret;rement progran. *

*.1 am plemsed that you took the time and effort to dooument your

Teoommendations.
) Sincerely yours,
Al .
. D) -
v . - k3
L fw 7-’ L_d e JbL
. —a Robert P. Bym
) ~  ".Aesociate Commiesioner
/ 1 2‘5 - for Program Operations

O
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This Guide has beensfpveloped t assist communities which are planning e scart Pre-
Retiremen: Edyeation Programs. Experience has shown that, to have successful P R E pro-
RKrams, it 15 necessary to gecure broad-based commumty suppate. Time after time choughriully
cunceived programs hu@lcd chnuwckhe)' relied,solely un brochutes or announcemens to key

OIgaNIZations, or on newspaper nouces to reach people approaching reticement age.
Ll

Provisions must be made to supply 8 continuous sceeam of participants to sustain the
progeams chrough fucute years. This can only be done by creating a steung and viable commu-
nity organization chac is ‘L-lf-perpc:uating. Follow:ng are suggested sceps for escablishing sucha
Community Organization: These wete used to arrange che first Community College PR E -

Progeam in Connecticuc. . . - : -
‘ .
. [ . -

L Asmall vigorous Executive Committee should be formed Wigh people who have strong
P R E convictions and are willing to devote theitatime and. effort to promote chis
program..An effective mix mighe be: -

s. Community Service Officer of the nearest Community College.

b. Director of the Adulg Educgtion Program.
<. Manager of the nearest Social Security Office. I .
d. Representative of the local Labor Council. ' :

e'/Kepirescntati\'e of Indusrty (preferably a "dt.-t:ision-mn}u:r")Y

-4 R 3
. II. " The Executive Committee should firm up its objectives. The program, besesuitéd to the
community, should be selected. Plans for a general meeting should be projected. To ic
will be invited che representasives'of management and labor. (The State Officeof P R E
o s available, to assisc in che organization and planning). )

N1 . Generallya lugchcon meeting is the most convenient vehicle for bringing togecher busy

* community leaders. A carefully worded and acteactive announcement should be sent w0

- " top management in industry; banking and the retail crades, as well as o labor Jeaders
and directors of continuing education programs. .

.

IV.  For che presentation. ac the luncheon meeting, the Office of P R E has developéd an
introductory prugram which lasts about an hour andra half. It has been very well
received. We will gladly provide chis program for yout meeting. At the conclusion of
the presentation all participgnrs should complece a questionnaire, indicating cheir
interese in P R E and chg number of théit employes aper 50 years of age, and whether
‘they, would pay the P R E Si‘mina"r»feca} for cheir employes and{theix spouses.

V. The Executive Committee should meet to toview the questionnaires. lfpo%l:(ive incerest -
is indicaced plans should be drawn to arrange for a P R E Series of Seminars.

V1. Now that there are solid indications of program interest, a Bowﬂnem committee should
be established, with che Executive Committee retaining peimary control. Addicional »
representatives from industry, finance and fabor may be added to che gepe‘nl PRE .

Commirtee. . :

- T — e . -
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! Suppomvc sub-commitcees |hould be quickly appointed to perform the follmvmg
fuocuom _ , ‘
s. Sire Selection and Program Scheduling.
b. Areangements: chairs, ‘tables and blacLho"ds
c. Equipment; i.e., Audio-Visual. - ' .
d. Arrange for- Resource People, . » .
"e. Background and Reference Materials, :

5

VIIL. The office of Pre-Retiremenc Education will céain che first cadre of Discussion Leaders
“for-the Community. This will-be done, either in con;uncuon with:the, Community
Collcge. other insticutions of higher education or by the P R E Office. ‘

IX. Once the Comnunicyvhas a program undemny. it should teain additional Dlscumon «
té.ulers as indicuted by che demand for programs in the community. Ongoing P R E

e Progtams are excellent vehicles fue craining purposes. They provide exposure o both

e effective and ineficctive,techniques. People newly fetired frequently make excellent

_ __ 7 Discussion Leaders. 'thcyitpmk fos“_nperiencc_nni are strongly motivated to assise . _ _

.- others in adjusting to tetmment . . - o

. Among. chée selected for eraining should be Labor and Manngcment Peuple from

. industiies which can systuin m-house.pmgnms They, too, can then train their own w
u.lduilm.nl Dnscumon l.euden as nceded. - A
e ’ v 'tlﬁ

Witha permuncnt communicty P R E organizacion, feeding pumcnponu into the pro- o f
- gram, and providing the necessary. arrmngements, planning and publicity, with qual- g

ified: mourcefeople, discussion leaders, and with a carefully selected site, there will be, #ﬂ

sound foundagion for an effective and continuous Pre-Remement Educacion Prog

YOUR. COMMUN]TY! g L ‘ .
X. Dlocumonr !.elden where not paid by their employers generally receive a fee for cheir
“services. ¢ " . ] . . a

X1 The charge f ;or enrollment in the Pre-Retuement Educmon Scmnmn should be as lowas -
possible, whlle still adequate to meet all program expenses». *

*Proper Sltq nlectlon and the Time Schedule are critical SPrograms ornnged during the .
.day are less likely to be attended by married 'couples, because of conflicting work -
schedules Bvemng meenngs genenlly avoid chis diffi culty

Meetmg Sua should be well lighted, and provndc convenient parking. If in the innec-

. cities arrange for police procection at arrival ond departure times. Mgenng rooms. should b

_ be large and well-lighted . . ’
" They should hnve room forthe "V" t type urnngcment used at the PRE Semmus There

should be blackboards, behind the speakers and outlets for & movie projector. There
should also be: room for refmhments. and for trgmce-observers and other observers.

\ Coe ! T
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Punnn S'ru'mm OF ANDREE OLIVER, DePUTY DIRECTOR, Muou ] Omc: FOR
Senior Crmtus AND HaNbicArPED, CHiCAGO, ILL.

Good morning._ My nsme is Andree Oliver, Deputy Director
of the Mayor's office for Senior cftizens and Hsndicapped in -
Chicago. op béhslf of the Msyorlof Chicsgo Michael A..Bilsndigé' e
and Ribert J._Ahrens, Director of the Office, I thank you for the a3
‘“opportunity to present testimony at these hearings on "Preparing
for Retirementx Crisis or Chsllenge?“

Backgrouhd The Mayor 8 office for Senior Citizens and’ -

Handicapped was stablished by the ate Mayor Richard J. Da1§¥ ¢
in 1956 as the Mayor's commission for Senior citizens. It wes -
the First municipsl office on aging in the United States. Todsy,
‘the Office administers-a large number. of programs, sqsp ss Titles v
111 and VII of the Older Americans Act, the office is the deﬁig- f )
‘ nated Area Agency on Aging for the City of Chicsgo. Che Office
also administers Community Development pomnunity Services Admin-
T‘stration, ACTION, and Comprehensive Em) oyment and Trsining Act »
programs, as well as others for both the elderly and the handi-=
capped on an age—comprehensive basis. e v ~ o T]
, Mayor Michsel A. Biisndxc has. continued, 1n the trsdi--
" tion df the late Mayor Dsley,vto probide 1esdership and support :
to the older and dissbled citizens of Chicsgo. The Chicago city
" budget- includes $2,816, 065 00 of corporste funds, 12.5 percent .
: of the Office's tbtal operating budget.ior services to the elderly AR

and handicapped. . o . - '

t‘ -,“f;. .

_ In 1956 gtnumber of c‘tryen/fommittees were organized

by the ridw Cqmmxssienk\:E::mmibtdi for B ployment qnd Retiremen

amonq them: Initidlly,

. : . X
v . ! . & e k
. N

g committgei _”
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the develppment ot jobs for senior citizens. However, it soon
became apParent that i£ the work of the Coﬂmission was to be
preventiv?, as well as merelx remedial, the Commission would
need to cénsider younger  age groupe, before‘they reached an im;
po%erished old age, while there was still time to plan-for pro-
dqctive later years. The problems 6f inactivity, insufficient
financial, resources and emotional and-physical impairments--so
prevalent amongxnumerous older pereons--appeared to Ahe commit-
tee members, to be related in part to lnsufficient preparation
@’Gf'retirement living. ‘Working with our Recreation end Education:
Committee, the Employment and Retirement Committee began to plan
a ma;or conference on the top;c of preparation for retirement.
The 'Time for Living--Conference on Planning and Prepara-~
'tion for Retirement," was held in the Fall of 1959. It was based
on a‘Retitement Education Project that inel ded a survey of com-
mhnityvretirement preparntion-programs. Thi)\cdéference ;as
attended by 212'business: labor,‘church; welﬂwre'and civic
leeders. Proceedings of this first confererice included recom-
mendationg that the Commission assume a leadership role in the
provision of technical essﬁetance to bnsinesé and industry on
the "wn& and how" of preretirement programming. Workshope were
proposed on different aspects‘of retirement preparation and 1E
vthe development of the resource materials needed to carry out

preretlrement preparation activities,

‘Following that conference, the Commiss;on began a sys-

QEmatic program of outreach to" Chxcago area employers to establish



Y pts and poatretiroment progtams and to train key personnel in

tho conduct cf*'retirement preparation progfams. These activi- ..

. e

éies continue to_this day and, by-and large, have been q te
N4
luccols!ul with . large employers (those employing 250 or’ mare

!\I v
workors) . R . :

4 “

.,,) : ) Durihg ‘.thenilast twenty years, aud;o;visual and printed
. material. were Ndeveloped. In 1961, a uriea ‘was developed for
public television in cooperation with the Industrial Rflations-
Center ot the Univcrsity of Chicago. Our thirty”minute color

!ilm, 'rhe Rest of Your Life, released in 1967, :L‘s still in wide

us_e.__ A companion booklct, developed __j.ier in 1964, to agsist
individuals prepare or :etirement could ‘be combined with th:.s

- £ilm and other materials to constitute a p’:ogram package. Later
publications !ollowed on the need for establishing retirement

programs, the methods for -conducting these programs, and a

Pen ion: How to Make Suré You Get It." N :'

i

booklet titled, ~v6‘
In 1971, am jor urvey of ret:.rement programs in the

h:.cagd area was cagr:.ed out and published by the office. Em-

loyer seminars, %onducted in 1974, were offered and- sttended by

a wide variety of representatives l‘rom busineds, industry, hos-
pi,tals and instsitutions oth:.gher educat:.cn./ In 1977, genér‘al

' pu‘blic seminars geared tb employees of spall businegs were
attempted in each of the fiv/e areas we hge designated to br.Lng ’
services ‘to the elderly and hand:.capped of Chicago. ° Seminars '

in retiremerft prepsration to reach employees of smsll business,

e

- -~

o 3 N
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dittic&lt to'inplement. This fact refiqcta,_toma s%nsiderab

- extent, the reluctance of the general pubiic to ¢onsider and

: *rv. : N . ‘ . )
‘'or individuals in the community, however, have proved extrewely

la

<

'pian~£or retirement, and the validity of hearings, such as these.

4
»

« %

concerns:

We have been requested \to limit our discussion to three

'tirement preparation?

O

ERIC
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S 1.

What needs should be Wwet by any adequate uyatem of

retirement preparation? . -

' -~

© 2. .In such.a"exstem, what should be the relative roles.

.

of the public and private sectors: Government (federal,.

state_and. lncalL:uIndustry (labor . and_managementjshzduca -

tional Institutions (public and private); other:Community--

'baeed organizationsq AR . '
- ' ~

3. What*would Be the most appropriate and effective

ways of inducing today s young and m;ddle-aged adults to

' prepare for security and fulfillment in their 1ater years?.~

4
» 1 o

What. needs should be met by any adequate gystem of re- -

) Ve have found that the need for retirement preparation
programe is often not found on a stated list of priorities q‘*the
average Chicago res!dent, ‘yet, we :Ee managipg a sdcial servige

eystem, one hundred nutrition sites and employment programs
The

[\

serving in excess of 50 percent impoverishéd o1der persons.

dlsturbing problems of inadequate income and the deprived
A p o

social situalion of n&EErous senior citizens 4n Chicago, we

v
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) believe, is®partially caused by inadequate conc{&n and planning

- .
.

for their later years. . : o
The fact that people are living longer plgces added em-
phalil on the importance tor constructive planning for the later
decades of life. 1f retirement years are to be enjoyed and. pro-
docti |
body,
vide as many op

tirement and we know that the needa of a preretiree are varied

P it is neceeaary to plan a program that will benetit ,ﬁ

d’ and emotional needa* Ideally. retirement should pro-.”

unities and tntereete as existed before re=-

and many.v : ‘o

"f;____"' It is logical to prepare for retirement. It ig- copsie—‘

tent vith earlier life activitiea to plan dhead in order to

achieve goale and objectivea. Normally, all segments of the .

life cycle are planned- education, work, family. " The same care-

tul conaider;tion should  be gixen to the later years.,
\ e A soun;\tyatem of retirement preparatior must.begin:§5th

etrong outreach, communication and mass media contacts. irs;,

to sensitiZe the average citizen to the need for‘planning,

b second, to create an awareneas of the areas that euch plan-

ning must cover. , ," . .

[} -

greVailing attitudes toward aging are negative in our - /Gf’

. aociety. Iy is, theretore, important:to ‘counteract myths
and discrimination about .aging throdgh-systematic program-
ning Without a-more benign social climate for‘today s )

! elderly, few preretirees will willingly consider their own

aging or the need. to plan for lt.. Therefore, besides .
N .

A IR

- A

x
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promoting retirement 'planning per se, 'we support such acti-
’ vitiee ag media watchesy the recent 'l‘V ‘'series, "Over Easy,"

‘and all others that attempt to presgnt a positive image of

N
-

- aging.. / )

+ The elimination ofqegative socidl attitudes toward aging
lhould begin in elementary, secondary and higher education.
Three weeka ago- durl Office” sponsor:-q:'d, with the Chicago Board .
of Education and Department of Human Servlces, our third -
annual lntergenerational Conference. 'l'his year the confer-
ence directed its attenEion toward incorporating studies in

aging prog;ams in our school systenl. R The ctinfe,x:ence report

—\will include proposals for inclueion in the schosd curriculum

(e.g., in the social sciences, health and physical education,

)\

N r
home, economics, ‘music and art) of an examination of the pro-\.

“

cess of aging and’the contributions of older persons to our’
J . AN o <t

d culture and- society. . . e

"

‘rhe success ‘of the life ingurance industry indicates that

with t strong public information program people will consider

tuture eventualities that may seem remote from their daily. - ..

- ¥ -

) lives or immediate cix'cumstances. - '

« .

. F‘L sound ‘system for retirement prepa‘ation should concen-
t:ate on reaching the mature worker and family. The- age -

'tsnge of forty to sikty is the primary target.group for re-

tirement preparation programs--not because forty to sixty is .

\
the best time to plan, bt because this is the last chance

real\ly, for those in ,t‘het agd ra‘nge,‘ to ,\'ctempt, to develop a .

C e

av
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plan and to improve retirement prospects.

- s

° A sound retirement preparation system should meet indi-

vidual - nee_ds. - Basic topics in a. retirertnt education progyam '

should includes - E . .
; 1. .oﬂientation for retirement S N
2. financial planning - _ Tt c .

3. 'income msintenance
-- 4., employment for suppllemental income -

5. fund’ed _benefit programs

6. health maintenance

BRI nutrition = -’ o f :

e, 1iving 'arrangements ' ,N . < \
' :" . 9; legal. matters . ‘ ) . |
{“ . 10. suse of leisure time - s . i

. . . .
Y

11, intergenerational contacts

o 12. 'safety o o .
. “13. . part:.cipation in community activit:.es .v" “
14. cultural and educational resources for ‘the older
person o ' . )

15, falni_ly :elationships ]

16. ‘Bsychological aspects of retirement

17. volunteer'ism and new .careers

18. elinu.nation of earning ?eilings for retirees '

Different emphasis should be developed for homogeneous

-

groups of people. . Industrxal workers have difﬁeren‘t ptoblems ‘
-\« ; .." e T AU '. ’ ’

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

PRI



oA .

from white-collar workersx wonien ;. at 1eas't today, are still

" in circumstances different on those o! men; minorities have y

. the special longstandinq prob' ms:that make retirement a
‘ .potentially, particuxﬂrly ifficult time ‘of life; non-English'
:? speaking cirizens face basic communication barriers to ob- -
taininq information on this topic. All of these groups must
be/accounted for in: Jtructuring,programs to meet their. .heeds.
Some of these groups have never had'the opportunity to direct

-

their attention away from daily survival+activities.

- s A sound retirement preparation system should be ‘comp.

Y sive and practical to 31low for variation in circua ances and

u known 1ndividuals7 simple, to assure that cri al concepts are
. . . . .

-remembered and understood1 flexible,'

.ooa struct\n:ed plan. for- meeting diffe

nt circumstances through-

out life; and should inc1ude of cnoice to take advan-

. ‘

what shou be the roles of gouernment, industry, educa-

M

tional insti ions-and community-based organizations? T

successful’ retirement -is a commitment to those with whom

og ‘interacts, to the' community Aat large and to one's self as an.

//ind1v1dua1. It should be a societal rather than a singular re- ';

sponsibility,.and &s such, should 1nvolve the efforts of commerce

y -

and industty,qgovernment and the indiuidual himself. .

. { : e ’ 4 [
. . . . . :

v e -, ] - c' ; . 5 . - ,
Yo, R L 200, L N LA S R I P T AP
v e tdueational_ins;;tu;ions:csnﬂplay a ‘major ro@e in psgqoting:'J

»
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sound: retirement preperetion by esteblisﬁing getontologicel
curricula with preretirement planning as a subdiscipline.

Adult education programs should specificelly offer cburses on

) this toplc and efforts should be-made to promote these courses
R

through effective outreach and, if possible, to’ inﬁ%ude‘them -

.on educational televisions v )« .

An open”and inviting admissions policy to older persons’
’hould exist in the universities. Courses in mid-life cereer
changes and retirement ectivity are integrel to’ the success
o£ ‘those who. choosge- to return to academia- to help- prepere for.

‘.or enrich their retirement yeers. The multidi3ciplinary cen-
‘ters ingerontology should be encoureged to enrich the’ subject

.area to meet the needs of all sectors of oyr populetion.

.
. v
A . f

‘e Labor and inﬁustry have a responéibility to their members

N

or employeee to establish.and meintein preretirement programs,
furnish pertinent informetion on ‘the topic, develop post-
' retirement benefitsvend compeny or union. programs., “provide
.' counseling :nd redesign jobs'to permit’older workers to con-\
tinue their Essocietion with their lifelong employer'or
. <uniqn . )

Communlty orgenizations should be encouraged to develop
_special preret}rement education programs to meet local needs,
o contrfinte the outreach skills they alone possess to involve
those people who arg isolated from existing progrems and to

f“" provide individpal counseling £or both pre and postxetirees.
D AR

i~ . .
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. rollees on .the eligibility factors and limitations of benL-

" a step_toward this goal, but‘communication on this topic:

. still must! be proved. . Y. . )

"132,‘ T

®. The background material/on «the Mayof"e Office f&r Segior,
Citizens and Handicapped provides one example of the.role
local government can play inapmomoting‘Eetirement preparation.

The Office conducts extensive educatibnal programs for key

personnel in business and industry and in the community.dhlt.'

supports other efforts through technical dgsistance, develop-

ment of audio-visual materials and funding:fand works closely

'with all systems to insure that retirement preparation is

considere& in institutional planning. . = ‘

- The federal and state gqvernments can encourage and
- v : \ [ I Lo
support local initiatives through funding, research .and demon-

stratiom and education. : ) s

-

* The federal government migbt establish model preretire- .

ment couﬂseling centers, through the Area Agencies on Aging,

to research and demonstrate the need for accessible counseling

-
.

services. Government should seek better ways to educate len-"
£it programs (e.g., Social Security ad pension programs) be-
ginning with the-first contributions so—that people clearly

will understand the Impact of government and private programs

"on their futures. “The current Employee Retirement Income

Security Act (ERISA) guidelines on pension status have.taken
’ . .

[y

- .
u,‘y oL

Research that can probably happen only through planHEd

cooperation betweén the public’ and privateusectors covers a

' ' .- ! B ™
L. »
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broad range

art and“. asses:

reach groups. effective

ricula ; in use; longitud

mént pzeparatxon,

changing socxety,

By supportfng
?enc ies and éi ty

.pics) such as:

"_t:

special?

a"much needed state of the

effectxve methods of outreach to individ-

uals, nunoritxes ,.n{ll *1 f:l unions: and other hard to

traxnxn

q'andardf/ \
-
the so-called aging atwork (the State,.Area

h

offices on Aging) a

ate information on this 1mportant topic,

e vehicle to dissemin-

it may bé possible for

«

J

)

leadership training.and manpower needs, future needs 1n a

um and the evaluation of cur-
‘_hies of theéimpact of retire-~

eds of wxdowhooﬂ and sxngle women:

. \
government to develop a systematic and comprehensive approach
-

to the problem by
plan which‘;\ighc:'

. ~ .require

establishing a quasi affirmative. actj

all goﬁernmenta} unxts to provide ret;rement

4

‘preparatxon for 1ts own empléyees., As the sanle largest

employer, government has a special responsibility to its

own wo{k force, as well as a responsibility to show the

wey. For example,

the Social Security Administration

could easily institute a promotion and referral campaign

to Area’ Agencies on Aging for retire

- require'all recipients of publ

n?
c

funds to provide

.
counseling.

its employees with retirement preparation counselxng

. = require educqyxonal institutions, from the secondary

level on up, that provide career counseling 'to the young,

to inagfde retirement plannifg in this counseling.

[} ) \

.

-

[}
.

~
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Doubtlesl, other systemc can be 1dent1£1ed'wh1ch, to-
‘qeeher; would reach an enormous aumber of 1nd1v1duals at
ctit‘cal stages in their tife time and whose roles 1n fami-
A lies, commun;ties, or organizations canhot fail to raise -
awareness gf the need to prepare for retirement and to spread

in a rippf?‘effect throughout the social fabric. With the

A3

aging network in place to serve as ‘an omnipresent resource,
thi‘ objective ‘could be achieved at minimal cost to these

systems

. - ¥hat would lbe appropriate and effec'zive ways of‘encourag-
~

ing today S younq and midd e-aged adults to plan for thelr later

xears?

® A sound syetem for 'lanning For the later ygars must also
be addressed to young kers just enterihg the work force.

we know that tomorrow's elderly will be _more numerous,
.
better educated, but also faced with much economic, environ-

mental, and social change. How will sound retirement pre-
paration need to be altered to reflect these changes and to

remain helpful? A sound retiremerft system needs to consider
1 .
these questions now, if we are to meet, the future needs of

’
IS

s ¥ today's young workers.

* Probably the most critical need to be met in order to
insure secure and-fulfilling‘retirement.for today's young '
and middle-age adults is to deyelop in éhem a positive image

v Of aging, an image that will make them look forward to the

later years as a productive and fulfilling part of. life to

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



e 185

»

’
be lived to the fullest, like the .first of life,’ an imag

that will.make planning for later years not a distasteful
¢ toP}c bbé a po;itive one. é&nce_retirement prepa?htion fo-

cdses on the prexé%irement years, the precepts now in use

and discussed earligr are ;pplicable to preparafion of today's

young and middle-age adult.

We need:

= to)change social attitudes towa4d aging in our

society.

hrough systems -that have broad outreach to thf
ld

tio
rget population.
- . to develop opportunities for intergenerational

contacts that reinstate the status of the aged in our

‘
~

societ%i
.= to condhct mass.media campaigns, gn the one hand
to combat negative ‘attitudes towards agihg, and to
create.positive‘ones on the other. :
- to insure qualitj and ayailable programming .
thrqugh rgéearch-and the establishment of standards.
- to develop accessible, flexible programs to

meet the varied needs of -the general pophlation,

; minoriti®s, women and others.
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Punnm Sn'mmn or Arszrt E. Ptrmou. ACTION YOR Imsnmm MAi'unm:

AND THR AMERICAN Auocwnou or Rermirxp Pxrso

I am Albert Peterson Public Affairs Coordinator for Action for

";":-‘ Xndependent Maturity, a non-profit, non- part'lson division of the Nmrtcan
e Associa/tion of Retired Persons (AARP). Accompanying me today is John Hartin.

-the former U. S. Comdss'loner on Aging, who is 3 staff consultant for our

Assoc'lat'lon : . .
' Action for Independent Mathrity (AIM), was established in 1971 for

the express purpose of deve]op‘lng‘ pre-retirement planning prdgrams for

working Americans within fifteen years or more of retirement age. Motivation

for 'th'ls was the grow'lng evidence that many améng the 1ncrea§'lng numbers of
persohs forced to retire were so unprepared for the trans{tion to a life
suddenly free of daily work routines that they suffered an 1dent1t,y cr'ls'ls.
a sense of uselessness, disorientation, Mand even suicide. .

. f;et;the‘sé negative facto 71 M developed comp‘rehens'l've

ployeas and other pre-retirees, a magazine called

group pregrams for
Oynamic years, a
training couﬁes for those who administer pre-ret'lremgnt .programs.

As evidence fhat ou;' programs and methods are meet'lng' a need is thé
fact’ that, 1f;\\on1y six years,%'urf menbyersh'lp has grown to 420,000 work!ng
Americans; oui“ retirement planning seminars are being provided nationwide to
thousands of em loyees by over 600 major corporations, government agencies,
educational fnstftutions, religlous and other"organ'lzations. 1_'he one-week

professional traihing programs for employee _re‘lat'lons executives and other

- -

s of se)f-study retirement planning guides, and professional

_

Z?c
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management are usually Gversubscribed.
» . AIM was the first to provide easily available comprehensive _pre-

'reiirement materials on a nation-wide basis, which permitted sponsors  to

concentrate on program presentation rather tl’an program development. '

»

. An article in the April 24th issue of Business Wgek describing the
;'apidly growing popularity of’ pre-retireme\ planning programs referred to

_ AIM as "the major mqoving force."

Judging by current trends. it appears -certain that the number of
employers pmvidin§ retirement planning priigrams, and of workers requesting
‘-them, wil'l increase at an accelerated rate. As pension plans and social
‘[securi'ty benefits improve, it i\s predicted that an increasing number of
people wﬂl choose early retirement despite the newly advanceVatory
retirement age. By 1985, the number of workers at or near retirement age '
will'grow’ by .2 third to over thirty million. And by the year 2,000, the

U. S. pppulation will includesalmost thirty-two million people age 65 or . \

ovsr; -9 million more than in 1975.

Chaiman Rooney has noted that "the .need, to adequate'ly prepare to

. )
make ones choices from among the many retirement options available is

seﬂ.f-evident " v

»
i That' need is certainly self-evident to those of ‘us ;-tiol are .
spegializing ‘in fhis field and to a growing number of enlightened R

employers and individuals. Bug .there still exists today a multitude of
. .

143
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nork'lng Americans and their emgloyers for more comprehensive preparation

z-"lstrators and other managemen

138

persons who do not think-beyohd the dollar sign, who.feel their penfion or

social security is all they have to worry about. And there.are thousands

. - AR
of employers who feel they have dong their duty by informing a worker

. . .
shortly before retirement of his fiphangjal b&aefits. if any, and perhaps

L]
giving a party, a farewell gift an# a handshdke.

4 .
‘ In short there continues /to be a pressing need fQr education among

)

longd befor’e the separat1on date.

Realizing this, we at Al duritg the” past four years have joined
. vnttg Chambers of Commerdf, persgnne] associations, schools and other local
organizations in prese’nting'ong-day Retirement Planning Workshops in over
one-hn'mdred metropolitan co/mzhfties. Hundreds of employee program admin-

have been made sware of the critical. need and

benefits of sponsoring early/and broad-based pre-retirement programs.
na !

These workshops have st'lmuldted many companies, local ‘governments, educatio
institutions and others to/'ln'lt'late or, expand such programs.

What needs shou}d be met by any adequate system of

retirement prep'arat'lon?

‘Needs of the whole _person - physical, emot'lona.l. social and economic -

must be given equa)/emphasis in any truly adequqtd pre-retirement planning
program. Th'ls is/ substantiated by spopsor evaluatipns of group programs,

surveys of retirees, and comments by hundreds bf seminar partic{pants. .
. . 3

Counseling on fiﬁanciallmatters alone does little to motivate a

'
'

b4 . »
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person to erect:defenses against failing health, feelings of.jsolation,

uselessness, .depressfon and other common problems in aging.

. o

+In our comprehensive group programs we invite participants to -

* -review options avafilable tq‘them in at least eight basic areas. These are:
. A

} Challenge of Retirement
Housing ;nd Locat{on
Health and Safety
" Legal Affairs
° Attitude and Role Adjustments
Meaningful use of Time
Sources of Inéome
) , Financial Planning s
\ .
" We' purposely position financial matters“’at the end to emphasiz;thatf
r-lealth, use of time, mental attitude and other top_ics ar:é also impbrtant.
S_pcm;ors are encouraged to include a n‘i'nth sessfon in whichl tht;y discuss

employer bgnefits.q Doing this in a group setting helps reduce tMe time and

»~ money spent on one-to-one counseling. .

.

R ) ) :
What should be the relative reles of the public N
w .

and private sectors in retirement planning? ' .

‘ H
¢ a

) [ .
Federal, State and local government agencies should assume a ‘leading

?
« role as models and cetalysts for the private sector in providing adequate
Al

A}
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pre-retirement programs for their thousands of employees. A small number
“of administrations are now fulfiTling this function by of fering comprehen-

. 7 .
sive gloup discussion programs. But too many personnel departments only

provide minimum counseling which is usuaily limited to employer benefits.

* Several Federal agencies have requested AIM staff and Volunteer
" Consultants to assist in pre;entation of large group lecture prograins. We
have found that the content and method of implementation of such programs
R 1

is most often left to the initiative of the individual administrator. In
\

. s

many cases thete seems to be little or no central coordination or'guidanqe

among units of the same department.

v Altho?gh appropriated funds exis:._jor the carear training of
individua:[s, we have found that authorized financing is seldom available
for procuremenf of tested materials and publications which could simplify
' presentation and increase tie effectiveness of government retirement

‘

.planning programs. .

In order to reaffirm the increasing importance of retirement
‘planning education for all qualified employees, civilian and uniformed,
. we urge this Subcgmittee to recommend acéion allowfng greater authority ™
and coordinating capability to those respﬁnsible for setting personnel
policies so that they may foster more comprehensive programs and provide

more direct guidance, in théir implementation. '

We also suggest that this Subcommittee recorrme‘r'\d that a percentage
of appropridtions for each agency be specifically allocated for improving
the qbality, the scope and the frequency of pre-retirement planning programs.

. -
¢
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Private industry and business as wen as lam- unions should be
encouraged to initiate pre-retirement programs as an integral part of
their perSonnel operations. not only as a social responsibility but a]so
for their own benefit SWVE.VS have indicated definite dividends for
sponsors ‘of sﬁ:h programs in ﬁnproved employee atti tudes and loyalty, less
resentment at facing retirement, better work perfonnance and good qommuni ty

"relations. : . T
Public and private educational institutions are in an-exceWent o

) .
position to provide retirement plan%ng{nqt only for their own staffs, but
X, L o *

. for the community at large.an for tvriqsxe employers who are too sma’ﬂ to

.

“* provide a program of their own. JWe suggest that the Subcommittee advise
. - :

HEM's Office of Education t stribute guidelines encouraging schob]s,

colleges and adult education organizations to establish such programs.

Community-based organizations such as religious organizations, N
fraternal clubs, United Way, the Red Cross, Chambers of Commerce and others
. . ‘ .
can also‘be leaders jin providing retirement planning for adults in their

- areag/ A good example of this is the Greater Phi]ade]phn Chamber of Comnerce —

-
which is active]y promoting the co cept of comprehenslve pre-retirement (
planning and providing seminars under a trained cbordinator to bath large - * -..
and small businesses-and industry. !

) 13 ci
. What are. the most appropriate and effective ways to induce,young . (
— and midd]e-aged‘adults to prepare for their laten years? R

¢

~ .
Practical p.reparation for the later years ideally should be a 1ife-

s
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Tong priority. This concept will become more impgrtant in the future as

" E- _— . ) .

" ouf population grows older and mandatOry'retire;nent age is eventually

' eliminated. But for Shose in the middle years -- from the 30 s thmt}gh.
50‘5 - there‘is often a natural resistance to taking action that could make
' -the later o:ie-;l;hird of their 1ives @‘time of fulfillment instead of misery.
-Blue collar as ;gﬁ as executive often hesitatgs to admit they are old
enough to think about such pianning. Many fe:({ they willtake cabe of it
. a

when they get there. i - -

1

Sponsors of retirement p]anning programs have found. thﬁsome
employees decline to participate for fear of being treated as retirees ,
p before they are actually ready to-.retire. Others may be suspicious of the
N employer®s motives, afraid that it may be prelude? to an "edrly out." - .

Others feel that participation migl:t hurt promotion chances, and some fear

an invasion of\privacay. . ’ §

[}

‘ Much of this resistance may overggne by information to the
on .

entire workforce on the obfect such a program and benefits that can

be gaivied from it. It also helps if individuals are not singled-out but

v

are left to their own option in responding to a genera] invitation. Some
sponsors have increased ﬂarticwation by tnviting retirees to tell employee
groups of theﬂ transition and adjustment to 1ife off the job. Often they
will express the wish that they had started years earlier to prepare and

urée the workers to take advantage of the program as soon as possib]e

THe public media are devoting more attention to the proliferation

' of 7‘et1rement planning programs and often feature participants who are

ERIC
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enthusiastic about their experience. Such reporting shauld be encouraged
Summaries of this hearing, for example, 1f pubTished py newspapers and

magazines, could help educate and, mtivate individuals as well as employers.
. I i .
. Lo L
s " In conclusion;-we fu]ﬁl agree with Chairman‘Rooney. that there is

.

serious need for retirement preparation and that it should be 1n1t1ated

as part of the hfe cycle, as early as possible $0 that retirement need

0

v, ot pe a time of cri’sis

. but a time of challienging growth and self-reali

£ . _ Tt

To-satisfy’ this n ed, vqe recommend:

A

the, flublic and private sec to encourage
A}

early comprehensive re ment planning programs

v » *
covering all asre s of present and future living,

~

. 1 X ‘ . .
. . - 4 o R
‘ That Federal State and local government agencies~_by

thevr example, act as model and catalyst for the
private settor,
Lo That. those responsible for ‘personnel operations _in the
d [}
Federal community be given more authority and coordinating
capability in promoting comprehensive pre-retirement

programs in a‘i] agencies and units and, to supplement this,
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That a portion of appropriations for each agency be
specifically allocated for the exp}nsion"aﬁ'd upgrading.’

. . of retirement plagning programs. : .

- «

¢ ~
.3
' »

St L .

"Justification- for such-action was well expresked by our’present

Vice President. m;en he intrb&uced the Federal Employees Pre-Retirement ’
Assistance Act t;f 1975, t}nen-Sengi:or quda]é said: "By leam1n_g to avoid
the pitfalls of yetirement, and how to get f.l‘he most” from the new oppor-

tunities being_'opened up. p;-e-_retirement‘p] anning can, facilitate the vital

..

and fecessary continuation of persbnal growth." /



£ -

_ ApPENDIX 2
" PREPARED STATEMENT OF Prorzssor Woobrow W. HUNTRR, PROFRSSOR OF EDUCATION
AND REsEARCH ScigNTIST, INBTITUTE OF GERONTOLOGY, UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN

1
- As a Professor of Education 'angl a Research Scientist at the Institute

of Gemontology of The Univdrsity':of Michigan, I have t:ecn invol\‘led in the |
field of preretirement and retirement education for three decades. I .. .
want to take this opportunity to commend this Subcqnfni:tee for focusing atten-
. tion. on this important area. Hopefully .. your activities will expand and.

* . e
improve opportunities for older Americans. o prepare themselves '{or the
> 1 - -

retirement: period of their lives. . ¥

The-record shows that most older Americans make a good adjustment to

retirement despite serious threats to their 'personal security; angd they
iy .

adapt satisfac'torily to the changes which accompany retirement without

having participated in formal retiredent education programs. This is not

to say, howe\)er, {hat older Americansr‘cven those who are ér;disposed ‘:_o

" make a gogd®adjustment to retirement, cannot profit from the opp:)i‘tl.mif.y
< . . Uy

" to educaté themselves for retirement. Indeg:d: research shows :h;f t_hose
who pa;'ti_cipate in preretirement education programs are more likely to.

have given careful thought to Tetirement and to have a positive view of

.

retirement than those who do not participate. What then i5 the value 08
- 4 ) * .
preretirement education? ) The purpose of this statement is to undf,rscore P

the reasons for retirement education and to prioritize-those issues which

should be addressed in order to encourage increased opportunii:y ;or older

-.Am&cans to prepare for the retirement years and learn to grow old.
: 3. .
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Beginnings and Rocen‘t Develeplents , .
Historically, rotirenent oduoation had its origins in the ldte 1940'5,

when tho first oducuhmal progran Eon tetired older peopl( was offered by /

B Drs. Cllrl: Tibbitts and Wilma Donahue in_the spring of 1948 at The University
"of luchi:gan. A fow years later, Dr. Donahue and I developed' the first pre-

.retirement education program for members of the Upholsterer®s International

~

Union in Chiecago lnd Naperville, Illinois. ,

f At lbmm the same tlne as lebitts and Donahue were pioneering
in educltlon for aging at The University of Michigan, Ernest Burgess nm!
his lsso‘i:ates were developlng education for aging at the University of
Chlcago- ‘Most subsequent develo.p,n:ents of education for aging, in this and in

. countries of Wdstern Europe, can be traced to these first attelq;ts at two
Ameriqan universities to explt.:re ways to utilize the educational prbcess in’
helping older people to understand themselves and their sitnations in ‘the

o later years. . , ) .

3 Two Dthar early developments should be mentmned. With the advent of

private pension programs. industrial organizations accepted responsibility .
> for informing employees about the amount of 1ncome that was to be available
- in rétirenent. Many of these industr1e§ have now extended the scope of
their programs to include other aspects of retirement such as wE\ere to
live, health issues, financi;l ﬂgqning. the use of leis‘ure' time, and so
. forth. It mst be noted, however. "that there are those in industry who
still deal only with pensmn progrgms in the helief that it is-an invasion
of privacy to delve into the other retu‘ement concerns of their employees.
Whether on this limited basis, or on . more comprehensive scale. there is
ha;dly an industrial qrg_anization today which dqes not educate its older
;,employees fox: __retirerqent ip some manner. The same can be said for many ; )

labor Unions, especially the larger ones in this country.
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', " The ofher early development’ Tolevant to the field of rotirement’

. !

b educltlon was the lnaeltutlon of counseling prograns for oldn people, on

' s, one to one basiu Crodit for the, £{¥t attompts of thls kind in the

-"\'\

‘ l940's shoul glwm to cnre deGruchy. 4illien mnin, Bdward stieglltz,

) end Moges Frlellch Uhfor!unltely, counseling of older people Tm a ono

to one buis never loped to the same extent /;e did group edhcltional

prograas such, “ nre plrement education. ’ '
. Attelptl :o esublishdstltowide sys:et(s of prereth‘ement educaeien »
represent. one of the newest developments 1n the field Comunity colleges .

sich as those 111 the state of Massaohusetts and seversl state comtsslons

on aging are most deservlng of credit for hlvinz the foreslght to create
the organizati:onll %leldershlp structure for enoouraglng such state-
wide" developnent. Iﬁ this comiection. much can ?e Jearned from similar
offorts ln Great’ Brltaln fo deVelop pre,rotirenﬁ{m education councils on a

1 L
city by «:lty basis. R T : s’ - .

\ . 3

o, ~ The evelopment of statewideé: programs has been given further impetus. ::3‘.

by an 18 month Model Projects on Aglnp which 1 recently Conpletad in the.

six iid-western stttes comprjslng HBW Reglon V‘wlth ﬁmds supplied by the .) , :\’

Adninlstratlon jon: Aalng Kpproxlnately 300 indiviwls frpn ‘such orzani- -
. .\zltlons as colleges. universlties. public schools, lndustry. labor, - ° .

llbrnrles, chlirches, lnd governaent wete tralned td promote, organize and R

conduct preretxre-gnt. educatlon programs as well as gf traih addltlonal

leaders Tt was presumed that well traiﬁe\d leaders were thb key to the‘°~ ol ‘:&
. Y

LN

' .further devolopnent statewlde of preretlrement educanon programs . .
Al
"Pour: basic publications are now available as a result of the praject

A prd’retirement educatlon lender's manuily a 90 page blbliography which

"t

o
e

organizes ‘the literature on preretiremeht eduqa xon and reflects the
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retirement$ducation syllabus which 'makes it possible for others to conduct

similar train ng prograss; and a final project report which prosents

results of th'e training program. 'l‘hese ma'terials arq being made available_*
»

to interested persons throuzhout the country, and, hope?ully, they will

have s benaflclal offect upon ﬂn‘e developnenti. {

ug Issues in-, Preﬁtirenent Bducl

"

These histotical developlﬂents%rovide the ekper'ien_till base from

"whieh to discuss reiev‘ant issues for the future of prerotirement education

s . -

. -
for older Americans. Thyee-of these issues ‘are of special interest to

tm plrticullr "audience:

-\

1. What are the characteristics of an adequate system of retirement .

-

‘ . education? , .

2. llhst techniques are avausble for notivatinz participation by
-younger, ‘ middle aged and older Americans to prepare t‘or se.curity
\ ~ and fulfil Iment in the lv.er years‘f
3. Hhose responsibility is it to prepare Americans' of various ages

for retirement? i

'R

3 Following a discussion of these selected issues, I will make some
rec(mmendations for the role of  government in retirement 'educatian. -

‘/w
B
' .

J

© . The Characteristics of an Adequate System of Retirement Education

N An adequate system of retirement ucatiyecogni\_os that -there is ‘

no state .ﬁet of factors shaping a s#ire and\sedure retirenent future for

older Amer:.cans Rather thero are ongoing chi nnges in values, attitudes,
\

.life Styles and most of all the economy which are constantly reshaping

-

B the t‘u.tu_re of older Americans in retirement. Thus, preretirenent education

- L . N s .

\ < ° ) [}
" \I. ‘1 " »
. . . -
’ R ) v .
. t 9 )
. . .
[ il /}‘ .t ‘ - )
] . <L X &
h . . . .
v » 1 .
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extended the \mrking livos of many Americans beyond the t:)lditional .

rotiro-ont age of sixty-five. ' . B

©  The retirement staz/f the lifg cycle was produced by rapig .

tochnological change .- u&dically. in the shopo o( oxtendod life

oxpocuncy, and economically. in the capacity of our society to support
& non-productivo segmont of the population. New bio-uodical advances
are sure’ to continue the extension 3f life oxpoctancy and to produco

-

longg poriods in rotiromem Thero is no guarantoo, on tho other hand,

.« -

_—Cﬁit—ﬂix‘s will further enhafice the position of the elderly in socioty

"Although retirement oducationA programs vary, their content has
+ become conﬁdorsbiy st‘andardizod‘ on the basis of a growing numlior of stugdies
of tho needs of older people which ‘show ‘that'- occupationa1 retirollont romovos
the haso from which personal satisfaction and spcial approbation are derived.
Adaitionally. drasti zﬂuctions in incomo, vast incraases in leisuro tima,
" poor health and clining -energy, and thot‘nood to readjust longstanding'

mrital and social rolltionships are all common concerns. I‘ is at_ this

point too, that the rotiroe miy ﬁtne docision about a difforent

rosidonco or comunity 1n which S )

At [} ninimn, thoroforo, an- adoquato system of retirement proparation

should deal ﬂith \tho need for financial plnnning. physical and monthl

re

hoalth ‘conco ‘ ingful activity kin rotiroment, and social productivity

/ /I would novI‘&i ito summarize points rolovant to thoso topics which

o

would be raised in a ret)\-omonc preparation program L .
~™
l-"inanc‘ial m.nn‘i}.'g L T ‘ ~,
1‘ho fact of the lu!tor is that uany pooplo an/-iv%the retirement

stago without ever havinz dono W financi‘u Planning without having

learned how to invest, manage, or spend their money wisely. To expect .
\ o N

N
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. te
et}\erwise,of sany people, espec'iellv)_( those who have existed in or fear

poverty, is unrealistic. . _ PR \ .

4 . Daspite these deficiencies. there is much uhich\preretirement educe-
tion can do for pQOple on the verge of retirement to help them determine
how much- they will hlvo to live on and to t_elch them skills for realizing \
the maximum advantage in the l‘gt:t\ place. Consumer’ education is one of

the wost important components of preretirement education. .
- '
The to,pic of inflation is almost- surely to arise in any discussion

of finnnciel plsnning for the later years. unfortunetely. by the time
older people perticipate in preretirement education progjams, )o{o_f them
have limited optitns for hedging against inflation. .E o, information
* can be discussed about cost of living increasds in social security and

pensions (noSt of these increases fail to keep pace with inflation, but
~ they n.re ;etter thln no increasﬂt all); safe investment procedures desiéned
to. hedge egeinst inflation" andl all those decisionS which older people (nn
make eo stretch their retirement dollars. * F4 '
: , ) ; .

. Physical Health ,%v o N ‘
Good phly'sical and mental health i; as necessary inr sment ss in
the other stages of the 1ife cycle, yet during the later years it becomes
less taken for granted and more the result of del iperate_'lo' practiced
‘heslth habits. The base for .extended good h_oalt.h is established eariy in
1ife. An adequate syste!n of retirement preparaition shoulld ideally begin
at that time. As the, retirement years approach proper habits of diet,
exercise, and other elements of preventive medicine should be stressed.
The retirement education system shotxl,d also promote uﬁderstanding of thp
physical problems peculiar to later maturity and to possible colrective

v

remedies that are avnlab} .
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& 20 qentel health issues, the point of view is taken that
.etress, fruetretion end uncertainty are common reactions of people, /
-,'especillly at ti-es of ujor phykice! and social change, but that the
' leuure of a lentally healthy person is the manner by which he accepts ", '
responsibility for his own future an%oes souething ahout it. Preretire-
ment .education teaches people to make decisions which in the }ong T™un will ..
'enham:e their adjustnent in retirement. In this connection, also, changing

montal capecities should be discussed and ways learne 0 maximize one 's

potential “for maintaining nenl‘.'i’l abili‘ties at the highest functional level .

'

'in the leter years L v . ) .
’ - . .

Activities in Retirement Vo .

An edeqdate system of retirement preparation would recognize that few
‘things are as illportant to a healthy retired perso as nctivity --
. organized volunteer work, work for pay, work for orfanizations (%ocial, *

1tural activ1ties (including el), care of

political, religious).
,' hone and ga!‘den. hobb u,./ and so forth. Any systematic yrepa atioh shoul-d

]

encourage the” indiv al to learn the benefits of a range of activities

. and a balanced variety of social roles - Md this should apply not only
B -
to things one'does. bae, also, to the people with whom .one associates -

asset.

. fanily and friends {Lho in menquays ‘are retirement's most iuporta
, Develiping i variety of social- outlets, according to individual need, is

" @ lifé-time habit that pays off in retirement.
. P .

‘Other Consideratiow‘ . . ) o . .
In regard tp developing an adequate system of retifem%iucation,

there are a number of gencrai concerns which I also would like to mention.
. : : r

O
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Tining in retirement preperntion is crucial. ; Some needs must be
» cared for early on in the life cycle.. While it is never too late,

K ldequete prepnrntion for retirenent for the most pert means early prepara-

Cr Lo T
C N

tiod, .

An ndequete systeu of retirenent p.repnrntion should encournge 2&
egigibilitz. ‘rhe inpect, concerns. artd probleas of retirement cut ccross
' 211 occupltionel, vocntionel and social lines. _Mapagers, profeséion}ls.
o on-professionnls hourly and sellried workers, the single, the _married, '_,_._
linorit_y p:oups,\ and ‘disadvantaged groups, including those in poverty. --
for alt, retireuwft pi‘epue'tion is .e-comon need. I would emphasize that
much work must be done by gerontologisés and educational psycholoﬁistq*
'devlse ways of neeting the speciel preretirement educatién needs o£ ninority )

» . -

érsons and economicelly deprived older Americans.

‘An adequate system of retiremont preparation sh d £os,t€r positive

ettitudes toward }he retiremey period. Reseerch sh s that a positive

attitude coht}ibutes to the sutcess of the retited -

An adequate system of retirgment’ preparation should regard the retire-

ment period as a’ mjo{develo ental stage of the life cycle. I}{gld

thet of old age, since socializetion or one

distingu’ish the period 3
_is not identical with socielizetion for the other. It should regard the,
retirement period as a time i:or continued development of personal potential.
Follow:lng this fheme, the sj'sten might gredually reject the word "ro'tirement"
in order to replece the presently often negetive stereotyped mage of the
period with one in w):ich the individual has- the financial resources, the

's
health_, and the f¥eedom to develop personal resources unt(epped by prior

career conStreints. At the least, this might encourage a separttion in. \'f" S

people’s ninds between aging -- which for many -connotes decline, dxsedvantage

' -

"* and dissolution -- and retirenent. /\ ,
Cat _ g £
3 4 .
PO ‘ "
4 ) - «
v . > >
[ -
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adequnte aysten of retirement preparation should address the major

philosophicnl problen of ‘the retirecment period, the final validation of the @

N

self the f£inal resolution of a personal Lilosophy of 1ife. In this con~- ~
nect:lon. and especiany during the time immediately prior to retirement,"
the opportunitx should be aVai ble for counbe'ling services, including
opportunity to hmdle\privatelgnd in some depth the sensitive.issues

~ normally evoked by gr\'?up discussion programs which cannot be ppoperly

s

resolved in the group situdtion. % o o R A

4

g

An adequate system of retirefient preparation should be a partner of
L3

llife~long education. '*The system should acquaint the preretiree with the

educitional opportunities available in retiremént and should inyolve the

country's educational systems from start to finish.

e . B

Life Cycle o B ' c ' , .

B N . -
An adequate system 4f retiorement preparation should clearly defihe

. f

the _;stag.e of the life ‘cycle for which it"is a preparation. It should also
' explore the meaning of .the earlier stages of the 1ife cycle relative to
the retirement period, especially the years of middle maturity. ‘The 50's
represent preretirement years when time and energy and the,organization of
life itself make preparation for the Gmand 70's possible. At this
time, normally, the pressing needs of the family begin to ease; the job N

situation has stabilized, mothers find themselves released from family

responsibilities and free to pursue wider interests; men with the midiife %

.

¢

crisés behind tRem are able to focus op new goals. K system of retirement
preparation should encourage at this time, about ten years or so. before

retirement, a detailed for financial security. the sha ing\of a
’.2)“ p 8\0

_satisifactory life style that will endure through the retirement period,

and the‘develepment of a satisfactory range and balance of social roles.

L. . . 3 LI
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A syste- of retirmnt preperntion should nlso consider nrried‘

I

1ife during this period of‘\e life cyéle. Husbnnd and wife hlve surtived

the stress and strain, of family reari ‘g nnd now face n time of renewed

..closeness. . They are in n positio Aty usess the lmtua.l resources they

«.  possess for the clo.senesi,»ofthe olirfpenit pgriod.
' L o i . d g o R

)
i

“

- One of the key issues Bhic regard to the establishment
By A - e .
of a system of retirement . jdE wotivating adults to prepare

themselves for retirement.’JNIe RFAGKICIE thn Anderson, was among

"the £irst to be concerned b u nd\fts to learn how ‘to .
A R e .

in such . a mner thlt the partil‘.i_ & L a s {f success and
. -accomplishment at each stage in‘ they _. Rcass' 'l‘his suggests the

importance in preretirement educnti%n gram of emphasizing the problem-

“
cational experiences .
f |

solving approach with built in assuranee thag the participant will experience

the plea.sure of having solved the probleni step-py-st_ep, whetfier it be how'
to manage on a reduced Aincome, how to main;ain one's health how to find _
activities to substitute for work activity or how to generate the pleasure _.
that comes from achievmg good relations with other people who are iwportant
in one's life. : ., ’

R THe other person who ‘has done more than most \recently to J#emtize

and conceptualize the adult learning experience is Howard McClusky, an

7 educational psychologist who prepar@the 1971 White House Conference .

background paper on Education. With regard to motivation, it is Dr/)i:Clusky's

s

Y

premise that one must first teach the individual to recognize his potential '

‘. | . ‘\" l. ,

O
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‘ !‘or lﬂivinz nmi ﬁowing in ghe later years. ’i‘l\e educational process, in

" his view, is furthor involved in teaching-the individual how to aathire *
n surplus of power (capacity) to cope with life's demends (load) A

surplus of pouer enables ‘the indiyidual to make choices. Without it

one manages only to acquire a minimum adjustment to requirements of living.

.

Finally, ‘tlc(:lusky suule\s& that motivation is enhanced if the.educator is
. able to recognize the "teachable moments" in peoples' lives.

Lawrence' Frank, a provocative thinke;md writer. has made e point
that educa on for aging and retirement .is as much & matter of motjivating
the part pnnt/t unlearn old pattems of behavior which ‘are non-productive
as it= is a_mstter pof motivating the léarner to dearn new patterns of
t:ehavior. T ' . ,

From my Ppersonal experience in the field of pretirement education,
, I would make the following observations in regard to motivating people to .
}epare for retirement. First of all, in spite of efforts to encourage
older people to participate in px_-eretirement education programs as many
as five to ten years before retirement most of them do not w;nt :’S' do
so un:il they are on the verge gf r‘etirement This practical ﬁfndiné'. ;
could reflect HcClusky‘s theory of the teachable moment. That is to say,
adults must ‘be directly confronted with the retirement experience bef‘re
they, are ready to prepare themselv)es. This finding ooulda also say that
eligible.inciividuals decline to participate earlier because the retirement
signals whi,ch‘they receive from'society are negative ones. When offering
.'a pilot program to.ai group of industrial employers a nI‘X- of years ago,

I learne'd that many of the employees refdsed Yo parti¢ipaté because they ’

»

did ‘not want other employees to know that. they were approaching retire-
ment. The program had”’ greater suctess when it was taken out of ‘the plant

and offered in a chirch several blocks away. mxs«suggests, as indicated

%
.",' ‘ .. ':,‘th ‘, ‘-: ‘/
o . 6 159
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! Wlier, that much’ could be accomplished to motivate older persons to
' prepare for retirement were society in gaﬂersl more successful in creating
a positive image of the rotiroaont role,
Those who are closely rehtod'to the preretiree. mcluding spouso
and children, hsve been shown to play nn important role in the decision
to participate in preretirement oducation programs. :’romotionﬁl techniques
’ should refledt this fact. Progrm should encoursge participation of both
- husbands‘an&- wives. : When husbands -have dbclmou participatton—it is mot
[ uncomson to hgve wives attend with the explanstion that they wanted to take
) home infomtion and advice to their husbands. More than one child has
enooilngod his older parent to‘puticipata' bec:\usa of the benefits they

-

. ' porceivod for their parent. 1‘ha comment af a son typifies reactions of

"children in this regard. o § lmow Dad well enough to know thst he is zoing

N

to be sunk once ha leaves his job."

e . v

Still dnother resson'why some prerotirees reject preretirement is that

they are st;spicious that participation An tha‘pro’gram will somehow hasten

their ;etirenont. When askéd why they decided not to participate, sﬁeral
réspondents in an industrisl plant said that this was the company's way,of
7/ gatting rid of them. t ‘ . .
For al] these rassons. successful retira‘ment education is more 1ilio1y_

if efforts are nade to establish a positive philosophy of qging as a basis M v: \
: for notivnting pa!;icipstion. to create a pemissiva stmosphera which ’
‘encourages enrollment, and to prov1da tha assursncé that the prospective ,
mombers will have their- questions and concernd answered. Experience shows

that once a program‘- i; launched in an organization resistance becomes .

increasingly less marked because members who have enjoyed participation

v

become effcctive motivators. -
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participation & ehose who accept the opportunity to participate, I

bel ieve it is unfortunate that there has been only one study which compares

thgse two groups. ' ..
- »

The psycholoﬁrcar sense of“time and the future as limited is a basic

.

motivating force for retirenent preparation. m{(—sense of aging does nol

have impact until middle maturity. . But. as the sense of. aging develops,

" “concern about how one will experience ‘the pas‘i{age of time appears to becobe o
& strong Iiotivating factor for ret'irenent preparation. The public s

-~ .

) increuing consciousness of the retirement period as a distinct phase of
the life cycle will also become nore of a motivating factor for preparation.
And the more the stereotypes ofthe period are obliterated and its rich
potential Tevealed, the more will motivation to prepare for ft grow. The . L
more ‘clearly the retirement role is' defined, the more rea'dil'y will péople
grasp its content and the expéctations by which it is governed.’ i 2 4
. mpr;'ue, of course', other factors which can help to encourage ~
participation: success in anticipating the specific concerns of partici-
7 -pants, designation of appropriate sponsorship, selection of an accessible
. locatio‘,.requirement of no fees, or minimal fees, and the opportunity for
husbands and wives to participate together. ' .
. 1/@ . M
. Responsibility for R:rement Education ) '
The record shows that many groups and organizations in the United
States are in the, business of helpirg older people prepare for retirement -l-
industry, labor uni;ons, government agencies, libraries, universities,

public schools, church'es,, and so forth. It also shows that there is

considerable variety among orggnizations in the extent to which they are
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wil(ling to engage“in one type of progrm or another. Some industries,
f’or e}nnple, reJect the idea that they are rq;ponsible ‘for anything JmoTe

than infoming the e oyee about pension benefits Other industries

offer a prograu in which they give infornation and advice on many aspects

s of retirement: Some labor unions, especially the larger ones, offer

£

4, program. while others do not consider preretirement education to be

.‘é:

illportlnt The.same s true of govemnent lgencies, some ‘of which believe

L 4
that a preretireuent educgtion progran infringes on the personal life of

t_he@.iﬂ.l servant,. while others have been among the first to offer.a’
¢ . . - .

program. _ L . o x5

' " 1 believe that preretirement education is the, pzimsry xpsponsibility

)

¢ of public education, but that many elements of the community, including
' labor unions and’ 1ndustr)‘. xust make their proper contribution ‘to the
total .e£fort by. supplying facilities, funds, and leadership; motivating .
partif:ipation-'; provi:iing information; giving..oounSel H developing opportuni-
tifs for retirement living; and encouraging older people to avail themselves
of the opportunities created fok ‘them’ by the communlty. It probably nakes -
. very little difference where the prog‘ram is offered -~ in a unlversity,
an adult educatiop, d_epartment .a church, a YMCA, an 1ndustry, or a lgbor,
union -- as long 8s the part'iéiphnts .féel comfortablé with the setting. v/
I have found that some older people do .not feel comfortable in a public
school or university setting. When this occurs, educational institutions-
.should consider- conducting prograns off campus. * ) .
‘There are several reasons why I would recommend that pre.retirement
- educatiol‘become the priuary responsxbill.ty of public education
¢ 1. Tpere is growing recognition that public education in the

nited. States has a responsibility for continuing education;

. -
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timt secondary and college educat:lon do not" completgly satisfy

the educnt!/al needs of people as they grow older; "and indeed,

that it is 1mpossib1e, in view of the change which surrounds

. < ..odem-ggy mn, to cducate once ang for 'all at any pqrticular

age. . ° . o . .

2. As. part of public educat:lqn, preretiremen;: education would be in °
[ he‘tt,ei' po.':ition ._to.comand on_going financial suPPo»n'.
3, Public .education personnel possess 'the skills ynecessﬁnry to con-
duct programs., and they are in Q good position to-develop new
o nate.r:lals and technigques for use in preret‘i.re_ment programs.
. Public support of ,the program encourages . nartic:lpation of other
coupun:lty agencies :lnclud:lng “the libx‘ary,.socml security, T
.. ) employment serv:.ce, public healtﬁ and so forth. j' Al
5. Finally, it is suggested that preret1rement educat1on is best
o conducted as part of public education , :ln order to encourage
older- people to view their comun:.ty and all its Tesqurces as

. an important avenue by which to achieve good adjustment in

! retirement. .
‘« . v
This is the same as saying that a commmity, rather than a wotk-
.

oriented way of life, could very Well be the crux of adequate

preparation for retirement. ’ . - .

It would be unfortunate, however, if organizations which haVe played
[ —
such Aﬂmportant role m. the, development of preretirement edu,cat:l.on were

to relinquish interest and support once the program became pub11c educa,;:lon s,

] respons1b111ty. Industry and labor are in a good position to contact and @
- - N
encourage the partlclpation of elder employees, and most of them are able -
to pay part of the cost of the-program. Other organiz'at.ions, including
’ . ~

churches, labor unions, and YMCA's are in a position ‘sometimes ;to make
v !

< .
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facilities availlble. Collﬁges and uniyarsities shou

PR

1d be encouraged" to '

mintl{n a close relationship in view of their cnpacit;' for research and ,

)n developunt.

Coopention ‘and mtual support on the part of al:l these

pudbliq oducation being held prinarily responsible for the program, should

groups, with 3

not be difficult to achleve. Comunity v:.de comittees are already an

,_‘__lsnblishnd technique in the United. States_md 'in Great Britain for developmg

and sustdining adult educat:.on programs, includmg pr.aret:.rement education.

XS

Recommendations

Gov}ernment is in the position to play an exceed:‘t‘ngiy'-iiaport‘ont'role_.~

. in the further development of opportunity for older Amei-iégns to participire

in reﬁ.remeht plmm.n{programs. This role is complrehensively ‘defined'in

Confereiice o{; Aging Reports., 19]3 "

as"sume specifie responsib.u:.ty for at leas; two aspectS'

the Post 1/971 White Hou;LColhrence publ:.cation t:.tled "Post White House

\
In’ my view however -govemment should

Research and Trainin}.ﬁ%x long ago as 1962, I prepared with the advice of |

social gerontolog:.st throughout the countr” a statement of background con-

AN

. .siderations for research in preret:.rement education.
- . ’

Despite the progress

which has been made, many of the research needs recognizeﬂ 15 years.‘tgo .

have yet to be fully accomplished - reseorch on how older adults learn,

"on the appropriate net.hods and contént for preretirement education programs,

and on the results of part:.c:.pat:.on in prerétirement educat:.on. .

Much of the research which has been as:complished has been fi

-
-

ded

.

fmom vfederal\govemment soui‘ces;, ipcluding a longitudinal, study of the

S . C . LY .
effects.of--.pa‘rticipation‘ in preretirement education programs which I completed
-

"some® years x'!go. But there\:.s much additional research which must be done

Ay

® in order to provide nbamngful preret:.rement programs for older.Amencans

especially mnority and economcally dxsadvantaged aged.
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‘. It is recommended that appropriate agencies inigoverr’upentt be_hcouraged

. . ., L3 .
to redefin® the research work to be done and to encourage:s’cientists of -

.

‘various kinds to undertake the research. i . - .-

. yt ¢

Sinilarly, support is required from the federal govemment r.o encourage

two kinds of trainmg pfograns There is fxrst of all tige need to increase \

acadeli.! training of teachers and researchers in nniversu:y setnngs in

order, to insure the requisxte supply of knowledgeable people for the p -

Coe

develbpnent and\ assesmnt of preretirement educatxon At

.

“\ this writing there is only one university -- The University of Michigan, .

s

School of Education -- \_vhiq;h ka$ ‘e,:stablished an academic training program in
educational gerontology, inélllding preretirement education, in which students
preparing £br careers as teachers, résearchers and practitioners in adult ]

" edu on are given the opportunity and encouragement to specialize _ 1n .
edu:::};!mg and retxrement. Appropriate agencies of the federal govern-

ment need to address this serious lack in academi¢ programs.

- In the second place, training is urgently needed for preretirement . ' ‘
education leaders representing a wide array of institutions, agencies and ‘

3
s organizations throughout the nation. As noted earlier, the Administration \

. on Aging is to be commended for havmg supported recently an 18 nonth .
trainf?'ng of leadurs in six mid-westemrn states Moreover, materials and
-
. .
techniques are now available for replicating this project in other states.
- s )

In my view, the wisest investment of public or\privaté funds is in the \
'y

training of persons qualexed to organize and conduct programs or to train

others on a contxnuxng basxs The demand for training programs is unmis-

takable. In the 'further'devefopment of opportunity; for older A:mericans to .
. ¢ y

pdeticipate in preretirement programs, nothing, in my view, is quite as

3 8 :
’.’\ﬁlﬂoﬂant‘as provisions for leadership training.. Where leadership is
_ already available -- where adult educ¢ators in public schools, universities

s
. -

O
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' L}
co-m!.ty colleges lro alnndy proplrod to offer Tetirement educntion

A
progrus -- then what is nost neodod are funds to underwrite the-cost of
a Accordmgly, it is reco-nnded that she U..S. @ﬁce of Educltinn, .

u..well as its’ counterpart. in stue governunt Be encouraged’ tq,(zve

‘a

" . ‘serious considerat

to further support oﬁ adult education, including

.Much progres$ has been made in the past thirty years in the develop- .

ment of retirement education. ‘l’l::e puzpose of this statement has been to

.o . ]
focus a(tent'ion on these alcomplishments,- but also to identify those

Y issues which shmad be addressed in order to move forward an exceedingly

N

i.nport;nt phase of -the dducational process if America. - g

7 .

. In. conclus n, I wish.to publxcly 4cknowledge the invaluabie nP
~ .

A

4tribuu“ans ot'nr William J. ‘Ennen, an associnte of mine at tho

w2

-

lnsti(ute-f_cerontolog_y, in the ptepannon of this statement. ‘ue

both hqge that it ‘pmve dbg of value w0 the Subcommitiee. and its.
staff. g . ::: 2 %t . e
) . LV N 4] *. - ’..'—‘
e ’ Y, . .
l( '
* % -
= A )
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« lNDUsTnlAL RELATIONS caN'r;n ’
' lr‘u BAST ‘S1XTIETH STREET

s .

¢ \ N .-

R

. Y . June 13, 1978’

“ R, ﬂonorable Fre&B Rooney ’ ' .v R€CEIV'Eb

Chairman, Select Committee on Agtng ' Jow P

Washlnxton. D.C. .- 20515+ My, 9/
: ml}' o

Dear Congressman Rooney: v te

1 would like to thank you and the Select Committee on Aging for the opportunity
to testify on the general problems in preparing for retirement and to give
some suggestions in answei- to the three specific questions posed by the com-
mittee, .

My comments are those of a practicioner in the fi¢ld of retu'ement preparation

" informed by twelve years of experience in adminislering and up-dating a

pioneer program i this field (first developed {n 1954). This program was
designed to provide employing organizations with an approach and appropriate
content through which employees would be helped to make the tran\ition from
a life of work to a-life of retirement,

-

Umot@ately. I will probably not be able to agend the heartng on June 19, 1978,
1 will, 0t cdurse be pleased to explaifl or amplify any comments in this statement
or to answer any questions the committee might have,

1
Stncerely, & . . . .

. / :
‘“/‘Mu_hu- [ L Fure

Marvin D. Veronee .!
Director, Retirement Studies ’
N - -
MDV:tjs , U
Enclosure R . ‘ .,

.
-
~
-
-
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Punm S'rmu VIN D VERONEE, Dmncmn. Ri mm Stup!
s DIVIBION. INDU! 'l'lONS CeNTER, THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICA

. l.n my expe.rience durlng the past decdde, employing organiantlop--
w&ether in the private or publ.ic sector--have d voted their attention almost
ent!.rely to seleotl.ng, training and usmg\p’a hum
ganization. Only casual or sporadic attentton as peen'paid to maintaining
the.productlviw of these resources during th¢ fin years of emplayment.
Mors specifically, employi.ng organizations have largely ignored the prob-
Jams of handling the exit of the human resoifce to the benefit of t}” retiring
employee ‘and the employi.ng organization. - Such behavior was reinforced by
the existence ot manaatory retlrement age policies; today new, more ﬂexi-
ble reti.rement policies must be establlshed to handle this exit of the human

resource. T .7

resources of their of-

The receft outburst of interest in retirement and aging has produced
. the following as yet unresolved concerns om the part of the employeed and
employing organizations: .

---dealing with apprehenslons about ecenonﬁc securlty
l.n later life based an the fear.that inflatior will eat
_up personal and pension resources and that the gocial
2 purity system will not continue tb maintain itself.

---handling the policy issues caused by a demand for
flexible retirement ages with individuals having a
. much greater share in the retirement decision ard
with such decisions being made over a wide span of
( years. ' > -

- --planning for { retirement period which, by giving a <
wider range ofoptions, may produce dramatic changes N\
in ll.fe status. ° ,
The next twenty yea.re probably will see more and moré Americans view-
lng retirement as a part of their whole life spamathu than as the perlod
of time left qver after a careery run its course. But despite g'reater
O .‘ Al . T
./ '
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awareness of aging and retirement, despite efforts to give the old a sense

of worth and Bel!-resp_ect,v retirement is -an event that carries many more

. v .
overtones of crisis, of negative change than do most of the other landmark

events in our lives. Regardless of efforts to present retirement as a chal-

':ane-retuming 'acceptablg yawardy and satisfactions,

d : quire a process of adjustment-’ Sukh adjustment and the
acceptance of the changes brought on by retirement can be gpeeded by effec-
tive retirement -';;r'eparation programs that attempt to, providé accurate, up- .
to-date information and a chance for pre-retirees to look at Xheir attitugie's

about aging, to make a careful ?ssessmqnt of their re.source"s, and tq, plan

for the rest of their lives. ¢ 3 J
Perhaps one of the most challenging objectives t“or todz;y's young mid_ ‘

middle-aged adults would be to set life goals that take into account both &
~ work life and, a retirement period rather than to focus as at present on
" career goals almost exclusively. v
With these general remarks as a preface, I wolild like to respond

directly to the three specific questions of the committee, .

I What needs should be met by any adequate system of retirement N
preparation ?
s . 4
A, Information or content areas,
Mo'st retirement preparation programg cogér about the o,
. same' topics: mgney m'a.nagement, ’he'alth, leisure acti- . .

Yyities, living arrangements and housing, legal matters,
‘ete. A useful way to categorizing these information

e
needs iss

b . 1.' Basic Survival Needs: money managemrent, health
< . - {to include nutrition, mental health, fitness), per-
L] sonal safety (to include protection against crime
Lt and the dangers of physical and emotional isolation),
»

and shelter or housing.

. »
.o 2. Maintenance Needs: family relations, living area, !
.transportation, use of time, social relations:

)

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



168 . S

© 3. Fulfillment Needs: community involvement, volun-
teer activities, self development and continuing ed-
ucation, hobbies, travel, and spiritual well-being.

- “ L.

. B. A Change of Behavior - .

A 1#st of content areas for preparation is only a start.

A

As they near retirement, most people need to examine
- -
_.thelr attitudes and look at their behavior in order to
> put sound information.to good use. On the eve of # .
! ' . stressful period of change and adjustment, they need
3 to work through some form of a change model, leading
. . e
to: *
1. an awareness of retirement problems, ‘of attitudes
and expectations for retirement, of what conse-

quences and trade-offs various retirement plans -
may produce, ! ¢

» s

- et "y an analysis of these problems and an accumulation

“

. " of useful information, .
~ iy * - : - =
. . 3.  making and unplementing action pla.na for retlre- .
‘ N - ment by improﬁng ﬁroblgm solvmg and decision-: _,
‘ ° ° making skills, 7, - | .

. ' -
4. developing the capacity for self-renewal and the
ability Joadapttoa chadging ‘environment or changing
needs and resoux’ces. .

Attached to this statement is a brief dxscussiod of the rgnge of retlrer}xent

planning tunctions and an outl(ne of topxcs for a model retxrement prepara-
.

.

tion program. ' ' R
. " - . .

II. In such a system, What shbuld be the relatxve roles of the pubhc
and Qrivate sectors: ' . .

* Government (federai, state and local) oA

"

Industry. {(management and labor)
Educationg'i Institutions (pubMc and private) .’ “,
Other éomx'nunity-Based Ofganizations ' ,

.

s )

g .
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PLANNING FOR RETIREMENT

. .— '« Marvin D. Veronee
: .

-

More than twenty years ago the Industrial Relations Center of The University of Chicago devel-

oped an educationat program designed to help,orgahizatio(u prepare thei('older employees, for

retirement. Although many- organizations recognized the value of retirement preparation, it has
: not been uhiversally suppdrted by employe?s as a necessary traics educgtional function.
The past yedr, however, has seen an @xplosion of interest in the oldgr Am\rican. The policy of
¢ mardatory retirement at’a fixed age that has been commj practice for & generation is now
. under nationwide attack. People Question.whether the Soci: curity systemian maintain.itself
and provide the e¢onomic seaqrity in old’age’that Americans have come to-expéct, '

Many arguments are advanced in support of the value and impdrunc%of retirement preparation .

«  -by the employing organization:‘ as a benefit for. the employee, as a soeial responsibility of ghe
organization, as a public relations effort, as a procedure to’ motivate @der employees to improve

their performance, even ‘as a method of encouraging older employees to retire. Al-ot these argu- -

a ments may have some validity, byt organizations have two_over-riding reasons for interest in

‘| pre-retirement planning programs. Ohe is the sheer number of people who are reaching retirement’

age and who may be entering the final phase of their’lives with hittle knowledge, scant information,
2 anq inadequate planning skills. The second is the organization’s self-interest in using its man-
" " power moreetfectively by rationally planningthe exit of the human resource.

. I the organization spends effort and money in selegting personnel, in training them, in retraining
or relocating them, then it seems logical that the organizations would also be interested in helping
employees make the transition from a life of work to a life of retirement as smoothly as pos-
sible; or, alternately, in helping employees carry through on a life career that takes into account
the retirement experience and the effects of aging. Retirement preparation becomes the final step
in the process of effective management of the organization’s human resources. Employing orga-
nizations of all kinds are being forced to face up to a re-examination of thejr retirement policy
and to consider preparing their employees for retirement. At the very least, most organizations
must handle the procedures for retiring an employee. Some minimum inform)ation must be given
to the employee Rout separation procedurei and pension provisions. Beyond such a minimum

bsome organizations al unwilling to go. N

A predictable retirement age has formed the basis fos most retirement policies established and
administered by~ employing organizatigns. The proposed increase in mandatory retirement age
“will almost certainly make retirement procedurés more complex, with employing drganizations

°  required to formulate and administer much more flexible retirement procedures than in the past.
Similarly, employees will have to evaluate more carefully their own retirement expectations and
plans and consider various options of early or late retirement. ’

Employees Simre Mutual Problems

L}
For years, the_ most ofter! expressed reason for nog, getting involved in retirement. préparation has
been the fear of being accused of paternalism a‘n:sn}terference in the personal lives of employees.
* The IRC program avoids this charge by using the group approach to retirement preparation, in
‘-whidh the employees themsslves, through a group process, share mutual problems and interests.
-% The ‘organization input is not inquisy and advice about personal planning, but sotely the pro-
vision of a structure within which the employees may raise and try to answer among themselves

those questions that they willir\glnnif)ose to one another. !

. . - ~ -
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The first need, most of us feel 83 we approach retirement is for accurate information about the

“things that wilPatfect our fives. K wel- -planned retirement preparation program musg seek out and.

select for.its participants, sound,-availablé, understandabie information, But good Ynformation—
whether it be in printed form or presented by experts—is not enough. As we approach retirement,

we neod‘g manage the change by developing problem*oiving skills and & capacity to make sound .

decisions. The first step in developing this capacity to handle the adjustment to retirement is for
each potential retiree to, become aware of the range »of probiem’ areas involved in effective retire-
ment planning.

Durigg the past seven years, the\IBC Retirement Studies Division has worked on the development

and field testing of an approach to developing awareness of the retirement problem areas and the ..

need for planning in each of these areas. This exercise using the Retirement Comparator and the
Retirement Planning Profile 1s customarily scheduled in the first session of- i@, full- scale IRC
Retirement Preparation Program or as a first exercise in initiating pre-retiren@@nt planning by
an employlng organization.

How The hotinmem Comparator is Used
The first step in the exercise is for participants to read the definitions of the nineteen planning
areas listed in Figure 1. Then, each person working alone uses the comparator device and the
retirement compardtor insert to rank order the nineteen planning areas {using the paired-compari-
son technique). The ranking is made from the most important to the least important as each
individual looks at his expectations and plans for retirement. After the areas have been individu-
ally ranked on the basis of importance, each person draws a prefile so that he can study the results
of his chOICDs and can compare his own profile fith profiles of other individuals and with the pro-

file of the group as a whole.

When the exercise has been completed and'the profile i1s drawn in a group setting, the group
usually finds it enlightening to discyss the resuits of the exercise and to see the range of rankings
for each area. A feasible method 4f polling the¥group is to ask each participant to tell the rest
of the grbup what the two top plarping funcgjans are on his or her grofile and then the bottom
twe, and to explain why they have n so ranked. If the conf::re#aer starts off with his own
choices, the group will lose any shyness ut sharing their ran -

A. composite profile for the gréup provides an addluonal useful companson with the individuasl
orofiles. Durung the discussion of the results of the exerclse the wide range in ranklnqand the dif-
fererices in retirement plans and expectations are demonstrated

The primary value of thé exercisé is that it offers a.non. threatening way 10 start people !hlnklng
about thejr needs in retirement and what they want to plan for. For this purpose, the profile can
be used to illustrate that all argas of planning for retirement ‘are important and interrelated, but
that each md(vndual}ray estabtish his own priorities and allocate Ris resources accordlng to his
own retirement needs. By working the exercise in a group’individuals come to realize that indivi-
dual profiles may be very different even among people in the same profes§ion, work group, or age

group. . .
-» N

Theyexercise of developing the plannimy profile and discussung the results will usually bfing out
different viewpoints on problems of mutual intergst to' a group of pre-retirees and initiate a dis-
cussion of altergative ways of handling these problems. The composite profile drawn from a
preliminary analysis ot more ‘than 900 retirement planning profiles collected from a miscellaneous

group of individuals (18 thirds of them pre retirees) is shown in ere 2
. -
,o , \ .
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: *, " NINETEEN AREAS OF PLANNING FOR RETIREMENT o *
1. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT. , o . .
-t Understand my obligations and my role as & retires in the community ’
2. CRIME & ISOLATION L .
Develop my oFs to provite physicel snd lonal security during retirement_
. * 3. FAMILY RELATIONS . s .
. . Adapt family relationships to my role as a retiree .
4. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT " \ ) R
Develop skill in ging fl for myself (and my spouse) in retirement - :
5, GAINFUL EMPLOYMENT . - T
Determine my need and my opportunities Tor a job in retirement .
8.. HOBBIES - . . .
. Renew dr develop my i in hobbies | '
7. LIVING AREA 0T o
Select a location for myselt (and my spomi‘) to live in retirement . R o
8. LIVING ARRANGEMENT . - '
- Determine my physical 3nd social needs in retirement regjgnce
. MENTALHEALTH 4 . : .
. . . "2 Build realistic attitudes toward aging end my role as a retiree X A .
v 10. NUTRITION . Lo .
Develop s0und eating habits to miintain my health and vigor in retirement . < -
11. PERSONAL SAFETY . o - .
Develop my 23 of good | safety ices as Ifage B
. PHYSICAL HEALTH : v L .
- 5 Maintain my physicalsb in reti ' . 4 *
' ;- SELF-BEVE LOPMENT oy v o
. . ish a program for my salf-impr during reti
"',14. SOCIAL RELATIONS : .
Understand the social patihens of my life now and after retirement
15. SPIRITUAL WELL-BEING . 4
Examine the role of religion in my life now dnd in retirement
" * 18, TRANSPORTATION ' .
Dmnnimhowlmgoingmm"omglpmphqnnm, ;
17. TRAVEL . .-
Decide on my interest in and opportunities for travel in Tetirement : N
18. USE OF TIME ’ .
Schedule routine and sgecial activities in order to ussny time satistactorily in retirement,
19. VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES * K : . .
Assess my interest ifi-volunteer service as,one of my retirement activities T, ?
’
. . « Figure 1. L
, . . . i

The composite profile shows that most people rank the basic survival issues such as health {men-
. @i, physical, and nutrition) and financial management near the top.?igure 2 also shows, perhaps - .
+  surprisingly, that family refations, use of time, self-development, and spiritual well-being are rated +
*  high !_)v'gnost people. This ranking reflects the neég for & purpose during the, retiremept years as
well as concern for finding satistying activities to substitute for work. Often a useful and interest.
ing discyssion develops sround planning areas that most people rank as least important. For , %

example, the domposite score thdiws that crime and isolation,linsportation, and gainful employ-
ment ‘ire at the bottom in the ranking. Perhaps the pre'refM8 looking ahead ds’ unwilling
unable to admit the need to look forward Yo latér stages of life wheh resources and phvy'a: g

vigor decrease and the need for services increases. Transportation for example may well become
one of the most difficuit problems for the retiree to cope with in q@inal years of life. Physical

@ L4 \a
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and emotional isolation bring a decregse in the quality of- lite for our ofder citizens. With de-
clinipg financial resources and physical health, the fear of cn,me may haunt the elderly. Spch con-
siderations may ﬁwgm out in discussion and may help, trigger a respome on the part of the'

participants that ledd to acnon in the form of positive plannmg » ’
N . ~ _)é"
. RETIREMENT PLANNING PROFILE
" . . . = 0
N=922 .,
. Lemstc Importdcs —— Most
Aress for Piganing oo&tozoaoaosoewoaoslou12131415131718
c y tnvol S -
Crime and lsolation Lo -
. . 3
Family Relations .
B iad A ° - 1
s . » { .
Gointul Emplovirh - . -
{/r a . , v . IS
, 7““" * R N . Y ‘.
" Living Ares - - f . X
Living Arrangs - h :
Mentat Health . . b
F . v -
Nutrition
s ' "
Parsonal s‘m' , | I'“T—h— '~ A , *
d - 4
Physical Hesith e " .
Sd'Dcvdoomon: ,
Sociel Refations ’ '
Spiritusl Well Being . .-
Transportation asesa “ C
Trgve! e o
Use of Time T : .
7 * . .
ot Acrivh
S 0a 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10/ 11 .12 13 14 18 16 17 18
) Lemt -.on g - IMPOPIANCE -~- e - - it . Mo
-—
. e Figure 2. ' -
. + 1[ ' 9 £ )
urther Applications of the Profile Lt T BN ‘:.:%_*
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® Asking the pre-retiree to compliete the exercise a second time, rank_ ordering the planning ‘f
areas in the,order of difficulty—that is, from the one.thaflhev anticipate will cause the -g,
" most problems to the one that will cause the least problem®. This exercise will usually
help the pre-retiree distinguish between what they would like tb do and what they

must do. : . - .,
® Giving spouses an\opportunity to_complete the exercise- sepagately and then to use the -
/ ——zrom; as a commiunication devicejililiget husband and wife to discuss .the differences . . -

. ih their-profiles and to're'a‘i:h an un| nding ot_What each sees as importgnt in retire-
“ ment planning. Oncg they reach such an understanding, the busband and wife can strive

for agreement on the priorities in their retirement planning and how they should use

their resources for a mutually satisfying retirement. - . -
- . . ) ,
¢, Developing composite profiles for a'large number of pre-retirees and ooking at the
differenees‘betwgen sth varidbles as.age, sex, marital status, kind mployment,
Income, etc. ’ .
. ' R ’ )

., * Administering the comparator exercise to préretirees over a period of time—perhaps
‘ - five years before retirement, at retir and at intervals after retirement, Changes
in the profile,might serve as a usef icator on how attitudes change once serious

R retirement planning-has been sgarted'and how the reiiremem!xperience affects a retiree’s
: vie‘w of whailplanningﬁfunctions are most important. .
Such then is the fletirement Comparator instrumient, an’ introduction to Retirem'ént Planning
that may be used as gn awareness exercise for stimulating interest in retirement preparation or as
the first step in a full’scale educational pre-retirement program. When any organization embarks
0n an ambitious training program for their employees, the issue of cost dFises and the cost of
gs\'@mpreher'rsive' program in4\retirement qreparation can be considerable. Advantages of the
retirement_cofnparator approach and the group method are-they they use time efficiently, pro-
mﬁtion for a-larger number of persons than individual counsefing,-ead help to establish

an organization mechanism for continuing, systematic retirement preparation.
B - ] ) o

o .
Ideaily, the)indi;/idual should have a variety of choices for living the'rest of his or Rer life after
retirement, depﬁnding on individual interests, family regources, and skills. Lifetime planning
sl'youldt:gin early and should include planning for the final years. But aging and the act of retire- .
ment itself usually force the retir®e to make great changes in the way that he or she has tra-
ditionally behaved: Successfui retirement cannot be achieved without a willingness to set prior-
ities, examine resources, and make decisions. Far better that'our older citizens make their own
decisions, maintain théir sense of personal worth, and wear out in satisfying activity, than that
they rust out through neglect. .

. R
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Unit I1. Analysing Retirement Problems .
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A MODEL_RETIREMENT PROGRAM ‘.

Pl l-‘m:u&m C )
1. Perisions and Benefits
. 2. Social Sécurity and Medicare ~
3. Estato Planning: Wills, Insurance, lmmtmenu
4.  Gainful Employment o
-»S.  Consumer Information
- IR .
‘. Part2. . Hedit )
. : "1 Nutdtion- ... oL
' - < 2. ical Health T e
. . 3. Mental Health -
..+ 4 Spiritval Well-Being.c
“Part3. . Usk of Time o -
1. Melmn; of Work ¢
, l 27 Leisure Activities . ‘
. 30 Hobbies .
N 4. Travel ) ) )
' $.  Self-Development Vo
R 6.  Volunleer Activities
. ¢« . Community _lnvolvemcl_lt
' Part4.  Social Relations S
«e* \’amily Relations )
2.  Living arrangements .
. 3. Living Area

", 4. Transportation .
~ 5. The Single Person in Renrement
L 4,
_.PatS.  Personal Safety
S B lsolmon—l’hy%:calmdSoml X
~ 2." Personal Safety—Home Health, In. me ¢

3. Crime
. 5‘_ . .
A -
* Copyright 1975 -
. R Centes / y of Chicago
Wl”'n .
. L)
’ . ' N
! \ . .
hd -
4 v - -
. (o L
e . - . g
) Q =
- b - .
N ) B S *
N N .
, .
-
:"4" ! 1?‘)_ "
J

-



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

t\."
LY . NG

An often asked quesation about retlrem’nt preparntlon is "Who 1&* responstple?"

\

13
u rgponsihmty for preparing people for retirement and caring for’ the agecﬁ

. must be taken dn, then costs’will be incurred, and we must ask: "Who is*

" going to pay?" ' -';‘;‘“_"{i -

-~-lf by goverrnment, then Lndivid and organimtlons will
pay through taxes ar manda!’ory insurance.

e & by the employing organizations, then organizations--and
ultlmately consumers--will pay through increased prices, |

---ut tﬁy prlvate hgencies, then lndlviduals and organizatlons
mas' pay through voluntary contributions.

«--1f by older f{ndividuale ;hemselves the Lndividqals may

S pay through personal sav‘}n“ ‘and mandatory Lnsur«ance.

If none 0! thesﬁties can_ do it algns, then the next question obvimﬁ-ly
up the pie ?" -éh of t'he’nge bés listed above should

share in dealing-with the vital Xscue uf}fi"e(! : :

. 4guideltnes on retirement policy Are u?ggntly ¥

is ! How do we

ive m:ticm in doaltng
vejth the problems can begtn R AR - '

3

roles of the agencies are clear-cut an@n;ore

[
I

ther way' to consider respgnsibil?ty for retiremgxt p)eparation

TR l.oga Q,hovv., people are now preparing themselves- for retirement., A}
. e

lqa’t vl ces of reiirement preparation may be easl.ly idenbllgd

t

pérhent brtngs many different. decislqv&whlch most of

Ve . - us have to make‘for ourselves. This, I-believe, is,neces-
-, toe ‘sar); fna an et‘t‘ect!,\:e;g(_ay to develo s,kllis for retirement
. ¢ oo since the retiree will Have manyfewer resources of sup- .
L portas hi\s;/hex; work llif&ends .d’s.c')clal netwdi.-'ks de- ,
N 4 .créase. Ir#addition ﬁ;‘ent y'éar have di'sstically changed
Q ;:s}: ": /the' chnracteristics of the "typical” reti\ree who,wad as-

. ¢ 7 sumed to }e a marneq maile, The.ra;?dly anreasLﬂg \

BRI nuﬁber of \yomen in our work force must shape their own

N tre A -
. A ¢a.reers an4 plan their own retirements/stngle persons -
N L. D A R .
. o A L. . o ' -
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widows hdve to solve retirement problqms : 1

of a husband; ‘changeh in family structure af
ing divorce rate’in later life reduce the sourcesof.

support formerly available during ;etirement.

2," The family shares the responsibilitl. . .
’ . Family~-either the nuclear o!"extended--has been the trad

tional first eource’ of help for the aged in western sgociety,

Despite rapid recent changes in family structure, the ramﬂy
still is an impqrtant and appropriate sourtca of suppqrt dm‘*‘" !

. ing the adjustfment to ahd experience of retirement, includ-

ing care of the’ elderly.

PR . .
3. Communit_y baeed orﬂanihtione acceyt some re;bonsibility.

When the individual canriot care for himself and his family

. -is unable to acceptt the responsibility, the communlty tradi-

tionally takg care of its own, This function is still being

. performed often cpoperatively with the government and
provides a valid supplement to most priograms lor the ageﬁ
‘l The emgloying organizati’ons in both private And pub'lic sectors

(complemented by.union oxganizations) oi‘i'eurograma in re-
tirement preparation, 3 N .

. ‘In the past twenty i‘ive years, the employing organizations . -,

have become more and morp involved in human resource ‘P

management of which retirement, or the exit of the human .

_resource is'a vital last step.
. - .
5. ° FinalllL government ow takes {and certainly will continue
- to take) a major responsibility in caring for all of our older, .
citizens. P ’

Govemi’ment probably must take major res’ponsibihty in this

areasf bd( m,my oplnion should not' take sole responsiblhty.
An r§ tl‘rement preparation I believe that i'ederal.and atate
gov nmentsﬁghould play only a minor, sgpporting role. Local.
govbrnments tan be,more"ei'i'ective and can work@losely with
. N the co’fnmumty. . . .*“. t«-& . A
“~ ; . - L ’ b ‘.‘Wt
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l have not included educationn! ) ona in this categorization,
Theirs, in my opinion, is qsupplementary r61§ . They should .undertake

basic reseaxch in geriatrice ‘and gcrbntology, train professionals in medi- |

cihe and geryontology. develdp r ent p&oparaiion programs, and co- \

A
“operate with their communities in o?fer&i‘b &ll range of educational =~ . ‘
services to citizens of any age ‘-‘"" L ; o

. Among the categoriesd-iated hbovef mv choice hs to who is best

able to help in preparation for retire 1oa cMQinWon of number (1)

the individual and number (4), thhﬂ;%m?gaNzatioo (and unions).
Unless tA® individual takes contrél of h¥s or her ownxpreparation he or~’
l\xe is unlikely to make wise deciaioﬂs 'o@ use possibly scant resources
for the greater retirement satisfaction, Similariy, the employing organi-
zatiof has a strong seU interest in managing. the exit of its human resopﬁs

Unless this is carried out erfectively, retirement is likely to turn out an un-

happy retiree or one largely unprepared for the retirement experience

. The attached flow chart may illuminate some of. the reasons why ’
retirement preparation’ is needed for all Americans It illustrates how» -
life in America can be roughly divided into three major phases, At birth
the individua] enters society in a non- productive phase and spends a sub-
stantial number of years, perr? as many as thirty, in some professions, -
preparing for a life of work AV gome age (the flow chart shows a tradi-
tional twenty-one) most of us enté:a life of productxve work ‘ 'I‘his phase
4nay end &s early as'rhiddle age Some individqals, or may continue
until death . But for most of us today, retirement\wm occur in the sixties,

- and most will enter into the fmal#s@\th/u-d period of hfe..

. One purpose of retiremegit preparation is to make this final third
of life a cﬂallenge and a reward' and, if possible, a productive period,
! 'I‘oday s young and middle-aged are faced with meeting this challenge if
they are t_o enjoy later -life as they expect and as they probably i‘eel eptitled
to do. No one wants the productive\American after retirement to be fqrced

by a changing envu-onment and madequate plannggito join the life- time pod'r.

The ﬂow chart was developed by Edward M. M_cGehee, formerly D'Lnec,tor'

of Retirement Studies. . Voye . e
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Far better that the vast and increasing pool of human resources made up |,

> .

of peop1e over sixty remain in a productive capacity than“that they rust -
away neglected and unuaed Our society cannot afford to develop a large
clas, of citizens which may be labeled the ret&ment poor. " \

v

.

As a group, young adults today probabl are not willing to p{an at
ap early age !or life's end. As a practitioner in retirement® preparation, .
I have found that most people are not serlously ready to prepare themselves
untll they near age fifty. Howewer, this prevailing attitude is nqt unchange- -
nble and youn‘er and middle aged adults today may willingly begin early \
planning if they recognize its value’l’he !ollowi.ng list outllnes some rea- .
- sons for antlcipating thel.r change and some ways to encourage lt P

Our young adults today hav‘e and our ald people tomorrow will
'have had the advantage o ore educatf®nal opportunmes and /.

should have more knowledge about themselves, about sheir 1ifg/—

and career goaldﬁ and about thé problems of aging, Educatio

is increasingly becoming a constant and logic would dictate

that more and more experiehce with hfe ag one grows older, .

1.

o2, Contlnulng educatlon will pro ﬁbly play a greafer d.nd more
’ h.lghly motivating role in the 1fte of,the now young who will «
be old by 2000, Todfy' 8 young aduits take educational op- .
4 portunities‘as a matter,_of- course rather than as special, one , ,
time experiences, Over their adult life’ young. people of to-
: ¢ v day will be able to take Tourses in a yariety of subjects. ( '
. " Such variety should: prove useful in preparing for security
s « ¢ ‘and fulfillment in later-yeamg, They will-ala6 be motivated -
e o to ake advantage of any~preparatlon for retirement courses
_.”' ooy “or programs rgther than being dncoqurtable in "golng' back
“ “to gchool" as some old‘é{ people are. now. . )
3. F‘ulnllment -and happine®s - seem to ‘depend on one's rigid xty
. Qr ﬂexxbllity. Flexible people seem erceive more op- .
Zo an rigid people. Yo eopl d\“arebconcerned N

. ,w;( areer options, wi r change ajd.seem.prepared )
~# toxemain exible an ept change. TN\is HNexibility - §
Bhould stand them in stead a8 they, approach retirement

. -

(]

grams,. with many of the xdeas in this section. " v . ' . i
| ) -

oy T, AT - B
’ T v /
V\&)ild like to credit.my colleague. John Leach Di or 4f Career: =~ : | =

. . ) : . = . .
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- ehould allow the elderly to grow in and act foh wx"bdom. P

o ..Tand a;'e faced with sometxmes ﬁxfﬂcult decigions.: : U
’ . o . ‘ N o
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Ybung adults might be encouraged to look at retirement as a
career, They should find the retirement career easier if they
could rehearse the role of retiree earlier in life or just before
Many plans for rehearsal and renewal have been
suggested, The sabbatical in various forms, if Ppractical con-

retirement,

o,

.

siderations could be worked out, would be an attractive way to -
help people rehearse their use of free tinle.

Young adults may be encouraged to balance career and life
goals more effectively and use oppdrtunities to learn about

themselves and how to use leisure.not as
but as a way to enjoy ahd appreci_z_\‘tng life

-

a status symbol,
N

-.~

For a véry limited number of 4ndividuals, industr:y-gové'rn- . ‘ﬁ

ment executive trading might prove valuable.

The young -3

manager could be :gss'igned to government perhafs for six’
months or a ygar with an assighment to focus on the préblems
and opportynities of the aged, Thig first~hand exposure, early .
or mid-way in & person's caréer, ghdé\j¥d pronipt some self- '
examination of life goals, This examidation should he more
valuable both for the individual having the opportunity and for

‘the people he works with during his own career.

Finally, . | would like to suggest. that not all aspects of planning .

young adult when retirermgent approaches.

“for retirement shobld be encouraged at the earliest.age for all,
. Cgrtainly egtate planning at thirty-five rather than-at fifty-five °
(ulien financial options may. be severely limited) would help the

Many other retire-

ment planning areas would similarly henefit from early atten-

tion. Some might be delayed. Different irifiivldualfmay start

planning at different times, depending on their interests and

needs, Most importantly, individuals will be motfvated to be-

gin their planning for retirement when they fe€l the need and

not ccording 4o a
are not.igyolved, -

. — N ¢

"best schedule' recommended by‘otheys whé

. iy
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The - Honorabls »

Fred B. Rooney, Chairman

Subcomsd ttee on Retirement gncom
and hploynnt, Houee Select Con;ttoo - '

on Aging’ A g s
. % ‘
.- Dear Mr. Chnrunl - : . '
AR i If. vae. ny ham priﬂlodgo to. bo 1n the audience on
- 19, 1978 duttng the h.“. on -rnpmng for Retirement:
..
Crista or Challengete. POR® , R

I am Louls R. Baker, now ratired from federsl employ-

firat Pre-Retir f. Counooling Seminar in 1960. It 1l intoroating

t.o‘;mto that prior to the sbove aeminsr I audif.od tho Pn-Rot.irclmt
" _Sexinare givm by the Vot&ms Ad-ﬂ,niotnucn lnd tho Ortice of the
: Truluror of th‘, United statu, U.S. Trulury - ) U.
E ; “In aseidng’ information for# Retire-mt Seminar in 1960, -

"I found that the Civil Service Comiuion was of limited assistance
and. thul had to turn to whht the umm Agmciu and D.pu-ulmu ‘e

-

vm doing" A

A0 "

" f::,nta and Agmciou. on tho ornems ‘Bt the cun sqmc. S

' '""?a-imon tor guidnl‘co ‘a5d assistance 1n the f1e13 ot Pr‘-Reﬂmmt
Pro&ru "thing thaf. (nntually brousht forth hou ® CSC a luko- :

- warm a’quiucmco to go ahud and do’ nht you desiro tp do ‘in thia .
nold..Onr the many yoars the only assistance pa'ov.l.ded vaﬂ 1ntormtion

" and souet.ihq opoaku-o on the subject of Pensions, hoal't.h benoﬁ.ta lnd
Y A . e . : .
insurance.’ - " e a . : -
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As the oentral personnel sgency I fasl ths Civil Servics |
Cammission should teks the lesd in this ﬁporwn field of Pre-

Retirement Program Plamning. in: ; should b6 s repository of ’
types of programxing -v-n-u.. ‘of ntlntur*n ths field and ’ (‘
taks ths lnd in p\lblhhing utorilll lnd )m;d-outa for the &

fodorll &o"mnmt A- 1ndiontod from Colld.uionu' Poaton'a
tut.uony ths CSC has -novod saoh Agcnoy and Department to ) ;

sst their own l‘ghtl on what t.hoy believa is best for that -

v

Agmcy Fins! But it would be of mich benefit to the Fespectimas Y
lgmoiu ahd Dmrhmtl to havs s souros to turn t.o ‘and not hlvl o

to spend their u-- in doing md ro-do*g the ruurch work theat

is necsssary to sstablish s good pre-retirement pllnn'zng progrm.

“ Eg At thekpresent time I am sesrwing ss s Volunteer Consultant -

f vith the o or Independent Hnt\wltw Diviglon of the Anerican R

ik <
A.Oocuuon of Retired Ponons. Buod upon my experiencs 1n ths

- =u
rour-mt field over the pnt 18 years I boliovo the materisls -~

availsbls from‘this source are among the best for iise in Prel -
Retirement Comsolinz'_smqua. L °J' ‘-

.- ~a

With further regard to the questions you proposed to D88

| giving destinony. I bouevo Pro-R-t‘.ir'e-mt’-Coumoling is an’ .
extrafsly 1nporhht ﬁnet.um not only for Govommt but aldo
for -ployua of the print'o aoctor. It wou.ld lppur thet the
priut.i sector is now gotting An gear to put, some msclo behind “
Lthis hportmt funotion. & X “" .

T In & study conducted b\;y Dr. Steney R. Stegel, Rntgora '

,. Univerasity and Janet M. Rtv“,/ Univoruty of Nebrasks ot Quahs, : '

of ‘the Fortnnc 500 eonpnnha, thess writers found that -pphnlutoly

30.$ of this gmp now hlv’ Pre.Rotiremmt Co aoling Prognna, ' >
szfj.ndicnta Plans for 1np1-|mt.1ng such pr ., and lbout .
¢ oo ® B :
N & ’ ' P o
M
- > * K
) ' ) .
: t - ' b - N A
. LY ' .
S .8 : ‘ s .
“ Y 1 86 I3 ’ by
LY . ) . ’ €. -
- - N . » " . \ , : [T (;.‘A . .
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L2

‘ﬂllhbli-h-mt implement.the plans their rupoouvo ngmein mly
have and to provide ldequlto financing for thu? progrm. m.

means budgeting for utorulo md speakers, or consultants in this

'-4'9.

important area.

Y

-Thank you H;-. Cheirman for allowing ;‘: to present my
thoughts on this subject!

O

ERIC
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Vory° truly ym;ra L

2o ﬁ)'ZAp\

.

66$ Plan to start their programs within the Jnoxt two yurl and

, Almost all firme phnnin; prograns will have thea und’u%‘y within
v -uvo yurn. '

'l'hua it is hupornuvo ‘thet top managers of the tcdonl ‘

!
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PLANNING BY OBJECT]

o A-Pllnningl’rouullnﬁ Ch i
for

Retiremant Living = -

" Developed for use by tha Pre-Retiremant:Education '

and Life Planning Project (PREP)
Ethal Parcy Andrus Gerontolagy Center
University of Southarn California
Los Ang(olu, California

A e

‘Prepared by. o
( Virginia Les Boyack, Ph.D%+
" Project Director
' . nd ’
. Frank R. McDougell .

A

The Pre-Retirement Education and Llh'lening i’voiéct provides a
D ive, well:developed model program for Tetirement plann-
ing which serves to-facilitgie apy individual's formulation of realistic

, expl ion offnajor rfti t issues, identification of

. Pdrentials, development of options, and transition into the retire-

mefrt years. The PREP model is designed- to demonstrate that through
throughttul exploration, caraful planning, and early identilication of
one's poventials, an individual cgn develop a sound action plan fora--
son-work life which can be u*lvichml with ndependencey, Lgn-
fidence, flexibitity and dignity. ¥ o

4
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' what | perceive as barkigrs to planning
. . . formy retirement (e.g?;%unstin\ation, v,
_ ~_ 'lack of knowledge, etc.) - 00

. ‘PERSONAL PEANNING CHECRLIST "

checklisg format. It s gjy e
personal retickment “Actidn Plan"% If you.ars married; it is important
that vou work closely with your sholise; Yodr'responses,will indicate

same directions towards achievirig ybur retiremant living objectives. it

a scheduls of action and to determine-some
dates by which you hope to accomplish
you to involve others in your

is jmportant 1o establish
realistic checkpoints in time —
a specific action. It is also valuable for
disgussion of the items on this checklist.

CHECK
" POINTS
o o . -YES. NO IN TIME
[ e AWARENESS N .
A. | am ready to plan for my retirement. [ a__
- B. I haveincluded my spouse and/orfamily |
~menitidrs in my planning process.” [

C. | have discussed retirement with - :
several pepple who have retired. N,
-r o,

- | have developed a. personal list of

. Dol antitipateény change in myhealth
. ~ condition? e .

F. Do | anticipate any change in mT' .
financial status? o I o

- Are there any changes anticipated with
family members ~(e.g., child leaves
home, aging parent moves, etc.)

P
IL. FIRST COMMITMENT o :
A. Ihave made an absolute commitmeny -
. to start pre-retirement planning. .
B. | have identitied the three major « -
barriers to my planning . angd  will
- eliminate them.,, ,
C. Fintend td complete this personal plan-

D A ) I

o__

ning chickligj. . , .
0. I have prioritized my list of planning
v steps. P : oo___
E. | am exploring some changes of direc-
tion{@my life. -
F. I have selected target dates for my
progress steps and checkpoints for
ABY retirement planning. -
IIl. POTENTIAL PROBLEMS™ AND RE-
SOURCS;“‘ - o
A. | havd reviewed my poteptial retirement K
probleniy _ (0
8.1 have collected relevant information
about retirement.  o—

v G I have completed-thigpersonal planning .
checkiist. J 00O

.

0o .

.

" Ajswd below' are critical ‘retigement ﬁlirf:znlrij. steps p néin.;}fin'a '
goested’ that time’ be set’ aside tg devalop o* ..

e e

v

°

L

-

&
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D '+ haver prmrmzeclmv Iig’of njaqrung
eps. \
E. exploring some chariges of dnrdc
tion in my life.
F. | have’ selected targat dates for my
pragress steps and checkpoints for
my"nmsl!snt plapning.

‘POTENTIAL PROBLEMS ANO RE-
-SOURCES ' L

" A. | have reviewsd my potential retire-

- ment problems. -

B. I have collected relevant, mformatmn
. about retirement, } ‘

C. | have-compiled relevant facts. *

D. I have gathered opinions from ‘experts”.

" E."1 have.analyzed my potentnais E !E

F. |have developed some tentative options.

G. | have discussad: all of the above with

my spouse, family and/or fnsnds
H. | plan to:

; ‘l Investigate the rétirement pMhning *

resources available -through my
. employer. * ‘

2. Increase my reading habnts and in-
terests to include information
relevant to my retirement. -

3.-Attend a financial management
program,

4. Investigate what programs are being
offered at local educational institu-
tions and community organizations

Y which may be of interest to me in

planning for my future.
. Investigate meinberships in various
organizations which can provide me
g‘t‘h information ’bout, retirement
es '

. Visit a library and develop a reading
" program about retirement topics.

7. Subscribe to approprlats magazines.
{These publicationswmay be available
at the Public Library.)

8. Start a search for other sourcss of

information, .

SELF-EXPLORATION L 2

A. I have explored my motivations, needs,
wants and potentials — now and as pro-
jected for the f:‘grs -

B. | have discusse ommon needs, wants
and’ potentials with my spouss and/or

‘ family.

O
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o AN A N AT -j cHeek | L -

ER EE v - POINTS "=
L e o . . YES NO m'rme .
: .~ C. | have made initial selephone contacts
v * with the following: v
N 1. Insurance agent :
A « 2,-Accountant .
3. Attorney - o °
4, Social Security - R
5. Employar
6. Physjcian
. 7. Othefs (as approptiate)
) D. | have made appointments to talk per-
. _ -sonally with gach_ ol*tha following:
. 1. Insurance agent R
s -2.. Accountant :
& 3 Attorney , *
" 'axo. . .. 8, Social Security .
5. .Employer « b e
6. Physician o
. 7.. Others (as appropriate) -+ o
: E. | have esthbMghed some. Fealistic x.
Lo pectations for my {(our) retirement.

" -, V. DETERMINE OBJECTIVES -, ..

L. (PERSONAL /SPOUSE/FAMILY) !
* " 1 have developed alife-ptan for: ‘

A, My retlremcnt pllnmng strategies. . G

» Bl .Mamtananca ot phyncal haalth ahd

iy .7 vitali .

. C. len& stability. -
=7 D. Living8rrangements. |

. Career development. - oy

. Continuity of fnmalyvcelatmnsmﬂs.

. Use of time.

. Selt-fulfiliment. ) :
Identification of my " skills, know-
ledge, experience and potentials.  °

.I A projected retirement date. & .
VI. STRATEGIES FOR ACHIEVING‘ RE- .~
TIREMENT OBJECTIVES - )
A. | have developed some smtaglas for.g w Ny
~ reaching my abjective:

B. | have established a 3aflmta schaduls

. and checkpoints in time. :
“C. I'have conducted in-depth person$l in-
‘ . terviews with apprap;tata persans Ilmd

inivp. ag—— 1
v

-

<

0 00oopoon DDDDDDDD

0 00000000 00000000

PIHHEANIN- §

a
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&
i

DD.BéDDDJD D'
00 Oooomo

D. I have dsvelopsdawabla financial plan O a4
E. | have identified somg of my -skills, _ .
knowledge and experience for career

development.. ¢ Od
o F. | have reviewed my c’t Isisure tims
. " . pursuits. ' O a
. G. | have sxplomd new kinds of lalsurs b
time acnvmex’vlnd interasts. 00—
, u.‘ : ‘ ) . ‘
L ¢ ¢ . - ]
\AI"‘ . : v xS
- ’ 1 9 ’ ¥ ) - v ° ""v:. ’;:‘
. ] . o ’ DR
L. N . b o R
. N L ST
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ALTEHNATIVES ”n nEAcﬁﬁG o%
JECTIVES

8.
C.
0.

- A. | have tested my plenmng strategies.
. B.

| have explored various alternative .
methods by’ which | can achleve my
ob|ect|ves,_

. COMMITMENT T0 ACTiON
A. 4 have devdlgped an action plan,

| have e an absolute commltmenf
to fdllowsn action plan. a
| have developed.a written commit-
ment to'an action plan, ’

| have received a consefisus of approvﬂl
for an action plan from my spouse and/
or family.

. | have established speclllc dates for

“periodic reviews of this checklist.

. | intend to review the dates above and
establish,.new deadlines as | move .

through my planning procéss.

)

. | INTENO TO COMPLETE mn%i‘
ACTION PLAN BY___ -

Pre- Renremedt Educatnon &
'Life Planning Programs |

_Ethel Percy-Andrus Gerantology Center

“University of Southersd@alffornia
“ Los Angeles, Califotnia” 90007
) .

. ,
b .
‘e ‘ '
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" = o POINTS =
'. 7 .7 YES'NO- INTIME -
. . 3 J.

H | have explored. pomble volunteer and .
commumty service endeavprs in which ; -~
| may beinterested. * . . ‘/:f‘- ———

I have investigated vanous optlons fopf -
' retlumontlwang amngements ,,
. | Mave. explored methods by wH’h * :
may convert or develop a hobby mt& RN
increased activities and/or income in . i .
retirement, s
.| have discussed the abave strategaes . A al
[with- my- spouse,” and/or family,. and" LT,
others as appropriate, L ? —_—
3 '/ N

DD'____ ~

o
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A PROCESS FBR PLANNING

Listed below’are critical planning processes and steps to be considered
and/or explored to better ensure life satisfaction in retirement. Plgase
follow the pPlanning by Objectives Chart as you proceed through the

process that follows: C-

L. Awaraness — What Creates the Motivation to Plan?
A. Acrisis.
. B. An approaching date of retirement, voluntary employ-
ment change, termination of employment or other factors.
C. Another person’s interest in planning for ratirement.
D. Exposure to peopla who havé - retired and/or changed
careers.
E. Death of a famnly mambar or friend.
F. A health change. ’
G. Exposure to a pre-retirement planning program.
H. Media and publications on the subject of retirement.
1 4

I First Commitment to Do Something

A. Complete personal planning checklist, make a commitment
to list priorities, and take action, * a

B. Establish target dates for progress steps and retirement
schedule, R

HL. Review Potential Problems ' .
A. Identify problems.
B/Collsct information.
C. Compnlefacts ~
0. Gather opinions.
E. Analyze options.
F. Discuss with spouse {or, if single, with a family member

or friend). -

G. Review sources for informatios.

. Personnel departments {benefits, pensions, retnrement

planning information and sevvices).

2. Programs relevant to retirement issues sponsored by
educational institutions, employers, banks, savings &
loan organizations, invistment firms, and community
organizations.

. National Council of Senior Citizens (NCSC).

. National Council on the Aging (NCDA).

. American Association of Retired Persons (AARP).
. Media and published materials.

¥~

DN W

V. Self-Exploration {Personal/Spouse/Family)

A. Exploration of your motivations, needs, wants and
potentials. » : )

B. Discussion with family about common motivations, needs,
and wants. ¥

C. Verify resources by initial telephone interviews

. Insurance agent.

. Accountant.

. Attorney.

. Social Security.

Employer.

thslclan.

Other. N

V. Dmrmlnlnon of Objectives (Personal/Spouse/Family)
A. Planning strategies/planning barriers. .

NI O-78--13
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. Reatistic expsctations.’ . - <
Maintenance of health and vmllty

. Financial planni

. Life style and mndard ofllvmg.

. Living arrangements. -
. Career development.. o :

. Family relagignships. - * s .
Use of time. )

Self-fulfiliment, . ..

.. Dther.

x#r:nmmcpn

VL. Stmnm for Achhvm' mmctim .

W

. Establish deadline dates for yourseif.
. Conduct in-depth _personal interviewd with those listed |n
V-8, C. )

financial status.
. Prepare a plan for identifying existing skills, knowledge,
experience and potentials for future (e.g., new careers),
. Review current leisure time pununs
. Explore volunteer or community service pombllmas ,
- Investigate various retirement living arrangemgnts. ",
. Explore-the possibility of copvartmg of developing a hobby
which could increase your activiti
retirement. o
I. Discuss strategies with appropriate persons Tisted in {V-C.

Gﬂm>

xoOTmm

Vil. Alternatives for Achieving Dbjectives

“A. Testyour strategies."Will they lead you to your objectives?)
B. Review your strategies and develop #iternate methods by
which you, could achieve vour ob;ectivas It

v

VIH: Commitmaent to Action

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

A. Develop an action plan. g

8. Make an absolute commﬂment that you wﬂl follow your
action plan,

C. Develop a written comnptmém to action. (Make someone
else aware of your commltmem who will act as a sounding
board arid provide you with nécessary feedback.)

D. Duscus:}ur action plan with your spouse and/or fam ily.

E. Keep cufrent with your Personal Planning Checklist and
establish checkpoints in time.

SUGGESTED READING LIST . ° °

AARP JOURNAL. Washington, D.C.. American Acmion of
Retired Persons.

Atchley, Robert. THE SOCIOLOGY OF RETIREMENT.> Ngw
York. John Wiley & Sons, 1976 -

Bequaert, LuciaH SINGLE WOMAN  New York: Beacon Press, 1976,/ *

Butier, Robert N. WHY SURVIVE? BEING OLD IN AMERICA’
New York. Harper & Row, 1975,

CHANGING TIMES. Washington, D.C." Kiplinger Publishers.

DeVries, Dr. Herbert. VIGOR REGAINED. Englmood Cliffs, N1,
Prentice-Hell, Inc,, 1974,

Dickinson, Peter. THE COMPLETE RETIREMENT PLANNING
BOOK New York. E,P. Dutton & Co., Inc., 1976,

Hunt, Bernice & Morton. PRIME TIME. New York: Stein & Day
Publishers 1975

McLeish, John A. B. THE ULYSSEAN ADU%T New York: Mc-
Graw-Ryerson, Lid., 1976.

NRTA JOURNAL Washmgmn D.C.. Natonal Retired Teachers
Association.

O’Measrs, J. Roger. RETIREMENT: REWARD OR REJECTIDN?
Report No 713 New York. The Conlference Board, Inc., 1977

RETIREMENT LETTER. Wl!hmgmn DC.: Phillips Publishing

Comy
Sheehy, lel PASSAGES: PREDICTABLE CRISES OF ADULT
LIFE, New York: E.P¢Dutton & Co., Inc., 1976,

. Dcvolop methods for increasing, maintaining, or changmg‘

and/or income in -

¥
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Retirement Blues Temporary

- A

The majerity of persons who retire do
30 with relative case, marked perhaps
signe of temporary anxiety that often
company significant change, but vl
the highly publicized trauma of * rellre-
ment blues "

I'm amazed at relired people’s skills
atadapting tochangesiniheir lives,” said
Woodrow W Hunter, a leader in pre-
retirement planning at the University of
Michigan's Institute of Gerontology
"You're not allf0f a sudden someone dif-
ferent when*yéu retire You'vejhandled

.

* difficult situations before and there's no

reason to "believe ywu can’t handle
situaiions in retirement

Retirement 1s a substantial change.
ranking ninth on a 28-point test of stress-

producing events. following death of a

spouse, marital disruptions and being

tired from your job.

*IT°'S HARD 1o plan to be mentally
healthy hike you can financially. but you
can look vut for things that might happen
1o you and be gware of what's happening

* 1o yourself. to know whays expected and
how you react,” said Dr. Chnrles J
Fogelman, a psychologist ‘who
\p«mulesm(ounselmgolderpeoplennd
a urulesernl,adul(evelopmenl and ag-
tng at Antioch "olle:\,r .

“‘Forewarned | yckology 1s like ‘a
penny saved 1s a pknny earned’ in finan-
c1ai planning.’” he said.

N Depression and generalized anxiety

What Causes .How' Much Stress? .

S(re:s Is anything that upsets :)ur equilibrium. It can be ™=
physical or emotional. painful or pleasant.

The following scate, developed by Dr. Thomas Holmes, a .
University oLW‘shmglon psychiatrist. rates stress caused by
Ite changes. His studies revealed that individuals who ac-
cumulated more than 300 points in a year were high risks for

R physical or psychological stress-related iltness, while 50 per-
centof those with scores of between 150 and 300, and 30 percent
with scores below 150. developed problems.

Although change is good and necessary for growth, timiting
the number of optional changes in a year can avoid pumng more
siriatn on our systems than they can take.

Life change Points LHe change Pointy
Death of spouse' 100 Change in work
* Luvorce 73 responsibilities 29

Marital separation 65 Son or daughter leaving

Jaitterm 63 home

Death of cjgse family Trouble with in-laws 29

« 63 Wife beginning or

Personal injury or illness 53 stopping work 29

Marriage 50 Outstanding personal -

Fired frém job 47  achievement 23

Marital reconcihation 45 Revision of personal

Retirement habits 24

Change in health of lamnly Trouble with boss 23
member 44 Change in work hours or

Sex difticulties 39 conditions %

Change in financtal status 38 Change in residence 20

Death 8f close friend 37 Change in recreation 19

Change to different ) Change in social activities 18
Kkind of work 3 Change in sleeping habits 16

Change 1n number of
arguments with spouse '35

Mortgage over $10,000 31
B Foreclosure of mortgage
or loan 30
Page 12 ' o
. N

Change 1n number of family

get-togethers 15
Change in eating habits 15
Vacation 13

Minor vioiations of law 11

* are ““not unc'o;nmon about the time ot

retiremeht,”" he said. Thig state Is
characterized by such feelings as ‘in-
security. self-doubt. frustration, sad-
ness, anger and sometimes impetence .

These feelings are legitimate and
usually (emporary,”e'smd.

.

*IF THROUGHOUT LIFE you have
learned haw to tend to your problems
when they occur and go on to grow from
there.” the possibility of adverse reac-
tions torelirementislessened. Fogelman
said 1l throughout liteyoureact badly to
crises, then you might be maladaptive tn
retiremeni_ "

He recommended “applying a test of
common sense’’ to the process of ad-
Justing mentally to retirgment.

People by and large will take care of
adapting to retirement on their own. but
there arethose whoneedassistance. It'sa
legitimatething to talk to a professional
person_ ltoften helpstolook at the Pattern
of a retired person's Iife. Ask if he is
responding in a charasieristiC wayorina
new way that is atypical, nnd if so, can he

‘cope with 11>

An example of ndupmnon despite in-
1tial distressis agovernment lawyer who,
when he was forced toretire, showed bit-
ter and angry feelings at not being allow-
ed to continue. [ have lots of work still
left in me,”” he complained.

HE CONTINUED to voice these
feelings of rage at subsequent office par-
ties to which he was invited until about
two yeurs later when heremarkgd. *'You
know, once | got used to jt. gflirement
isn't s0 bad

Some of the changes facing retiredper-
sons include roje changes, the gancept of
producnvl(»dl’srup(lonsold tic pat-
terns and the possifle unexpected disin-
tegration of retirement plans. Retire-
ment also brings a time for reflection on
aging and life, Fogelman said.

The number of changes that happen at
retirement contribute tothe anxiety. But
increasing the number of changes that
can bhe controlled often can prevent ad-
verse reactions.

The work world consumes a large
amountof life. "'1t's important to you and
what you are. In rétirement, you don't
have this world to measure yoursell
aganst,”” Fogelman said. The role of
wilge earner 15 replaced in retirement
e1ther by beco Ing a contributor again in
another job pr by becoming a taker,
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‘Not the traunBitic. . . thing that is feared’
3 o .

Americansdre weli-prepared for work
Produrtivity and ikfependence are at the
center of vur educatin. training and
socal deselopment Work., which ove
vup:es 1he malor purtion u{yme. thought
and JHurt m adulthood,, gives direction
and form Lo hfe

But the vast magorsty of Aitericans are

not rehearsed for retirement
Retirement, the end of the heavy
demunds of a job and the start of depeng«
ence on government and pPrivite tncome
sources. can cpuse a significant shift 1n
; the daily pattern of one’s life. Sometimes
there are reverberations tn the efmotions

L4 .
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Transition to Retirement -

of workers whose enterprise and

* strengths made the conceptof retirement

possible
Unprepared, the former worker sud-
denly has large amaounts of unsiructured
(me and a reduced iIncome 10d society
thatis largeiv unwilhing to accept itsolder
warkers is viable menibegs
STEREOTYPES about retirement are

commogglhice

Snm#-llrw«. and others, ase lulied by
advetusemenis. of plasticized golden
years communities and by polltical
Protestations Ihat gquernment subsidies
for income and medical care will make

. . N
Y Like Valmore Poindexter, 73, More Than 20 Miltion Americans Are Retired
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reurement an eartMy geriatric nirvana,
Miny enter retirement with the delusion
that somehow all the struggles that are
the ¢ssence of hife will vanish

Others. terrifted by stories of
loneltness. poverty and social prejudice
againsfihe old, ching 10 Jobs 1n which they
arenolonger usefdl when not forced outby
mundatory retirement, or lesp into a
round of meaningless activittes. Some
withdfaw Inth dusty®nests, defeated as
much by their negative attitudes as by the
system ) *

Like most myths, these stereotypes
contain fragments of truth. But despite
thefact that most retireestio not tak e ade-
quate steps to plan for their future, most
eventually adjusy. readied for change by
experignce and indtvidual forttude.

Toda¥ more than ever. older persons
hvelonger in better health and less pover-

ty Reduced workweeks and longer.

vacauons give ‘workers a yagte for in-
dividual pursuits in retiregrient. :

AS INOTHER PERIODS of life, retire-
ment offers the potqntial o develop while
adapting tb personal and physical losses

and soctal changes. There is time o

evolvean insightintoone’s ltfe and a hope
that 15 almost always resiized only by
living

*1’'m convinced that retirement is not
thetraumatic unddestructive thing thatis
feared,” said Dr. Erdman B. Paimore,
medical soctologist at the Duke Universi-
ty Cenfter for the Study of Aging and
Human Development. “*Modt retired peo-
ple seem 1o adjust into retisement in a
fairly short ime with nonegative side ef-
fects on health or hife satisfaction.”

The transition to retirement, however,

Page |
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«an be eased considerably by knowledge
and pye-retirement analysis of housing
dlternatives. financial management,
helll'r Matmenance. leisuge time
organizations” attitude adjustment and
legal pitfatls ¢ . .
. Urodsing the artificial barrier of age 65,
» tradittonal mandatory retirement it
derived from Otto vop Bismarck’s soctal
legisiation in Germany in the 18808, does
not reglly alter fundamental personality
But by decreeing mandatory fetire.
ment at 70. as Congreas did early in 10%4 )
society 13 able 1o identify and separate a
grouptfiatishomogeneous only by sge and
to systematically exclude those in it,
regafdlessofabylity Limiting the produc-
tiveness of many of the 23 million people
over 85, or about 10.3 gercent of the pop-
- ulation, providesmare work at higher pay
for younger workers

THE ATTITUDE also permits society
10 silepee the voices of those whorem nd
us of oug own destny, said, the Rev
“Henri ] M Nogwen, author of a beok on
aging and a professor at Yale Divinity

' School ! .

1w aninvolation thatis becomingharder
for society to achieve The medianage il
v the linited States 1328, by the year 2020, 1t
is estimated o rise to the mid-0s as the
* babies of the post-World War Il period
resch retirement age and sweli the pop-
ulatsn of (he elderly 10 an esumated 40
milljon, or 15 percent to 20 percent of thfe
populdtion 'The prevailing view of aging
18 thut 1t 15 a deterwration, a deglime, a°
wuhdrawal from sbhuety and a_iimited
usefultiess.”” suid Woodeow, W  Hunger, [
'r In pre-retirement educytion at the
%suy of Michigan™, Insutute of
tology *This negatve yiew 13 also
shared by older people. If you hear a tbing
- ‘often goough, you betieve w" .

Yetthereisa perchlighe thange
.. takng'place as £n relﬂlu" Ber of
™ pedple retire vélurftarily i
on Fetired persons counters misc
rons; O
O0ly in the last decade uFe we ujﬁ*
! that teurement 1s an achieve
: mod?psocmy,admde dume w
retired person can Make thelcen,
.’ \pacyvities he peefers and partici
sociafly produ¢fide rotes,' Hunter said
‘Hermare B Brotman of F s Cyurch, a
’ nattortpily known consultalyly’in\genon.
"lolo'y4 med that it 1s nog more
\/'{mpecnbi 10 retire because bf the's eer)
" numbers of older people and more péuple,
. gettingex d 1Q leisure trge The $ork
Hoetnid aopioarh\«t gegng tempered
-somewhat ‘as pgo rediize that
{mmeumn not' workiaff is beyong their
' contgol with nkandaior reurcn:xl. apd ,
ll

'thas nat wocking i3 not all thi bad.
pe e
% NoT 'WORKING 'o,-mé.g.n more 1

rtractive bt-ca'us.e' new studies of thds
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retired show that there Is an eight-in- 10
chunce of mginiaihing heslth after 65 and
that there ionly onechance in loyrollny
kind of institutionulization during one's
lajer life.
pproval of the retirement concept Is
clearly seen in the irend toward early
retirement. The majurity of workers now
-opt for voluntarily ending a work career
ore than haif of all retired workers
drawing SoclatSecurity are taking reduc-
ed benefifs obtainable at age 62
The average age of retirement I8
statistically unknown. but Dr Robert N
Butler. director of the National Institute
un AgIng. estimates the average retire.
ment age Iy about §7
. Those retiring before 85 da. so for
regsons inclading il health, ‘marginal
employment} liberai pension plans in
some indusiries, inlerest in pursuing new
activities ending a government or
milinary career or simply ﬁlvlna enough
money to reure, said Dr James N
Morgan. an economistat the University of
Michigan’s Ingjitute for Social Research.
Whetheeafid movement toward early
reuirement will conlinue 1s uncertal

=" Economics may cause a reversal in the™’

Present early retirement trend,”’ said
Washington industrial gerontologist
Matcoim H “Morrison 4

“IT 1S POSSIBLE. with the decltnin
birthrate and an (hcreased dral
welare programs, employers
themselves 1n need of workg,
ducements to remain o the j
tace.”" ke said PRt
, Algeady there is a smn’r'y”ffeﬁ’
wward developing retiP®fment alter-
nativEs. in the formprof flexible work

hedules, shorter work weeks and retire-

t phased over Lime

s Al such ptations are largely
acagen few take advaniageof them
wbep offered, in 23 years Iffetime working

hdy return as the norm. Morison said.
J!iNo all scientific evidence indicates

r wolkegs want to retive early. At the
most, only a third of the retired pop-
wiation has'indicated they care to work in
"&any way. Also, thereisn't muchavailable
for eopte to do.” Morrison said
. Dr.George L Maddox. director of the
Uuke Center for the Study of Aging and
Human Development, noted a ‘'need to
make some confrbntations now'* onneeds
of older persons. ‘I don’t think we can
avoid making these decisigns much
longer There s a lot of pushing and haul-
Ing as this society s moditying itselftoad-
just to older people.** - i
N

“IF" WE COULD HAVE af udder. -

nding of tate life as a basis for
timlism. we could reduce the inc. es
between wha! older o and

what we allow them to Yo, "Mdst gl (he ;
probiergs ofolder people aregeierated by
,-soctety as much as by something Inhérent )

»

, ment like they've handied other crises in

I older people themselves.” Mad_do;
said Y -

Until these changes occur, the “"best .
procedure s to provide pre-retiremeni
preparation for most workers, ' Brotman
sard ¢ - -
Planning wilt help alleyiate the poverty
and near-poverty that afflict nearly a
quarter of the nation s eiderly poputatton.
About 15 phrcent of those oves 63have less
than the/Office of Management and o
Budget's cajculated poverty-level annual
income of $2,970 fot a.single person and
$3.9 for a couple Ten percent more are
at near-pgverty levels. ’ -
Because of meager iricdmes, a large ’
part of the population doesn't get indepen.
dence in rejirement unless other sources
uf income are developed before
retirement. * L
Nearly hlﬁolrellrﬁmmudewnqm / ‘ “
_subsistence-level Soclal Securlty henefits -~
and QJnlnor amount from’ pensions 7 R
thetr biggest source of thcome, Brotman
sald g u
Most non-executive empioyees 18k
skills and basic infortation necessary §
compute retirement income, and lack
realistic expectationis about savings a.
thvestments to prevent monéta
problems after rgtirement, Morrls‘
said .
The result 1s that retirement incomes
are usually half to two-thirds of pre-
retirement earnings. .
Planning for retirement encompa
broader range of issues thal
Management. Knowing what to e
healthand diet, housing. beisyre ant
problems "tends to faciti{ate the trgns
tion into retirement, "Hunterof Michigan .
said. "It is, not designed 4o right®i thosa,
approaching retfrem 1 10 give thepy”
support and relevidi’in, ation aboyt . P
retirerhent." L P RN N
Only abaut 14 percent, some 2.9 millich P
‘ people ower 85, work. Men araemplgydd °, 7
atiwice the rate of women. Yt theear- - ° v
nings of thdse over 83 who werk account i - *
for aboyt 30 percent of 4l the income of
persans. Those who wark areususdl.
ly seif-employedor workin gart-time jobs
or in agriculturally reli¥ed employment. «
traditionally paying low wages.' -
AgedlxrlmmauonIlm’\ggmmnilles
for employment. There &te exceptiona,
mainly among professionals.
'The majorily of people handléfellre-

their lives," Bénter said. *“It js a critical
“time, but not insurmountable. { donot en-
dogse the notion that our retired
Afnericans are maladjusted. I'mamazed
at their giyjlls at ‘adapting to changes in
théir livgs,” '
Soofde’ than later, better now than :
never, specific retirement plans should be
prepared. Preparation for retirement is
notanexercise Innegativism, butaway to
make retirementnore an end of the rain-
bow than an endgf (hq‘!road

L
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~ Assessing Expenses

: J

‘I've had a good life . . . but I\dtdn t save anytﬁing much’

’

: L}

The statistivsaregrim The majorityol
retir r10ns live on half to two-thirds
«f their pre-renirement income Approx
matety i quarter of Gl older people are
clitsafied as poor ot nearty poor

. It s not surpriving. then that money s
the principul concern of those neartng
retirement . of those already retired

Financial planning. regurded hy most
workers and financial specsalists as the
key toandependent retirement . isbasedon
firm  reabsitc knowledge of personal
dsNeIs, wpending habits and sources of 1n-
come both before and alter retirement

However “‘pteparation has to start
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soon enough <o that i any action 1%
NeCessary . there will be time to take
1. s Hernman B Hrotman, former
chtel spansticiao and program developer
for the aging section of the Depariment of
Health, Fducanon and Wellare

TODAY'S REJIREES face planning
for an economically hazy future Inflution
eulvonto the fixed incomes of pensions,
ML INRs and some nvestments Out-gf-
D\('k!'l medical costs for those gyver 65
average aboul $1,360. 2! umes what is
spent by younger adults

Average hife expectancies beyond §5

4

have been pushed 1o 13 years for menand
17 vears for women, and often the retire-
nient peniod 18 lengthened to 20 or more
yvears B

Renrement economists say that the el-
fectof reduced Income on retired persons’
financial status s pot clear because of a
tack of research. needed in all areas of
agtog  There are indications, however,
that income cannot be viewed as the only
measure of financial security

For mostretired persons, the expenses
of rearing and educating a family.
purchasing a home and working are
removed Hut these savings are offset by
increased health. social and recreational
expenses

LIFETIME HABITS of financia
management augment the money picture
n retirement {But a Duke University
unalysis showedl that two-thirds of those
Studied in on® test made few or no
preretirement plans.

A lot of people don’t plan in general
They just drift along. unaware that plann-
Ing could make a difference They don't
know how to start They avoid something
they don’t like to think about and are
afradof.”" smid Dr Erdman B Palmore.,
medical soctologist at Duke University's
Center for the Study of Aging and Human
Development N

“I peaple have planned for retirement.
thex're one of the fortunate few.' said
Arlene ¢ Elmore, a Durham. NC
Preretirement sraining expert “‘Most
people have retirement blocks They say.
‘IU's tooearly yet I'mnotold I'monly50.
or 55, or §0.1 might die belore then.' Some
deny they will retire through the day they
retire.”” One 61-year-old Charlottesville

Page J



office worker. slowed dy illness. avoids
his approaching retirement “'1'd like to
retire right now.” he said 'l don’'t have
the money | always thought | would die
" before | resched 80 {'ve had a good Itfe.
and 1 don’t regret it. but 1 didn’t save
anything much To tell you the truth.
don 't know how much money | have right
now | could Ret Social Security in 8 year
when 1 get 10 be 62. but | don’'t knaw how
much 1I'm kind of afraid to find out

HE ISN'T ALONE. A recent study by~

the Universigieof Michigan's Instituté for
Social R: wed lh‘l‘Bpercenl of
Americun a havenosavings Sixty.

eight percent had some savings. and the
rest refused to answer

His fear 1sn’t unusull, either Ms
Elmore noted that "'1t's pot a1 all unusual
to be afraid of prrrellnhml planning **

Poor money management and inflation
have taken their toll on the natinn’s
retired population

In 1975. i3 percent of those over 83 earn-
ed jess than the {ederally figured poverty
level of $2.970 lor a single person and §3.,-
930 per couple. compared with 12 percent
in poverty for the rest of the population
The near poor. those who have marginal
orinadequae incomes. push the figure for
the retired th 25 percent

This 18 a uction since the 1960%.
however, when about 3 percent of the
eiderly were glassified as poor Social
Security apd other benefits were the main
causesnfthe reduction. Dr Palmoresand

THE ALTERNATIVE lo\dn'llng into
retirement Is to examine your financial
status The lacts may confirm your worst
fears. but most people are pleasifitly sur-
prised

“There is absolutely no exguse fnr a
person going inforetirement and not
knowIng how much money he wiil have to
live on It's not all that difficult
artthmetically.” said Woodrow W Hun-
ter. preretirement education professor at

- Michigan’s [nstitute of Gerontology

[t does no harm to think aboul career
planning. including retirement. as early
as one’s )09 said Washington industrial
gerontologist Malcolm H Morrison " As
things stand today, by the time ybureach
45. Yyou ought to give some serious thought
to planning ' :

The minimum ttme for planning 1s 10
years belore retirement. when
mortgages are dwindling and there is ex-
tra money after children have teft home
But even a Year or two before retirement
1s better than no planning at all

Those planning for early retirement use
the same preretirement planning
procedures as those retiring later Most
earfy retirees have saved with the inten-
tion of leaving. M< Elmore said

OFTEN WHEN an emplovee retires
early. pension henefits are reduced

Page 4

. 197 ¢

.

. Sometimes employers encourage early
rrllrrmrnl)y agreetng not to reduce
benefns or by offering a bonus ta tide the
eniployee over until he 1s ehgible for
Social Security .

Farly retirement also limits the length
of time for earning wages that can make
the rest nf life better. said Dr James N
Morgan. an economist at Michigan's In-
stitute for Social Research “"Buf early
retiremientcan’tbe soentirely stupid oo
many people are doing 1t Jobs aren’t all
that nice and T guess we ought to applaid
them lor saying sq’" by retiring early

The ability to accumulate assets and
wealth increases “markedly " alter age 50
when Incomes are highest and child-
related expenses lowest. smid Dr Richard
Campbell. Duke University specialist In
the economic and soctal status of the
elderly

Although the longer a worker stays in
the:labur force the more opportunity he
has o gccumulate assets. these Busels
rarely amount to more than $100.000. in-
cluding house. savings and other invest
ments . -

Financial planning i1s needed by all per

* sons regardless of their status In soctety

“"MANY WEALTHY PEOPLE never
managed their money properly. and are
just ds concerned with money at retire-
ment as those whio won't have enough 1o
liveon,”" Ms Eimpresaid “'Inretirement
these peaple will have to cope with the
trauma of not hnvlﬂg Dior gowrnis and
SonnY can’t have a new sports car every
vear Retirement changes their con
sumer habits |

The Poor, many getitng the $114 30
minimum mnnthly Social Security.
butiressed by othfr payments from
Supplemental Security Income. are often
“‘better off at retirement than any other
class.” she sayd Besides qualifying for
numerous low-income housing. food and
Medicaid benefits. the poor areaccustom-
ed to living on small incomes and have
devetoped shitls tn do it

But “"the middle class will have tolearn
how to hive like poor people unless they
have done financial planning.”” she satd

On the average, most people find after
analysis that they needabout 70 percent of
their pre-retirement income to live com-
fortably and have enough disposable in.
come for emergencies. travel and
savings. Morrison said

THE FIRSTSTEP in financial planning
for renrementis tochart an accurate pic-
tufe of current resources The goal thenis
to increase disposable income — the dif-
ference between expenses and income —
that can be converted into income-
producing investments for retirement

Thisisnotadifficult task. but 1t 1susual-
Iy time-consuming since the information
must be gathered from a variety of sour-
ces

The following chirt. a compilation bas-

i

AN

ed on Universaity of Michigan and Duke
Untversity pre-retirement planning cour
ses, gnd information from the American
Association of Retired Persons’ financial
Ruides. 1s a sample guide for Bguring yonr
idssets  Other pl#nning gutdes are
avatlable at libraries and bookstares
Amounts of some items — stocks.
bunds, savings and cash values of life in-
surance — can be established by calling
vour hanker. hroker or life insurance un-
derwriter 1'anceled checks are annther
=source of determining expenses of such
vems s utilities. heating fuel and
household expenses
ESTIMATES OF household goods, real
estate and sitomobiles should be conser-
vative Most household goods depreciate
tn vaitue und their worth ¢an be estimated
hy determining their resale value in a
second-hand store
The value af your house can be es.
tumsted by approximating the selling
prices ol nearhy humes. ar a professional
appratser can, for a fee. give a value A
reul estate apggnt will also make an es-
timate that 1s often inflated to allow for
birganing in 4 sale
Include 1n the monthly computation a
percentage of annual. semi-annual. quar
terly and himonthly expenses
Total the'expenses Comparethis figure
wtih the total amount of incnme you have
It will tell you clearly if you need to
develop mnre careful !pf'ndlhg hadits in
order to save money for investmemns for
retirement
1t /& not ynususl for those who have not

" been tracking their expenses to be shock-

e at the amount of money spent on un-
necessary or marginally useful items

GOOD CONSUMER HABITS include
deletion of unn?\ird spending and the
start of compa ing. idance
of creditbuying And refusal tooverpay for
convenience foods (ther hints on good
shopping techniques are readily avatlahle
In newsphpers and consumer magatines
found at Yhe library

If vouare among the nation’s 25 percent
of families with no savings, consider
revising' your money management prac-
tices “'Money saved is just as good 8s
money earned in retirement.”” Hunter
smd

After computing your monthly ekpen-
ses, esumate the same expenses for
relire ment

Fconnmist S¥tvia Porter says it Is
“'reasonable to anticipate an ever.rising
cost of living. perhaps at an annual raie of
5106 percent fnr years to come ' Thisin.
flation must be figured into vour an.
ficipated retirement expenses

Total the estimated expenses in |
retirement Compare this ligure with
your anticipated income In retirement 1
there 15 notenough income tocover expen-
ses. consider further spending reduc tions
or find ways tn increase retirement in.
come. Hunter said
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{ Based on s compilation of Univerwity of Michigaa and Duke University retirement training mahuals |
’

Muathly Average Moathiy Aversge
Prosemt W resirempan + Prowem @ restremant
Medicel msurance — —_—
At Rome ———— — Other malisel, heaith -
eranee provausne —_—
ush bowee —— r— .
Away )
B Eoter mmmgat | — — A .
Chiliren’s edecationsl on-
Nome or morigage D _
L1 ) —_— — Aduln upmese o —_—
\ TAXES, INSURANCE, LOANS
eurence — —— Fadoral income tas —_— —_—
B
wousawoLsVans Swie ncome tax o
MAINTENANCE -
— —_— Lacal tanes
Nn-.\mu L aed — —_—
istoresi. amervesties &
- . —_
Life moursscs prommms, \
—_— - L e ———
‘ Pessensi peaperty in:
— urence — ———
! —_— SAVINGS, INVEATMENTY
Sevings doponits —_— —
- Payments of company pon-
e and profii sharing
programe —_—
Prives purchase of viachs,
b, rebl ewiae. e —_—
RECAEATION
! —— Tools, bbby material - —
Theater, concerts, movies.
Lmen, arapenes. #x —_— pa— T wernevess _ —
Chub mombsrship duss — e
Wichon spupmont —_— —_— '
) tostn, forubisars -— —— . —_— —
Omer * Adiiviensl Snterininment —_
) TRANSPORTATION Sporty oyuipment, supplion y— ——
Car payments — e
4 [} Pots {isconse. foud, otc ) — —_—
Gas_ o) r— ——
- Vacatens —_— —_—
. Usaitotwes -
WORK-RELATED EXPENSRS ’
. Liconse —_— Lunchen —_— —_—
Othor {mrplame, g, taxi
et B _ Caften breaks, saacks —_— —
Teanspadintion {tnlle,
PERIONAL parting. gas/ail) —_
—_— —_— .
Work clathiag or waiferms — ——
" Laundry, dry cleamag, shps - A
Persenal services (barber. provents, ot for fellow
e réropser } _ —_— ) —_— —
Canmetics, wiletrion _— —— L-yynim:l—ﬂ — —_—
Salary nses ond doduc tioss RN
Alcohel. ibacce R — ’ —
renery. pesinge parieen shopping —— —
g‘“‘"lhl'l.ll ey Home repairs { you could do
harityr 2 . .II o you bod tise) —_— —_—
_ALTR i Coametics ad greoming - .
Modicine. érugs _— Dementic help
Deciar. —_— —_—
el —_— —_— Other hiddon exponses — —_—
Glasses, Deaniag aide, otc . YotaLs ——— —
/ “Include 4 of Irmestily expenses. i of quarwrly, ¥ of sasuei



Financial Planning

’

The bearded, gray-hnired soc tal workar
Tam his hand distractedly over Ms head
"I'm s0 stupsd about money. Here | am, 54
yours oid, and [ don't know one thingabout
Row 1o handle what Hittie money | vegot |
don’t know where I'm going tu get any
money when ! retire
+ Do you think Social Security wili give
Ma enough to live on? Do you think | have
time to make any savings or invesiments
that dmount to anything® Tai\ng about
thiy Thakes me nervous \}‘

Nattonally. retired persons derive

| 38 percent of their Income from
Socisl Security, but (his government
program financed by tax deductions from

Page s N
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paychecks iy only “one leg of ‘a three-
legaed stovi of retirement financtal plan.
fing." said Herman 8 Rroiman of Fally
Uhurch. renred chief atatistician and
program developer for the aging vectton
of the Department of Heatlth, Education
and Welfure,
Pensions and suvings are the other two
tegs
® Theve aresugmented by wages Nearly
8 third of retirement Income comes from
€arnings Savings and Iinvestmenis

follow, with employers’ pensions. armed
services, gov@nmenl and raiiroad pen-
stons, family contributions and other
public and privatesassistance following

203

4

. ~ Social Security, pensions and savings

Most of ihese sources of retirement in-«
come are determined tandard for-
muals: Social s«..m,'l !omwild ac
cording 10 the sverage of individual eer-
mnp.‘ponnonunn|bymolen.lhnlm-
vice and other requirements, and

_lmmmslmmmhermrcn.nmrnlly
based on set calculations

Pensions are protected by law and in-
surance. said Dr Gerda G Fillenbaum.
Duke University sociologist and, geron-
tologint /

The Empleyee Retirement Actof 1974,
administered by thés Department of
Labor. seeks to guarantee the present and
future rights of employees to collect their
company pensions. There are exceptions
to these protections Pension Pisns
opersted by churches and federal, state
and local governments are examples.

Pensions are generatly of (wo types. a
lump sum payment that can be reinvested
4n income-producing methods or a -
Monthly benefitcheck to the worker or his
spouse. if survivor's benefits are selec-
ted

Not all workers have pensions. snd
those who have them are generally un-
aware of the provisions that can be obtain-
ed from the executive in charge of the
program, said Woodrow W. Hunter. &
University of Michigan Institute of
Gerontology pre.retirement speciatist.

HUNTER SAID the basic information
each employee should Have about his pen-
sion s when he isvested (becomes eligible i
for retirement penefits). whether the
employee tan contribute to the pension. if
there are individual oplions such as sur-
vivor's bene(its. and for what length of
lime the benefits wit! be paid
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. Monthly Income Worksheet

SUMPLIMes LN safsyi-of s banefits
Means each Monthis peasionc heck willbe
sMmaller

T he pension holder should alse askaf the
peENsION s POrtabir that (s 1f acorued
benelins Can be takn from job to jubasihe
1o hers pension [TAA L REE can be

When pension benelis are drawn the
amount of Money an emplovee ton
Irihutesd to his retsrement fund 15 free of
tecteral taxatun bul not the emplover s
contrihution

The hevgh plan ar an Indevadual Retire
ment Account make avatlable tax-free
subsiitutes for emplovess withoul a pen
ston plan or [gsell emploved persons

THE KEOGH PLAN enables self.
employed persons lasave §7 500 or 15 per
cent of vour annual incame whicheveris
lower tax-free. until wilhdrawng the
sunf in amounis determinad by insurance

|‘.|hl§~ nrone lump sun Then it 1s subject
to taxshion Financial adviserssay tocon-
~ult an atlorney when setiing up a Keogh
plan because of requirements that
rmplovers orgamized a stmilar plan for
. thetr emplovees
An Individual Retirement Account
allows employees withoul pension plans
fuaet up tax free dividends, interest and °
v apual Rans that compound the retire
ment account growth A systematic
withdrawal plan from the a6t ount can
Degin as early s age M1, and must begin
na taer than six months after the 701h
hirthday
There are Rovernment subsidies and
wrlfare peneftis wlher than Social
Nequrity including disabihty and sur-

wivafs beaelits from the Social Secunty

Admimstralion
The Compulation is different from that

j
(B
)

Seuress of insome Sourves of lnseme
\ Present  After retiremsent Pressal  Aher retirement
SOCIAL SECURITY . INTER! AND
Hushand ofver 82 —_— e NVD:&I .
Savings baak ———— pa—
Mushand ofrer 68 RS e
Wite sfwr R — — Savings and loan R —_—
PENSIONS, BENEPITS Lodne and mor tgages — —_—
Compuny ——— —— .
. Stocks —_— Y ——
Veterans —_— — .
. Bonds —— —_—
* Unson _—
PROFITS FROM
Civil Service e THE SALF OF
R Real sstate —
Railresd . .
vn-'-:.om- Stocks I
Endow! — Bogds — —
CREF a
iy MISCELLANEOUS
insurance cash value B ———
COMPANY PROFIT
{ 1) — Tax refunds —_—
ANNUITIES _ Rent from properly —_— _—
Windfall sales (antiques,
COMPENSATION stamp o coin collec tions, .
FROM EMPLOYMENT etc ) ——
Wages, selaries (full or ‘
part time) _— Other —_—
i
Commissions . e TOTAL MONTMLY
INCOME . —_——
Comauiting fees — TOTAL MONTHLY .
Royalties EXPENSES _— T
BALANCE
Own business ( income) —_— ——
Wanesd oo ampoas an ol Unieecssty of M mRan and Dolle U gy eryity setirement fraimink manus i )

tor Soc il Securily. and each is figured in-
dividually

Supplemental Security Income offers s
guaranteed annual income floor, whichis
below the federal poverty level for needy
older peopte, the blind and disabled per-
sons |1 18 hnanced by general tax
revenues and run.by Social Secunity

THE EXCEPTIONS 10 regulated
benehis in retireMent Ninancial planning
are privale savings and mvesiments The
individual controls their growth by a com-
bination of thrift and seleclhion of invest-
meni alternatives

The development of personal sources
of incame from savings and investments
before retirement is @ greatly neglected
wurce of relirement income.”’ said
Arlene ¢ Elmore. a Durham. N C., pre-
reliremend planning specialist who

.
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developed Duke UniverSity's retireinent
traymng program

A Mnl(ny savIngs CCOuUnt 1S esseanial
for fin&nciy) secunty before and after
retirement

Savings are scTunbtlted by putting
aside MONey for future USe 1n $avings uc-
counts’ N Janks, savings and logn 1n-
SULUNIORS ypg credit unions,

The funds n savings 3CCounts should be
readily aCcessible for eMergencies Hun-
ter gaid  Renrement COUnselors ¢ the
Cniversity of Michigan advocate main-
faining an emergency “avings account
that1s 243 times your annUal income This
accoun! Couly pay for UNexpected expen.
ses, major linesses aNd other oyg-of-
pocket drains in renrement

THETYP[-;Sulsau|numrvuunls,byyur
the most commonly USed miethyd of
retrement financing, Vary from the low
Tates pidid by passbouk dCcounts g cer-
Uhcates of deposit

Hut habyyal savin® helps monev

deposited in the account 16 grow through .

compound ipterest  FOT Instance, yf $50
were SIVed monthly 804 compounded
senannially ata 6 percentinterest rate,
In 10 yedls the amount Would be $8 202

CertfiCates of deposi! pay higher in-
terest rates byt beup money for%days 1o
NIX yedar®or pnger The Cernficates are
usyally Motd in 1.0 and largerunits, ynd
there is @ Penalty for £arly withdraw,(

Another private way 9 Dlan {0 reqire-
Men(1NCOMy g iobuy annW ties contracts
sold by thsurynct compantes that gugran.
tee 4 Nxed payment for hife Ay
fetirement, coavertng e cash vatye of
Iife ipsurang e policies 1180 anpuitie, |y g
ROy wad o provide rettfement income
Hunrer Said

THE ADVANTAGE of Innuines i that
the retiree i gu.lr.mm-d S ixed tepme
Although anpnties dr4w  interesy of
bought dunng working Vs no income
tx s padounul they 9fe withdrywn,
usually when the repred person i p g
lower (ACOIMe brackel ANNUELES dly) re-
Quire no Money manggement

Annutty Cagesire better Whenbought in
tater nife. by cates vary. S0 shop fop (he
best rutes. reyretngnt CConomists say
The avefage ancome ffom annujges
vanies, DUl typicat examPle ona stragght
Ife anautts v $7 for each $1,000 10vested

Most Tinaneial adviseTs  recomniend
MantaINIng , base SavinRs accouny of
$10 000 before emhar kang O inVestmens
ke common sicks, coMModities, rey)
estare aNd fogw-grade <OTDuUrale bapds

Page 5
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These investments are usually under-
taken only by persons withknowledg? ari
advice. Wise_d:vcisthed choicescan

sy InCrease refirement income,

ures can be ruinous.

The recommended alternatives for
those not financially able toinvestin high:
r1sk purchases are low-risk U S. savings.

ﬁnds and musnicipal bonds
Preferré® stock, migh-rated corporate
bonds and mutual funds are average-risk
alternatve invesiments ‘

THE GOAL inretrementinvestungisto
produce inconie, renrirmentad visers say
And. they say. do not tie up money in in-
vestments that may eventually prove
valuable unless you have a lot of money

Serees E savings bonds pay 6 percentin-
1trest, compounded se miannually, if held
o tnaturity They are exempt from state
and local taxes, and federal tax s pad
onty on the interest when the bonds are
Cashed  They can be bought In
denonunations of $25 to $1.000 and mature
1N five years

Serjes H savings bonds also pay 6 per-
centinterest, compounded semiannually,
andare subject tofederal taxas interestis
recen ed Theyare sold in $500, $1.000 and
$5.000 denominations Series K hands can
be converted 1o Series H bonds withno tax
on the Series Koaneome untl the Series
bonds are cashed

LS Treasury bonds, 1ssurd in amounts
as low as $1.000, pay according to the
motey market, but v erage about 6 per-
cent to X percent and mature 1 (hree
months to two years Federal agency
bonds, issued by various branches of the
federal gosernment, have a varied yreld
ol 4 percent to ¥ pereent, bul they must be
bought 1n $5,600 upirs

FOR SAFETY'S SAKE, municipal or
X exemnpt bonds should hiave an AAA or
AAraung They are exempt from federal
Lxes and from state and Jocal taxes if vou
ve in the pohtical subdivision where
TRes re st

Preferred stock v an average-nsk in-
vestment It as @ hybrid secunty that
usually has a fixed incame and has ao
nutturity date and s pard hy companies
hefore dividends on commun stoek are
patd  Preferred stock doesn’t grow or
dettine as fast as common stock

Anierican Assoctation of Retired Per-
SRS Fetirenent advisers said if income 1n
tesired more than growth. preferred
stock, primanly utilines, 1s a better
purchase than most common stock

RUE,

US. Treasury bonds, federal

Divederds . ange frim about 7percent to8
percent,

Corporate bonds are rated by Moody's,
a Wall Street rating hirm, beginning with
AAA A rating below u BAA suggests a
marginally safe investment. Cor-
porations with high, ratings, while they
cannot guarantee they won't default in
payments, rarely do so. -

A MUTUAL FUND, another average-
TSk investment, 15 operated by a
professional inyestor who receives a
small fee for ms services. The fund
providesa diversified investment, but the
LVYPES of purchases vary greatly
m-p«'ndmgnnlnprund'smvvslmvnlobltc-
Live

Funds that buy risky stocks have been
paying low dividends: others that buy -
pn‘f('rredslibcksandbondshﬂvebCEHWY'
g 7percent to g § percent and more

The amount of rysk depends un the type
of fund you select Studies and ratings of
funds are avaiuble in many financial
publications and from inyestment ser-
vices

Owning a honie 15 generally a low-risk
investment not only for lifetime tinancial
planming but also for the equity converti-
ble o Income if the house 15 sold after
renrement .

Other forms of real estate Investment
arecskier There are three main ways to
UVESEIN real estate  income-producing
propertes, future.use properfies and real
estale anvestiment trusts These invest-
ments demand personal experlise to pre-
vn-nlyuurmvux(mvm'ﬁl‘\'npormlng|nl08
debilitating foss ‘

SOME RETIREES conmder buyling
Huplexes to kive 1n and rent for extra in-
come Universty of Michigan retirement
Kerontologists note that a high level®of
ENCrEY In needed to maintain the units,
and the retired person should be prepared
fur deminds for houschold repars and
ather overhepd expenses when owning
rental Property

The checkiist on page 7. prepared from
Duke University and University of
Michigan Instityte of Gerontology pre-
retirement planning material, can be
usedasaguidein figuring possible income
SOUrces oW and in retirement

Funanciat plianning for renrement In-
vome takes thought and habityal ac-
cumulation of Savings and iavestments.
But the effort brings dividends that can
mean e diffecence between o retire-
Mment of andependence and one of
frusitation
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Social Securit
b

Most peuple cunnot expect o maintaina
comfortable standard of living on their
Social Security benefits Soctal Security1s
devigned solely to buttress Incomes trom
pensions and investments

Neveriheless. Social Security 13 one of
the main sources of retirement income
Soc 1) Security accounts for about 3% per-
vent of the average retired person’s in-
come

Recenving Social Secunity 15 not an
automatic process You must apply for it
Ihree months before vour actuat retire-
ment date whea vou want your checks to
start

White the exacl amount of retirement
imecome from Social Security cannot be
computed until vou apply. you can es-
nimaie the amount using the Social Securi-
ty pamphlet. Esumatng Your Social
Necurity RetirementCheck, " or by asking
for assstance at (he Suctal Secunity of-
hee

WHEN APPLYING bring your Social
Security card, proof of age (your original
birth cernficate or a duplicate from the
Bureau of Vital Statistics), the previous
year s W-2 Tederal tax form or tax return
form if selt-employed. Sociat Securiy
number of your spouse and rnarrage cer-
tficate 1f applying for wife's or widuw’s
benelits, your children’s birth cer-
uficates if they are under 15, 0r 1810 22at-
tending schoot full time. proof of military
service and an estimate ol earnings for
the current calendar year

I'he eartiest you are ehigible for benefits
15 at age 62, although If you do so benefits
for 1he rest of your hife will be reduced by
0 percent

\
1 you are planning to retire 4t 55 vs-

Umates of benefits will be naccurate
because they will be based on today's
atlowable benefils. which increase an-
nually at a rate of 3 percent or More o
keep pace with the costof hving

Currenly. Soctal Secunty benefils ure
basedon!fenimeearnings since 1950, with
the five years of lowest income deleted

Social Security payments range down.
ward from the $464 allowed if the worker.
retiring 1n January at 85. had paid the
maxsmum Sociat Securily

THE MINIMUM BENEFIT at age 65
has been $114 30 The average retirement
beneflit has been $240 8 month

There are auxihary benetits foreligible
wives and children At age 65, alter mak-

*ing an application at the Social Security

office. a wife can degin receiving Sociai
security benefits based on 50 percent of
her husband's record. or she may apply at
any age If she has children under 1% inher
cure Divorced women can ulso draw on

202

00
N SOy >
stATEMaNT

y Procedure . -

0

%

OF EARNINGS >
: i el il bl

Please send a statement of my social security earnings to:

-~

CRY & WA

withit

2OM TOUR saslt vmm
0 MOt Fanihy

{% 1 own name only. Under the law, informatica in yous social security recosd
is con tal 26d snyone who signs snocher person's name can be prosecuted.
If you have changed your name from that shown on your socisl security card, please

copy your name below exactly as it sppears on

their ex-husband's record Tf they were
married 81 legsl 20 years

Children of a retired person also are
eligible for benelits if they are either
under age |8orare full-time students aged
18 t0 22

Legislation before Congress would
revise Mie Soclal Security system. A chiel
puintin the debate has been the limitation
on the amount a retired Person ean earn
without forfeiting benefits.

Currently the highest amount a retired
person younger than 85 15 permitted to
aarn s $3.240 a year or $270 a month, but it
vou iare 65 or older in 1978, the earnings
Iimit s $4.000 annually. or $334 a month.
After age 72, there1s no limiton earnings.

LESS WIDELY KNOWN s (he stipula-
tion that u retired person can work partot
the year and earn any amount of money.
While benefits for the months of emplay-
ment at more than $270 or $334 monthly
wages would be forfeirted, there isno limit
on the aMountyoucanearn Inthat period.

For the rest of the year. the months
when there are no wages, Social Security
15 patd at the monthly rate.

For instance, if you were a consultant
for three months out of the year, earning
$25.000 1n that period, you would forfeit
three months of Social Security
paymients  But for the remaining nine
months vou would draw the monthly
benefits, although your annual income ex-
ceeded the hmit

The Sociat Secunty office computes
each renired person’s benefits both an-
nually 4ad monthly and awards the higher
amount

Otherwise. beyond the $3.240 annual

your card.

alloiment, benefits wili be reduced 1for
each $2 earned. :
INCOME from investments “and
savings is not computed 83 earnings for
figuring Social Security benefits.
The status of your Social Security. paid

" by you and the Federal Insurance

Contribution Act 1ax your employer has
paid 1o the Social Securitytrust funds dur-
ing yuurworkingcnreershouldbeverlﬂed
periodically. Ron Hudson, a Social Securi- ¢
ty operatlons supervisor, recommended
that employees routinely do this every
three years because if mistakes have oc-
curred. there are usually only three years
in which to correct them.

This Is easily done by sending In a “Re-
quest for Statement ot Earnings’” post
card obtainafle from the Social Security
otfice. This :g;eck should also be made
when nearing retirement.

Workers who don't tile for beneflts until
u!lerssqunlifytornspccinlcredlwtlper-
cent of the benefit for each year {0.5per-
cent for each month) for working from
age 65 1o 72. The credit applies only to the
months after December 1970, and only to
the worker's benefit, not to that of depen-
dents or survivors.

For yJow-income earners who have
work&¥ under Social Security for at ieast
20 years, there is a special minimum that
depends on the number of years of
coverage. For lnstance. for a8 worker
retiring at age 65 with 30 or more yearsofl
coverage, the minimum would be $180.
However,,most people who have worked
under Social Security for 20yearsor more
already qualify for higher benefits.

There is also a $255 payment at thetime
of death to help pay funeral expenses.

Page 9
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The Aging Process

208

Retired persons are healt_hier: longer

»
LN
o) .

After financial security, health is the
sspect of retirement that concerns most

peaple.
My numnent 'Iuhe]mnuln can
Richmond

chaace of ramaiaing healtdy in
retirement. There is only one chance in
four that they will ever need care ina
rekabdilitation facility like a gursing
home.

Thestatistics contrast sharply with the
punllll.vlﬁo’h-mlanunml A
Harris pall for the National Councit
_annonaumnmnwmm

Page 10

population thinks poor bealth is a probiem
for oldet people. Bulmiyﬂpercmtol
those over §5 agree.

MORE THAN 95 percent of peope over
S3iive in their communities, mosi6f them
independently. Fewer than 5 y’cent re-

3

tion over a lifetime. Because the process
is gradual and because,each person ages
atadifferent rate, thereis time to nourish

younger
Why cells age is the subject of meulve
fesearch, uld Dr. Edward Schoeider,

quire some forrh of
usually at later ages. Currently the
national average age lor ing home
patienls is 90,

“In study after study, gler peaple give
themselves ratings of OF better on
health. This says to that it probably

makes very littl dmerence what
specialists lg#t poor health in aid

atthe( . gy of the
National Institute on Aging.

"It is very clear that aging is a very
complex process.” hesaid. *'Wearenotin
ubsolute ad complete control of aging,
but if we do not find out what causes aging
andage-reiateddisenses. wewon't beable
tonuke:nn{’hesdw-ylnlocuﬂuwchl

age. Oider
functioning and are,” sald Woodrow
W. Hunter. a ialist in pre-retirement
education at Unlvenny of Michigen's
Institute of
Retired lre healthier longer.
Leasst
le age.

For most, 0 74 are Jike an exten-
sion of
Ni ubwlmpercentonhou

[improving} the quality of
life in oid age."

Good health practices can extend the
well-being of middle age far into
retirement, but rev in poor health
habils are ultimately personat ones. The
r7ulll of moving away from a sedentary

e and calorle-rich diels can have
positive effects at any age.

This process begins with a thorough
physical examination.

IIZTIIEMEN'I' CONSULTANTS ad-

**Thisshouldn't give peopie the idea that
mdqynllcrﬂ(heymgoln.lo fall
t. These disenses u.unlly only come

much iater in life and the disability that
arises is only to & limited degree. Also,
chronic diseases only happen to some
people. not all." uld gegontologist
Herman B. Brotman

PHYSICALLY THE AGING PROCESS
is marked by a gradus] reduction in func-

llon before reurement. while lhe worker
is atifl

plan. Most benefits otu_r\:p num pians *

cease at ret
wiildiscover nepds for correctivesurgery
and other procedures that Medicare may
not pay for but for which the company
policy might.

During the examination, which ideally
should include an exercise stress test (an
electrocardiogram taken while exer-
cising), ask thedoctor'sadviceondiet, ex-

L4
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-
ercise. how often Checkups are recom:-
mended In redrement and any other
worty about” your mental or physicai
state

This examination. preferably with @
doc tor younger thunyou whorm youplan to

keep as your personal physician ..

retirement, wi!l give the physiciaa
knowledge of your physical state and a
busis for detecting future changes.

At the 'same tme, select a nearby
drugstore that will fiil low-cost prescrip-
tions and possibly deliver them to your
home If you are unable todrive Thereare
alsoseverakprescriptiogservices by mail
that are advantageows for lower-cost
treatment of some omgoing medical
prodlems  Also. cumparison shop far
drugs and ask the phurmucm " the
prescription can be filled by the genenc
drug rather than 4 name brand

RETIREMENT PLANNERS also
suggest Investigating Community health
facilities — hospitals and nursing homes
- 1o determiine location. costs. services.
aimosphere and staff attitude

Dr Schneiger said the basic diet and ex-
ercise recommendations for older per-
somy are generally the same as those for
younger adults, They jnclude controlling
weight through calorie restriction.
rhythmic exercise taken regutarly and
the elimfnation of excessive alcohol. salt.
sugar and non-nutrittous foods.

Generally, older persons require fewer
calonies than younger persons The Food
and Nutrition Board of the National
Research Council suggests reducing
caiories by 5 percent between the ages of
85and 65, by 5 percent between theagesof
65 and 75 and by 7 percent after 75

A balanced diet consisting of the four
basic food groups — dairy products, meat,
grain and fruits and vegetables — helps
improve the function of mind and body. in-
cgeases resistance to disease and enhan-
ces a feeling of vigur and mental well-
being

OBESITY, WHICH some heualth
professionals call the major health
problemt of the United States. contributes
to the vnset of such dilments as coronary
heart disease, diabetes and high blood
pressure  Extra weight makes these

+ broblems mure ditficult to control

Dr Schaeider sawd there 1s only one
proven way to controi weight dietary
restrichion combined with regular exer-
Cive

He recommends adupting a diet fow in
high-chulesteral meats, dairy products,
sugar. valt and food additives, perhaps us-
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ing cookPooks that stress increased con-
sumption of vegetables.

Malnutrition sometimes affects older
persons, especially those who live alone.
A British study shgwed that loneliness,
leading to depression. also led' to
apathetic attitudes about eating properly.
This is relieved by finding meal com-
panions

Lack ofknowledge aboutgoodnutrition,
coupled with little money for food. also
causes problems

FOR THOSE who cannot or don’t cook.
there arecommunity programsproviding
prepared meals. Meais vn Wheels. which
detivers food to older adults stuck at
homie. anénutrition centersto whicholder
persons dre transported for meals. are
two subsidized programs.

Exercising doesn’t mean suddenly
tunning five m:leswmmhhubten
one of inaction. Such trolled stress
can be dangerous for someone unused o
the physical effort. Medical advice will
help eiiminate thts rsk

But the risk iseven greaterif noregular
exercise IS, taken Exercise promotes
benefits beyond heart condition. 1f yoy
don’t use your body. your ability to move
decreases and breathing capacity is
lessened Exercise helps reduce nervous
tension and promotes emotional health.
Dr Schneider said.

Rhythmic exercise. such as walking
briskly, jugging. swimming and walking
up stalrs, is better than that of sudden
starts and stops unless you are used toit

1F YOU HAVEN'T started before. "'it's
not too late to start,”” he said.

In a study of men and women aged 52 to
K8 1n a'California retirentent village. Dr.
Herbert A deVries. an exercise
physiologist at the University of Southern
Califorma’s Andrus Gerontology Center.

found that regular exercise three hours a *
week enabled the participants to regain -

lost vigor.

The siudy showed results of lowered

blood pressure, increased breathing
capacity, weight loss, decreased
emotional stress and increased stamina.

Dr. Schneider. author of a book on the
reproductive system and the genetics of
aging. noted that sexual activity in later

yedrs i a “‘very nice way of exercising |

and retaimng your sel-contidence.”
Contrary to a myth popular among the
young and shared by many older persons.
sexuil activity does not wane with age.
While some men hind erections less spon-
taneovus than in earhier years, they are
aften maintained longer. Post-

. re by changes in exercise and diet

menopausal women often find lovemak-
Ing a more relaxed experience when thelr
concerns about birth control are
removed. Dr. Schneider said

AT RETIREMENT, "there is usually
no change in sex life. At the same time, if
there is a change — elthes increased ac-
tivity or impotence — it is usufily tran-
sient,” said Dr. Charles J. Fogélman. &
psychologist at Antioch Collége in
Columbia. Md.. who specializes ln coun-
seling older persons.

There are gradual physical losses com-
mon in old age. but not everyone experien-
ces them

Notuncommon arclossesmv:sulllcub
ty and hearing, pariicuiarly high-pitched
sounds. and reduction in the senses of
taste and touch Routine physical ex-

aminations will help discover these -

changes.

Hearing loss especially causes anxiety .

and frustration because of areluctahce t§
admititor to wear a hearing ald. Heari
problems, which can be detected by a
physician, could be caused by as s‘kmplu
thing ag wax buildup.

If further testing is necessary; you will
be referred to an otolaryngologlst. a doc-
tor specializing in hearing problems, and
to an audiologist, who will test hearing
acuity. A hearing aid dispenser will fit the
aid, if it is needed. Mail-order hearing aid
suppliersand mosthearingaidUispensers
are not qualified to dlagnose hearing
problems.

EYE PROBLEMS, detected fn routine
examinationby d medicaldoctorcalledan
ophthalmologist, can ofténh be corrected
by the addition of eyeglasses or a change
of prescription. The testing also detects
cataracts. often improved by surgery,
and glaucoma, controllable with
medication.

"1t is a relief for people to know that
thesechangesareanormalkindof thing."
said Mary O'Brien, a Unlversity of
Michigan gerontologist. " Knowing about

anges helpsasopposed to thinking
e on)y ones getting them."”
ommon physical complaints of
sons are insorgoia, fatigue, con-
and aches and pains, often

habits. But a checkup by a doctor will dls-
cover the cause and prescribe the
remedy.

Retirement is not thg end of the road
physically. With careful lifetime maln-
tenance. or revisions in poor health
habits. the chance of continued good
health while aging is great.

0y
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Retirement Blues Temporary

- A

The majerity of persons who retire do
30 with relative case, marked perhaps
signe of temporary anxiety that often
company significant change, but vl
the highly publlnled trauma of * rellre-
ment blues.’

"I'm amazed at relired people’s skills
atadapting tochangesiniheir lives,” said
Woodrow W Hunter, a leader in pre-
retirement planning at the University of
Michigan's Institute of Gerontology
“You're not allf0f a sudden someone dif-
ferent when*yéu retire You'vejhandled

* difficult situations before and there's no

reason to "believe yw can’t handle
situaiions in retirement

Retirement 1s a substantial change,
ranking ninth on a 28-point test of stress-

.

producing events, following death of a

spouse, marital disruptions and being

tired from your job.

*IT°'S HARD 1o plan to be mentally
healthy hike you can financially, but you
can look vut for things that might happen
1o you and be gware of what's happening

* 1o yourself. to know whays expected and
how you react,” said Dr. Chnrles J
Fogelman, a psychologist ‘who
speciaitzes in founseling older people and
a professor of adul¢@evelopment and ag-
tng at Antioch "olle:\,r .

“'Forewarned 1 yckology 1s like ‘a
penny saved 1s a pknny earned’ in finan-
c1ai planning.’” he said.

N Depression and generalized anxiety

What Causes .How' Much Stress? .

S(re:s Is anything that upsets :)ur equilibrium. It can be ™=
physical or emotional, painful or pleasant.

The following scate, developed by Dr. Thomas Holmes, a .
University oLW‘shmglon psychiatrist, rates stress caused by
Ite changes. His studies revealed that individuals who ac-
cumulated more than 300 points in a year were high risks for

R physical or psychological stress-related iltness, while 50 per-
centof those with scores of between 150 and 300, and 30 percent
with scores below 150. developed problems.

Although change is good and necessary for growth, timiting
the number of optional changes in a year can avoid pumng more
siratn on our systems than they can take.

Life change Points LHe change Pointy
Death of spouse' 100 Change in work

¢ Duvorce 73 responsibilities 2
Marital separation 65 Son or daughter leaving
Jaitterm 63 home
Death of cjgse family Trouble with in-laws 29
« 63 Wife beginning or
Personal injury or illness 53 stopping work 29
Marriage 50 Outstanding personal
Fired frém job 47  achievement 23
Marital reconcihation 45 Revision of personal
Retirement 45  habits 24
Change in health of lamnly Trouble with boss 23

member 44 Change in work hours or

Sex difticulties 39 conditions %
Change in financtal status 38 Change in residence 20
Death 8f close Iriend 37 Change in recreation 19

Change to different

kind of work 36
Change 1n number of
arguments with spouse '35
Morigage over $10,000 31
B Foreclosure of mortgage
or loan 30
Page 12 ' g
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Change in social activities 18

Change in sleeping habits 16
Change 1n number of family
get-togethers 15
Change in eating habits 15
Vacation 13
Minor vioiations of law 11

* are ‘“‘not unc'ov‘nmon about the time ot

retiremeht,”” he said. Thig state Is
characterized by such feelings as ‘in-
security, self-doubt, frustration, sad-
ness, anger and sometimes impetence.

These feelings are legitimate and
usuaily (emporary,”e'smd.

.

*“IF THROUGHOUT LIFE you have
learned haw to tend to your problems
when they occur and go on to grow from
there.” the possibility of adverse reac-
tions torelirementislessened, Fogelman
said 1l throughout lifeyoureact badly to
crises, then you might be maladaptive tn
retiremeni. "

He recommended “applying a test of
common sense’’ to the process of ad-
Justing mentally to retirgment.

*People by and large will take care of
adapting to retirement on their own, but
there arethose whoneedassistance.lt'sa
legitimatething to talk to a professional
person_ ltoften helpstolook at the Pattern
of a retired person’s Iife.. Ask If he s
responding in a charasieristiC wayorina
new way that is atypical, nnd if so, can he

‘cope with 11>

An example of ndupmnon despite in-
1tial distressis agovernment lawyer who,
when he was forced toretire, showed bit-
ter and angry feelings at not being allow-
ed to continue. [ have lots of work still
left in me,”” he complained.

HE CONTINUED to voice these
feelings of rage at subsequent office par-
ties to which he was invited until about
two yeurs later when heremarkgd. "*You
know, once | got used to jt. gflirement
isn't s0 bad

Some of the changes facing retiredper-
sons include roje changes, the pgncept of
producnvl(»dl’srup(lonsold tic pat-
terns and the possifle unexpected disin-
tegration of retirement plans. Retire-
ment also brings a time for reflection on
aging and life, Fogelman said.

The number of changes that happen at
retirement contribute tothe anxiety. But
increasing the number of changes that
can bhe controlled often can prevent ad-
verse reactions.

The work world consumes a large
amountof life. *1t's important to you and
what you are. In rétirement, you don't
have this world to measure yoursell
against,” Fogelman said. The role of
wilge earner 15 replaced in retirement
either by becopning a contributor again in
another job pr by becoming a taker,

31-377 0-78 -- 14



Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

\

!

E
i r’ﬂ‘rlvmg 4 pension and not 4dding 10 the

;«mmnc‘!:a;ncwori of the world
E B

.-
* WHEN THIS CHANGE Sccurs. othey’
aspects of life — family, recreation yndf
friends ~ Cun be develoged to il the vold,

Guring this period of rBle changs, *Iffs
my obsttvation that carFying the joboyer
into retirement by talking about work
likety to happen early |ij retirement,
13 not so bad and nothing tg worry syt

It’s not easy 10 let the job §¢.even When

you want 1020,” but if thereminisc
continue for along lime, the retirem.
nedd p(ulessmnnl attention, F
said i

“

-

. M . . 3 i *
Medicare is the nationall-health 1\

* surance prografm that helps gay e costs
ofimedical qare for nearly eyeryone over

65 and, for 2y younger, disabled per.
- . 3 . -

s L

/ M icare; operated by  the Social
Secur xy.Adm]nplruuon, 18 divided into
wqparis PartAisinsurance for hospital
stays and certain follow-up care, Part B
- pays for part-of physicians' services
some outpatient care and other servltes‘
Medicaid is basically a welfare
program o provide medical assistance
('llsolhcni’lﬂﬂme)l\!lhoseo!anya‘rwho
canpot afford need)td medical servdices
The program which requires poverty.
lewel income. 1s run by states through

|oc..\|_wrlllrl-d¢parlmenls -

NEARLY EVERYONE becomes eligl-
“Ple for Medicare after the 6Sth birthday,
~ whether retired or not To pe eligible for
- Megicase benefits, one must apply at the
“ Spctal Security office at least three
months before the §sth birthday
MediCare 15 not an Butomatic benelit.
To quality for Part A of Medicare, 3
* recipien! must have worked long enoygh
under Social Security or Raitrday
Retirement Thereisnocharge for Part 4
of Medicare-unless you have not workéd
under these two plans for the required *
ume, For thase who have not worked long
.. ,n-‘,ugnunderlhcselwoplans,lhebospilnl
* msurance may be bobght for $54a month.
PartB.isa Iyw-coal medical insurance
topay doctors bl”!ﬂM'Dl‘Dulpﬂlitnlsgp
vices. This costs $7.70 a month, which 15
automatically deducted from the Social
Security check. Those who are sul) work.
ing are billed quarterly '
While both parts of Medicare have been
a wignificant »lnclur 0 reducing the finan.
Ua.| ruin that otten accompanies

Growing to understand that ohople
don't have to be productive but can be
waein, lovieg. giving 8N wise without
working' 1% t.the emotional adjust-
ments to expectigretirement. ' Ther,
.more tohfethanprpductivityof a job.it's
understandable Il 3gme people teel bad
about not worklag 1n a society where .
people’s worth I3 defined by the kind and’
5 amount of work they dé."” the psy.

cholog saud.
le attempt 10, make tais

<

° produgctiv p
;atigynt not edng productivéand others ac-
cepi not belijg productlve. .
Soméiing domestic changes are re.
b

. 4

| Medlcareé Helps With Costs ..

catastrophic latelife illnesses, tne in.
surafce pays for only about 45 percent of
the medical costs of older people, B

" .

1,
N MEDICARE pays for a limited number
. of hospital days andother healthservices.

Additional health insurance from an 1n-
surdnce agent can fill some of the gaps in
Medicare coverage.
. PartAof Medicare wllﬁ pay for the first
90 days of care In a participating hospial

- lureay(;hbenelllptrlod_Abcnelllperiod"
a measurement of time that begins from
the first day of hospitalization to 60 days *
alter discharge.

For the first 60 days of hospitalizatlon,
Medicare wiil pay lor all covered expen.
ses except for the first $144. For (ne
remaieing period to 90 days, Medicare
will pay for all covered expenses except
lurnﬁadny.aligurruwmm'w"“!
daily costs of a hospital stay, sald Ron
‘Hudson, 8 Secial Security operations

supebvisor i lhr‘Prlersburg district of.
fice N

If hospitalization is neededfor more
than 90 days Medicare recipients can
draw on 8 60-day lifetime reserve. The
cost to the recipient will be $7 a day and
Mbdicare pays the rest.

Medicarewill alsopay someof the costs

up to 100 days in n\benrm period for

siNled nursing care in a participati
faciiney. The (irst20days wil e paid for 1o
full for covered s_!rvlces. but the remain.
ing 80 days will cost $i8. Certaln
stipulations must be met, dncluding hay-
ing been hospitalized at least three days
before entering the facility and requiring
ireatment for the condition causing
hospitalizalion

Medicare also will pay for 100 home
health visits by anapprovedagency for up

> ¢ ° 2
quired of familles at rrllremg:l. Usually
the most aflected person is witeof a

retiredman. 1Qr years in commandof the
household during the day. she Is suddenly
forced (p shifther patterns, lo reschedule
her day to accommodate another per-
son's increased presence during tilnes of
accustomed solifude.

Also to be expected in retirement is the
possihjiity that pre-retirement/dreams
and plans could ! if there werk an

- event like ill healthor the loss of a spouge.

You can'tspend yaux, lIfe constructing in

- Some '
¢hange by !Inding somsthing o be “You' t 10 expect the .
e W some flall themsdlves ou've 0! P unexpected
£ vulnerable defenses. 1{ you do, Whe stress

when tiey fajl Is potentially
“‘catastfophic,”” Fogelman sald.
Ke .

Vo

to 72 months after hospital discharge.
Againspeciflcrequiremgents must be met,
including being restricted to thehomeand
#equiring therapy 'or’rle coadition that
originally caused hospitalization.
Part B of Medicare, called médicafln.
surance, pays [or “'reasonabl®” charges

by phy but-not a $80 Ible or
20 percent of the bills. which the retiree
must pay.

. 4
Reasonable charges are determined by
standards devised by health insurance
companles chosen by SocialaSecurity.
Retirees over 65 are advised to ask their
doctor if he will agree to Medicare pay
scales for services, or a larger-than.
anticlpated bill may be férthcoming that
must be paid personally. .

MEDICARE medical insurance covers
suchservicesas visits tothe doctor. drugs
that cannot be sell-administered, out.
patient services, hospital services for
dlagnosis and treatment in an emergency
room of outpatient clinic, and up to 100
home health visits if certain condltions
are met.

Part B will not pay for routine ptifiical
checkups and tests, prescription drugs
and patent mediclnes, eyeglasses andeye
examinaglons, hearing aids and
audiological testing. dentures and other
routine dentaMidre, full-time home nurs-
Ing care or orthopedic shoes.

Medicaid is free.

11 seeks to pay (or all that Medicaredoes
not pay for. Medicaid assists famliies
with dependent children and the elderly,
blind and permanently disabled whose'in-
comesaren’tsufficient to pay for medical
services. °

Some Medicaid recipients also quallfy
for Medicare.

Unlike Medicare, Medicald will pay for
drugs. glasses and some dental care.
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vetired 3 ltorttabie g, 1 1T MWided to the subdivision. Most of them were e & 4 percent move to unknown likai .
sell theit Do virmm.'.,'Q 00-largehouse . my age Jtnever seemed like home  he ““While you are able to live
% ns arlcﬂ . ®hborhoogtull sad - 3 . dently, there is a range of housing
. of chill hl"v’pe'" Severay g Deciding where tolive in ment ia tunfties available,”” said Wdodrow *
, They PAl e amtother cof Vacations ii  both a monetary ‘80d Dsychvtogical - Hunter, a University of ™
; _Arizon8 r neyghbgu S their fog. decisinn, although notL & who retire view stitute of Gerontol ent - M
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ment <7/ any Panneg,, lot df good  -spent ' IR B similar to what they were before retire-
fotures 7o litiey ang gy Vitih, gdod : R ) ment if health coninues (o be good. The
medica! 1 7 excellent golf mMo$T RETIREES 800"t move At. - chances of good health are good. In fact,
COUrse: _rs after renpy, . cording t0 n.nomolo Censuy Bureau . University of Chic3ge sociologists Ber- . -
herp Virgi "t ihey came » *  figures, 72 0u! of 100, retirees-siay g nice Neugarten and Robert Havinghurst .
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A R ' . extension of the health and vigor of mid- | L

£

1

«“

Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

die age.
The majority of retirees do not move

from their homes because they are "
familiar with their surroundings and )
have the health to er in their i
homes. Also, the fact ¥hat 80 percent of
horhes are mortga| At retirement';
is an important fadfor in the decision
-about housing. Y . )
! IN DECIDING whether to ‘stay qr
move, "attitudes toward youf home and
what it means to you — the peychological Y
value of your home,— are impgrtant,”
Hunter said. . .
“Your home is a place whifre you can
make yw_rowndechlonnboul almostall
“~aspects of your living environment. It is
the center around which many memories
were created. §oll'n tie with the famity -
as well as the past. You aresurrounded by
famlliar objects. You can negotiate your ¢
environment without thoughtbecauseit's *

familiar,” he said. .
Others find their homes and ..
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ne“nbnﬁmmdx 1esw, Than -dexirabie_but
CCan® mdve The regsons vary. but theex, %

¥« pertence of one sVear-old wjdow.living

m @ Six-bedroom Musel‘m a Richmond
s an |
Mot urm— péjple who used 10" live
here are gone and wtdon lhnvqnnybody
+around ngn- ntem those aoisy college
xluqam playing loud music ‘on their
por.th roofe, These ‘Used to be famity
homes, but moat of them are gpartmehy
fow - The crime rate is bad ' afraid &
goou( at mghl .

“1 GET S0 LONESOME mmennﬁ-s

. There are! n lot nl people around. bu

RobVYY Carés about vou and not topamany
éven say wllo,”

Nearly, M percent of »\mrnw s vider
_peoplé Mve i center cities 1n wo-large,
hqusBs More than hdll the houses are
(ARAN ) vears old and in"run-—fown
rhoods. said He?man B. Brotman®
“hurch, retired chief statistictan

developer for the aging vec-
tidp of the Department uweallh Educa.
honand Wallare

Most of the moves wuhm communites
nr\(glc.xrr iy smalier houses mnrewm‘d ¢
toa couple withoyt (hndrrn or, Iu'.:pun

pected o be
statishe dily Hogu ‘tn the 1980 cen-
“ug. of Increased v'emy" to rural
areas, usully to § communities. by
Jobder people who Lo Iongmbmrlqbcnmr
(hmr ptace of wvork

', Lumgvsu’lemht‘aperlnlhuuum;yby
AN estimated 20 percent. but rural areas
usually lack healih and other support,
sogtal. recreational and transportation
NETVICES l‘nl!'suh»rv.:re{nn‘wnmrby
and family connections, it s sometimes
difficult for 1 néwcomer tobe acceptedin
W ruraj mmn@m smd Arlene C
Flmore, aDurhain, N U pre-renrement
lrhmlng sxpert o

« MANY OF THOSE whomove toretire:

‘ment comintuntties and hike 1t are ardent,
suppurtersof the conceptof a vitlage with
age restrichons The services offered in
these Alvvv\lupmem\ vury,'grvn(l) . but the
1al activities

betler ongs provide al actiy .
\hmlm care, lr:'mpormuon and houses -

-

condomimums‘or apartments designed
with specat features for older. people

- However, Dr Leon A Pastralan,
University of Michigan sociologtst, and
architeetural environmentahst 1n hous-
ing fortheelderly noted that mostretire-
ment communitigs can be aftorded only
by those with ““comfortabie’” retirement
tnepmes - mu.nlly those inthe upper mid
dle and ppperclasses

An) r*ou'm retirement \houhlS}made N
with. cayson  Ms  Eimore suggested
renting the family home storing the fur-
ntture lf‘[ neces<ary. and renting an
apartment in the new lgcation for a year

Exanune 1he taxes. medical faciities,

% of hand." Hunter

.
N : R
. public teadspgation’, chltutal and
recredhonal’y vmq, meumumwdg

pattefns and.'social acceptan-
his |mponnnl emotogally Yoo
won ;knuw‘h\m lhm‘};s bywisiting there:
casually.” shesamd T

-~nlqwhésrmpo'mnqurmosem
+ will wtuy in their own _homes,lo find out

those’ who Hunter said. Yol

may have hv aluwnloryrnrsal\d not

knew how ta ge1 around Hyouuu |driver,

ur}erv 10 go {pr special aysstgpce for =
¢,

aspects uvlL:e placy where they liveras -, * mote than was\baid for it a'

mhounngnnrellrvmpn 'most peoplen
their 50s and 60s don't
oletiive] housing
-ourage them to pghjeat lhrmsrlvc"
ot 30 years from nowdbut they reject it but
ted - M
Nationwide . thefe afe only about 500.-
00 special houstng units for ghe elderly
© poor Escalating rents dn suitible apatt-
ments and small town houses complicate
the n‘nremvnl housing picture for the
low-thcome and muddle-class retired
TA 63-vear-old woman and her 88-year-:
old husharmd began searching for-a small
apartment (n the Richmand arean year
R Therr sequirements were that it be
Fonabusline. have alaw rent that wouldn't
* escalate and be a pldwm replacement
for their country home 8
‘The places we liked were soexpensive -
-= $180 a month and more The ones that
we could u"urd were tog small ng\a dark,
(nd dida’t Wave elevators. 1t was
depr»wng \h- can't afford one of thos
*<garden apartments.at prices ke that,
don't know.what we are, .iomg todo. W
ke we're caught any %ay we nfove s
-we'ge not poffy pnough to gel &(blpor r
enaugh to help nursrlvrs "

“MONEY IS the mg (Nng for mosl

‘@R 10 live, ‘pPnstalan said. . . N
For widows, widawers,
sons ande thuse who never
chotce of hbusmg also réquires sPeClﬂ'
conwideration. Neally half of al) women
65 and older a owx by nge 5, 1wo
thirds are wido
The Unyrsuy of erhngnn pre rﬂlre-
ment training mansal Refes -that olter;
perwnvshoum fongider these nspeﬂ!
when chmnnﬁ a place 1o ilve:
avduability of friends to visit and

With, activites to draw the single person” 3

“away 'j“::m ihe hgmewell-balanced
meals trasxonnlly tak
teieph for security' nd to refleve:
lonelineds. and having frigndly nelghtiors. - ,)
¥ For Ahose who decide-to reain Py 1]
home, retirement hodsing expehx
sugpess Qﬂ&ng major repairs.’ or
. riplacement$ Ruch as -new roofing, furs
e ,md npph.nu s before 1etirement

et
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The ma)g wgmpm of muwlyerson\s
" net wortl

tied upgein their houses
B«)m»nmrswllmglhehousenndbw‘in.l

».nmllonvlorr?lm'menllsamuwvesﬂ
y_ment

NOT SELL 1t botore age 63 retire-
Ve

W codnselors said. If the 13 s0ld ",
before then, often for thousandiof dollars *
pital gains °
1ax must be paid unless t ntis ‘ "

inyested irf anothet resident) lﬁmper
This does not limit The chhacdpol s
Anvestment of equuy In the houst into

\  income-producing investments. . * <

clude a pbrtion of the capital gains f)

. Those gt age 65 gre permmed'm;%‘- i’
%( roim *
taxable meqme 1f they have live@ in the |

rceive ajieed I house as aprincipal reyidence for alleast | o
their old age %4 hvenh lghbyrurs precedingthesale. - X

Under federal tax iaws, ifahe adjusted

., priceof thé house (sales price uirus com-
missions and other seligng cxpenses) is 1

+ $35.000 or less. there is no caputal g )
tax if the amdunt Is more ihan 3%
e portion of gain which 13 in §

| ratio to the entirg ghin-as $35,000A0
¢ adjustedsales prlrela exchuded [re
Jll()n
Mty pmp«-rly is 1om(|$' ol
one spouse needs to mee.l 1
qmremenl

I
ek
4 br :
B 1043 'tne maen rent.expenses
-of the eqyitystiteiomeowner pays out-of- LA
pocmrx nsex for repalrs, real estate L
-{axet; {NSYrANGE; heating fuel and other
;qoqu.' f fokal of these expenses, in-
§ percemnge of equity, Is (M, EX
: his sental amaunt were to .
pafter-tax income on the investmem df -

80,000, the money might more than
for a rental unit. .The low tax bracket

‘oygn highe . -
Pagelope Hommel, Unlversuy of
Michigan attorney ant gerontological
* research scientist, recogimended con-
sulyng a lawyer before #€lling a housegor o
making other contractual housing -

. arrangements. In-retirement. a mistake
. mvolving targe arounts of money could
be disastrous .
’ &
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. In additron to ungle-famfly houses.
retired persons have such housing options
as rental’ apartmenls, condominiums
<ceoperatives, mobile hopes and in-
stitutiona) or communal living. ¢
4 Apartr s are units that the renter
’ doesn’townYor whicha monthiy gental fee
paid to the owner The renye? buys a
re to live with widely varying features
¢ The owner pays for ,propérty taxes,
sehold repairs and often heat and
water However, usually the renter
N desn’thave ayard for a garden and some
apartments do not allow pets. In most
communities, reént increases are not con-
«  trolieds so that over the years the cust of
|h¢ uapartment is hikely 1o increase.
‘ B -

.-
A CONDOMINIUM is an apartment or
-ad individuat hguse.oftenn a retirement
commugyty. Yhét you own The purchase
price of a condpmmium also includes »
-share of the land, recreational facilities
and property hetd Incommona fellow
owners There are indiv
costs [t1s hke owning®a house: You can
. Jease, mortgage and wiil a condominium.
But such facilities range in price from
$12,000 to $250,000. although most are n
the $20,000 to $50,000 range.
\ Individual paymeants for a share of the
maintenance €asts and taxes are added,
they canstrain refirefnent budgets unless
zchusecommllmg Increases in them s
ritten into the agreement. .
Cooperatives are usuaily apartment
houses [nstead of buying the individual
unit. asina condomlqlum. 4 cQoperative
dweller owns a share 1n the corporation
that owns the buiiding
‘Cooperauves are not mortgaged, and

"x
"%
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-
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0 lease, seliur will are limited by,
state law and the cooperat|

Cooperative buildings are
the individual apdrtment.
0
LOW COST ahd egfy l:aml'enancc
attract about one retiste in l(llochoose‘
ile home for retirement W%

tions Are Varied

.

Before moving into such an institutlon,
retirement speclalisty said, determine
what individual financial gjligations are,
thatypes and amountsof so¢lal activities,
she friendli of staff bers and
other residenls, whether the meals are
nutritious and the Mnds of rules and

Most are about ¥2 by 65 feet, ar
that Most are permanently msullcd‘lr! a
mobile home park. some of which are ex-
clusively for older people. .

Mobile homég_!rermexptnswc, costing
as hittle as $7.000. THe averaje park spdt
rents foF aboua $50 @ month. Other costs
suchasinsurance, taxgs and maintenance
increase the rent tg$150¢ or more. Mobile
homes depreciate in value, sometimes

~Mmore tha:: 4 percent in a year

Arlene Elmore.xll)u;h .N.C_.pre-
Fetirement expert, recomniended in-
vestigating carefully, using consumer
product guides. before buying a mobile
home. The construction of the unit should
include copper wmng@ple Insulation
and barrier-free desig)

~ Mobilehomes are undesirable if you ob-

|1ect to small living quartecs and close
neighbors or want a house that isa goodin-
vesiment

- 7
FOR MANY single persons, congregate

hiving facilities are a good choice for .,

reurement living. These-facilities vary
from religious-affiliated homes, some of
whichrequireasizabledown payment and
monthly fee inexchange for lifetimecare,
to privately run homes. boarding houses
and high-rise developments in which you
have a small apartment and communal
dintng rooms.

215

le.

r i1 p
trial period before making-a commit.
ment.

Living with one's children or another
relative (s an emotionally charged issue
Accotding to Admunistration on Aging
statistics, about 8 percent of men and 14
percentof women over 65 live with a child
or relative

Retirement counselor Thomas Collins
advises considering a number of warning
signals before moving in with children,
primarily because “'retired people who
Meve into their children’s homes are
usually not very happy."

When an eiderly parent moves in witha
child, he or she enters the pattern of that
household, of which he is not the head. In
many cases this causes thg parent to feel
1l at ease, and eventually he or she stays
for longer and longer periods inhisquar-
ters or outside the house.

Financial problems are the most fre-
quent cause of strile, even among
peaceful families, Ms. Elmore noted.
Careful and realistic ritten
arrangtmentsneed tobe ironedoufyefore
making this move.

Retirement counselors and geron.
tologists said itts psychologically advan.
tageous for retired personstomaintain jn.
dependence for as long as possible. This
includes being master or mistress of your
own living quarters. "

live there for a*
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Eegal Affairs

Providing for the security of survivors

Few persons entering retirement know
about potential jegal problems or their
legal rights and responsibilities. This lack
of know ledge could have a devastating of -
fect om retirement security for therm and
their survivors.

For example: There was a woman who
was the neighborhood "“sweet little okd
lady’’ wnist she became forget ful and wan-
dering at 7. Her daughter cared for her
for two years, until the financial and
emotional burdens became 100 great.

On the advice of her husband, the
daughter asked the court lo appoint her
the guardian for her mother. This gave her
control over her mother, her house,

.

3

possesssons and bank account. The older
woman was placed in an old-age home.

Three years passed. The daughter sold
her mother's home and its furnishings,
and the personal effects disappeared. The
annual review of the guardianship never
took place because of an overburdened
court. Yearsiater, notrace could be found

of the prolit from the house sale, nor was

there any #ign of its furnishings.

The older woman had not attended the
guardianship hearing and hadnosay inthe
arrangemenlts

ANOTHMER CASE is less extreme: In
his will, an executive put hhemlieeslale

Mr. and Mrs. James E. Chestham Discuss Their Will

in a trust fund to be administgred by a
bank This move was designed to protect
s wife. who was thexperienced n finan-
cialdealings. Under the termsof the trust,
all of the income Was to go 1o bis widow,
but she could not draw oa the principal un-
less she had good reasons. -

Five years alter his death, the buying
power of the income from the fund was
greatly reduced by inflation. But the bank
ruled that this was not a good enough
reason for withdrawing any part of the
principal. . .

The legal alfairs of older persons
primarily concern estate planning. buy-
ing and selling property, preparation ln
case of becoming incapacitated,
maurriage and consumer problems.

The principal purpose of estate plann-
tngis toorganize fiscaland legal affairs to
make possible a smooth transition to the
survivors and to provide for their
security.

Spouses should be.informed and par-
ticipate in estate planning, said Wood row
W Hunter, a pre-retirement planning
specialist at the University of Michigan
Institute of Gerontology.

“WIDOWS ESPECIALLY are com-
pletely uninformed about matters of
wills, insurance and important papers.”
he said. “’1t is very important to make a
written inventory of these papers. where
they are and what each describes.”

Getting papers and linances in order
may seem like a morbid preoccupation to
some, byt It is a loving act not to saddle
your heirs with a confusing maze of mis-
placed papers and linancial
arrangements, said Arlene C. Elmore, &
Durham, N.C., pre-retirement educator.

Pagh i1
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cAsualty lmmsrance agemes

Apartmen | loases
Ceoperative, condomisium
Agreements and Jeases

Mortgage payment and status
.

Note paymeni end status

Credi| payments and status

.
Loant owed and siatue
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“Names, stdressm, ieiephons
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the,

Crudit cards, charge sccounts and

C;vuncn.- of duponi|
su(n certificame
Dende

U'S savings bonds
income (an records

{Based on & compelation of University of Michigan and Duke tniveraly

RS retirement training manuals end banking end accounting forms |

v
AN

IR EEm



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

Making d will v 4 relalively edsy
provess and ullirnalely will cost your
heiry.less noney and reduce legal com
phications alter your dedth. said Penelope
Hommgl. a lawyer and resedrch scigntist
af Michigan s [nstitute of Lrerontofogy

Ms Hommel recammended that the
willbe prepared by alawyer Holographic
(handwritten) wills may siave the §30 to
3130 avekage legalafee for their
prepuration, but most of them fal o com
ply with the jaw she said

Having a wilt properly prepared and
witnessed further stimulates those
preparthy for retiremeni (0 select 4
lawyer preferably sumevne younger who
v mure hikely o survive you Wwomen
should afso have wills in some states, 8
hosband might not aulomaticatly inhent
properly she said

THE PERSON wha is named by youn a
will 10 settle your edtate after death iy
calied an executor Alyone of legal age
canbe namex. but chovding anunqualified
retative to be the gkecutar cancomplicate
matiers Uflen the executor is the lawyer
wha drew the will, or a banker famihar
wilth your affairs Sometimes co
execuliry are named, tombining a
professional adviser tike a law yer. invest
fent counsefur or trust officer with a
family member

Wills are & famly matter Spouses and
perhaps older children should be infprm
ed abuut their preparation and tontipts.
Ms Hommel said A copy of & list uf bm-
partant papers and their location should
be attached to the will |

Since many Danks seal safety deposit
boxes alter death if wills are kept there.
they are sometimes Indctessible without
a court order’ But willy can be kept there
or in another safe place. such as with the
lawyer or trust ufficer

After death. the will enters a court
proceds cilled probate that determines
that the will 15 authentic and what the
assets are By preparing o gt of adsets
and updaung 1t periodicallv. you can
facilitgte this process tremendously

YOUR ASSE TS ure then appraised by a
courl uppointed uppraiser Il they tolat
mure than $134.000. the exevulor of the es
tate Nles anestate tax retlurnwiththe [° 8
Treasury Depariment 1 your estate s
less than $134 000, there 1 no tax on it
because there 1v o $34,000 tax credit on in-
heritances which 1s equivalent to a $134.-
DO Gyx exemption By 1981 the maximum
Cregit will grow 10 $47 00, equivalent oy
$175.628 exemplion

1T one 1s married, $23,000 61 hallof the
value bl the estate whicheyeg 1s greater
can be transferred without federal taxa

tion to the survivng spouse For example. |

if & married 1man s esiate were $200.000,

there would be noestatetax bex auseof the

‘marital dedud tion speciflied 1n the will
Usually state inheritance taxes ire bess

b\ \
N\ LA

than federal laxes and are levied agdinst

theheirs. nut theestate Forinstance ona-

$500.000 estale, nunus expenses ang tax
Credits, the federal tax would be $32.920
The Virginia state tax would be §9.062 40
10 this were divided smong 8 widew and
1wo children, the widow would pay $3 800
In state laxes and the two chiidren would
pay $1.631 20 each

Ms Hommel said that because many
banks also sometimes close savtngs and
checking accounts at the ume of death,
the surviving pariner Iy advised o have
ready dccess (0 money to last through the
probute process, which usually takes
aboul Y1Xx months 10 a year

“IF YOU DO NOT HAVE s will. the
statehas madeonefor you, ' saildW Bates
¢ happell, s United Virginia Bank trustof-
ficer Some Stdes. hike Virgima, divide
he estate. g1 INg 4 third 10 the widow and

two-thirds to 1he children Some other |

states halve the estale between wile and
Children

Ms  Eimore advised against giving
away parts of your estate before death
bed ause you will need 1t for income and
personal financial security However,
gif1s in lurge estates cian beused to reduce
inheritance taxes, although the tax
reform act eqoalized gift and inheritance
taxes, Chappell said |

Estate planning 1s what you do for your
survivors, but there ire pther aspects of
fegal matters in relirement that can
directly affect your retirement securlty

Sonietime 1n your life, 101s possidble you
will spend @ period recuperating from an
iliness 11 -this happens. preparations
should be made In case an 1liness or ex-

tended absence temporanily imits yQuE—ie.

amhity to pay vour tills -

Usuitlty retitees work out 40 informal
agreement with someone - 4 close
friend. reiative or accoontant to take
Over i case they cannot manage

Some alternatives are setting up o
puwerofattorney hiringarepresentative
payee or setting up a trust

THE DETAILS of these arrangements
1unbe desc ribed by your allorneyor trust
afficer  None should be taken withoot
legal advice. Ms Hommel said

A power of attorney gives another
person the aothority toactfor you. usually
fur a limited period of me when you are
unable o do so The agreement ceases at
desth

Chappetl cautioned agawnstsubstituting
joint ownership as @ form of power of at
rney ' beciuuse assels in d Joint account
pass tu the partner in the gccount and not
e arding 16 your will

A\ representalivé payee agreement s
sirnilire to the pawer of attorney Under
this arrangement, youappaint i personor
fitanc 1wl institnlion to receive atl or part
of your income and to pay your bills with
thet funds

21u

Trusts thatl are either for a lifetinie or
resocable dre established With & bank or
other instrtution. which will manage your
finances and pay your expenses according
1 the cantractouthned 1n the trust

MANY FAMILIES are aghast at the
Wdea that a famiy member may seek (os
become thetr guardian and refuld to ad-
mit (1t could ever happen o then, My
Hommel said

Stagistics on the frequency of these
courl proveedings have not been com.
piled. but a study by the National Senior
Citizens Law Center in Los Angeles found
that 80 percent of the people named in
Ruardianship proceedings were over 65,
Ninety-three percent of the defendants
were not presentatthe trial and 97percent
were not represented by a lawyer .

In this process. the person s dec larehu
incompetent by the court. and a guardian
I appointed tocontrol both the person and
his estate

Ms Hummel noted that " many of these
involuntary guardianships are begun by
people who could benefit from the wealth
of the older person

Thelegal problemsinbuying and selling
property atfect all aduits, but the effects
af improperly drawn purchases and sabes
could spell financial ruin for someone in
retirement

Some examples include buying land for
a retirement home In an area never
vivited that lacks facilities tobuild, or not
having a tight sale agreement on a house
that could leave a retiree open to suits if
the new owner Subsequently found
something he didn’t like

CONTRACTUAL agreements should
also be reviewed by an attorney wheg a
retiree decides to live with his children,
retatives or friends, or when these per-
sony move 1n with im Families are
reluctant 10 make defgnte financlal and
legal decisions about housing and money
arrangements, often 1o the distress of
both parties, Ms Elmore said.

A prenuplial agreement is recommend-
ed for those who marry in late life. Both
parties usually come (o the marriage with
property and other assets Theagreement
1s a legal contract that spells out the ow-
nership of property and cash accounts

Wills and Soclal Securily benefits are
also revised then Families who mightob-
Ject totatemarriagesif theirinheritances
are threatened often relax objections.
when prenuptial agreements secure their
anhicipated mnernan\ces. Ms. Elmore
sand .

Retirement advisers list these con-.
sumer points to temember in retirement
avaid installment buying with interest
rates Unsuitable Lo a retirement tncome,
be wary of fradulent schemes. and tn-
vestigate tharoughty before sprndmg
maney on get-rich-quick businesses and
franchises that reqiiite down payments

Page 19
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- Leisure Time

.

Finding feelings of accomplishment and satisfaction' :

Retirement frees from 2.000 to 3.000
Mours a year formerly occupied by work

Some retirees panic at the thought of
not having work to do if they. like one
“etired stockbroker from Alexandria,
hag made work the center of their life,
social activities a way to climb mg cor
Porate ladder and weekends and holidays
ttmes to hll with career related projects

Workaholics are I1n the minonity,
however

With thedramatic increase infree ime
since the tuen of the century {work ime
has been reduced about haif), and the re-
centintruduction of four-day workweeks
In some indusiries, Americans have
Geveloped a taste for leisure that \s con-
tributing to the trend toward early
retirement

Hester Abbett With Meg Mead

Page 20
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Infree time. “you have to tailor your in
lerésts to what you want to do and what
voucando Thnking about this forces you
to think aboul your godls. needs lngl
desired satisfaction,” said Woodrow W
Hunter. University of Michigan Institute
of Gerontology retiremeny professor

ITyou want 1o have {. 1ends, keepmen-

tally alert and keep heulthy. you have to
ralor your activities to Schieve this

‘Once you come to grips with this, you
can Nnd thousands of ways (0 be useful.
which 1s what people really are worried
about when they worry about leisure
time ™

Some retirement specialists considera
suceesstul retirement to mean activity at
the same pace in retirement as earhier in
life, “but | feel during retirement we
©ught tobe able to reduce our load," Hun-
ter said "There are some folks who want
fo reduce their involvement to take ime
to relax. to think, to restore. to ask
philosophic, Infrospective questions =

There are numerous opportunities for
older people 1n most communities. but it
'S more important to know why you are
doing some thing than what you are doing.
said several gerontologists

LEISURE without a specific purpose
often becomes boring and frustrating
Purposeful activities can bring feelings
of accamptishment and satistaction

About 14 percent of retired peoplie find
~econd careersa way to Nl lejsure fime

Partial renirement gives "“the best of
buth worlds --more ime -~ more timeand
less pressure while keeping you involved
moa meanmingful. satistying roie n

soclety,’ saida Duke University medical
sociologist, Dr Eraman B Palmore.

The chances of finding a post-
retirement Job in the same field are
greater for those who attained higher
levelsof work skills A Social Security Ad-
Minisiration survey showed that the num-
ber of retired older workers continuing
pre-retirement occupations ranged from
60 percent for factory workers to 87 per-
Cenl for professional and technical
workers However,avenll,onlylm“
percent of those over 65 work tn any form
of tull or part-time employment e

Older workers have several pluses. The
National Association of Manufsciurers
repofied that older workers are better on
the job. stay longer. are absent fewer
diys. have i lower accident rate, have
more experience, work harder and get
<long better than younger workers
However, sometimes the pace of work
has 10 be 1ailored to their individual
capabilines

THE CHANCES of finding a job after
relirement yre not so good, though Socie-
ty ts geared to supply jobs for younger and
middle-aged people, and older workers
are often stuck in jobs of lesser impor-
tance with attendant low wages

Men over 65 in the work force outnum-
ber women of the same age 2-to-1. sald
Herman B Brotman, former chief
statistiian and program developer for
the 32Ing section of the Department of
llealth, Education and welfare

The benents ot meaningful contact
withather peopleand the wages, although
low. may make it worth taking part-time
or simpler yobs than were heid belore



Stories abound ul employees who
retired 1o purlay 4 bobby inferest inty 4
profitabie weunnd career  But without

uaste (1aanc 18l reserves and dustness

JRlimen uadertaking 4 full Nedged

iness  venlure i relirement 13 an
unrea) dream. ' Dr Patmore said

Prafessionsl people better educaled
and less dependent on a regular
paychech, sometimes returi 10 the work
force after retirement of retire early 10
begin second (areers An example is an
engineer who relired eirly (o study o
counting and now runs his owa firm

The Small Business Admimsiration
4 valuable wurce of information abour
such ventures notey that suflicien!
LAPItal to vt up the business ininiallv and
Iide ¢ over the first vear or two of
development 15 esseniial  lnsulficient
maney and poor purchasing and
marketing shiliy sccount for most
Business and franchise losses Half of ait
new Dusinesses fatl inihe irst three vesdss
and anacher (hard fal before the fifte
vear

IF YOU HAVE . high level f erergy
and akill 1 thedield do same homework
and Conspit 4o mpelent business accoun
tanl ur atiorney befare setitng up shup.
Hunter suit

However  amal] a8 home businesses
ol as comvertinga roum in your home
into 4 profit produging center fof smah
HeMs 0r seryices fequirte less overhead
Sometimes hubbies such as patnling
wodwolking wedving  <ewing crafis
putiery t the quality s
can be source ol retire

and
professienal
ment ienme
Lensure time s ot frequently o
Cupsed N oretitenient 1IN mudch the same
LAY
Hoaoo ve dbwaas bgen g toiner and
s vou re ikely loconiinue tobe *aig
Line Hamdton a University of Michigan
edus ational gerontolagisy i aou
Riaven t vou te less hikely to become in
tereated fnough tnget vourseiforgamzed
oo aut to it
Sometimes  afler  retirement
REeRariuus people whao have been we as
rt ol ther [ob retreat because thereis
1 fear of rejection When sonr work
doeesn 1rg|l4mm~ vout dertg there vour
first thoughis are | wonder ff Leandon
wd 1 owonder 6 thes 1L ke me 10y g
Tempor iry Low aedb esteem that divap
Pt gerimg vl ed n

I edrlier

Dears
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something Going (0 8 new place with
someone oflen heips  she said

THE ROLE of social activilies in
leishre time is one of the mos! important
paris ol uung thal nime. retirement
specialings vay

11 you asked me where people ought to:

pul their bels. I'd say 1t ts on mainisining
SO 1al contacts and stimulating \he mind
10 keep 11 actives” Hunter said. ' These
dre the fringe benefits of retirement
When evervthing else gives way, these
will sigv
Ledrning how to niake and maintain
friendshipe requires an awareness of sell
Some people say Ihey prefer being alone
hul ufien i1's bex uuse they never work at
making friendships.” Ms Hamilton said
1ty one 1hing to value your privacy and
11 & woumething eise (o become dependen|
IN 4 very narrow range of relalivaships
Yougdon | hive 10be turned gn by large
- 1owis bul you have 10 be abie 10 handle
« The PEron w15 pever able (0 walk
-atu A room of peopie comfortghly i in
[rinthie when theit primary relationships
are gode  she said
Sometimes making new friends s har
“er for men than women. o whom “men
Jurn over the sociad hife during work

XY AN said Arlene ¢ Elmore, a
Durham N pre-relirement training
expert Men can t afford not 1o know

these skills because after retirement
mrany work related associanions
evaporate

Mos| Menhayean average of five good
friends they enjoy being with Hut these
freengs if thev are all the same age. may
& You need friends of all ages, some at
feast 10 veidrs younger Deliberately
Make Iriends 11 takes about 10 vears 1o
becume Close friends 7 she said

VOILUNTEERING won't bring in-
come but It witi Dring rewards 1hat come
friem dorng something for someone eive
[n sddition to benefiting the recipient of
vour anlunteer efforts you receive the
salinfucion of developing friendships
within Ihe urganiZzation you belong to and
veut sense of splf-worih s increased

Travel ofien Sgoal fof retirement 134
tedrninle iim ifgyou has e planned for the
el conts OF select Cheaper means of
teasehing ke Camping

Hut purpoveless meandering will not be
eroovable lung Renrement counselors
Te <.mm.-ndl ,ul vou delay travel plans

Q1.

~)

unlil You hdave adjusied to being retired
Then plan & Inp with a purpose in mind
tine retired couple iving in Texas iravels
cach year to Pennsylvania to visit
relalives .

As parl of Ihe I11p, they buwy antiques

Jhat 1hey can selt in Texas [of much more

than Ihey paid for them °

Adult education IS expecied 10 be one of
ihe main uses of leisur® time in future’
years Now only about 2 percent of those
nver 85 participate in formal edutation
programs, actording to & Louls Narria
poli for the Nalionai Counciton the

Adult education 18 far removed
ihe concept that leurning in adulthood is
only for illilerates . -

ONE OF THE fasi-growing segments
of the college population is people return-
ing to cullege alter their children are
grown. nuted Dr Janet Lawrence, a
specialist in the social psychology of
iearning at the Universaly of Michigan‘s
tenler for Researgh on Lewrning and
Teaching -

Some vider persoms develop blocks to
education decause of previous “'poor ex-
periences in lormal education and fears
of possible embarrassment 1f they do not
du well in the courses.” she said Class
audilors, however. are not graded

Bul Dr Howard Y McClusky,
professor emeritus of educational psy-
chology at the University of Michigan,

said that 'researchon the ability to learn”

1s emphatically in favor of oider peopie’s
abihity 1o learn, which does not decline in
old age Performance sometimes doesn't
equal capacity 1f the student has been
away from learning for a while This may
ook |0 the lay public like plder students
are dumb, but they are not

“Once an oider person s in theswingof
things. the older person 1s not only as good
as he ever was, but in some things even
better. gmpeciatly in history,
generalizations and conceplualization A
recent siudy showed that after eight
weeks of clav r people were more
creative than norm for universily
\lud?"l\‘” he

Wilh 4 reduction in enrollment -xjec-
1ed because of decreased birth rates,
colleges can expect empty classrooms
that tuold be filled by older people, said
Aichigan educalional gerontologist Cari
lrahce *

If people saractive mentally and in

tellectually. they retain (hetr ability (o
think and reason * Hrahce said



. 218

Reprinted From the °
Rirhmond Times-Bisputch
an lfmhle o =
O
IS
4




